Attach.

@ Please join us on the Plaza at 4:40 p.m. for a seasonal musical

il

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 30, 2010

5:00 P.M. - 8:00 P.M.
Board Room, Plaza Level (2nd Floor), Education Centre
515 Macleod Trail SE, Calgary, Alberta

presentation by students from F.E. Osborne School

&

Conflict of Interest reminder: Trustees must disclose any potential pecuniary interest in any matter before the
Board of Trustees, as set forth in the agenda as well as any pecuniary interest in any contract before the Board
requiring the Board’s approval and/or ratification.

TOPIC

Agenda

Verbal

1.0

2.0

3.0

3.1

4.0

5.0

51

52

5.3

54

55

Who
CALL TO ORDER, NATIONAL ANTHEM AND WELCOME Chair
CONSIDERATION/APPROVAL OF AGENDA Chair
SCHOOL/SYSTEM PRESENTATIONS
Ends 1: Mega End Presentation — Career and Technology Centre and M. Bolender

Dr. E. P. Scarlett High School

HONOURS AND RECOGNITIONS

PUBLIC CONVERSATION AND INFORMATION
Report from Chair and Trustees

Report from Chief Superintendent

Public Question Period

(An opportunity for the public and/or stakeholders to raise questions and seek Public
clarification on educational matters with the trustees. Fill out “Public Question

Period” form on the table in the foyer and submit to the Corporate Secretary in

writing or electronically to corpsec@chbe.ab.ca no later than 5 hours prior to the

scheduled start time of the meeting. This form is also available in Appendix C of

the Board Meeting Procedures. The person asking the question must be

present at the meeting.)

Stakeholder Reports

(An opportunity for stakeholder groups or the public to verbally address the Board for ]
3 minutes on any educational issue, to a maximum of 5 reports per meeting. Advise Public
the Corporate Secretary at least 10 minutes prior to the commencement of the meeting

if you wish to do a stakeholder presentation.)

Trustee Inquiries

Time

5 min.

2 min.

15 min.

30 min.



Calgary Board of Education

Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Attach. TOPIC
6.0
P.6-1 6.1
P.6-83 6.2
7.0
pP.7-1 7.1
P.7-37 7.2
8.0
9.0
9.1
9.1.1
P.9-129
P.9-125
P.9-54 g1
P9-50 913
9.2
PO9-71 9921

Who

ACTION ITEMS

Presentation and Consideration of Audited Financial Statements Trustee
(That the Board of Trustees approves the Audited Financial Statements for the Bazinet
year ended August 31, 2010, including the Auditors’ Report thereon, dated

November 9, 2010, the Unaudited Schedules to the Financial Statements as

submitted, and the Financial Statements and Statistical Information for the

year ended August 31, 2010, for submission to the Minister of Education.)

Revised Meeting Time of a Scheduled Regular Board Meeting Board
(THAT the Board of Trustees approves a revised meeting time for the

scheduled meeting of December 7, 2010, to allow for an in-camera session to

take place from 12 Noon to 3:00 p.m., followed by the public session of the

meeting at 5:00 p.m.).

MONITORING AND RESULTS
Annual Monitoring of Ends 1: Mega End N. Johnson

Annual Monitoring of EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the N. Johnson
Board of Trustees

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW

CONSENT AGENDA
Board Consent Agenda

Approval of Minutes

e Regular Meeting held November 2, 2010

¢ Regular Meeting held November 16, 2010

(THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Minutes of the Regular Meetings
held November 2, 2010 and November 16, 2010, as submitted.)

EducationMatters (Quarterly Report)
(THAT the financial report for EducationMatters be received for information
and for the record, in the form as submitted.)

Trustee Liaison Report re Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA )Board
of Directors

(THAT the ASBA liaison report containing the ASBA Board of Directors’
Meeting Highlights dated September 9-10, 2010 and November 4-5, 2010 be
received for information.)

Chief Superintendent Consent Agenda
Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy

(THAT the Ten Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy
be received for information and the record.)

Agenda — November 30, 2010
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Time

30 min.

5 min.

60 min.

20 min.

5 min.
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TOPIC

P.9-1

P.9-31

P. 9-65

9.2.2 2010-2011 School Enrolment Report (EL-14E (e))
(THAT the School Enrolment Report for the 2010-2011 school year be
received for information and for the record.)

9.2.3 imagineCALGARY Partnership Update (EL-3, 1(m))
(THAT the Board of Trustees receives the imagineCALGARY Partnership
Update for information and for the record.)

9.2.4 Report on Financial Status of Operating Budget as at August 31, 2010 and
Preliminary Financial Results for the Year Ending August 31, 2010
(THAT the report and attachments be received for monitoring information
and for the record, and that approval be given to the carry forward of
2009/10 designated operating funds to 2010/11, as identified in the report.)

10.0 TRUSTEE NOTICES OF MOTION

11.0 IN-CAMERA SESSION

120 ADJOURNMENT

Who

Chair

Agenda — November 30, 2010
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
November 30, 2010
To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Report on the Financial Status of the Operating Budget as at
August 31,2010 and Unaudited Financial Results for the Year Ending
August 31,2010
Purpose: Monitoring Information and for the Record
Governance Policy Reference: EL-10: Budgeting Process

EL-11: Financial Condition

Originator: Deborah L. Meyers, Superintendent, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Treasurer

Resources:  Wayne T. Braun, Director, Corporate Financial Services

L.

II.

Jon R. Anderson, Manager, Budget and Corporate Reporting
RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended:
1. THAT information regarding all budget revisions made during the period June 1,

2010 to August 31, 2010 inclusive (identified in this report and in Attachment I), be
received for monitoring information and for the record.

2. THAT the 2009/10 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2010 (identified in the
Attachment II) be received for monitoring information and for the record.
ISSUE

In accordance with the Board of Trustees' Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition,
the Chief Superintendent shall not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a
material deviation from budget policy, and shall not fail to inform the Board of Trustees
in a timely manner of significant deviations or projected deviations in either the income
or expenditures in the approved budget. The Chief Superintendent is also required to
provide a report to the Board prior to November 30 regarding the actual use of operating
and capital reserves in comparison to Board approval commitments, and this was
provided on November 2, 2010 to the Board of Trustees through the fourth quarter
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Capital Budget and Reserves Status Report as at August 31, 2010. In addition, at the
same Board meeting, the Board of Trustees received and approved The Financial Status
of Operating Reserves and Designated Funds as at August 31, 2010.

III. BACKGROUND

Each spring the Calgary Board of Education prepares its operating budget for the
following fiscal year. Quarterly and annual reports are presented to the Board of Trustees
to provide updates on the status of the results of operations. These results are compared
to the approved and current operating budget to meet the monitoring requirements of EL-
11: Financial Condition.

This report includes:

« The Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expenses with budget
revisions and applicable transfers for the period ended August 31, 2010
(Attachment I).

o The 2009/10 Budget Variance Report (Attachment IT).

IV. ANALYSIS
Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

A number of budget transfers were made during the fourth quarter of 2009/10. to reflect
revenue and expenditure adjustments. Transfers generally reflect the updated plans of
schools and service units.

During the fourth quarter, the following net budget revisions and transfers occurred.

($ millions)

Net revenue transfers to partially offset changes in expenditures described
below. 2 W

Net expenditure transfers related mainly to finalized enrolments, projects to
be completed in 2010/11, changes in School Generated Funds to reflect
changes in presentation in compliance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). (18.5)

Transfers regarding multi-year projects within service units and unspent
decentralized allotments at schools. (3.8)

Reduction in Capital Assets Acquired related mainly to changes in scope
and delays in completion of Board funded capital projects. 6.2

Transfer from Capital Carryforward to partially offset the Capital Assets
Acquired described above. (5.6)

Net budgetary impact -

[}
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2009/10 Budget Variance Report

The 2009/10 Budget Variance Report highlights variances between the current budget
and actual revenue and expense. The principle components of the variances and the

resulting small operating surplus are as follows:

Revenues

« Basic Provincial Instruction and Differential Grants mainly due to
finalized enrolments.

«  Other Provincial Educational Grants to reflect confirmed funding.

+ School Generated Funds due to higher than planned activities at the
school level.

« Other revenues mainly due to unrealized gain on investments and
increased program, lease and other revenue earned.

Expenses

« Salaries and benefits: mainly due to non-certificated Service Unit
gapping, partially offset by higher average teacher salary and
benefits, use of substitute teachers and by use of temporary staff in
Service Units.

» Supplies and services: mainly due to reduced spending for licensing
and computer hardware, utilities, and other net favourable variances
in Service Units.

« School funded activities: due to higher than planned activities at the
school level.

« Amortization and Interest due to additional amortization of capital
assets acquired in 2008/09 and increased interest paid on energy
retrofit projects.

Transfers from (to) Operating Reserves/Designated Funds

» Reflects reserve transfers as approved in the Report of Financial
Status of Operating Reserves report presented at the November 2,
2010 Public Meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Capital Assets Paid by Operating Funds

« Capital assets acquired: comprised mainly of delays in completion of
Board funded capitol projects.

« Transfer from Capital Carryforward: due to an approved unplanned
change in the capital carryforward.

Transfer from/to Capital Reserves
« Results from actual expenditures less than originally approved
capital reserve transfer.

Net Favourable Operating Variance
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Favourable
(Unfavourable)
($ millions)

1.3

(1.6)

2.7

1.8

2.7

(0.7)

3.7

(10.3)

(VS



VI.

VIL.
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FINANCIAL IMPACT
Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

The Calgary Board of Education's budgeted net financial results do not change based on
the budget revisions or transfers identified in Attachment I.

2009/10 Budget Variance Report

As at August 31, 2010, the Calgary Board of Education had a small favorable net
variance of $0.5 million on overall expenditures and revenues for the year ending August
31, 2010, including approved reserve provisions. On an approved modified expenditure
budget of $1.02 billion, this net variance, and resulting net operating surplus, represents
approximately 0.05% of the CBE’s overall operating budget for 2009/10.

IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

Superintendents’ Team will be assessing the 2010/11 Operating Budget to determine if
any changes in courses of action, as determined in the preparation and approval of the
2010/11 Operating Budget, are required as a result of the conclusion of the Calgary
Board of Education’s 2009/10 fiscal year.

CONCLUSION
This report represents the fourth quarterly monitoring report to the Board of Trustees in

connection with the 2009/10 Operating Budget for the Calgary Board of Education, as
required by Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition.

‘»-ﬁ--c””? L 7//’ e
!
'

Naomi E. Johnson
Chief Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Altachment I: Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense with Revisions and Transfers during the period

from June 1, 2010 to August 31, 2010

Attachment II: ~ 2009/10 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2010
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Attachment I

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF 2009/10 ANNUAL BUDGETED REVENUE AND EXPENSE
WITH REVISIONS AND TRANSFERS DURING THE PERIOD

JUNE 1, 2010 TO AUGUST 31, 2010

2009/10
Approved Revisions/
Budget Transfers 2009/10 Current
Effective June 1, 2010 to  Annual Budget as
Description June 1, 2010 August 31,2010 at August 31,2010
(5000) ($000) (5000)

REVENUE
Alberta Education grants

Base provincial instruction 588,397 - 588,397

Differential cost funding and Transportation 224,125 - 224,125

Provincial priority targeted grants 66,766 (143) 66,621

Other provincial education grants 24,880 (1,724) 23,156

Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) Support 18,196 (2,690) 15,506

Provincial Capital support 20,882 - 20,882
School Generated Funds (SGF) 7,529 27,443 34,972
Other revenue 51,089 (1,188) 49,901
Total revenue 1,001,864 21,696 1,023,560
EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits 786,627 (3.119) 783,508
Supplies and services 175,959 (5,839) 170,120
Interest 2,807 - 2,807
School funded activities 7,529 27,443 34,972
Amortization of capital assets 33,710 3 33,710
Total expense 1,006,632 18,485 1,025,117
Excess (deficiency) of operating revenue

over expense for the year (4,768) 3,211 (1,557)
Transfer from/(to) operating

reserves/designated funds 11,135 (3.804) 7,331
Add/(deduct) capital items paid by operating funds

Capital assets acquired (35,920) 6,180 (29,740)

Amortization reserve 15,193 - 15,193

Capital debt repayments (689) 5 (684)

Transfer from (to) school purchased assets 1,454 - 1,454

Transfer from capital carryforward 7,074 (5,592) 1,482
Transfer from/(to) capital reserves

Building and equipment reserves 6,521 - 6,521

Net operating surplus
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Attachment II

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
2009/10 BUDGET VARIANCE REPORT
(As at August 31, 2010)

2009/10

2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Annual

Annual Current Annual Variance
Revenue and  Budget, Effective  Favourable/

Description Expense August 31, 2010 (Unfavourable)
(8000 ($000) (8000
REVENUE
Alberta Education grants:
Base provincial instruction 588,839 588,397 442
Differential cost funding and Transportation 224,959 224,125 834
Provincial priority targeted grants 66,615 66,621 (6)
Other provincial education grants 21,564 23,136 (1,592)
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) Support 15,506 15,506 -
Provincial Capital support 20,908 20,882 27
School Generated Funds (SGF) 37.651 34,972 2,679
Other revenue 54.032 49,901 4131
Total revenue 1,030,074 1,023,560 6.515
EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits 781,723 783,508 1.785
Supplies and services 164,826 170,120 5,294
Interest 2,942 2,807 (135)
School funded activities 37,651 34,972 (2,679
Amortization 34.296 33,710 (586)
Total expense 1.021.438 1,025,117 3.679
Excess of operating revenue over expense for the vear 8.636 {1,557) 10,194
Transfer from (to) operating reserves/designated funds
Transportation Fee Stabilization 1,665 580 1,085
Unrealized Investment Gains/Losses (1,750) - (1,750)
Utility expense stabilization (31D 1,910 (2.222)
Administrative Systems Renewal - 894 (894)
General Instruction Reserve . 2,358 (2,358)
System Transformation Reserve (300) - (500)
Fiscal Stability Reserve (1,129 2,500 (3,629)
School decentralized budgets (1,303) (1,303) -
Other designated funds 392 392 -
Unrestricted operating surplus for the vear,
before capital items 5.700. 5,774 (74)
Add/(deduct) capital items paid by operating funds
Capital assets acquired (24,545) (28,286) 3,741
Amortization reserve 15,208 15,193 15
Capital debt repayments (684) (684) -
Transfer from capital carryforward 1.759 1.482 277
Subtotal (8,262) (12,295) 4,033
Transfer from/(to) capital reserves
Building and equipment reserves 3,100 6.521 3.421)
Net operating surplus (deficit) 538 - 338
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGEMDA,

Movember 30, 2010

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
PRESENTATION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS® REPORT

RECOMMENDATION:
THAT the Board of Trustees approves:

1) the Audited Financial Statements of the Calgary Board of Education for the year ended August

3, 2010, including the Auditors’ Report thereon, dated November 9, 2010, and the Unaudited
Schedules to the Financial Staterments as submitted, for submission to the Minister of
Education; and

2} the Calgary Board of Education Financial Statements and Statistical Information for the year

ended August 31, 2010, including the Auditors' Report thereon, dated November 9, 2010, as
submitted, for submission to the Minister of Education.

BEACKGROUND

In eccordance with section 146 of the Schoo! Act, the Board of Trustess must appoint an auditor, The Board of
Trustees appointed KPMG LLP, who has now completed their examinaton of the 200910 financial

statements. The auditors’ professional apinion on these financial statements is included in the Auditors'
Report, dated Movember 2, 2010,

Fursuant to section 151{1) of the Schoo! Act, the auditor must send to the Minister, an or before November 30
in each year, copies of

&) the financial siatements,

(b the auditar's report on the financial staternents, and

ich any written communication between the auditor and the board respecting the systems af internal
control and accounting procedures of the board

in order {0 assist the Board of Trustees with #s work, the board established an Audit Commities with the
fediowing respansibilities that specifically apply 1o the audited financial staterments:

(@) to monitor the auditors’ performance and repart to the Board of Trustees annually,

by to review the annual audit plan and recommend its approval to the Board of Trusteas.

ic} toreview the audited figures in the annual financial statements and the audit findings report and repont
ta the Board of Trustees.

The Audit Committee has reviewed copies of all of the above infarmation, and nas discussad all of these
documents with the auditors and with senior Administration, The Committee recommends that the Board of
Trustees approves these siatements and the Auditors’ Raport theream, 35 submittad.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustes Bazine
Char, Audil Commitissa

Afpchments
v Audiled Financia Stalemenis of the Calgery Board of Education Tor the year ended Sugust 321, 2010, mcliding the Auditons’
Repart therean, for tha Year Ended Augusl 31, 2000 for suamission 52 Albara Education
= Unsudbed Schedules to the Financial Statemants for the Year Ended August 31, 2000, for suamisson 1o Albens Educalion.

#  Financial Sfatemenis and Stabssical information for the Year Ended Sugusd 51 2000, incisding the Auditers’ Repsdt Ihemeon, for
submiEsion t3 Albera Edussalan
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Echool Jurisdicton Tode 3030

AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2010
[School Act, Sections 147(Z)(a), 148, 151(1) and 276]

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Legal Hams of Scheo Juisdiction

515 MACLEOD TRAIL 5W, CALGARY, ALBERTA T2G 2L8
Whailing Address

Tel: (403) 294-8211 Fax: (403) 294-8254

Talapieang sl Fax Mumbers

SCHOOL JURISDICTION MANAGEMENT'S RESPOMSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REFORTING

Tha financal slatements of *CALGARY BOAND OF EDUCATON

presanted (o Albera Education have bean prepaned by achoal jurisdiclion management which has resgonalbdity for
their preparatian, inbegrily and objeclivily. The inancial statemenis, including notes, have been praparad in accordance
with generaly accepled accounling prin::‘ple: and Tollow formal prederibed by Albara Education

In fulliling iis reporting responsbiilies, managemenl has maintained imermal conlrol systems and procedunes designed
ko provide reasanable assurance that the schacd unsocion's assels are saleguanded, that ransacions are executed
im aecordance with sppropniabe aulhanzation and that accounting recards may be relied upan o properky reflect the
schoal juriadiction’s ranaactions. Tha effecliveness of the conirel syshems & supporied by e selection and training
af qu’hlﬁbﬂ personnal, an nrgaﬂtau-:ﬂai shraciure thal provides an appropriate fvision of respansibdity and a shong
syshem of budgetary conirol.

Board of Trusiees Responsibill
The ultimate responsiikty for the ﬁ'lanl:u:l glalements Beg with the Board of Trusless, The Boand resiessad the gudibed
fimancial stalemants with management in detail and appravesd the financial stalements for nelease.

Extarnal Auditors
The Board appeirds external audilon i audi the financial stalemants and meats wih the auditon o review their fndings
The external audilons were given full Bccess 1o school jurisdiction reconds.

Deciaration of Management and Board Chavman . )

To tha bast of our knowledge and belied, these irandal statements reflect, m &1 material respects, (e financial peddton
and resulis of operations and cash flows far the year in accordance with generaly accepled scoaunling princples and
falcee 1he finandial raparing requirements prescrioed by Alberta Education

BOARD CHAIR
"DRIGINAL BIGNED™
Rame Hnabsm
SLFFERINTEMDENT
HAQMI E. JOHNSON "
Rama Nalam

BECHETART THEASURER O TREASLRER

DEBORAH L MEYERS "ORIGINAL SIONED"

3 30-Nov-10
Baard-approved Ralgass Date

g.£. ALBERTA EDUCATION, Financial Reporting & Accountabality Branch,
Bt Flope Commercn Fisce, 10155102 Streel, Edsaman AR T42 408

EMAIL: Cindy. Wangifgov.ab.ca
FHOME: [T G44-5673 (Taoll frea 113-0202)


mailto:Cindy.Wang@gov.ab.ca

School Jurisdiction Code: 3030
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KPMG LLF Talephane (403 £91-2000
Charersd Aosauntants Fax (&03 B9 -9008
AT 205 - Sth Svsrue SW Iriesnmat WA DTS

Calgary 8B TZP 4B9

AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

We have audited the siatement of financial position of the Calgary Board of Educsation (the
"Corporation”) as at August 31, 2010 and the statements of revenues and expenses, cash flows,
changes in net assels and capital allocations for the year then ended. Thess financial
statements, which are presented in the format prescrbed by Alberta Education, are the
responsibility of the Calgary Board of Education’s Administration. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statemants based on our audit,

We conducted our audil in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whethar tha financial statements ara free of material misstatement. An awdit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assassing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Corporation as at August 31, 2010 and the results of its operations, cash flows,
changes in net assets and capital allocations for the year then ended in accordance with

Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and the presentation requirements of Alberts
Education.

LN (trP

Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Canada
Mowvermbear 9, 2010

EFRAG LLF @ a8 Caraden breessd Latdng patnscshes ons s rmamban e oal e PG ﬁ Vo
ravbaork of ndepaccont rerdzar demin aSabaiod weiR SRR ETHe 0N COO0eaa

17K Imiarratawed ‘L @ Semds i b
E PR Dby (e ki) Salalesl 1 KRG LLP
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STATEMEMNT OF FINANCIAL POSITICON
as at Augest 31, 2010
0 debas)
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Sehool Jursdiction Codes 3080

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
for the Year Ended Augus: 31, 2010
s

Actual
210 009
Aciual {Muate} {hie]

§1.023,658, 182

_[rocte 10
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ke 18

Totsl Amertization of cdpilal aanais

Intemed on capilsl detn
Supported
MUnsepparted

Total nteres? on capdin! debd

Oiher iterest ond charges

| Lomsns on dispasal of chpile asses s
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Extraord nary ltem
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STATEMEMNT OF CASH FLOWS
Tor the Yaar Erded August 31, 2010
(in dalars)

|CASH FLOWS FROM:

|A. OPERATIONS

Excess (deficiency] of revenues oyer sxpenses
ﬂ.d! |M ilEirs m‘taﬂ&ﬂm cash
Amarlizalion of capital sllocalions revanie
Talal ammnm
Gains on deoeeal of capilal assels
Loeses on disposal of capilal assaks
[:hm in:
Accouns receivable
EE‘BL"! ard ather cumant assals
Long berm accourts recaivable
Lang lerm mvesimanis

Accounts pavable and accrsed liabiilies
Diefarred revenus

Todad aash floews Trom Investing aciivites

(582,812 558

C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Captal allocations

Inaug of long term cakd
Repayman of long term debt
FAild back: suppa R i

528,430,397

|Met cash flows from during the year (€72 280, 303 1548, 753,
|=nh and temporary investmants, net of bank indebledness, at fawsg. 31109
{Cash and temporary investments, net of bank indebtedness, at Aug. 3110 $42.308, 704 51654 868,177

Mote:  Fleasa input “{Restated]” whane Actual 2009 comparatives are nol as presanted in the finalzed 2008- 7008 Audited Financial Statement
fled wiilh Alberta Educaticn,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS School Jurisdicion Code:  [ISISINNT
for tha Year Ended August 31, 2010

{in dollars)
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School Jurisdiction Coda;

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL ALLOCATIONS

{EXTERMNALLY RESTRICTED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS QONLY)

for the Year Ended August 31, 2010

{in dollars}
Deferrad Unamortized
Capital Capital
Allocations Aliccations
Balance at August 31, 2009 £31.77.916 5382 541,539
Prior peried adjustmants 14 £
Adjusted balance, August 31, 2009 231.377.016 3352.541,5349
i
Restricted capital allocations from:  Alberia Educaton including school and modular projects 51 '_ 471
Other Governrent of Alberta 50 |
Fedarel Gowermnment and First Nations 50
Ohar sourcas 50
Interest earnad on provincial government capital allocations 'E
Other capital grants and denations E-.
Met procesds on disposal of supporied capital assets 50
Insurance proceads |and related interest) 50
thnnud capital assets (amortizatda, & fair market vahma) 5l
Transferred in capital assets (amartizable, @ nel book valie) $162,293.297 |
Current Year Debenture Principal Repayment £5,240 490

Expended capital allocations - current year

Daoduct:

Balance at August 31, 2040

Het book value of supported capital assets dispositions, write-offs, or transfer; Other

Capital alocations amortized to revenuwee

(g21.841,233| s91 8013

50 $226.768
5230685154 $553.155 805

* irasinsciure Mardenance Rensswalinfrastniciune Mairhenance Frogram alccabons ang exsciuded from fhis Slatement. sinca Those canitibutions are not

axternally ressiractod to caphal
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2010

ORGANIZATION

The Calgary Board of Education (the “Corporation™) is an independent legal entity with an elected
Board of Trustees as stipulated in the School Act (Alberta). The Corporation is registered as a
charitable organization under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and, therefore, is exempt from income tax
and may issue official receipts 1o donors for income tax purposes.

The Corporation provides a full range of educational services for all instructional programs ranging
from Kindergarten through Grade 12, In addition, the Corporation demonstrates its commitment o
life-long learning by offering continuing education programs for adults.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a) Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAFP), and are presented in the formal prescribed
by Alberia Education. A precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon
future events and involves the use of estimates and approximations, which have been made using
professional judgment. Actual results could differ from these estimates or approximations. In
administration’s opinion, these financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits
of materiality and within the framework of the accounting policies summarized below,

The financial operations of EducationMatters (formerly The Calgary Board of Education
Foundation) is a not-for-profit foundation which promotes and supports public education in
Calgary (see Note 15 (b)) and 15 a controlled entity whose financial results are not consolidated in
these financial statements, as permitted under CICA Handbook Section 4450.14,

Budget information is unaudited and 15 presented m the Statement of Revenue and Expense and
in the related schedules for information purposes only and represents the original budget
submitted to Alberta Education in June, 2009, as amended during the fiscal year to reflect
identified changes in circumstances relating to operating and program changes. The Board of
Trustees approves the onginal budgel and momtors all subsequent changes through gquarterly
reports of revisions and amendments.

{(b) Changes in accounting policies

On September 1, 2009, the Corporation adopted the amendment to the existing CICA Handbook
Section 4400 “Financial Statement presentation by not-for-profit orgamzations” such that
revenues amd expenses should be recognized and presented at their gross amounts when an
organization is acting as a principal in transactions. As such, school generated funds revenues
and expenses are reported separately and on a gross basis for the year ended August 31, 2010.
This change has been applied retroactively with restatement and has resulted in an increase 1o

Mides %= | ﬁ 1 [.]



{e)

(d)

school gencrated funds of $28,368,985 and school funded activities of 528,368,985 lor the year
ended August 31, 2009, There is no effect on excess of revenue over expense.

CICA Handbook Section 4470 “Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit
Organizations™ establishes disclosure standards for not-for-profit organizations that ¢hoose to
classify its expenses by function and allocates its expenses among the functions. The main
features of the new section are:

# A requirement for an organization that allocates its fundraising and general support
expenses 1o other functions to disclose the policies adopted for the allocation of expenses
among functions, the nature of the expenses being allocated, and the basis on which such
allecations have been made; and

* A requirement for an organization to disclose the amounts allocated from each of its
fundraising and general support functions and the amounts and functions 1o which they
have been allocated.

There was no impact in adopting this section of the Handbook, as the Corporation does nol
allocate expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and short-term investments with original
maturity of 90 days or less.

Invesiments

Held-for-trading assets are measured at fair value each reporting period. Unrealized gains and
losses on held-for-trading financial instruments are recognized in eamings.

Short-term invesiments are investments held with a maximum of a one-year view to ensure the
timely settlement of the Corporation’s financial obligations. Investments usually consist of
treasury bills and money market investments and are recorded at Fair value,

Long-term investments are investments held for a period of approximately three to five vears,
unless signilicant unforeseen factors occur. Long-term investmenis may include corporate and
government bonds and equities, and are recorded at fair value.

Motes -2 ﬁ Ij.



(e)

(f

(&)

(h}

Inventories

Inventories consist of maintenance and school supplies and are valued at the lower of average
cost and replacement cost, or net realizable value. Inventory is expensed when items are shipped
o schools or departments.

Capital Assets and Capital Revenue

Capital assets are recorded at cost.  Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates
which amortize the cost of the capital assets over their estimated useful lives. The amortization
rates applied are as follows:

Land improvements 20 ycars
Buildings 10 - 40 vears
Fumniture and equipment 4 - 10 years

No amortization is provided on construction in progress, as these assets are not ready and are not
available for use. Once completed and placed into use, these assets are amortized in accordance
with the Corporation's above amortization policy,

Certain capital assets, including new school construction and major renovations (except
administrative buildings and replacement of equipment and wehicles), arc funded by Alberta
Education when approved, and are based on the Corporation’s three-year capital plan, When
received, capital grants for these assets are deferred and reflected in revenue and matched to the
amortization expense over the lives of the related assets. Provincially funded Infrastructure
Maintenance Renewal (IMR) projects that improve or sustain the operating functionality of
building components or land improvements and do not extend the useful life of the underlying
asset are expensed.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Corporation recognizes the fair value of an Asset Retirement Obligation (“ARO") in the
period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of capital assets.
Certain building assets contain some asbestos.  Although the asbestos is appropriately contained
in accordance with environmental regulations, it is the Corporation’s practice to, if necessary,
remediate any asbestos upon disposal of a capital asset. The Corporation recognizes an ARO
only when those assets have been approved by the Board of Trustees for disposition and when
the fair value of the liability can be reasonably determined.

The fair value of the estimated ARO is recorded as a long term liability, with a comesponding
increase in the carrying value of the asset. In penods subsequent to initial measurement where
the passage of time results in liability increases and the amount of this accretion is charged
apainst income, The liability is adjusted for revisions to previously used estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when they are earned. Grants received, restricted donations and fees
collected, in advance of the provision or use of related services, are deferred until wtilized.



(i)

i

(k)

Unrestricted cash donations are recognized as revenue when they are received. Donations of
materials and services, that would otherwise have been purchased, are recorded at fair markel
value when an estimated fair market value can be reasonably determined.

Funds donated by individuals or organizations for the purpose of establishing scholarships and
bursaries are accounted for as deferred revenues. Interest is calculated on each scholarship fund
balance and is accrued for the benefit of the recipients of the fund. Individual scholarship
payments are made to the recipients of the scholarships and bursaries in accordance with the
various scholarship agreements, and a corresponding amount is recognized as revenue at that
time.

The amortization of capital assets funded by Alberta Education and Alberta Infrastructure is
expensed annually and is offset by a coresponding amount of revenue arising from the
recognition in that vear of related capital grants.

Each vear, velunteers contribute a considerable number of hours which support the delivery of
certain programs within schools, Due 1o the difficulty of determining or otherwise estimating
these hours, and the fact that these services are not otherwise purchased, the value of these
contributed services is not quantified nor recognized in these financial statements.

Proceeds on Disposal of Capital Assets

The proceeds on disposal of capital assets are applied to fund future capital asset expenditures.
Pursuant to Provincial regulations, the allocation of proceeds for each asset disposal 15 based
upon the relative contribution from the Province of Alberta and the Corporation to fund the
original purchase of the disposed asset. Proceeds relating to provincially funded assets are
recorded as deferred capital allocations until a provincially approved capital expenditure is made.
Proceeds relating o Corporation funded assets are reflected as income and a corresponding
amount is transferred to capital reserves until a capital expenditure to be financed from capital
reserves is approved by the Board ol Trustees,

School Generated Funds

These financial statements include amounts arising from certain school and student activities
which are controlled and administered locally by each school bui for which the Corporation is
accountable.  School generated funds revenues are primarily generated through fundraising
activities, non-instructional fees and donations and grants to schools in support of extra-
curricular activities, field trips and equipment.

Pensions

The Corporation's certificated employees are required to contribute to the Alberta Teachers’
Retirement Fund, a multi-employer pension plan,  This defined benefit pension plan is the
responsibility of the Province of Alberta and these employee members. Accordingly, no
disclosure has been made in these financial statements relating to the effects of participation in
the pension plan by the Corporation's certificated employees.
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(n

The Corporation and its non-certificated employees participate in the Local Authorities Pension
Plan, a multi-employer pension plan. Pension costs included in these financial statements
comprise the cost of employer contributions for current service of participating employees during
the vear.

The Corporation has established a Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPF) for certain
members of senior administration comprised of both a registered and non-registered portion. The
plan provides a supplement to the Local Authoritics Pension Plan or Alberta Teachers®
Retirement Fund {as appropriate) to provide an annual retirement benefit of 2% of total earnings.
The cost of this SiPP is sponsored by the Corporation and is actuarially determined using the
projected benefit method prorated on service and management’s best estimate of expected salary
and benefit escalation, retirement ages of employees and plan investment performance. As at
August 31, 2010 plan assets held in trust are invested in a mix of cash, bonds. Canadian and
international equities. Plan assets are valued at cost, which approximates market value and the
plan is fully funded by separately designated plan assets. Changes to the actuarially determined
obligation are recognized and expensed as of the applicable date to ensure the plan is fully
funded. Actuarial valuations of the plan occur annually as at August 317,

Employee Future Benefit Plans

The Corporation has a number of defined benefit plans providing post-employment and post-
retirement benefits for supplementary health care, dental care, life insurance and retiring
allowances. These plans are not funded by separately designated plan assets.

For employee future benefit plans other than pension plans, the Corporation accrues its
obligations, and expenses the related costs, in accordance with the terms of the various collective
agreements and other contracts of employment. The cost of employee future benefits earned by
employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and
management’s best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of employees, and expected
provincial and supplementary health care costs and dental care costs. The actuarially determined
benefit obligation from the initial application of this policy is being amonized over the average
remaining service period of employees active at September 1, 2000, the beginning ol the fiscal
vear in which this policy was implemented. The balance of any unrecognized net plan
experience, including changes in actuarial basis, in excess of 10%4 of the greater of the actuarial
henefit obligation and the market value of plan assets is amortized over the average remaining
service lifetime of the active members as of the applicable date, When changes o employee
future benefit plans are negotiated, the related financial impacts are recognized when an
agreement has been reached by the Corporation and the applicable group of employees.
Effective January 1, 2011, all emplovees will pay 100% of the post-retirement benefit premium
COsis.

The Corporation measurcs its accrued benefit obligations under these plans for accounting
purposes as at August 317 of each fiscal year. The most recent actuarial valuation of post-
retirement and post-employment benefit plans was as of August 31, 2009, The next required
valuation will be as of August 31, 2012,
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{m) Financial Instruments

(m)

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, cash held by
schools, short-term invesiments, accounts receivable, long-term investments, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities, and long-term liabilities. Unless otherwise stated in Notes 3 and 11,
which are determined by market comparisons, the fair values of these financial mmstruments
approximate their carrying values,

There are no financial assets on the balance sheet designated as available-for-sale or held-to-
maturity. Cash and cash equivalents and investments are classified as held for trading.  All other
financial assets are classified as loans or receivables and are accounted for on an amorntized cost
basis. All financial labilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are accounted for on
an amortized cost basis.

Transaction costs and related cash flow impacts are included in the fair value assessment of each
financial asset. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition of other financial
liabilities are not considered significant and are expensed when incurred.

The Corporation has a comprehensive risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and
manage the principal risks assumed with financial instruments. The risks that arise from
transacting financial instruments imclude credit risk, liquadity risk and price risk. Price risk arises
from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market prices. The
Corporation does not use derivative financial instruments to alter the effects of these risks. It is
administration’s opinion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant interest, currency or
credit risks arising from these financial instruments.

The Corporation has elected to apply the scope provisions of paragraph 3855.07A such that the
Corporation will not apply the requirements of Section 3855 10 contracts for the purchase or sale
of non-financial items and any embedded denivatives within these types of contracts or those
embedded denvatives that may exist within lease or insurance contracts. In addition, the
Corporation has elected to not adopt “Financial Instruments — Disclosures™ and “Financial
Instruments — Presentation.” The Corporation does not invest or use derivative financial
instruments, Derivatives may be eéembedded in other financial instruments (the “host”
instrument™) or other contracts (the “host contract™). The Corporation has not identified
embedded derivatives in the host contracts.

Future Accounting Standards

The CICA Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) has confirmed that ‘the changeover® date from
Canadian GAAP to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will be effective January
1, 2011. Alberta Education has stated that, at this time, IFRS is not applicable for school boards
in Alberta and that the changeover 15 not expected to affect the Corporation.
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3.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BANK INDEBTEDNESS

201 I Investments al Far Walue
Cash and cath
equivalents Slort-Term Long-Term Toial Lol

Cash and Fizgd Ingome Invesiments
Hank balances £2.679.312 5 - % - £2.679.312 52679312
Outstanding cheques (932.202) . - (932,202} (952,202)
Bloney markes investments - 79,966,284 53,440 B 52974 B 329,054
Sugplemenal Integrated Pension - al5.400 - Bl15.400 L0501
Plan Assels (see note H(h))
Fised Ingcome

Governmen! of Canada . - 215308 088 213380806 T0E24. 109

Provingial - - SER.119 SEEIS STG64

Municipal . - 2 132 050 2132050 2036520

Corporate - - 32454980 32434580 31,765,265
Restricied long-1emm investment (1) - E Ta REE 10 26,882 109 26,882 1049
Equity Investments
Canadion equities = - TH5T 98D T.RET 980 61 6, 244k
LIS, cguity Funds - - 5400, 509 5400, 5045 G619, 1248
Internationnl equity [unds i = = £.921,063 §.920,063 B0G6,267
Taotal at Far Value 5, 7271100 S50, 381684 104,335 5336 SR, 648, 1E00
lonal al Cosi 51727110 580,656,584 $102,943.87) £186.127 3467

(1} Resiricied long-term investment relaes o cash collaieral requinemems as & resull of capital leases entered into hetween the vears
ended Auguwst 21, 2004 and August 31, 2000 (see Note 11

NN ' Investments ol Fair Valee
Cash aind cash
cquivalenis Shosi-Term Leng-Term Tiial Cinst

Cash pnd Fined Lncoime Enyesimends
Bamk halances 4 Lednl2e % - % - £ 2636020 § LG636.129
Chalstancling cheques (105K 92d) - - {1038.924) (138924
Wloney maskel invesiments . 152,375,363 BAG2 113 138,867 476 | 58 &6 0¥
Supplemental Integraied Pension
Plan Assels (see nols Wb - Sh.A0% - S906, 609 690,712
Fixed Incame

Governaren of Canada - - 16,731,354 16,731, 554 16,576, 1 5%

Provincial - - 573.355 373,555 ST0.664

Slunicipal - - 204,354 204594 200,135

Corporale - - 1398 825 1359 825 1,454 4035
Resiricied lang-term investmend {1} . - 5709 830 5,705 830 5. 709 810
t'd:l' gify [mvesimsenis
Conndian equitses . - &9, 261 & 974, 261 5,312,387
L5, equity Tunds - - 3317281 3.317.281 $,539,507
Internatonal cquity funids - B.T34064 673064 T.E55.19]
Toedal ab Fair Walwe £ 1597205 BISX2STIATY  f SOSA077 R0 9252354
Tataad s sl £ 159745 K153066075 5 50.690.004 2006, 354 IH5

(1) Restricted bong-lenm investment relates o cash collsteral requirements as & resull of capital leases entered inbo between the vears
ended August 31 204 and August 31, 2009 (see Mol 11
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General Operating and Other Bank Indebtedness

The Corporation maintains a line of credit that has been negotiated with its banker for general
operating purposes. The line of credit is secured against the Corporation’s accounts receivable at bank
prime rate. As at August 31, 2010, no amount has been drawn against the Corporation’s general

operating line of credit.

Yields on current and long-term investments reflect the cash value of all dividends, interest or other
payments received or receivable on active invesiment instruments. These yields do not include any
realized or unrealized capital gains of the underlying market values of the instruments. At August 31,
2010 the yields on these investments were as follows:

Short-Term Investments
Money Market Investments
Non-Registered Mutual Funds (31PP)

Long-Term Investments
Money Market Investments
Bond type:

Govt of Canada

Provincial

Municipal

Corporate

Canadian equities
115, equity pooled funds

International equity pooled funds

Additional Cash Flow Information

2010 2009
Effective Effective
of oF

Fair Value Fair Value
Yield Fair Value Yield Fair Value
0, 72% £79 966,284 (. 200 £152.375,363
2.51% 615,401 3.48% 596,609
(h61% 363 441 (2 1% 6492113
1.61% 21,538,086 2.21% 16,751,554
2.65% 38R, 114 3.39% 273,555
2.16% 2,132,050 3.89% 204,595
2.67% 32.454.980 4.02% 1,398 825
3.01% T.B57 QR0 3.01% 6,974,261
1.86% 5,401,500 1.92% 5,517,281
3.34% 6,921,063 3.55% &, 734,064

During the vear ended August 31, 2010, cash interest paid on school building debenture debt and
other debt amounted to 32,686,268 (2009 - $3,3537,452) and cash interest earned (operating and

capital) and dividends received on investments totaled $1,936.884 (2009 - 34,237 588).

Modes 9-§
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4.

5.

CASH HELD BY SCHOQOLS

Changes in cash held by schools are as follows:

Sources of school generated funds:
Fundraising activities
Mon-instructional fees and charges
Donations and grants to schools
Oither income
Total additions to school generated funds
Application of school generated funds:
Fundraising activities
Fees/charges (non-Instructional) — related expenses
Donations and grants 1o schools - related expenses
Other — related expenses: bank charges
Extra-curricular activities
Field trips
Equipment
Total application of school generated funds

Met use of school generated funds for the year
Cash balance, beginning of year

Cash balance, end of year

Alberta Education operating grants
Government of Alberta capital grants
Debenture interest grants

School jurisdictions and other povernments
Other accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Motes 9-0

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

2010 2009
$ 10,896,230 11,238.272
17,000,131 16,812,528
6,780,110 7,174,278
27,556 149 528
$ 34,704,027 315,174,706
{17,356,310) (14,389.257)
(12,240,537) (13.259.030)
(1,042,002) (66S,938)
(81,931 (51,760)
(4,278,121) (5,028,373)
(1,299,112 (1,421,240)
(1.352,875) (1.487.724)
§ (37.6030.978) (36306324
(2.946,951) (931.618)
14,634,538 15,566,156
$ 11,687,587 14,634,538
2010 2009
$ 00,583 § 223,284
952,335 5,192,952
1,300,105 1,618,088
1,956,978 1.859.251
%,079,250 8,162,312
4,613,723 4074488
$ 17,202,974 § 21,130375
b



6. CAPITAL ASSETS

2010
Accumulated Met
Cost Amortization Book Value
Land b 4,808,832 % - % 4. 808 832
Land improvements 18,194,437 8,523 437 9 669 000
Buildings 926,145,139 338.810.115 587,335,024
Furniture and equipment 172,519,600 115,651,599 56,868,001
1.121.668. 008 462,987,151 658,680,857
Construction in progress 43,717,015 - 43,717,015

$ 1,165,385023 % 462,987,151 § 702,397.872

2009
Accumulated Met
Cost Amortization Book Value
Land b 4 808,832 § - 3 4. 808,832
Land improvements 9399476 8,398,986 1,000,490
Buildings 751,924 777 320,292 71K 431,632,059
Furniture and equipment 147,349,836 103 008,449 44,341 387
013,482,971 431,700k, 153 481,782,768
Construction in progress 25 844 453 - 25,844 453

§ 930327374 ¥ 431,700,153 § 507.627.221

Included in the cost of fumiture and cquipment are assets under capital lease in the amount of
$114.805 (2009 — 52,700,007, Included in the cost of buldings are assets under capital lease in the
amount of $20,527,364 (2009 — $4,130,000). Accumulated amortization is $2,128 831 (2009 —
$1.444 866) on these assets.

The Corporation has recorded an asset retirement obligation for the estimated costs of removing and
disposing of asbestos in those schools and other buildings approved by the Board for disposition. At
August 31, 2010, the Corporation, through use of engineering estimates, has valued the asset
retirement obligation amount for those assets at 51,644,140 (2009 — §1,725,7004, which is reflected in
the cost of the buildings asset cost above, The Corporation received transferred-in building assets from
the Province in the amount of $162 2093 297 (2009 - $0).

T. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2010 2009

Salaries and bencfits I0090,709 % 37484174
Debenture interest 1,300,221 1.618.088
Federal government 730,407 691, 144
Contractor payables 6,561,992 10,501,563
Deferred capital allocations (1) 23,066,154 311,377,916
Other accounts payable 15,349,114 13,992 084
Other accrued liabilities 7,745,837 10,674,892

84,844,434 § 106,339,861

Motes @- 10
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(1) Government of Alberta capital grants not yet expended at August 31%.

8. DEFERRED REVENUE

I ADD: DEDUET: ADD (DEDUCT):
SOURCE AND GRANT OR FLND TYPE DEFERRED R0 2002090 ARl DEFERRED
REVENUE | Restricted Funds | Resticted Funds Adjusimanls REVEMUE
&% at Ricawedi Expended or FBeturned as at
Bug. 31, 2003 Recessable (Paid ! Payable) Funds Awg. 31, 30
Alberta Education Restricied Crperational Funding: L
| _Albema Indiative for Schoal improverrenl 55.081.612 L IERRERFT (515,155.48% 30| 53843856
(" Chikiren and Youlh with Complex Needs 80 30
“Francophane Student Heallh Services £ T, 30
Infrastruciure Maintenance Renewal (IR} £14,117,088 S25552 852 {515,305 549} 30 |32 453,841
Instiicional Education Programs ® E]
| Fanable/Modular Unit Relocatian £ F0
[ Regional Consarlivm _ 50 50
Regicnal Edumlmﬂ Censulling Senicas $230,302 33,877,537 153,541, 368) 30 566,471
Seraall Clags S Indiative 50 0
Student Health Initistive [School Authorilies) $303.178 33,349,459 {33, 172.853) $0] $479.794
SuperMel Serdics 1 3 SERRSLE |
Classraam rescurces One bme gr:nl | 52960918 £0 151 02 6.067) 51,834 521
Classroam techrology One lime grand TH61.040 50 {SBE1. 04 £0
Technology nirasirestuns One time grant 4 G085 074 £ 154,606 74) it
Innewative Clasaroom Technalogy Funding 52,024,150 0 152005 BET) Lih4oy |
Other Albera Education defered ravenus B2171,640 3831810 31,213,965) $0| 31,689.453 |
Other Governmant of Albertsa Restricted Funding: 0 — R
30 S0
B 30 Y 50
Cher Deferred R Ravenua; T =0 N 50
‘Schalarships _E3AFAETa (¥8.513 $264.357
Furids Trom ofher Dirganizations 31,773,946 51454063 (51,083, EE’li":Jl-l $189.922 | $2.334.111 |
IMR interesl eamed | 52,107,623 50 [$200,335) 50| $1.907288
~ Stugent Foes ' $6.T17 417 S5660421 | ($6717.41T) 30 | %A.660421
Total £43 128 916 566,752 870 | (554,800.672) $160,022 [5d44,172 045

The Corporation's net pension expense for the year amounts to 313916955 (2009 -

The Corporation provides a Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (the “Plan™) for certain
executive emplovees of the Corporation, based on approved terms and conditions of the Plan.
The Corporation’s net pension expense for the registered portion for the year was 337,167 (2009
— net expense of $12,222). The net pension expense for the non-registered portion was $149,850

The total liability for the Plan al August 31,

9, PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
{a) Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP)
511,486,584,
(b} Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPP)
{2009 - $69.845).
$346,500).
{c) Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRF)

2010 is $175,326 (2009 -

The Corporation provides a Supplementary Retirement Plan for certain senior employees of the

Corporation, based on approved terms and conditions of the plan.

The plan provides for annual

contributions of 10% of the employees salary which is above the LAPP or Alberta Teachers'
Retirement Fund pensionable earnings cap. The total liability for the SRP at August 31, 2010 15

$196.843 (2009 - §137,173).
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{d) Other Employee Future Benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Corporation’s employee future
benefit obligation (based on a weighted average assumption of the various plans as of August 31,
20007 are as follows:

Amortization method Straight-line
iscount rate 4. 7%
Supplementary health care cost escalation 8.0% declining by

0.0% for two years, 0.530% thereafter
to an ultimate rate of 5,0% per year

Dental care cost escalation 4.0% per year

Provincial health care cost escalation Mot applicable

The actuarially determined liability for future employee benefits at Auwgust 31, 2010 is
$30,263,000 (2009 - $32,418,000). To date, $19,751,000 {2009 - §20,758,000) has been accrued
in these financial statements. The initial transitional obligation of $35,664,263 at September 1,
2000 is being amortized over the expected average remaining service period of the employee
group, which was estimated to be 12 years, of which 2 years remain. The unamortized
transitional obligation of $2.058,000 on September 1, 2009 has been reduced by 5687000 to
£1,371,000 to refleet the change in the accrued benefit obligation to emplovee groups, and the
annual amortization of the remaining initial transitional obligation.

The total current vear expense for emplovee future benefits amounts to $3,221.000 (2009 -
$3.610,000), including current service costs of $845,000 (2009 - $628,000). During the year
ended August 31, 2010, $4.228 000 (2009 - $4.246,000) was paid in respect of post-employment
or post-retirement benefits,

1. UNAMORTIZED CAPITAL ALLOCATIONS

Changes in deferred capital grants are as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year $ 382,541,539 3 343,753,997
Debenture principal repaid by Alberta Finance 5,249 490 6,490,037
Capital assets funded by Alberta Infrastructure
and Transportation and Alberta Education 183,907,762 50,051,660
Capital allocations amortized 1o revenue (18,539 980) (17.754,155)
Balance, end of vear £ 553158805 % 382 541,539
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities relate to debentures for the acquisition of school buildings funded directly by
Alberta Education (pre 1995) and to capital leases, approved by the Minister of Education for
internally financed equipment purchases. Debentures are secured by the Province and capital leases
are secured by identified assets of the Corporation (restricted cash).

Debentures were issued for periods of 15, 20 or 25 years in those vears prior to 1995 when the
Corporation had local taxing authority. Fair value of this debt is 325,314 988 (2009 - $31.337781)
which is calculated using a discount rate of 4.70%, that reflects the average yield on high guality long
term corporate bonds at August 31, 2010, This debt is fully guaranteed by the Province of Alberta and
Alberta Finance funds these interest and principal payments,

2010 2009

Debenture debt on school buildings, bearing interest at
rates ranging from 7.38% - 11.75%, repayable in annual
installments of varying amounts, maturing from 201 1
through 2020. $ 21802220 § 27051711

Finance contracts, secured by certain equipment bearing
interest at rates ranging from 2.44% - 4 49%, repayable in
annual installments of $324,556 including interest, maturing
September 2014, 1,395,361 1,688,650

Finance contracts, secured by certain building components
bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.16% - 4,16%,
repayable in annual installments of $546,516
including interest, maturing September 2014 through
August 201 5. 3,542,415 3,932,968

Finance contracts, secured by certain building components
Bearing interest at 3.13%, repayable in annual installments ol

£2.661,944 including interest, maturing August 2015, 21.142.169 -
47,882,165 32,673,329
Less current portion 7,161,625 3,933,362
Long-term portion § 40720540 3 34,739,967

Minimum principal repayments based on the terms above are as follows:

2011 b 7.161.624
2012 6,625,301
2013 6,104,254
2014 6,573,652
2015 5,963,836
Thereafter 15,453,498
Tatal b 47,882,165
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12. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Corporation has estimated an asset retirement obligation of $1.644,140 as at August 31, 2010
(2009 - $1,725,700) for building assets that have been approved for disposition by the Board and are
estimated to occur between 2010 and 2011, An interest rate of 5.35% is applicable to discount
expected cash flows, for calculation of the initial obligation and a rate of 4.70% would be applicable
for accretion of the obligation,

The following table summarizes the changes in the asset retirement obligations:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year £ 1,725,700 $ 1,887,455
Obligations discharged (81,5607 {161,755)
Balance, end of vear $ 1,644 140 $ 1,725,700

13, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(k)

(e)

(d)

From year to year, legal actions are brought against the Corporation in the normal course of
operations. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of claims presently outstanding are
not expected to be significant to the overall financial position of the Corporation.

The Corporation has contractual commitments to complete major capital projects relating to
school buildings and Administeative sites. As at August 31, 2010, these cutstanding contractual
obligations amount to $26,762 (2009 - $47.323), with 319,676 to be funded by Alberta
Infrastructure/Education and $7,085 by the Corporation.

To the extent the Corporation terminates certain contractual commitments for convenience under
certain service and development management agreements, the Corporation would incur costs,
depending on the date of termination, of between $3,500 and 511,500,

The Corpoeration has entered into operating lease agreements for office space that expire beyond
August 31, 2014,  Future minimum annueal lease payments under these leases. including
provisions for renewals, are as follows:

Year

2011 $ 439,654

2012 5 166,055

2013 ¥ 78,913

2014 £ 78913
Future Years 5 49,063

$ 812,598

Lease expense during the year amounted to $342,599 (2009 - $754,556).

o
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(e)

(f)

{g)

(h)

(i)

i

The Corporation has entered into a 20 year lease agreement for the new Education Centre with
payments commencing approximately March 1, 2011, Future estimated minimum annual lease
and operating payments {including parking) under this commitment are:

Minimum lease Estimated Total

paymerits aperating costs -
2011 h ] 4265384 1.449.396 5,714,780
2012 8,530,767 2,935,027 11,465,794
2013 8,530,767 3,008,403 11,539,170
2014 8,836,408 3083613 11,920,081
2015 09,142,169 3,160,703 12,302,872
Thereafier - ¥IRANST ~ 60411,508 232,665,285
Total payments $ 211,559,332 74,048,650 285,607,982

The Corporation has entered into a service agreement related to certain payroell and human
resources administration processes expiring October 16, 2015, Future minimum annual
payments under this commitment are:

2011 % 8,753,555
2012 9,383,281
2013 0,733,558
2014 10,021,421
2015 [0.310,831
2016 1,293 389
Total payments § 49496035

Effective September 1, 2006, the Corporation entered inte a Master Transportation Agreement
with Southland Transportation Lid. and First Student Canada for the provision of student school
bus transportation services, The initial term of the agreement is ten years (expiring August 31,
2016) and the Corporation may renew the agreement for two additional periods of five years
cach. Each vear during the term, the Corporation enters into a Yearly Service Agreement with
cach carrier, outlining the services to be provided, the applicable Daily Base Rate and all other
anticipated fees and charges under the agreement.

Effective January 1, 2010, the Corporation entered into a one year fixed price natural gas supply
agreement of a certain price for a majority of its tolal annual natural gas consumption. This
agreement was 1o expire on December 31, 2010, but was renewed for one additional vear and
will expire December 31, 2011.

Effective July 31, 2007, the Corporation entered into a fixed electricity supply agreement of a
certain price for all of its electricity consumption from January 1, 2009 o December 31, 2012,
This agreement has been extended by two additional years and will expire December 31, 2014.

Effective July 1, 2007, the Corporation entered into a Committed Retainer Legal Services
Agreement of a certain price, with a one year Evaluation Stage and the provision for a four year
extension period, upon mutual agreement of both parties, 1o June 30, 2012,
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14. NET ASSETS
The components of the Corporation’s net assets of $155,354,852 as at August 31, 2010 are described

below:

{a) Accumulated Operating Surplus

As at August 31, 2010, the Corporation has an accumulated operating surplus of 534,009,206
(2000 - $30,534,327) comprised of the following:

(i)

(i)

Unrestricted Operating Surplus

Unrestricted operating surplus represents the aggregation of successive years’ annual
operating surpluses.

In the year ended August 31, 2010, the Corporation’s annual operating surplus is $538,601
(2009 - $276,040) and, as at August 31, 2010, the Corporation has an unrestricted
accumulated operating surplus of $3,500,423 (2009 — $2,961,822).

Designated Operating Funds and Operating Reserves

Where certain instructional initiatives are planned or in progress, and consistent with prior
years, the Corporation has designated or restricted operating funds for specific purposes.
Operating reserves have been established for specific program requirements, to stabilize
annual fee rates or to offset the cost of programs and services in future years. These fund
designations and reserves have been established consistent with Provincial legislation and
by Board of Trustees’ resolution and will be applied to finance future expenses in
accordance with the specific requirements of each of these resolutions.

Operating funds have been designated by the Board of Trustees for the following
purposes:

2010 2009
School decentralized budgets § 5054074 % 3,750,308
Instructional and service unil iniliatives 2.499,809 2,892,204

$ 7,553,883 % 6,642,512

Operating reserves have been established by the Board of Trustees for the following
puUrposes:

2010 2009
Transportation Fee Stabilization i - £ 1665025
Continuing Education Fee Stabilzation (1) 1,312,969 1.312.969
Linrealized Investment Gaina/Losses 1,749 595 :
Litility Expense Stabilization 4,870,000 4,558,604
Snow Removal Budget Stabilization 200,000 2040, 00D
Administrative Systems Renewal 5,322,336 5,322,336
General Instruction ERL VR 3,000 000
Fiscal Stabality 5,000,000 3,870,969
System Transformation 1,500,000 1,000,000

$ 22,954,900 § 20,929,993

11y Resincied operabmg eeserve fof Adult Edecabon purposes anly, and in sccordance with Alberiz Educatson reponing gaidelmes,
cannid he pied ik suppen of K-12 ediscaisanal programs H 2 5
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As at August 31, 2010, the Board of Trustees approved the use of 32,238,000 of the Utility
Expense Stabilization Fee Reserve, 33,000,000 of the General Instruction Reserve,
$£2.540,000 of the Fiscal Stability Reserve, $5,320,000 of the Administrative Systems
Renewal Reserve, $1,000000 of the System Transformation Reserve to support the
2010/11 Operating Budget The Board has also approved the use of $2,000,000 of School
decentralized budgets and $£2,962,000 of Unrestricted Net Assets in support of the 2010/11
Operating Budgel. Subsequent to the Board of Trustees’ approval of the budget. the
Provinee of Alberta committed additional funds to the CBE. It is ¢expected that these
various reserves will not be drawn down in 2000V1 1 1o the same amounts.

{b) Capital Reserves and Designated Capital Funds

The Corporation’s capital reserves and designated capital funds are established by Board of
Trustees' resolution and in accordance with Provincial regulation, and are funded from proceeds
on disposals of capital assets, provision from operating funds, or from lease revenues. To date,
the following capital reserves and designated capital [unds have been established.

2010 2009

Land. Buildings and equipment $ ORTOLIST 511,800,926
School Program Modernization 2270772 2.270,771
Leased School Buildings 2,000,000 2,000,000
Chinook Learning Services Relocation 1. 400,000 1. 400,000
Funds designated for approved capital projects 5,314,493 7,074,453

$19,686,662  $ 24,546,150

These reserves and designated funds are to be applied to finance future capital expenditures in
accordance with the specific requirements of each Board resolution. Funds may be committed
from these reserves or designated amounts by the Board of Trustess from fime (o time (o permit
the completion of approved capital projects. As at August 31, 2010, the Board of Trustees has
approved the use of 8,542,454 of these funds for certain capital projects leaving 511,144,205
uncomimitted for future capital projects.

{c) Investment in Capital Assets

Investment in capital assels represents the Corporation’s net investment of operating funds that
have been uscd from time to time to purchase building improvemenis, capital equipment and
technology infrastructure to support the general operating activities of the Corporation. As of
August 31, 2010, the Corporation has 3101658985 invested in capital assets (2009 -
$91,637.119).

15. RELATED PARTIES
{a} Provinee of Alberta and economic dependence

The Corporation is economically dependent upon the Government of the Province of Alberta,
since the viability of its on-going operations depends on grants and contributions from Alberta
Education and other provincial ministries.

EfMective 2005/06, school jurisdictions have been deemed to be controlled by the Government of
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Alberta according to criteria set out in the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants Public
Sector Accounting Standards section 1300, Government Reporting Entity.  All enftitics
consolidated or accounted for on a modified equity basis in the accounts of the Government of
Alberta are now considered related parties of school jurisdictions for financial reporting
purposes. These include government departments, health authorities, post secondary institutions
and all school jurisdictions in Alberta.

Assets, liabilities and transactions of the Corporation that relate to the Government of Alberta are

as follows:
Assels {(at cost
2009/10 or net
realizable
value) Liabilities Revenues _ Expenses
Government of
Alberta:
Education § 2589329 % 33,136,371 F 918,500,808 5 2,506,081

Infrastructure

Transportation - ’ .
Finance - 23,102,442 2,368,285 -
Health & Wellness - £ E -
Human Resources

Employment - . 194,201 -

(Other Government of

Alberta Departments 192,236 - - -
Other:

Health authorities - - - [ 590,300

Post-secondary

institutions - - - -

Other Alberta school

jurisdictions 272979 - T7.032.019 272,240

Other related partics sy e - GRE, 117 - 13,916,955
TOTAL 200910 £ 30543544 § 56926930 % 928095313 § 1B 285576
TOTAL 200809 $ 8155712 % 63015575 % 879,134,461 § 16,060,324

(b} EducationMatters

EducationMatters (formerly The Calgary Board of Education Foundation), (the “Foundation™)
was established in 2003 by the Corporation under a trust indenture. The Corporation’s Board of
Trustees appeints the Governors of the Foundation. The Corporation’s Trustees cannot hold a
majority of the Governor positions. The Foundation promotes activities that support public
education for the benefit of Calgary™s students.
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The Foundation is not consolidated into these financial statemenis. The resources held by the
Foundation are not necessarily limited for use by the Corporation. Selected financial information
for the Foundation for the yvear ended August 31 *O2010 is as follows:

2010 2009

Total assets § 2481000 F 2,533,000
Total liabilities 18, {00 7,k
MNet assets § 2463000 % 2,526,000
Fund balances held by the Foundation:

Flow through funds % 342,000 % 622,000

Endowment funds 1,495,000 1,262,000

Operating funds 626.000 642,000

§ 0 2463000 % 2,526,000

Revenues (1) F 0 1616000 §  1.777.000
Expenses (2) 1,682,000 1,504,000
Excess of revenues over expenses 5 (66,0007 § 273,000

{11 Revenues mclude financeal support from ke Conparation of ST50.000 (2009 - $750.1HK},
{2} Eapenses paid o the Corporalivn amuoust 1o S1EG4T (200U - $16.282). appeoved Gmnl dishamsements o CBE Schools and
Progranes amoend o 600448 (2009 - B39 962

{¢) The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium

The Corporation is a member of The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium (USIC), which
facilitates the placement of property and liability insurance coverage for thirteen school
jurisdictions throughout the Province of Alberta, Amounts are paid by each of the members to
the consortium 1o pay for insurance premiums on policy renewals and to self-insure a portion of
each member's risk exposure. The Corporation’s share of the accumulated and unencumbered
consortium funds as at August 31, 2010 was $2,272.553 (2009 - $2,634,132). This amount has
net been recognized in the Corporation’s financial statements, as accumulated consortium funds
are payable only upon membership termination or a dissolution of the consortium.

(d) Other fundraising groups and associations

Varipus parent groups, including societies and other associations, solicit donations and undertake
fundraising activities to provide operating and capital donations to further the objectives of the
Corporation. The financial information of these groups is not consolidated in these financial
sltatements,

16. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

Effective September 1, 2008, the Corporation implemented new capital disclosure requirements per
Section 1535 of the CICA Handbook. The Corporation’s objectives for managing capital are in the
short term to safeguard the Corporation’s financial ability to continue to deliver education and in the
long term to plan and build financial and sufficient physical capacity to meet future needs for the
Corporation’s education programs and services.

Motes @-19 ﬂ 23



The Corporation defines its capital as the amounts included in net assets. The Corporation’s objective
when managing its capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern so that it can
continue to provide an array of educational services to its complex and diverse student population.

In order to facilitate the management of its capital requirements, the Corporation prepares annual
capital and operating budgets that are updated as necessary, depending on various factors, including
the market valuation of the investments and general industry conditions. The annual budgets are
approved by the Board of Trustees,

The majority of the Corporation’s operating funds are received from Alberta Education which are
penerally paid every month, As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The Corporation
maonitors its working capital and cash flows against its forecasts.

A portion of the capital funding is restricted in that the Corporation is required to receive approval
from the Minister of Education for draws against any amount in which the Provincial Department of
Education has an interest. In addition, the Corporation has restricted a portion of its shori-term cash
for specific capital projects and specific lease pavment obligations. The Corporation has internal
control processes primarily through its Administrative Regulations, to ensure that the restrictions are
met prior to the ulilization of these resources. The Corporation has been in compliance with these
restrictions throughout the year.

The Corporation has leveraged its excess short term cash balances in support of energy retrofit projects
in schools and in support of the Dr. Carl Safran Modemization project through capital leasing
arrangements in order to minimize incremental borrowing costs.  In additon, o 200910 the
Corporation, in collaboration with its external investment advisor, invested $30 million of short term
cash in high quality bonds of varying duration to enhance its investment income stream.

The Corporation sets the amount of internally restneted funds in proportion o nisk, manages the net
asset structure and makes adjustments 1o it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.

17. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2009 amounts have been reclassified where necessary to conform to the current year's
presentation.
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18. REMUNERATION AND MONETARY INCENTIVES

Approved | Performance EFdPy J
Board Membara: FTE Remuneration Bemelils Allowances Bonuses Crther Expanses
Chair: R
Pai Cochrang 10|  §57.084 56,548 £3.6500 §1.290
_Oiher mamoers;
Carod Baginet 1.0 4T M54 $5,358 53,800 53874
Gordon Dirks 1.0 $46 618 54,556 53,600 §260
Pamela King 1.0 46,618 56,543 53,600 §1.383
| Lynn Ferguson 1.0 £51,111 5. T2E 53,600 §551
Gaorge Lare 1.0 £46,618 | £4.652 53,800 £4.043
Karen Kryczha 1.0 BAG.E18 | $4.862 33,600 §1.385
Subloia .o 3342041 342 054 225,300 ' 30 312 787
| Chist Superintendent
Maomi Johnsan 1.0 3247 187 i LER' TN 815,000 $25,759 30 33,37
Secrotary-Treasurer. il -
Danald M. Dar_ 033 580,769 5B tag 52602 $4354 Bab
_Caorporate Tragsurar:
| Wayne T_Braun 046 | 557 653 510,358 §3,202 85 | | sa7s4
Deborah L Meyers 0.21 $52.884 58,085 1,481 §2188
Corporate Secretary:
Roderich W._Paden 0.5 $1a9se8 | sesgta| 54,308 g5821 | -
E.Gul‘ti‘ﬁmlﬁd Teachers B,173.0 |  $528.997 827 | %52 186,575 219115 | 369,568 3224 103 |
Mon-carificaled - Other 31720 $164.263.104 | $33.428 319 511,923 $48,357 $B34 4849
TOTALS $604,.231,063 | $85763,605 | $83111 |  $151460 | $1,493,438 |

Mote 1: The benefit costs for the above named cerfificated Chiel Superintendents do not reflect the Alberia Teachers
Retivement Fund {ATREF) contribution made by Alberta Education on behalf of the CBE in the amount of £12,320 {523,947

For 200809 ),

Mote 27 The benefit costs for the cerificated teaching s1afl’ do not reflect the Alberta Teschers' Retirement Fund
coniribution made by Alberta Education on behalf of the CRE

Mot 3:

performing the responsibilities of the named position.
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SCHEDULE A School Jurisdiction Code: | 8080

ALLOCATION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES TO PROGRAMS - 2009-2010

REVERUES
TOTAL
[1} Alberta Edl.m:l'lhn 010,200 808
[2) D‘Imr Government of Aharta 52,308 285
{3) Federal Enmmmtand First Nations SHAE e
{4) Other Alberta schoal authorities $ECHH 000
{5) ﬂut-ufpmulmluﬂmtﬂhu F197 A5
i) Alberta Ihnmipiﬁhil-lpidﬂ tax levies #
{7} Instruction resource fees $7.201.33%
(8) Transportation fees-ECS £229,838
(i) Transpm'uﬂunﬁu-ﬂﬂdu 112 85,232,273
{10) Other sales and services e, 100
(11} Imumm ineame 52,890,713
(12} Gifts and donations 41,1061 B
13 Rental ul'fl.nilﬂina 9,038, 70w
(14) Gross school generated funds $37, 550,578
(15} Edn-mmdufﬂpduamh £173,658
(16) Amaortization of capital allocations $18,554 88
(17) Other revenue [ ] : ol 0 0
(18} TOTAL REVENUES 458,210,480 5783 265259 5120847227 519 12 088 530457 2370 $16 Ai B0 31,030,074, 004
E‘.(FEHEEB

(19) l:trlh‘lﬂhd__l_-!_hrlm 8529 654,455
(20) Certificated benefits 5,274,007
{21] Hm-nurtl.l'imhd nalmm and wages ! 1 P T A 11 F165211 807
{22) Non-certificated banefits | F1B720.504 166313 43,005,607 BLmmT FIN5T2480
(23) SUB - TOTAL [ smmem|  smeomam|  swamew|  mas|  soswss|  swamea | swiowen
{24) Services, contracts and supplios ' R 3 a5 010,415 514,500,807 | 53,445,825 5107 150,840
(25) Gross school generated funds 237,650,578
i26) Amortization of capital assets 534,206,651
(27} Interest and charges $6T2,574
(28) Losses on disposal of capital assets 0
(29) Other expense 5 L8 i} ; 5 ; 50
(30) TOTAL EXPENSES $25,702 065 §774 50T BED $135 495 055 §37 548 961 530,460 503 $13825,132 $1,021.437 650

{31) EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
o OVER EXPENSES £51, 502 576 $0.277.395 1,154, 18 427 BHT 2947, £70 5E, 637,254

Bl
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Sehool Jurisdiction Code: 3030

SCHEDULE B
SCHOOL GENERATED FUNDS (SGF) - 2008-2010

urnumndid SGF - Opening Balance August 31, 2009 e « [ srasmss

Sources of School Generated Funds: Gross SGF Relatesd Expenses et SGF
Fundraising acivilieg i Mﬁ'ﬂ'ﬂ___qgl]_t
Emduntm{"unﬂllu’tlﬂ:l {Hola 1} = 3 54,758,684
Donaions and grants o schaaks. | 35,738,018
Other (descnba) 3 : . 554,376}
Met Additions to SGF | $34, 704,027 s30.720.070 |G 82983157
Mot SGF Available | E18.617 505

Uses of Net School Generated Funds:

Extigsiaricular actriiies
Fiald Trips
Citwar |dRgcriba) 3 Ei
Tatal Uses of rlulsl:i-l-"mmn 55 930,108
|Unexpendad SGF - Closing Balance August 31, 2010 (Note 3; | 511567 507

Sohood Caraeated Funds {S3F) ane funds mised in the oomemunily for shudent actiies that come under the contnol and respons el iy 6f school managemend
Theriis Tunds &fa Uusaally colleoted and retaned at the school o expendiures paid &1 5 scnoal leved, SGF does not ingdude any offer lunds ool leced &% T schoel
But resnithad o central ofce and accounied ke by caninad oifics Paciity remtals, capilal aesets purchasas, aic |
Maohes-
] U ardud i i ol bind pursiant o Section G2 of he School Aot eas relaed o issfnictional supplies or materals - sgeontiaky
fputhonis, rissurdi Malistas n e of ook, meda, sofware. ond matesa's for dassreoms). Fess chamed f%or CELU-reinted acthties
re recored fE Ul MesoaoE Hes, ol SEF
2 Tow e ol “Belid pidal 0 Eporeas” and "tolal e of net SGF7 s reponsd a3 "pross sceool gemaraied lurds” n the Saiement ol Revenem K Dpanmen

3 Lisiapeereded SCF b reporied as SGF assely and SGF imbibes n e SEbsrmen of Frosmoael Poadion

paged of § E "!r.i-



Schoal Jusisdiction Code: ____aow

SCHEDULE C
Operations and Maintenance of Schools & Maintenance Shops Program Expansa Detaiks - 2003-2010
wpansad Ursiaip
Utditias MR and Facility Planning Amortizgalics SUE-TOTAL Bupgoned TOTAL
EXFENSES Cusiodial Maintanancs arsd Madular Uinit Oparations & Crthor Operatices & Capial & Debt | Openalices and
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
200810 Financial QOperating Resulis Summary
[ S {Umudit"ﬂ‘d:l
The following i a brief summary of the Calgary BEoard of Educalion's inancial resulls for the 2008010 fiscal
year, More detsiled finandial information can be obfained from the Calgary Board of Education’s Frnancial

Statemaniz and Stalistcal Information for the Year Ended Awgust 31, 2010, available on the CBE's web site a1
wiwiw. chie gb,ca irusteesibudgel asp

Calgary Board of Education
Summarized Statement of Revenue, Expenze and Accumulated Operating Surplus for the
Year Ended August 31

2010 2004

(000's) {O00s)
Revenua (Exhibi |} F 1,030,075 5 49 BET
Expense (Exmibd 11 and 101 £021,438 381,831
Excess of ravenue over expensa for the year BEAT 12.064)
Mei operating funds used for capial assais (10,022 121 168)
Transier from capital resenve 4,859 15433
Transfers from (o) oporating reserves & designated funds (2.5938] a.07s

Accumulated unrestricted operabing surplus

Begeming of year 2,962 2,685
End of wear ] 3 500 3 2 DEF

Exhikyil |
Rewenwe by Sovrce for the Year Ended August 31, 2010

Cther revenue
$54 033000 —, BRae pravingal mstnechan
L] | granis
] 500,038,000
5%

Soncdl genaraied hurds
E37,551 000
2%

Provinoal capial suppart
S0 G0, Do)
Z.0%:
O pronical gduianon
grants
$37.070. 000
4.0%

Provinoial pncrty targeted
grants
66615000
R

Cafferenhal cost hurding
pants

$224 850,000 &1,030,075.000

Tolal Revenues

1 8%
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Exhibit 11
Expense by Type for the Year Ended August 31, 2010
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Exhibit 111
Expense by Program for the Year Ended August 31, 2010
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ADMINISTRATION'S MSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL OPERATIONS

The Calgary Board of Education (the “Corporation™) is the largest public school system in Alberta and Western
Canada and the fourth largest public school system in Canada. The Corporation is commitied to being a caring
and responsive school system with an overarching mission of ' Educating Tomaorrow 's Cirizens Today'. With 22

school settings, the Corporation provides a broad range of differentiated educational services and programs for
students enrofled from Kindergarten through Grade 12, In addition, the Corporation supports life-long leamning
by connecting adult learners to an array of continuing education programs offered by Chinook Leaming Services.

Each Student, Every Day, No Exception

The personalization of learning is the primary strategy adopted by the Calgary Board of Education to advance
student academic success and to develop students who exhibit strong standards of Citizenship, Personal
Development and Character. Through the personalization of learming and a focus on the instructional core, the
Calgary Board of Education continues to address the needs of all learners. As a snapshot of student achievement,
results on the Provincial Achievement Tests and Diploma Exams provide valuable data to inform our strategies
and actions working towards the continuous improvement of teaching and learning at all levels, as evidenced in
our Three Year Education Plan 2010-2013, The most regent (2009-20107 Provincial Achievement Test and
Diploma Exam results continue (o show strong overall achievement by Calgary Board of Education students.
Students in Grades 3, 6, and 9 scored above provincial results at the acceptable standard in 12 out of |3 subject
categories and |1 out of 13 categories at the standard of excellence, Students completing diploma courses scored
above provincial results in 10 out of 13 subjects at the acceptable standard and 12 of 13 subjects at the standard
of excellence.  Although these tesiz are only one measure of student achievement, these resilts help 10 confirm
the direction taken by Calgary Board of Education staff as we work towards achieving the Ends Statements as
envisioned by the Board of Trustees,

Financial Overview

Budpet (1) Actual Actiual
2009/10 - 2009/10 2008/09
{unaudited)
% of total Ya-of 1ol % of total
Smillions TEVERME Simillions TeveEnuE Fmillions FEVENIE

Revenuoe
Provincial revenus LR 018 Q39,5 0.2 Ho 4 oo
Cither revenue 48.7 4.5 2.8 5.1 53.2 5.4
Schionl Generaled Funds - 34 317 37 6.3 3.3

_ L0236 1000 1,030, ] 100.0 070.9 | 40,10
Expense
Salaries and benefis 7835 T6.5 T81.7 759 7405 75.5
Supplizs and services 1701 16.6 64,8 1.0 1698 173
Chher L 3.5 a2 EN: 356 i
School Generated Funds 35.0 34 1.3 37 6.3 AT

10251 10d 1 1z d 09.2 BE20 2

Excess {deficiency) of revenue over  (1.5) {01y 87 0.8 (2.1} (.23
EXPENSE
Met applications of operating funds 1.5 .1 {8.2) (0.7 REr T, .3
Net aperating surplus - - 0.5 0.1 3 .1

i1} Represenis the ariging budgel approved by the Board of Trustees as smended danng the frscal veir for changes to programs amd aperations,
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The Corporation’s Administration is responsible for preparing the management discussion and analysis
section of the financial statements respecting operations of the CBE. These showld be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and accompanyving notes and statistical information schedules.

Analysis of Financial Operating Results

The Corporation’s total revenues increased by $50.2 million or 5.1% to $1,030.1 million in 200910 from
£979.9 millien in the previous vear, The Corporation’s tofal expense increase year-over-year was $39.4
million or 4.0%, resulting in total expenses of §1,021.4 million, up from $982.0 million in 2009, The net
result of the Corporation’s financial operations is a very modest (0.1% of total revenue) net operating
surplus of $0.5 million, afier Board approved transfers into or withdrawals from reserves and the application
of operating funds for the acguisition of board-funded capial assets.

The Corporation received 91.2% of its revenue in funding from the Provincial Government and is required
to expend its resources in accordance with Provincial policies and regulations. The 200910 school vear
reflects continued implementation of the three pillars of Alberta Education's Renewed Funding Framework
— Flexibility, Accountability, and Funding with a primary focus on improved accoumtability for results
achieved in 200809 Under the Framework there are prescribed restrictions on expenditures within
specified funding blocks for  instruction, support (Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal, stodent
transportation, certain technology initiatives, targeted initiative funding, and a restriction on hoard
governance and system administration expenses) and capital. For the vear ended August 31, 2010, the
Corporation was in full compliance with all these requirements. In addition, all transfers of funds impacting
the Corporation’s operating and capital reserves were made in accordance with Provincial regulations and
the Board of Trustees direction and approval

Based on the September 30, 2009 cnrolment count, the Corporation experienced an overall increase of 593
students or (L6%: from the previous yvear (excluding Che-learn and Chinook Leaming Services studentz) with
increases of 120 at kindergarten, 455 at grades 1 — 6. 93 students at unique seftings and Outreach Programs
with an offsetting reduction of 73 studemts at jumior and senior high schools.  Total students served,
incleding CBe-learn and Chinook Learning Services, was 102,376 students which includes learners who
were 20 vears of age and older,

Provincial funding received by the Corporation increased by a total of $49.2 million or 5.5% 10 $939.6
million in 200910, With the exception of targeted grant funding (inclueding those for the Small Class Size
Initiative, Student Health Initiative, Alberta Initiative for School Improvement, High Speed Networking,
Institutional Programs, the Southern Alberta Regional Assessment Program (REACH), and specified
technology initiatives) and expenditure conditions (such as the 4% expenditure cap on Board Governance
and System Administration expenditures), the Corporation has the flexibility under the provineial funding
framework 1o intemally allocate and deploy its resources 1o address student educational needs, The
government and education stakeholders are committed to working collaboratively to implement all targeted
initiatives 1o the greatest benefit of all students,

{rther revenue amounts from various sources including investments, rentals and leases of property, gam on
disposal of equipment related capital assets and other revenue generating activities, totaled $52.8 million, a
decrease from the previous vear of 30.4 million or (8%, The Corporation has comtinued 1o manage its
financial resources and specifically its cash balances in this low-interest rate environment 1o maximize
investment retums within conservative risk parameters and to make availahle surplus school space for lease
or rental to the various public organizations, School Generated Funds are monies collected at the local

" Far more infonmagion reganding outcomes usdes the sccauntability piliar, please read the * Annual Education Resulis Hepon™ found an pur
waehsile a1 BaipUwww che il chf Roonus

[ %]
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school level 1o enhance the education of students and include such items as field trips, extracurricular
activities and equipment. School Generated Funds showed a vear over year revenue increase of $1.4 million
or 3.9%. It should also be noted that under Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICAY Handbook
Section 4400, School Generated Funds are now reported in these financial statements at gross amounts as
CBE acts as the principal in the transactions

Salaries and benefits account for 76.5% of the Corporation’s total expenses, The Z009/10 salary and
benefits cost of $781.7 million reflects an increase of $41.4 million or 5.3% over the previous vear. This
increase primarily reflects negotigted salary increases within the various emplovee proups. prescribed
benefit contribution changes and step grade increments.

Total funding received for Plant Operations & Maintenance (PO&M) and Infrastructure Maintenance
Renewal (IME) 15 a signilicant element of the Corporation’s operations, In 200% 10 the Corporation had a
more modest Infrastructure and Maintenance Renewal program compared to the previous vear and the
amount spent of $153.5 million or 1.5% of total expenses was %30 million less than the amount spent in the
previous fiscal year, The vear over year reduction was caused by general project delays. These investments
ensure that our students learn in quality environments and mitigate some of the deferred maintenance
backlog which was last reported to the Board of Trustees at $742 million.

Total supplies and services expenses decreased by $5.0 million or (2.9%) 10 $164.8 million from £169.8
million in the previous year. The Corporation believes that technology investments are essential 1o enable
student success and invests considerable resources to refresh and rejuvenate technologies and capital
equipment for our schools such as SmartBoards and wireless networks., In 200910 an amount of 5218
million was expended for these technology initiatives including evergreening investments and other system
technology initiatives delivered through the capital plan.

Employee recruitment and retention is a key challenge in organizations today, therefore the Corporation has
placed a high pricrity on improving its orientation and other programs to support the attraction and retention
of staft, both teaching and non-teaching positions. Recruitment and orientation of highly qualified staff was
a significant area of focus in 2009/10 and is likely to remain a focus over the next few years as demographic
shifts continue 1o impact retirement, natural attrition and retention.

With the current provincial Funding Framework and funding to support facility operations and building
renewal, the Corporation believes that it has a good financial foundation 1o support the educational needs of
all our learners. The Corporation continues to be vigilant. through being aware of changes in the external
environment, and embarking on opportunities in order to position the Corporation for responding 1o building
andd program renewals, to provide safe schools and work environments, and to maintain basic educational
supports to schools.

Analysis of Financial Operating Results to Operating Budget

The Corporation’s balanced 200910 Budget was approved in June 2009 by the Board of Trustees, with
revenue and reserve transfers providing sufficient funds to fully offset anticipated expenditures, The
Corporation’s actui] net operating surplus for the year excesded the budgeted amount by 8005 million. Total
revenue was 56,5 million or 0.7% favourable in relation to the budgeted amount, while total expenses were
£3.7 million or 0.4% favourable. Other sources (applications) of operating funds including transfers from
(to) designated and restricted reserves were 39.7 million favourable compared to the budget in accordance
with provincial regulations and Board approved terms and conditions for these reserves.

Dwuring the year, Provincial revenues were $0.3 million (0.1%) unfavourable compared 1o the budgeted
amount. Base instruction grants were 30.4 favorahle compared to budget and Differential grants were $0.9
million favorable, with an offsetting unfavorable vanance under Other Provincial grants of $1.6 million,
Althcugh there was an overall positive variance in Differential grants as noted above, an unfavorable
variance in Transportation of $0.3 million was experienced, and the Corporation is awaiting further

-
-
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engagement oppomunities with the province to create a revised Metro transportation formula that reflects the
transportation needs and costs of providing services to our diverse learners.

Other revenues, amounting to 352.8 million or 5.1% of 1otal annual revenues, were favourable compared to
the budget by $4.1 million or 8.4%. The favourable variance was primarily comprised of 1.1 million in
revenues received Trom Individuals and Orpanizations, net investment income incleding unrealized gains of
£1.4 million; favorable rental income of £0.6 million; and favorable revenwes of $0.3 million in cafeteria
revenues., Oher positive variances included 50.2 million in revenues received from other school authorities
and local governments and transportation and Instrectional Supplies and Material (1SM) fee revenues were
higher than planned by $0.3 million. In addition. a favorable variance was experienced under Federal Grants
and education agreements of $0.2 million.

Overall, salary and benefit expenses were $1.8 million lower than budgeted, representing a favorable

varance of 0.2% of the overall budgeted amount. An overall favourable vartance of $7.3 million in
uncertificated salarics was partially offset by a 5.5 million unfavourable variance in certificated salaries,

Supplies and services expenses were lower than budgeted by $5.3 million or 3.1% primarily due a $1.3
million favourable variance in utilities, a 31.2 million favourable variance in supplies, $2.4 million expenses

in maintenance and repairs lower than planned, and insurance premiums and losses lower than planned by
0.3 million,

Financial Position

As ot August 31, 2014, the Corporation has a net asset balance of 31554 million reflecting total assets of
$918.9 million and total liabilities of §763.5 million. This improved fnancial position is a net increase of
£8.7 million from 2009 primarily due 1o an increase in the accumulated operating surplus of $3.6 million and
an increase in investments in Capital Assets of $10.0 million, partially offset by a reduction in Capital
resarves [0 suppon strategic capital projects and designated funds of $4.9 million.

In recent years, the financial position of the Corporation has moderated to a more balanced operation while
efforts continue to responsibly control costs, lock in pricing for commeodities such as natural gas and
electricity, employ better procurement strategies and 1o anticipate uncertainty in expenditures for specific
program areas.  To minimize any sdverse impacts of future uncontrollable and significant increases in
cerain costs and to mitigate any adverse impacts to parents and students through service reductions and fee
ncreases, the Corporation has pursued a strategy to establish specific operating and capital reserves,
Operating reserves and designated funds of 530.5 million represent approximately 3.0% of the 2000/10
budgeled operational expenses. These funds have been set aside to meet internal commitments for specific
purposes and initiatives such as fiscal stability, system transformation, schoel’s decentralized budgets and
pdministrative systemn rencwal projects and for more variable items such as utilities and snow removal
EXpEnses,

In the application and deployment of reserves, the Corporation, through Board approval, has established
strict terms and conditions for all reserve funds. Funds designated in previous years have been applied
during the current vear 10 mitigate increased student transpontation expenses, in accordance with these terms
and conditions.

The Corporation continues to develop appropriate strategies to better manage the underutilization of some of
its school buildings. and the asscciated costs of operating and maintaining any excess space. In the past
years, strategies for leasing unused space, program consolidation. expanded programs of choice and as a last
resort, school closure, have been employed 1o mitigate underutilization of school building assets.
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Analysis of Capital Expenditures

Total Board funded capital assets acquired for 2000/10 were 325.2 million primarily reflecting investments
m new school commissioning, modernizations, technology investments, vehicles and equipment. In
addition, the Corporation received $160.6 million in provincially funded P3 schools and $1.7 million in
modulars.  As at August 31, 2010, 5.3 million of funds budgeted for specified Board funded capital
projects started in 2009/10 will be carried forward for completion in 201071 1.

One of the Corporation’s challenges is its ability to provide for new schools for Calgary’s growing
population in areas where they are required, and to provide resources for maintenance and renewal work
necessary for established schoal facilities. As detailed in the Corporation’s School Capital Plan 2011-2014,
the Corporation continues to plan for and request provincial funding required to meet the significant
shortfall of public schocls in the new and developing communities of the City of Calgary, In recent vears,
the Provinee has been supportive of these interests and has provided funding to provide for new schools in
Calgary. Samuel W. Shaw School, a new middle school in the Shawnessy community and two elementary
schools for the communities of Panorama Hills and Taradale successfully opened in August 2009,
Mckenzie Towne School welcomed students in January 2000,

Through an innovative approach to new school construction previously anncunced by the Alberta
Government in June 2007, the Province funded and constructed ancther six new elementary schools in
Calgary for 201 0. This approach is part of the Alberia Schools Alternative Procurement { ASAP) Phase |
project for construction of elementary schools. The Corporation opened Saddie Ridge School, Evergreen
School, Bridiewood School, Cranston School, Royal Oak School and West Springs School. Construction is
complete for all these schools and they all opened for September 2010,

With regard 1o the Corporation’s program offering. funding was provided to implement or expand the
following alternative programs or program renewal initiatives in 2009/10:  Spanish Bilingual expansion at
Dalhousie School, Westgate School, Robert Warren School and William Aberhart School: French
Immersion expansion at Valley Creek School, Janet Johnstone School and Elboya School; German Bilingual
expansion al Thomas B. Riley School; Science expansion at Louis Riel Schoal; Traditional Learning Centre
expansion at Glamorgan School, Highwood School, Henry Wisewood School, Brentwood School, Fairview
School and Sir Wilfrid Lavrier School; Montessori expansion at Captain JTohn Palliser School: and Ar-
Centered Learning expansion at James Fowler School and Lord Beaverbrook School.

Orutlook

A substantial amount (approximately 91%) of all funding received by the Corporation in 20092010 was
pravided by provincial grants, with the majority coming from Alberta Education tied 1o the demographics
and characteristics of the student population.  This relative percentage is expected to continue for the
foreseeable future.

An uncertainty moving forward for the Corporation is the future grant funding increases and which
particular grant categories are increased which are to be received from the Provinee in 2001712, Several of
the Corporation’s collective agreement wage increases are tied 1o the change in the Alberta Average Weekly
Earnings index (AAWE) and there is ambiguity whether grant rate increases, such as those relating to the
Base operating grants, and Differential grants, will reflect the change in the Alberta Average Weekly
Earnings Index for 2011712 and bevond. In the absence of adequate funding for all grant categories to fully
offset increased costs, virtually all areas of the organization will experience additional costs pressures.
However, the Corporation is committed to reallocating resources and enhancing other revenue streams
where possible 1o ensure the delivery of personalized leaming 10 students and will address any financial
challenges in the 2011/12 operating and capital budgets as required. The Corporation is commiited to
]
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monitoring funding and the expenditures of the organization and will continue 1o be a unified voice in
advacating for strong financial supports for students.

The Province announced in January 2008, Alberta Schools Alternative Procurement {ASAF) Phasze 2, which
involves the planning and construction of four new middle schools and one new high school. These new
schools will serve the Tollewing communities: Cowventry Hills (Middle School Grades 5-%, 900 students),
Taradale (Middle School Grades 5-9, 900 students), Panorama (Middle School Grades 5-9, 900 students)
and Tuscany (Middle School Grades 5-9, 900 students). Construction is underway for all the middle schools
which are expected to open September 2012, Construction is also underway al the Northwest Senior High
School (Grades 10-12, 1500 students) in the Arbour Lake community and the schoal is expected 1o open in
2013,

The City acquired the Ernest Manning High Scheol site to allow for the West LRT Extension Praject to
proceed and for the Emest Manning High School to be demolished. The City, Province, and CBE have
signed a Memorandum of Agreement for the transfer of the Ernest Manning High School site to the City, as
well as the construction of a replacement high school for Ernest Manning High School in west Calgary,
Emest Manning High School stedents will remain in the existing school and occupy the new school once
construction is complete, The new high school will be located in the Springbank Hill community and the
expected opening date is July 201 1 to accommodate summer schoal.

The Corporation, like many Calgary employers, will continue to be proactive. innovative and strategic in
order to attract, retain and develop the human capital necessary 1o achieve the Board of Trustees Ends
Statements. Under the puidance of the Superintendent of Human Resources, the Corporation continues 1o
focus on strategic leadership training and development as well as succession planning for senior positions,
Human resource strategies will focus on enhanced emplovee relations, and continue to build on new
employee orientation programs for all employees to assist them in their roles of supporting studemt
achievement.

Based on the September 30, 2010 enrolment count, the Corporation cxperienced a net increase of 247
students excluding CBe-leamn and Chinook Leaming Services, or 0.25%, with intakes mainly at kindergarien
and prades [-3. These very modest increases reflect negative migration patterns in the city and the attraction
of other education options available to parents such as alternative programs. Omn September 20, 2010, the
Corporation’s enrclment count was 99,491 Kindergarten to grade 12 students and 3,426 students at CBe-
learn and Chincok Learning Services for a total enrolment of 102,917 students which includes learners 20
vears of age and clder. The Corporation believes these increases in enrolment are an endorsement of our
commitment to achieving improved learning outcomes through the personalization of leaming and
specifically the Board of Trustees Ends statements.

The Corporation continees 10 be strategic in its relentless pursuit of teaching excellence with s primary
focus of supporting the personalization of studemt learning, Further sepports and enhancements are being
implemented for all our leamers with targeted initiatives for our English Language Learners, Aboriginal
Learners and early learning special needs students. With the province initiating Inspiring Edvcation and o
review of the School Act, the implementation of the “Setting the Dircetion™ - Special Education Initiative,
these reviews may affect the associated funding to support these lcamers who constitute approsimately 20%
of the overall student population. Finally, the Corporaticn will continue its implementation of the Three-
Year Education Plan 2010-2013 which identifies key oulcomes, strategies and actions to improve
educational opportunities offered 10 our students to meet their own individual needs.
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STATEMENT OF ADMINISTRATION RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Trustees is responsible for ensuring that Administration fulfills its responsibility
for financial reporting and control through its own ongeing monitoring and evaluation of its
governance policies. The Board of Trustess cammies out its responsibility for review of the
financial statements principally through its Audit Committee, The Audit Committee, which
consists of two Trustees and not less than three public members, meets with Administration and
the External Auditor to discuss the results of the audit examination and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Commitiee also reviews the financial statements, the Auditors’ Report and
other information, and recommends their approval to the Beard of Trustees. The Extermnal
Auditors have full access 1o the Audil Committes, with and without the presence of
Administration.

In the context of the responsibilities of the Board, the Calgary Board of Education’s
Admimistration is responsible for the preparation, presentation and integrity of the financial
statements and has prepared them in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). The financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Calgary
Board of Education as at August 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the
year then ended.

In fulfilling its responsibilities and recognizing the limits inherent in all systems, Administration
has developed Administrative Begulations and maintains a system of internal controls,
procedures and guidelines, supplemented by ongoing monitoring and evaluation of results, to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are properly
executed in accordance with the governance policies established by the Board of Trustees.

KPMG LLP, the External Auwditors appointed by the Board of Trustees, has performed an audit

of the financial statements in this report. Their independent professional opinion on these
financial statements is included in the Auditors’ Report,

D?ZM’;”’FVm Q’?WW ‘_Di— M\ JEJ:: Ay

NAOMIE. Jt:rmjo DEBORAH L. MEY
CHIEF SUPERNTENDENT OF SCHOOLS SUPERINTENDENT, LH]E.]- FINANCIAL QOFFICER,
AND CORPORATE TREASURER

Movember 9, 2010
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

We have audited the balance sheet of the Calgary Board of Education (the "Corporation”) as at
August 31, 2010 and the statements of revenue and expense, changes in net assets and cash
flows, and the detailed schedules of revenue and expense for the year then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Administration. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financizl statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obiain reasocnable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well a5 evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respacts. the financial
position of the Corporation as at August 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principlas.

KME 117

Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Canada
Movember 9, 2010
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT AUGUST 31, 2010

2000 20049

ASSETS {in thousands)
Curreni assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 5 1,727 % |,307

Cash held by schoals (Mote 4) 11,688 14,635

Short-verm investments (Mote 3 8,582 52,972

Awccounts receivable and prepaid expenzes (Note 5) 17,003 21,130

Inventories 231 A8

112,131 191,020

Long-term invesiments (MNote 3} 104,339 50,356
Capital assets (Mote &) TOZ, 398 07,627
Tutal assets 5 V18,868 i 749,005
LIABILITTES
Current hakahiies

Accounts payvable and acereed labilities (Nowe 7) 5 Bd,B45 b 16,340

Deeferred revenue (Note &) 44,172 43,129

Cash held by schools (Mote 4] 11,688 14,633

Current pertion of long-term liabilities (Note 11 T.1i2 5,933

147,867 10057

Emplovee future benefits (Mote % (h), {c) and {d}) 20,123 21,241
Deferred capital grants (Mote 10) 553,159 382,542
Long-term liahilities (Note 11) 40,720 2a,759
Assel netirement obligations (Mote 12) 1,644 1,726
Total linbilities 5 Te3 513 5 602 285
Contingencies and commitments (Note [3)
NET ASSETS (Mote 14)
Lineeatricted operating surplus 5 3,500 % 2962
Desigrated operating funds A f.643
Operating reserves 21,955 20,930
Accumulated operating surplus Ja,000 30,535
Capital reserves and designated capital funds 19686 24,546
Investment in capital assets THFE R 91,637
Tolal net assets 155,355 146,718
Total liabilities and net assets L 918,868 % 749,003

The Ates are an Infegral pord of these fingrcial siatements

ki
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPEMSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 20010

Budpei
(wnawdited) Actual
Zolo 2000 200
{in thousands} {im thousands) {im thowsandsy
HREVERUE (Schedule 1)
Alberta Edwcation grants:
Base provincial instruction 5 SREI9% § ERE.H39 5501474
[vifferential cost Tunding 24125 124,959 218,940
Provincial priority wargeted grants i 6 1 Bih015 a8, 1649
Diher provincial education grants 3662 17070 30,703
Capital suppon 20,882 20,908 20,725
Total Albenie Education granis 5 D3EBEE 5 Gag 591 REG011
Cither provincial revenue 1215 1216 1,352
Federal grants and education agreements 2715 2938 2837
School penerated funds 34971 37,651 36,306
Oither reverse 43970 40 570 56|
Total revenne £ 1.023 560 5 130,075 07986 T
EXPENSE (Schedule IT)
Salaries and benefits 83,508 TE1,724 740,295
Services purchased FIE5 30 115,892 119 89]
Supplizs and matenals 51,584 48,933 49 598
School funded activities 34,971 37651 36,306
Imerest 2807 el F et 3.254
Amortization of capilal assets 33T 34,296 32,258
Total expense 5 1.025,1 16 5 1,021,438 g%1.932
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expense for
the yenr, belore the mndernated {1.556) H,637 {2.065)
Other sources (applications) of operating funds
Transfers to{irom) operating reserves’designated funds TA3 {2,936) 5.075
Met capital purchases funded by operating funds (14,547 {9,315 {20,708)
Capital debi repayments [685) {6ES) (4G
Transfers from capital reserves’designated funda 0457 4. 560 15,434
Met operating surplus for the vear b - 5 53K 276

The dores are an infegrad port of these finencial sialemenrs.
10
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 20010

Balance, Augusi 31, 2008

Excess (deficiency) of
TEVERLE OVED EXpENSE

Transfers during the vear

Capital exsels acguined
with gperating fumds

Capital debt repaaments
fram aperating funds

et increase for veor

Balance, Aupusi 31, 2009

Expess (deficiency) ol
TEVETILES (WET EXPEnse

Trarsters during e vear

Capiinl pssess scquired
with pperaling funds

Capital debi repmymenis
froen operating Tunds

Wi inerease for vear

Halince, Augost 31, TR0

Imvesiment [hesppmated Unrestricted Total
in Capital Capital Crperathng Chserating (hperuting Mt Asseds
Assets Heserves Reserves Funds Burplus {bak 14}
{1 thousands)
£ Thded & 0080 % M09 5 11460 & ol 14K.783
{12959 I B85 [2ika5)
(&) {15434 CEE L 14.826) 23,517 -
2673 . E - (36T -
Al - : - (A6
5 Zh1G6E  § (154341 3 (3240 8§ (48261 & an (2 {a5)
§ FLA3T 5 M54 % 20030 % A} % 2962 144,718
{15,218} - - - 3845 B.637
{15 {4, %a0) 2033 an 1,939
24,561 . % - {24,561 -
k-] - = - (GRS}
TRA23 [ 61 2025 ap| 3% Ra37
5 100 6641 5 1686 % 22935 5 158 5 3,500 155,535

The wores are ar imfegrad parr af these financied slafemens,
11
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2010

2000 2009
{1n thousands)
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expense for the vear 8,637 % (2065
Add (less) items not requinng cash:
Capital suppor revenue (15,5400} (17,754
Amaortization of capital assets 34,196 31,288
Employes future benefits (1,00 (506}
Gain on disposal of assets (173} [5.139)
Unrealized loss {gain) on long-femm investments (4, 495) L57
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Shor-term investments 71300 (121427
Accounts receivable and prepand expenses 186 (2,390
Inventories (2145) X3
Accounts payable and acerued liabilitics {11,040 4, B95
Deferred revenue 1,043 (6.088)
Cash from operating activities ROB40 b (116807
Financing activities
Capital grants received 26,864 56,547
Repavment of debenture delbt and capital lease payments (5,933} (6.951)
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 4,241 iTl
Accounts payable and accrued linbilities (8,630} (20.523%
Cash from financing activities 16,542 Y 23.4?
Investing activities
Purchase of investments, net of disposals (49, 448) [ 1.530)
Capital ass2ts acquired {45,675) (B5.066)
Procesds from disposal of capital assels 136 5433
Changes 1n non-cash working capital:
Accounts receivable and prepaid expenses (S -
Accounts payable and accrued liabalities {1,715} (1549
Cash wsed in investing activities (97.252) % (R2.B12)
Met inecrease in cash and cash equivalenis 130 (1T B0y
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year 1.597 172,777
Cash and cash equivalents, end of vear (Note 3) 1,727 % }.597

Supplementary cash flow information (Sate 3)

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements
iz
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AUGUST 31, 2010

{All amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

ORGANIZATION

The Calgary Board of Education (the “Corporation”) is an independent legal entity with an elected
Board of Trusiees as stipulated in the School Act {Alberta). The Corporation is registered as a
charitable organization under the fncome Tar Acr (Canada) and, therefore, is exempt from income
tax and may issue official receipts to donors for income tax purposes.

The Corporation provides a full range of educational services for all instructional programs
ranging from Kindergarten through Grade 12, In addition, the Corporation demonstrates its
commitment to life-long leaming by offering continuing education programs for adults,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
Generally Aceepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). A precise determination of many assets
and liabilities is dependent upon future cvents and involves the use of estimates and
approximations. which have been made using professional judgment. Actual results could
differ from these estimales or approximations. In administration’s opinion, these financial
statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality and within the
framework of the accounting policies summarized below,

The lmancial operations of EducationMatters (formerly The Calgary Board of Edecation
Foundation) is a not-for-profit foundation which promotes and supports public education in
Calgary (see Note 15 (b)) and is a controlled entity whose financial results are not
consolidated in these financial statements, as permitied under CICA 4450.14.

Budget information is unaudited and is presented on the Swuatement of Revenue and Expense
and on the related schedules for information purposes only and represents the original budget
submitted to Alberta Education in June, 2009, as amended during the fiscal vear to reflect
identificd changes in circumstances relating to operating and program changes. The Board of
Trustees approves the original budget and monitors all subsequent changes through quarterly
reports of revisions and amendments.

{b) Changes in accounting policies

On September 1, 2009, the Corporation adopted the amendment to the existing CICA
Handbook Section 4400 “Financial Statement presentation by not-for-profit organizations™
such that revenues and expenses should be recognized and presented at their pross amounts
when an organization is acting as a principal in transactions. As such, school generated
funds revenues and expenses are reported separately and on a gross basis for the vear ended
August 31, 2010. This change has been applied retroactively with restatement and has
resulted in an increase to school generated funds of $28.36% and school funded activities of

13
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£28.369 for the vear ended August 31, 2009, There 15 no effect on excess of revenue over
expense,

CICA Handbook Section 4470 “Disclosure of Allocated Expenses by Not-for-Profit
Organizations™ establishes disclosure standards for not-for-profit organizations that choose
to classify its expenses by function and allocates its expenses among the functions. The
main features of the new section are:

* A requirement for an organization that allocates its fundraising and general support
expenses 1o other functions to disclose the policies adopted for the allocation of
expenses among functions, the nature of the expenses being allocated, and the basis
on which such allocations have been made; and

+ A requircment for an organization to disclose the amounts allocated from each of its
fundraising and general support functions and the amounts and functions to which
they have been allocated.

There was no impact 1n adopting this section of the Handbook, as the Corporation does not
allocae expenses.

{c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and shorl-term investments with original
maturity of 90 days or less,

(d} Investments

Held-for-trading asscls are measured at fair value each reporting peried.  Unrealized gains
and losses on held-for-trading financial instruments are recognized in earnings.

Short-term investments are investments held with a maximum of a one-vear view to ensure
the timely settlement of the Corporation’s financial obligations, Investments usually consist
of treasury bills and money market investments and are recorded at fair value.

Long-term investments are investments held for a period of approximately three o five
vears, unless significant unforeseen factors occur.  Long-lerm investments may include
corporate and government bonds and equities and are recorded at fair value,



(e} Inventories

Inventories consist of maintenance and school supplies and are valued at the lower of
average cost and replacement cost, or net realizable value. Inventory is expensed when
iems are shipped 10 schools or departments.

(fi Capital Assets and Capital Revenuoe

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis at rates
which amortize the cost of the capital assets over their estimated useful lives. The
amortization rates applied are as follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings 10 - 40 years
Furniture and equipment 4 - 10 vears

No amortization is provided on construction in progress, as these assets are not ready and are
not available for use. Once completed and placed into use, these assets are amortized in
accordance with the Corporation's above amaortization policy.

Certain capital assets, including new school construction and major renovations {except
administrative buildings and replacement of equipment and vehicles), are funded by Alberta
Education when approved. and are based on the Corporation’s three-vear capital plan. When
received, capital grants for these assets are deferred and reflected in revenue and matched 10
the amortization expense over the lives of the related assets. Provincially funded
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) projects that improve or sustain the operating
functionality of building components or land improvements and do not extend the useful life
of the underlying asset are expensed.

(g) Asset Retirement Obligation

The Corporation recognizes the fair value of an Asset Retirement Obligation (“ARO”) in the
period in which it incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of capital assets.
Certain building assets contain some ashestos.  Although the asbestos is appropriately
contained in accordance with environmental regulations, it is the Corporation’s practice to, if
necessary. remediate any asbesios upon disposal of a capital asset. The Corporation
recognizes an ARQ only when those assets have been approved by the Board of Trustees for
disposition and when the fair value of the liability can be reasonably determined.

The fair value of the estimated ARO is recorded as a long term liability, with a
corresponding increase m the camrying value of the assel. In periods subseguent 1o initial
measurement where the passage of time results in liability increases and the amount of this
accretion is charged against income. The liability is adjusted for revisions to previously used
estimates.

I5
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(h)

(i)

)

(k)

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when they are camed. Grants received. restricted donations and
fees collected, in advance of the provision or use of related services. are deferred until
utilized.

Unrestricted cash donations are recognized as revenue when they are received. Donations of
materials and services, that would otherwise have been purchased, are recorded at fair
market value when an estimated fair market value can be reasonably determined.

Funds donated by individuals or organizations for the purpose of establishing scholarships
and bursaries are accounted for as deferred revenucs. Interest is calculated on each
scholarship fund balance and is accrued for the benefit of the recipients of the fund.
Individual scholarship payments are made to the recipients of the scholarships and bursaries
in accordance with the various scholarship agreements, and a corresponding amount is
recognized as revenue at that time.

The amortization of capital assets funded by Alberta Education and Alberta Infrastructure is
expensed annually and 15 offset by a comespending amount of revenue arising from the
recognition in that year of related capital grants.

Each year, volunteers contribute a considerable number of hours which support the delivery
of certain programs within schools. Due to the difficulty of determining or otherwise
estimating these hours, and the fact that these services are not otherwise purchased, the value
of these contributed services is not quantified nor recognized in these financial stalements.

Proceeds on Disposal of Capital Assets

The proceeds on disposal of capital assets are applied 10 fund future capital asset
expenditures. Pursuant to Provincial regulations, the allocation of proceeds for each asset
disposal is based upon the relative contribution from the Province of Alberta and the
Corporation 1 fund the original purchase of the disposed assel. Proceeds relating 1o
provincially funded assets are recorded as deferred capital allocations until a provincially
approved capital expenditure is made. Proceeds relating to Corporation funded assets are
reflected as income and a corresponding amount 13 transferred to capital reserves until a
capital expenditure 10 be financed from capnal reserves is approved by the Board of
Trustees.

School Generated Funds

These inancial statements include amounts arising from certain school and student activities
which are controlled and administered locally by each school but for which the Corporation
15 accountable.  School generated funds revenues are primarily generated through
fundraising activities, non-instructional fees and donations and grants to schools in support
of extra-curricular activities, field trips and eguipment,

Fensions

The Corperation's certificated emplovees are required to contribute to the Alberta Teachers'
Retirement Fund, a multi-employer pension plan. This defined benefit pension plan is the
responsibility of the Province of Alberta and these employee members. Accordingly, no

|6
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disclosure has been made in these financial statements relating to the effects of participation
in the pension plan by the Corporation's certificated emplovees,

The Corporation and its non-certificated employees participate in the Local Authorities
Pension Plan, a multi-emplover pension plan. Pension costs incleded in these financial
statements compnse the cost of employer contributions for current service of participating
emplovees during the year.

The Corporation has established a Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPP) for certain
members of senior administration compnsed of both a registered and non-registered portion.
The plan provides a supplement 1o the Local Authorities Pension Plan or Alberta Teachers’
Retirement Fund (as appropriate) 1o provide an annual retirement benefit of 2% of total
earnings. The cost of this SiPP is sponsored by the Corporation and is actuarially
determined wsing the projecied benefit method prorated on service and management’s best
estimate of expected salary and benefit escalation, retirement ages of emplovees and plan
investment performance. As al August 31, 2010 plan assets held in trust are invested in a
mix of cash, bonds, Canadian and international equities. Plan assets are valued at cost. which
approximates market value and the plan is fully funded by separately designated plan assets.
Changes to the actuarially determined obligation are recognized and expensed as of the
applicable date to ensurc the plan is fully funded. Actuarial valuations of the plan occur
annually as at August 317,

(Iy Employee Future Benefit Plans

The Corporation has a number of defined benefit plans providing post-employment and post-
retirement benefits for supplementary health care, dental care, life insurance and retiring
allowances, These plans are not funded by separately designated plan assets.

For emplovee future benefit plans other than pension plans, the Corporation accrues its
obligations, and expenses the related costs, in accordance with the terms of the various
collective agreements and other contracts of employment, The cost of emplovee future
benefits earned by emplovees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method
pro-rated on service and management’s best estimate of salary escalation, retirement ages of
employees, and expected provincial and supplementary health care costs and dental care
costs, The actuarially determined benefit obligation from the initial application of this
policy is being amonized over the average remaining service period of employees active at
September 1. 2000, the beginning of the fiscal vear in which this policy was implemented,
The balance of any unrecognized net plan experience, including changes in actuarial basis, in
excess of 10% of the greater of the actuanial benefit obligation and the market value of plan
assets is amortized over the average remaining service lifctime of the active members as of
the applicable date. When changes to employee future benefit plans are negotiated, the
related fimancial impacts are recognized when an agreement has been reached by the
Corporation and the applicable group of employees. Effective January 1, 2011, all
emplovees will pay 100% of the post-retirement benefit premium costs.

The Corporation measures its acerued benefit cbligations under these plans for accounting
purposes as al August 317 of each fiscal year, The most recent actuarial valuation of posl-
retirement and posti-employment benefit plans was as of August 31, 2009. The next required
valuation will be as of August 31, 2012.

7
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im) Financial Instruments

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, cash held by
schools, shori-term  investments, accounts receivable, long-term investments, accounts
payable and accrued liabilitics, and long-term liabilities. Unless otherwise stated in Notes 3
and 11, which are determined by markel comparisons, the far values of these financial
instruments approximate their carrying values.

There are no financial assels on the balance sheet desiznated as available-for-sale or held-1o-
maturity. Cash and cash eguivalents and investments are classified as held for trading. Al
other financial assets are classified as loans or receivables and are accounted for on an
amortized cost basis. All financial liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and
are accounted for on an amortized cost basis,

Transaction costs and related cash flow impacts are included in the fair value assessment of
each financial asset. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
other financial liabilities are not considered significant and are expensed when incurred.

The Corporation has a comprehensive risk management framework 1o monitor, evaluate and
manage the principal risks assumed with financial instruments. The risks that arise from
transacting hnancial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk. Price risk
arises from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market prices. The
Corporation does not use derivative financial instruments to alter the effects of these risks, It
15 admimstration’™s opmion that the Corporation is not exposed to significant interest,
currency or credit risks ansing from these financial instruments.

The Corporation has ¢lected 10 apply the scope provisions of paragraph 3855.07A such that
the Corporation will not apply the requirements of Section 3835 to contracts for the purchase
or sale of non-financial items and any embedded derivatives within these types of contracts
or those embedded derivatives that may exist within lease or insurance contracts. In addition,
the Corporation has elected 10 not adopt “Financial Instruments — Disclosures™ and
“Financial Instruments — Presentation.” The Corporation docs not invest or use derivative
financial instruments. Derivatives may be embedded in other financial instruments (the
“host” instrument™) or other contracts (the “host contract™). The Corporation has not
identified embedded denvatives in the host contracts.

{n) Future Accounting Standards

The CICA Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) has confirmed that “the changeover’ date
from Canadian GAAP (o International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) will be
effective January 1, 2011. Alberta Education has stated that, at this time, IFRS is not
applicable for school boards in Alberta and that the changeover is not expected 1o affect the
Corporation.

15
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3.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INVESTMENTS AND BANK INDEBTEDNESS

2000 Invesimeenis @ Fair Value
Cash and cash
equivalends  Shori-Term  Long-Term Total Cosl

5 Tixed Income Invesimenis
Barik balances B2e9 % - 5 . §2.679 $2.679
Crutstamding chegques {0s) - = (9523 (957]
hMoney maskel investments - TG KL i, 525 B339
Supplemenial Integrated Fension . Glih . Gl %]
Pian Assets (see note Yk}
Fixed Income

Ciowernment of Canada 11,538 21.538 LRI

Provinctal - - SEE SEE 57

Municipal - - 2132 21312 2037

Corposale - - 31435 32455 1,75
Bearricied long-term investmend | 1) - - b BRZ ThHEZ 2 kR2
Eguiny Invesiments
Canadian equilics - - TR5E 1RSSR 616
1.5 couity funds - - 40z 5402 f6ld
International equity funds - - 6921 a.421 K.0G7
Total ol Fair Value 51,727 LA, 582 H104,339 S1HG0G4E
Tl al Cosl 51,717 LROG5T 5103544

(1} Festricied long-term anvestment nelates wo cash collatens requiremenis o= 2 result of capital leases entered imo betwesn the

wears endedd Angust 31, 2060 and Avgust 31, 2000 {see Mate 11

SI1H6.528

2009 Investments at Fair Valus
{“ash ened cash
equivalents _ Short-Texm  Long-Term Tozal CosL

Cash and Fixed Income Invesimenis
Hank balances 52636 5 ¥ 5 1536 2636
Cnpstanding chogues : {1059 - . i 1,035 {10559
Mlomey markes invesmens - 132308 G 42 | 58867 | 58,867
Supplememal Integraied Pensaos Plan
Asseas [see note Hhih - 97 07 65l
Fined Income

Govermmenl of Cannda - - 16,751 16,751 16,576

Provincial - - 4 574 571

Municipal - - Hs ik il

LCorporale .34 B3940 1434
Reestricted lpng=term invesiment (1] 1710 3700 T
Equity Invesments
Canadian eguilies 6,574 6,974 6512
LS. equity fundg 5507 5517 . 540
Internatione] aquely fands - E..EE_-! E._Li'_:j-‘-]_ T.h55
Tatal at Fair Value p ] 1597 } 152972 £ 50335 £ HM.925
Tatad at Cosl 3 1,597 5 153,066 § SL.A%1 5 206334

{13 Restricied lomg-term imvestmenl relates i cosh collaieral requiremenis as & result of caphal leases entered ine hetween the

wears ended August 31, 2004 and Awgust 31, 20080 (see Moe 10).
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General Operating and ther Bank Indebledness

The Corporation maintains a line of credit that has been negotiated with its banker for peneral
operating purposes. The line of credit is secured against the Corporation’s accounts receivable at

bank prime rate. As at August 31, 200, no amount has been drawn against the Corporation’s
general operating line of credit.

Yields on current and long-term investments reflect the cash value of all dividends. interest or
other payments received or receivable on active investment instruments. These vields do not
include any realized or unrealized capital gains of the underlying market values of the instruments
At August 31, 2010 the yvields on these investments were as follows:

1 || 2%
Effective Elfective
1] L1
Eair W aluse Fair Vil
Yield Fair Value Yield Fair Walue
Shon-Term Investmients
Money Marked Investments 7% L7% 0466 1. 29%, £152.374
Maon-Registered Mulaal Funids {5iFF) 2501 GG 3 AR 597
Lonp-Term Investiments
Money Marke! Investments 161 363 0.2 01% f,493
Bnnd type:
Crovl ol Canada La1%n 21,338 2.21% 146751
Frovinceal 2.65% SHE 5,500, 74
Municipal 2. 16% 2132 L.RA%, 215
Carpoeae 26TV 12 455 4.012% | 390
Canadian eguitics 3001% T.ESH 301% 6574
L5 equiny pooled funds | Bi®h 5402 1.42% 3317
Inbernational equity pooled funds A34% 642 3.55% 5,734

Additional Cash Flow Information

During the year ended August 31, 2010, cash interest paid on school building debenture debt and
other debl amounted to $2.686 (2009 - $3,357) and cash interest eamed (operating and capital)
and dividends received on investments totaled $1,936 (2000 - §4,238).
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5

CASH HELD BY SCHOOLS

Changes in cash held by schools are as follows:

Sources of school generated funds:
Fundraising activities
Mon-instructional fees and charges
Dwonations and grants o schools
(Other income

Total additions to school generated funds

Application of school generated funds:
Fundraising activities
Feesfcharges (non-instructional) — related expenses
Donations And grants to schools — related expenses
Other — related expenses: bank charges
Extra-curricular activities
Ficld mps
Equipment

Total application of school generated funds

Met use of school generated funds for the year
Cash balance, beginning of vear
Cash balance, end of year

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Alberta Education operating grants
Government of Alberta capital grants
Debenture interest granis

School junisdictions and other governments
Other accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

2010

$ 10,896
17,000
6,780

(1,333)
$ (37,651

(2.947)
14,635

5 11,688

[ )
f=ry
]

5 301
§57

1,300
1,957
8.079

4.614
5 17,205

2009

$ 11,238
16,813
7,174

150

§ 35375

{14.389)
(13,259)
(6569)

(32)

(5.028)
{1.421)
__(.488)
S (36.306)

(931)
15,566
§ 14,635

b
pr-

$ 213
5,193
1618
1,859
8,162
4,075

$21.130



6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Land

Land improvements
Buildings

Furniture and equipment

Construction in progress

Land

Land improvements
Buildings

Furniture and equipment

Construction in progress

2010
Accumulated Met

Cosl Amortization  Book Value
b 4,809 § - % 4 809
18,194 8,525 0660
026,145 338,810 587,335
172,520 115,652 56,868
1,122,168 462,987 658.681
43,717 - 43.717
] 1165385 % 462987 % T02.398

2009 i
Accumulated Met

Cost Amaortization Book Value
.4 4800 % - % 4 809
039G 8.399 1000
751,925 320,293 431.632
147,350 103,008 44,341
913,483 431,700 481,783
25,844 - 25,844
5 939,327 § 431,700 % 507.627

Included in the cost of furniture and equipment are assets under capital lease in the amount of
$115 (2009 — §2,700). Included in the cost of buildings are assets under capital lease in the
amount of 320,527 (2009 ~ $4.130). Accumulated amortization is $2,129 (2009 — $1.443%) on

these assets.

The Corporation has recorded an asset retirement obligation for the estimated costs of removing
and disposing of asbestos in those schools and other buildings approved by the Board for
disposition. At August 31, 2010, the Corporation, through the use of engineering estimates, has
valued the asset retirement obligation amount for those assets at $1.644 (2000 — $1,726), which is
reflected in the cost of the builldings asset cest above. The Corporation received transferred-in
building assets from the Province in the amount of $162_293 {2009 — $0).

7. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

salaries and benefits
Debenture interest

Federal government
Contractor pavables

Deferred capital allocations (1)
Other accounts payable

Other acerued habilitics

b

2010

30,091
1,300
731
6,562
23,066
13,349
1,746

84.845

009

37,484
1.618
691
10,502
31.378
13,992
10,675

106,340
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(1) Government of Alberta capital grants not yet expended at August 31 .
4. DEFERRED REVENUE

2010 2009
Alberta Education operating grants 5 4880 % 13,057
Alberta Initiative for School Improvement grants 3.644 5,082
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal grants 24,464 14,117
Student fees 6,670 6,717
Scholarship funds 264 274
Other 4,241 3,882

5 44,172 % 43,129

9. PENSIONS/EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

Local Authorities Pension Plan (LAPP)
The Corporation's net pension expense for the vear amounts 10 $13,917 (2009 - $11,487).
Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (SiPP)

The Corporation provides a Supplemental Integrated Pension Plan (the “Plan™) for certain
execulive emplovees of the Corporation, based on approved terms and conditions of the
Plan. The Corporation’s net pension expense for the registered portion for the vear was $37
(2009 — net expense of $12). The net pension expense for the non-registered portion was
$150(200% - 570). The wial hability for the Plan at August 31, 2010 is $175 (2009 - $346).

Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP)

The Corporation provides a Supplementary Retirement Plan for centain senior employees of
the Corporation. based on approved terms and conditions of the plan. The plan provides for
annual contributions of 10% of the emplovees salarv which is above the LAPP or Alberta
Teachers” Retirement Fund pensionable earnings cap. The total liability for the SRP at
August 31, 201015 $197 (2009 - $137).

Other Emplovee Future Benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions adopled in measuring the Corporation’s employee
future benefit obligation (based on a weighted average assumption of the various plans as of
August 31, 200107 are as follows:

Amortization method straighi-line
Discount rate 4. 7%
Supplementary health care cost escalation 8.0% declining by

0.0% for two vears, 0.50% thereafier
o an ultimate rate of 3,0% per year

Dental care cost escalation 4.0%% per year

Provingial health care cost escalation Not applicable
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The actuanially determined liability for future emplovee benefits at August 31, 2010 is
§30.263 (2009 - §32,418). To date, $19.751 (2009 - $20,758) has been accrued in these
financial statements. The initial transitional obligation of $35.664 at September 1, 2000 is
being amortized over the expected average remaining service period of the employee proup,
which was estimated to be 12 years, of which 2 years remain. The unamortized transitional
obligation of $2,058 on September 1, 2009 has been reduced by 3687 to $1.371 to reflect the

change in the accrued benefit obligation to emplovee proups, and the annual amortization of

the remaining initial transitional obligation.

The total cumrent year expense for emplovee future benefits amounts to $3,221 (2009 -
§3,610), including current service costs of 3845 (2009 - $628). During the vear ended
August 31, 2010, §4.228 (2009 - $4.246) was paid in respect of post-employment or post-
retirement benefits,

1. DEFERRED CAPITAL GRANTS

Changes in deferred capital grants are as follows:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of year b3 382542 § 343,754
Deebenture prncipal repaid by Alberta Finance 5249 h, 400
Capital assets funded by Alberta Infrastructure
and Transportation and Alberta Education 183 00K 50,052
Capital allocations amortized to revenue (18.540) (17,754)
Balance, end of vear 5 353,159 % IRT 547

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term Habilitics relate to debentures for the acquisition of school buildings funded directly by
Alberta Education (pre 1993) and to capital leases, approved by the Minister of Education for
internally financed equipment purchases. Debentures are secured by the Province and capital
leases are secured by identified assets of the Corporation (restricted cash).

Debentures were 1ssued for periods of 15, 20 or 23 years in those vears prior to 1993 when the
Corporation had local axing authority. Fair value of this debt is $25,315 (2009 - $31,338) which
is calculated using a discount rate of 4.70%, that reflects the average vield on high quality long
term corporate bonds at August 31, 2010, This debt is fully guaranteed by the Province of Alberta
and Alberta Finance funds these interest and principal payments.

20140 2009
Debenture debt on school buildings, bearing interest at
rates ranging from 7.38% - 11.75%, repavable in annual
installments of varving amounts, maturing from 201 1
through 2020. § 21.802 3 27,051

6-63



Finance contracts, secured by certain equipment bearing
interest at rates ranging from 2.44% - 4 49%;, repayable in
annual installments of 3323 including interest, maturing
September 2014, 1,395 |,687

Finance contracts, secured by certain building components
bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.16% - 4.16%,
repayable in annual installments of $347
including interest, maturing September 2014 through
August 2015. 3,543 1933

Finance contracts, secured by certain building components
Bearing interest at 3.13%, repavable in annual installments of

£2,662 including interest, maturing August 2015, 21,142 -
47,882 32,672

Less current portion . 7.162 5.933
Long-term portion ¥ A0.720 % 26,739

Minimum principal repayments based on the terms above are as follows:

12.

2011 ) 7.162
2012 6.625
2013 &, 104
2014 6,574
2015 5.964
Thereafter 15,453
Total % 47 882

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

The Corporation has estimated an asset retirement obligation of 31,644 as at August 31, 2010
(200% - $1.726) for building assets that have been approved for disposition by the Board and are
estimated to occur between 2010 and 2011, An interest rate of 5.35% is applicable 1o discount
expected cash [lows, for caleulation of the initial obligation and a rate of 4.70% would be
applicable for accretion of the obligation,

The following table summanzes the changes in the asset retirement obligations:

2010 2009
Balance, beginning of vear 5 1,726 % 1,887
Crbligations discharged (82) (161}
Balance, end of vear 5 1644 % 1,726
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13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

ic)

(d)

(e}

From vear to vear, legal actions are brought against the Corporation in the normal course of

operations.  Management believes that the wultimate resolution of claims presently
outstanding are not expected to be significant to the overall financial position of the
Corporation.

The Corporation has contractual commilments to complete major capital projects relating 1o
school buildings and Administrative sites. As al August 31, 2010, these outstanding
contractual obligations amount to $26,762 (2009 - $47,323), with $19,676 to be funded by
Alberta Infrastructure/Education and $7,085 by the Corporation.

To the extent the Corporation terminates certain contractual commitments for convenience
under certain service and development management agreements, the Corporation would
incur costs, depending on the date of termination, of between $3,500 and $11.500.

The Corporation has entered into operating lease agreements for office space that expire
beyond August 31, 2014, Future minimum annual lease payments under these leases,
including provisions for renewals, are as follows:

Year

2011 F 440

2012 F 166

2013 £ 70

2014 £ 79
Future Years $ 49

p

Lease expense during the vear amounted to $343 (20049 - §735),

The Corporation has entered into a 20 year lease agreement for the new Education Centre
with payments commencing approximately March 1, 2011, Future estimated minimum
annual lease and operating payments (including parking) under this commitment are:

Minimum lease Estimated Total
pavments Dperating costs SE0i
2011 5 4,265 1.449 5,714
2012 8.531 2,935 11,466
2013 8,531 3.008 11.539
2014 B.836 3.084 11,920
2015 9,142 3,161 12,303
Thereafter 72,254 60,412 232,666
Total payments $ 211,559 74,049 285,608
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(f} The Corporation has entered inlo a service agreement related 1o certain payrell and human
resources administration processes expiring October 16, 2015, Future minimum annual
payments under this commitment are:

2011 b 8.754
202 9,383
2013 9.734
2014 10,021
2015 10,311
2016 1,253
Total payments s 49 456

(g} Effective September 1, 2006, the Corporation entered into a Master Transportation
Agreement with Southland Transportation Lid. and First Student Canada for the provision of
student school bus transportation services. The initial term of the agreement is ten years
(expiring August 31, 2016) and the Corporation may renew the agreement for two additional
periods of five vears each. Each vear during the term, the Corporation enters into a Yearly
Service Agreement with each carrier, outlining the services to be provided, the applicable
Daily Base Rate and all other anticipated fees and charges under the agreement.

(h) Effective January I, 2010, the Corporation entered into a one vear fixed price natural gas
supply agreement of a certain price for a majority of its total annual natural gas consumption.
This agreement was to expire on December 31, 20140, but was renewed for one additional
vear and will expire December 31, 2011,

(i) Effective July 31, 2007, the Corporation entered into a fixed electricity supply agreement of
a certain price for all of its electricity consumption from January 1, 2009 10 December 31,
2012. This agreement has been extended by two additional vears and will expire December
31,2014

(j) Effective July 1, 2007, the Corporation entered into a Committed Retainer Legal Services
Agreement of a certain price, with a one year Evaluation Stage and the provision for a four
year extension period, upon mutual agreement of bath parties, to June 30, 2012,

14. NET ASSETS

The components of the Corporation’s net assets of $155,355 as at August 31, 2010 are described
below:

{a) Accumulated Operating Surplus

As at August 31, 2010, the Corporation has an accumulated operating surplus of $34,009
{2009 - 530,5335) comprised of the following:

(i) Unrestricted Operating Surplus

Unrestricted operating surplus represents the aggregation of successive vears' annual
operating surpluses.
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(i)

in the year ended August 31, 2010, the Corporation’s annual operating surplus is 3538
(2009 - $276) and, as at August 31, 2010, the Corporation has an unresiricted
accumulated operating surplus of §3,.500 (2009 - $2,962).

Designated Operating Funds and Operating Reserves

Where certain instructional initiatives are planned or in progress, and consistent with
prior years, the Corporation has designated or restricted operating funds for specific
purposes. Operating reserves have been established for specific program
requircments, 10 stabilize annual fee rates or to offset the cost of programs and
services in future vears. These fund designations and reserves have been established
consistent with Provineial legislation and by Board of Trustees” resolution and will be

applied to finance future expenses in accordance with the specific requirements of

cach of these resolutions,

Operating funds have been designated by the Board of Trustees for the following
purposes;

2010 2019
School decentralized budgets ! 5054 % 3,750
Instructional and service unil initiatives 2,500 2,803

h 1.554 % 6,643

Operating reserves have been established by the Board of Trustees for the following
PuUrpOses:

2010 2009
Transportation Fee Stabilization b - ¥ 1,665
Continuing Education Fee Stabilization (1) 1,313 .313
Unrealized Investment GainsLosses [,750 =
Untility Expense Stabilization 4,870 4,559
Snow Removal Budget Stabilization 200 200
Administrative Systems Renewal 5,322 5322
General Instruction 1,000 3,000
Fiscal Stability 5,000 1,871
System Transformation _L50D 1,000

5 22955 § 20,930

i1} Resincted operaling reserve far Adult Education purpases anly, and in aceordanes with Alberis Education meporling
pusilelings, canmol be used i sopport of B-12 educaticnal progranss

As at August 31, 2010, the Board of Trustees approved the use of $2.238 of the Utility
Expense Stabilization Fee Reserve, 33,000 of the General Instruction Reserve, $2.540
of the Fiscal Stability Reserve, $3.320 of the Administrative Systems Renewal
Reserve, $1.000 of the System Transformation Reserve o support the 2010411
Operating Budget. The Board has also approved the use of 32,000 of School
decentralized budgets and $2.962 of Unrestricted Net Assets in support of the 2010/11
Ciperating Budget. Subsequent 1o the Board of Trustees’ approval of the budget, the
Province of Alberta committed additional funds 1o the CBE. It is expected that these
various reserves will not be drawn down in 2010/11 to the same amounts,

2%
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(by Capital Reserves and Designated Capital Funds

(c)

The Corporation's capital reserves and designated capital funds are established by Board of
Trustees’ resolution and in accordance with Provincial regulation, and are funded from
proceeds on disposals of capital assets, provision from operating funds, or from lease
revenues. To date, the following capital reserves and designated capital funds have been
established:

2010 2009
Land, Buildings and equipment b 8701 % 11,801
School Program Modemization 2,271 M
Leased School Buildings 2,000 2,000
Chinook Leaming Services Relocation 1.400 1,400
Funds designated for approved capital prejects 5314 7.074

5 19686 % 24,546

I'hese reserves and designated funds are 1o be applied 1o finance future capital expenditures
in accordance with the specific requirements of each Board resolution. Funds may be
commitied from these reserves or designated amounts by the Board of Trustees from time 1o
time to permit the completion of approved capital projects. As at August 31, 2010, the
Board of Trustees has approved the use of $8.542 of these funds for certain capital projects
leaving 511,144 uncommitied for future capital projects.

Investment in Capital Assets

Investment in capital assets represents the Corporation’s net investment of operating funds
that have been used from time to time to purchase building improvements, capital equipment
and technology infrastructure to support the general operating activities of the Corporation.
As of Avgust 31, 2010, the Corporation has $101.660 invested in capital assets {2009 -
$91.637).

15. RELATED PARTIES

(a)

Province of Alberta and economic dependence

The Corporation is economically dependent upon the Government of the Province of
Alberta, since the viability of its on-going operations depends on grants and contributions
from Alberta Education and other provincial ministries.

Effective 2005/06, school jurisdictions have been deemed to be controlled by the
Government of Alberta according to ¢riteria set out in the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants Public Sector Accounting Standards section 130{, Government Reporting
Entity. All entities consolidated or accounted for on a modified equity basis in the accounts
of the Government of Alberta are now considered related parties of school jurisdictions for
financial reporting purposes. These include government depariments, health authorities,
post secondary institutions and all school jurisdictions in Alberta.
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Assets, liabilities and transactions of the Corporation that relate to the Government of Alberta

are as follows;
Agers
200910 lal cosl or
niet relizahbie
valuc) Liakilities Revenues __ Expenses

rme——

Governmeni of Alberia:
Education £ 2580 8 33,134 8 G1E501 F 2506
Infrastructure
Transportation - - -
Finance - 23,102 2368 -
Health & Wellness - -
Human Kesources!
Employment - - 194 -
Orher Gov't of AB
Depariments 142 - . -
Other:
Healh authorities = - - 1,590
Post-secondary
institutions - -
Cither Albera school
Jurisdictions 273 - T.032 271
Oither related parties - 688 R =)
TOTAL 2009710 5 3,054 £ 56,926 5 92,095 5 IB.285

TOTAL 2iWps0% 38,158 B63.016 5870134 Ela,0al

{b) EducationMatters

EducationMatters {formerly The Calgary Board of Education Foundation), (the
“Foundation™) was established in 2003 by the Corporation under a trust indenture. The
Corporation’s Board of Trustees appoints the Governors of the Foundation. The
Corporation’s Trustees cannot hold a majority of the Governor positions. The Foundation
promotes activities that support public education for the benefit of Calgary’s students.

The Foundation is not consolidated into these financial staternents, The resources held by the
Foundation are not necessarily limited for use by the Corporation.  Selected financial
information for the Foundation for the year ended August 317, 2010 is as follows:

6-69



2010 2009
Total assets 3 2481 % 2,533
Total liabilities —_— 18 7
Net assets 5 2463 § 2,526
Fund balances held by the Foundation:
Flow through funds 5 342 % 622
Endowment funds 1.4935 1,262
Operating funds 626 642
b 2463 % 2,526
Revenwes (1) b l.ale & 1.777
Expenses (2} o 1.682 1,504
Excess of revenues over expenses h (66} % 273

1y Revenues include finineial support rem the Corporaton of 5730 (2004 - £750).

(2} Expenses paid W the Corporiion amount o 8 1E {2005 - §16); approved Geam deshursensents o CRE Schools and Progmms
ameami Lo BE10 200 - §397)

{¢) The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium

The Corporation 15 a member of The Urban Schools Insurance Consortium (USIC), which
facilitates the placement of property and liability insurance coverage for thirteen school
Jurisdictions throughout the Province of Alberta. Amounts are paid by each of the members
to the consortium to pay for insurance premiums on policy renewals and 1o self-insure a
portion of each member's nisk exposure. The Corporation’s share of the accumulated and
unencumbered consertium funds as at August 31, 2000 was $2.272 (2009 - §2.634). This
amount has not been recognized in the Corporation’s financial statements, as accumulated
consortium funds are payable only upon membership termination or a dissolution of the
consortium,

{d) Other fundraising groups and associations

Various parent groups, including societies and other associations, solicit donations and
undertake fundraising activities to provide operating and capital donations to further the
objectives of the Corporation, The financial information of these groups is not consolidated
in these financial statements.

16. MANAGEMENT OF CAPITAL

Effective September 1. 2008, the Corporation implemented new capital disclosure requirements
per Section 1535 of the CICA Handbook. The Corporation’s objectives for managing capital are
in the short term to safeguard the Corporation’s financial ability to continue 1o deliver education
and in the long term to plan and build financial and sufficient physical capacity to meet future
needs for the Corporation’s education programs and services.

il
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The Corporation defines its capital as the amounts included in net assets. The Corporation’s
objective when managing its capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide an array of educational services to its complex and diverse student
population.

In order to facilitate the management of its capital requirements, the Corporalion prepares annual
capital and operating budgets thai are updaled as necessary, depending on various factors,
including the market valuation of the investments and general industry conditions. The annual
budgets are approved by the Board of Trustees.

The majority of the Corporation’s operating funds are received from Alberta Education which are
generally paid every month. As a result, significantly less working capital is required. The
Corporation monitors its working capital and cash flows against its forecasts.

A portion of the capital funding is restricted in that the Corporation is required to receive approval
from the Minister of Education for draws against any amount in which the Provincial Department
of Education has an interest. In addition, the Corporation has restricted a portion of its short-term
cash for specific capital projects and specific lease paymemt obligations. The Corporation has
internal control processes primarily through its Administrative Regulations, 1o ensure that the
restrictions arc met prior to the utilization of these resources. The Corporation has been in
compliance with these restrictions throughout the yvear,

The Corporation has leveraged its excess shert term cash balances in support of energy retrofit
projects in schools and in support of the Dr. Carl Safran Modemization project through capital
leasing arrangements in order to minimize incremental borrowing costs. [n addition, in 2009/10
the Corporation, in collaboration with its external investment advisor, invested $30 million of
short term cash in high quality bonds of varving duration to enhance its invesiment income stream.

The Corporation sets the amount of internally restricted funds in proportion 1o risk, manages the
net asset structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk charactenstics of the underlying assets.

17. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2009 amounts have been reclassified where necessary to conform to the curment vear's
presentation.
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Sehedule |

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENLUE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ALGUST 31, 2410

Alberts Education grants
Base Frovimcial insiruciion gramis

Kimnlergarten

Instrmoction = Elemenlary

Instrucixm - Junior High

Ingimoctsn = Sénsr High

Alberta Education clawback

Total Base Provincial imiroction grants

Differvmtial cost funding
Tramgporation - Begular
Tramgportation - RCFA

Kindergarten - Special Education (PUT and Ma M}

Special education programs (Ge 1 - 12)
Farst Mations. Mets and Erui education
English as a socond langueags
Sogioeconarsg staius

Retmive cost of purchasing poods and services adj (RCPA)

Operations and mainienance - Reguiar
Oiperatisas and maimenance - RCPA
Small Schools by Wecessiny

Other differemial cost funding

Toral THfterential cost fanding grants

Frovineial Priority Targeied prants

{riher Froviacial education grants
Infrastructurne Mainienance Renewal (MR ]

Qicher programs
Todal Diher Provipcial edocation pranis

Caplial sappor

Supporied school bailding amorzaion
Diebeniure inderesi for sehool projecs
Tuodal Capital sappart

Total Albertn Educativn grants

Crther Provineisl revempe
Federul pramis and education spreements

Schiel g:n:rﬂ.tﬂ] fands

Dther revenme
Individuals and nrgamcsatons

Insiructiond] supply @and materssl lees
Hentals
Tramsportatian foes
Crain on dsposal of assels
Sehopl puthoritkes and kical governments
Invesiment incomes
Unrealoosd pain (loss) on mvesimeni
Cafzieria services

Tatal (thier revenue

Total reviemme

Buddges
{unaudited) Actunl
i 2090 ZO0R
{in thenssancls]

i Ln 8 21,14 & 20,053
RET 78 B4 IR6 RS 230592

133.633 133,506 126, 508

177,332 177,497 164,500

(1,122} i1,123) -

5 SEH. 398 & SHE,H5D 5 350474

0574 935 2M0H

47 40 154

5,593 6,371 5804

§1.532 | 31.551

3.425 3425 33X

1K.THH ETIA 27445

L SER 9,753 9884

T.70dk 1,77 T.731

TU2TH 19,276 15851

3,27} L2 3304

2.051) ol [ 2322

2554 1,733 1. &G

] 234125 £ 124,059 8 &40
5 A2 5 i, 15 5 68, 169
15,504 15,506 18516

23,156 20,504 12087

k3 IK.G62 5 AT 5 A6, 703
IR.514 18,550 17,754

2308 136K 2a7

& 2L ERE 5 20"k ¥ 20,725

3 YK GRS 5 P AT L % REQ.O1 ]
& 1L21%. % 1216 13 1,352
& 2714 % 2034 3 TR3T
& 34,971 5 ATA451 L 36,3
20,5491 I1600 21.353

7,140 7,207 T.275

7445 80355 T.655

5,1R2 L3621 5465

- 174 5039

2026 1350 2247

2,502 1249 1454

k L1750 (2,744

T 4k 1073

3 45970 5 A% HTY i 50,361
5 L0256 & 1,050,075 b3 YTURGT

The nodes e o Imdegral part af these fingncial simemens.

il
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Schedule 11

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2000

Salaries and henefitg
CerlifNcated regular
Certificated lemporary
Mon-certificated regular
Non-certificated temporary

Total splaries and henefits

Services purchased
Maintenance and repair
Trumsporiation

Professional and technical
Litilities

Equipment and facility rentals
Insurance premiums and losses
Dues and fees

Travel and subsistence

Transfer payments 1 other jurisdictions

Other

Total services

Supplics and materials
Supplics

fdinor eguipment

Texthooks and media materials

Total supplics and materials
School Tunded activitics
Interest

Inieresi on long-term liabilities
Bank and other interest

Total interest
Amortiention of capilal assels

Total expense

Budget
(unaudited) Actoal
2011 2010 2009
{in thousands)
5 356,280 5 550,785 3 6342
20,000 21,054 34729
199,748 187,217 | T7.BYT
TARD 12,668 10,327
b TE3. 508 5 TH1,T14 5 T4, 205
21 566 19,183 15,205
30 36,200 017
25643 26,0057 27402
24 630 23,309 11002
3164 3335 1386
2,852 1571 2327
2,004 1.621 I &0
1.575 146l I 468
1201 1337 I.191
1.562 K17 6O3
3 118534 5 115892 ] 19 E9]
0,152 258,911 ETIRY [
[ 8070 16615 4,476
1362 2407 4,905
by 584 5 48,955 i S ERATE]
3 34.97| 5 37,651 5 36,3060
2368 2368 207
439 =74 283
3 2807 5 2,942 ] 3254
33,710 34,296 32 2EE
3 [LO2E 114 5 1,621,428 ] 981,952

The notes are an integrol part af these financial statements

H



Calgary Board of Education

Statistical Information
(Unaudited)

for the Year Ended
August 31, 2010

i

Calgary Board of Education

i
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52-9

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)
(in thousands of dollars)
Fiscal Provincial Crher School Generated Total
Year Reverse L ; Revenue % Funds %% Revenue
21 §574.684| 93.5% §31.306) 5.1% B4R 1.4% 614,476
2002 1609497 92.3% $43.007 6.5% 17862 1.2% 060,366
2003 Bosd 0B5| 92.8% B43. 844 6.2% $o,952 1.0%% 705,481
2014 5668121 92.7% 6,240 6.4% 6,723 0.9% E721.084
2005 $713.006) 93.0% $a009  58% $9.104)  1.2% 107,029
20 STH4.201 9LMg 2496760  6.1% 50933 0.9% 810,902
w
= 2007 FTO6,990G 91.9% : fo2.685 T.2% ET444|  09% 5867125
208 £801.772f 91.9% FoRA2R[ 7.3% £7,528) 0.8% §937.728
209 FRM 363 90.9% 353,198 5.4% o306 3.7% 979 RG7T
2000 3939607 91.2% 532817 5.1% £37.651 3. F0.030,075
Motes:

{1} The provincial revenue column reflects all provineial revenues including property tax revenues which are collected and

distributed by the Peovince.

{2) Certnin school penerated funds cxpenses of prior years have been reclassified to conform with the presentation applied in

20 and subsequent years,

(3) In 2009, the Calgary Board of Education adopted Canadian Instituation of Charted Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section

4400 "Financial Staternent presentation by nod-for profit organizations” such that revenues and expenses should be
recognized and presented at their pross amounts when an organization is acting as o principal in transactions.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
EXFENSE BY ORIECT
LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)
{in thownsands of dollars)

Lehonl
Fiscal Salaries Services Supplies and : Funded T'otal
Year and Benetiis Furchased Materials Interest Amorlization Activities Expenses
20 5473946 SH21TI 36,553 5100491 17572 LR 486 Le09 B9
T1. 7% T0.2% 0% 1.B% 2.9% 1.4%% DA
2002 ] £514,238} Sin1, 043 L1 R0 0. 779 %18,847 LT RE2 647 Teo
TS5 0.9%, 0% 1.5%, 2.9% 1.2%% 10
2003 546,791 273,240 33,690 £8.512 L 1TH 56,952 S6E9 363
79,395 TGS 4.9% 1.3%, 1.9% 1.0%, T
2044 S556,T50 £75,674 332767 57,501 20,092 16,723 609,607
T9.6% 18, &2 4. 7% L%} 2.9%0 1.0% LR R
IS 502 365 §81.72% 5384009 6,580/ 121208 59004 £749 408
e To0%, 10.9% 5.2% 0.9% 1.8% 1.2% TR 0%
006 5621591 390,697 540,583 35.672 22,178 36,931 £T93,654
THA%, 12.2% 1% 0.7% 1. H% 0.9 L0
20T 050,262 109 Geixy 548,771 54,8210 5253495 37444 LR 692
TH.8% 1305 5.7% 6% Lt 0.4, THL D%
2{HKE FOF 5T FE21.355 547,207 %1,930 26,886 57.528 TG, 443
T7.1% 13.4% 5.1% 4% 0%, 0HY 100
2009 740,295 L119.89] 549 398 53,254 112,288 536,306 081,932
T3.4% 13.2% 51% (3% 3% 3% 100.0%
2000 5T7R1.724 3115892 4R 93 52,942 534,296 17651 £1,021,438
T 5% 11.3% 4. 8%, 039 J4% 1% 100.0%%

NI.ILEﬁ'
{1} Cenain school generated funds expenses of prior years have been reclassified 1o conform with the presentation applicd in 2000 and subsequent years.
{2} In 200%, the Calgary Board of Education adopred Canadian Instiation of Charted Accountanis {CICA )} Handbook Section 4300 "Financial Statement
presentation by not-for profil organizations® such that revenues and expenses should be recognized and presemed at their gross amounts wlen an
organization is acting as a principal in transactions,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

SUMMARY OF OFFICIAL ENROLMENTS
LAST TEN YEARS

(Unandited)

Fiscal Year oo 2ini2 11k} 2004 205 Tikb6 M7 2iirg 202 200
KINDERGARTEN 6 340 1 e 241 6361 i, 1 41} 223 G487 6,374 7K 7.201
ELEMENTARY
Cirashe | i 4% 0,441 6217 f 045 5% 6,347 b3 LN B &, | 5%
Cirade 2 6. 177 i, 286 6202 527 a,112 6,188 LR ) 68,372 B, 334 n,551
Ciribe 3 6,273 R (WY AR5 5,053 £, 005 6,424 6,154 6,272 i, 074
Cirade 4 6 162 5841 5,595 5600 5,747 5654 . HE2 LR EE 5,736 5,803
Ciribe 5 6,277 A, il 5841 5,084 5,730 b Y| 5,070 S.B25 5843 anid
Ciradle 6 1,24 i, 160 5,926 5,702 5,625 56006 5867 5,143 5,607 5711
Special Education (Gr ] - ) 4,854 a, 182 3,00 3,657 3,54 5,784 §,352 5,274 5,676 5,833

Total Elementary 41,531 42,414 41,500 41,172 S0, 94| 41,470 42,340 41,6095 42,169 42,603
JUNIOR HIGH
Ciruche 7 i, 22% ﬁ,:iﬂlﬂ1 6,255 R 657 5,752 5,938 6,127 5,730 5,733
Lirade 8 .94 f, 442 6,342 6,306 6,213 5971 i, (H 9 i (14 G018 5,763
Ciracle 9 fn, 3023 G574 422 485 G458 G, 1 6Y 6,220 i.212 5 6031
Special Edweation (G T - 9 1,555 5 RE0 4,275 4,402 4, VIR 4,543 44013 300 4024 4 hne

Tutal Junior High 221671 15000 25104 23,208 11 B0% 22434 12 586 1 403 22,377 11,196
SENIOR HIGH
Crrade 10 14871 175 37 6,02 T.741 7,027 7000 7068 1, 879] 60,193
Cerade 11 Ho 144 T.670 LRI THTS B.m4 7,693 B.I81 7.284 1,205 T, 154
Cirade 12 16,5206 REREL (Rl | 9831 =2 10,558 HO ARG 10462 0.04% 10434
Special Education (Gr 100- 12} 1,540 1540 3,030 4,256 1,147 3804 1,783 5008 560 5431

Total Senivr l[iEh IR, 4 17,767 18,518 28,756 29,64 19,771 0,060 29531 19659 19,852
TOTAL ENROLMENT 1K032 M 3RT 0,573 09,497 98,021 09899 101473 1iHD.504 101,265 102,012
Mies {1 Bost Banderganen children e hall-days, in 200000 extemded day Kindergarien was ollered i 19 schools;

(2] Snsoe 1Y%, senr ItiEh shlents are Funded on course i;-l:-mplcl;inn bt enrgdments are based on head counts:

13 Between V906 and HKI0, enrphments inchsled special education stsbents ofending Designated Private Schools e Calgary;
{4} Special Education includes all students who are coded with a mild, moderate, gilied and wlenied or severs disabiliny
Commencing in HER, lmiding for severely disabled stsdenis is provided hosed on a jurisdiction profile

Sowrces: (1 pCorporste Financial Services Depariment Grant Claims omd Adberin Educstien, School Finance Depaniment.
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312,000

510,000 4

58,000

55,000

4,000

$2.000

B -

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

PER PUPIL COST STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
{(Unaudited)
39,547
#4111
412
7 0405
= Fr-oEh
25 047 &7 058
56,515
36,054
2001 2006 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 20049

50,890

2010

Mote: In order to provide comparable infarmation, the calculation of per pupdl cosis excludes expenses from both school
funded activities, given the discretionary nature of lhese activiles and costs relating to adult students, and includes ECS

children counted as 0.5 FTE in the calculation




CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
August 31, 2000

(Unaudited)

GEOGRAPHIC AREA - City of Calgary: B4E Square Kilometres
POPULATION = April 2000 Census: 1.071.515
NUMBER OF SCHOOLS:*

Elementary 133
Elementary/ Junior HighMiddle .
Junior High 24
JunierSenior High -
Elementary/Junior High/Sentor High (Home Education) 1
Senior High 17
Unigue Settings and Unigue Special Education Settings 11
Cutreach Programs 4
TOTAL SCHOOLS 223

*The term school is defined as an instructional sefting assigned a unigue school code by Alberta Education,

NUMBER OF BUDGETED EMPLOYEES:

Certificated K Staff 302
Centificated | - 6 Staff 25006
Certificated 7 - 9 Staff 1,521
Cenificated 10 - 12 Staff 1,642
Cither Cernficated StafTiincluding secondmenas and professional smrovement keaves) 203
Caretaking Staft SHT
Chther School Uncertificated Staff 1,805
Criher Uncertificated Staff TH1
TOTAL STAFF 1in Fult-time eguivaients) 9,347
S

Sources: (1) City of Calgary 2010 Civie Census;
(2) Community Engagement and Operational Planning, October 2010
(3 Approved 200910 Operating Budget.

40
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SELECTED DEFINITIONS OF FINANCIAL TERMINOLOGY

The following selected definitions have specific meanings as used in the Corporation’s financial
statements:

School generated funds are funds raised in the community for activities that come under the
contrel and responsibility of school management {usually viewed as being the principal and/or
those reporting to him'her).  Within school generated funds, when schools undertake fundraising
and extra-curricular activities, the related costs are netted against the amount of recorded school
generated funds revenue.

Net operating surplus (deficiency) or Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expense have the
same definition, which is the annual determination of the extent to which the Corporation has
been able to obtain resources to cover the cost of its services in the current fiscal vear,

Capital assets, comprising tangible properties, such as land, buildings and equipment, and
intangible properties, are identifiable assets that meet all of the following eriteria;

{a) are held for use in the provision of services, for administrative purposes, for production of

goods or for the maintenance, repair, development or construction of other capital assets;

{b} have been acquired. constructed or developed with the intention of being used on a
continuing basis;

{e) are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations; and

{d) are not held as part of a collection.

Amortization of capital assets is the periodic charge 10 expense which recognizes that a capital
asset has a finite life and that the cost of a capital asset is allocated to the periods, or vears, of
service provided by the asset,

Unearned revenue is the amount of restricted revenue for which the related restrictions remain
unfulfilled (e.g., funding received for a project which is not yet completed),

Debt, including bank indebtedness, debenture debt and capital lease obligations, is a financial
liability that is a contractual obligation 1o deliver cash or another financial asset 1o another party.

Deferred capital revenue contributions are capital grants that are deferred and recognized as
revenue in the same periods as the related expense (i.c., amortization of the provincially funded
capital asset) is recognized.

41
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Total net assets rcpresents the Corporation’s residual interest in its assets afier deducting its
liabilities. The netl assets balance therefore provides information about the net resources the
Corporation has available for carrying out its service delivery activities in the future,

Total net assets is comprised of the following:

Unrestricted operating surplus represents the aggregation of successive vears” annual
unrestricted excesses and deficiencies of revenue over expense.

Designated funds arc internally restricted operating funds which have been designated by
the Board of Trustees for specific purposes. These funds generally fall within two
categories:

1. School decentralized budgets carried forward represent the unspent balances of
schools™ decentralized budget allocations. This practice is followed in recognition of
schools” needs 1o provide from these allocations, for many non-consumable resources
{such as textbooks, photocopiers, technology and other instructional materials) which
are notl meurred 1n egual annual amounts.

[

Specific Board of Trustee designation for projects which occur over more than one
school year or budget allotments which relate to & future school year,

Operating reserves are established by Provincial regulation or authorization of the Board
of Trustees and may represent funds available for future operating expenses.

Accumulated operating surplus represents the aggregate of the Corporation's balances of
unrestnicted operaling surplus. designated funds, and operating reserves.

Capital reserves are established by authorization of the Board of Trusices and are intended
to be applied to finance future capital projects.

Investment in capital assets represents the Corporation’s net investment of operating funds
which have been used from time to time to purchase building improvements, capital

equipment and technologies 1o support the general operating activities of the Corporation.

Certificated staff represents those staff that have acquired an Alberta Teaching Certificate.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

NOVEMBER 30, 2010

RE: REVISED MEETING TIME OF A SCHEDULED REGULAR BOARD
MEETING

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves a revised meeting time for the scheduled meeting
of December 7, 2010 to allow for an in-camera session to take place from 12 Noon to 3:00
p.m., followed by the public session of the meeting from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. The
meeting will be held in the Board Room, Education Centre, 515 Macleod Trail SE,
Calgary, Alberta.

BACKGROUND:

Section 66(2) of the School Act requires a resolution of the Board to establish the regular meetings
of the Board. The resolution must state the date, time and place of the regular meeting.

At the October 26, 2010 Organizational Meeting, the Board of Trustees approved the Schedule of
Regular Meetings for November 2010 to October 2011. In that Schedule, a public agenda regular
meeting was set for Tuesday, December 7, 2010, 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. While the Board usually
holds an in-camera meeting on the fourth Tuesday of each month, the month of December is
unusual, in that the last two weeks are the winter school break. There is a need to hold an in-camera
session and due to the length of time that will be required to consider all of the agenda items on the
public agenda for December 7", it is felt appropriate to consider an earlier start time.

Respectfully submitted,

J. R. Barkway
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

November 30, 2010

To: Board of Trustees
From: MNaomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Annual Monitoring Report for Ends 1: Mega End

Originator: Cathy Faber, Superintendent, Leaming Innovation

Resource Persons: Ronna Mosher, Director, Curmiculum Design and Assessment
Pat Kover, System Assistant Principal, Research and Innovation
Michelle Bastock, Specialist, Research and Innovation
Johanna de Lesuw, Specialist, Research and Innovation

L. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Chief Supenntendent 1s required to provide an annual monitonng report for the

Board of Trustees with respect to Ends 1: Mega End.

The purpose of this report 15 to provide evidence demonstrating reasonable progress
towards the accomplishment of the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for

Ends 1: Mega End.

A secondary purpose of this report is to provide a transition between the old and the new,
a bridge between reporting on the previous Reasonable Interpretations of Ends 1 through
5 and the new Reasonable Interpretations approved during the 2009-2010 school year.

The Outcomes approved in the January 2010 Reasonable Interpretation of the Mega End
are presented in this report. However, positioning the Mega End monitoring report at this
time in the school year makes it necessary to use the previous Reasonable Interpretations
{approved during the 2005-2006 school year) to report on Ends 2 through 5 because, for
example, Outcome 1.1 of the Mega End comprises reasonable progress towards the prior

accomphishment ol Ends 2 through 5.

The full implementation of the new Mega End Reasonahle Interpretation, including
outcomes and measures, will be presented in the June 2011 Ends 1: Mega End

monitoring report to the Board of Trustees,
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RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended:

1. THAT the Board of Trustees receive the information in this monitoring report
as evidence of reasonable progress towards the accomplishment of the Chief
Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 1: Mega End.

2. THAT the Board of Trustees approve the recommended changes to the
Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1: Mega End as described in Section V1 of
this report.

REASONABLE INTERPRETATION

The Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 1: Mega End, approved
by the Board of Trustees on January 19, 2010 is included below. The Reasonable
Interpretation begins with the Mega End statement, as follows,

The Calgary Board of Education Mega End states:

Each student, in keeping with his or her individual abilities and gifts, will
complete high school with a foundation of learning to function effectively in
life, work and continued leaming.

It is often said that learning does not stop at the end of a formal school experience, but
must be viewed as a lifelong pursuit. This is especially true in current times with the
rapid chanpes taking place across the globe. Advances in technology, greater
understandings of the brain, and the far-reaching effects of globalization contribute to a
growing conviction that the best thing we can teach our students is how to leamn for a
lifetime. This understanding contributes to the Chief Superintendent’s interpretation of
what it means to have developed a foundation of Jeaming to function effectively in life,
wotk and continued learning. It is the development of a mind-set whereby an individual
desires ongoing intellectual growth and further development of skills and talents. It
speaks of a determination to expand one’s knowledge and understandings of the world. It
requires a transformation from a knowledge-based teaching perspective to one that views
student learning in a more holistic manner.! The Canadian Council on Learning
recognizes the importance of viewing students through a helistic lens in its report on the
State of Aboriginal Learning in Canada (2009). This report states that to fully understand

| The transformation to a holistic approach 1o student leaming is shaped by our growing understanding of
how people leamn, The pioneering werk of Lev Vygotsky in the 1920's demonstrated the imponance of the
gocial environment 1o the leaming process. Jean Piaget's theories attempted o demonsirate that cognitive
development in children proceeds in a predictable seguence of steps (1952). His work also revealed that we
learn not so much by acauiring content from ouside our minds, but rather by constructing it from within.
Building on Piaget's work, Benjamin Bloom (1956) formulated his famous taxonomy, in which cognitive
skills are ordered hierarchically, Bloom’s txonomy has since been adjusted o help teachers understand a
standards-based curriculum. The vevised hierarchy of cognitive skill development begins with remember,
understand, and apply, and procesds on o the skills needed for amalyzing, evaluating and creating
(Anderson & krathwehl, 200707,
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learning we musl incorporate a student’s knowledge along with their community well-
being over the length and breadth of a lifelong learning jouney.

Current educational thought not only focuses on a more holistic view of students, but also
on a more holistic view of teaching and learning in general -- a view focusing on what
Richard Elmore terms the “instructional core” . Elmore describes the relationship
between student, teacher and content as forming a greater entity in an instructional core,
just as the reasonable progress made towards the attaimment af Ends 2: Academic
Success, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends &: Personal Development and Ends 5: Character work
together to provide the foundation of learning to function effectively in life, work and
continued learning; the greater entity of Ends 1: Mega End. Rather than serving as simply
a culmination of Ends 2 through 5, the Mega End becomes a larger result through the
synergistic relationship that occurs amongst the elements of the other four Ends (see
Attachment IT). To provide an example of a whole being greater than the sum of its parts,
we need look no further than our students. Our students gain many individual skills and
attributes over the course of their school experience, but when we look at each student as
a whole and examine their understandings, we see the culmination of those individual
learnings as a greater entity. Ends 1: Mega End reflects this critical way of thinking as it
speaks of the foundation of learning wsed to function cffectively in life, work and
continued learming,

The Mega End describes the hopes that our community has for developing the skills of
our children and youth, and the expectation that public schooling will provide a
foundation on which they can build successful lives. Conventional wisdom commonly
asserts that a certain level of educational achievement is required for effective
functioning in a world that is becoming increasingly complex and challenging. Social
commentators commonly assert that, at a minimum, all high school completers need to
attain proficiency in literacy, numeracy and various kinds of social understandings. This
assertion, in general, has validity for a large number of students. It becomes problematic,
however, when we attempt to build agreement on the level of proficiency required and on
the universality of our expectations for all students.

The Chief Superintendent believes that high school completion can serve as a useful
outcome to gauge system performance, but only if an appropriate definition for high
school completion is developed ethically and with high sensitivity to each one of our
students. The Chief Superintendent interprets Ends 1: Mega End as the overarching
outcome of what it means for each student to be well educated in the Calgary Board of
Education, and uses a model presented by Michael Barber (2009); to inform the
Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1: Mega End.

¥ Current research conducted by Richard Elmore (2008) builds upon earlier leamning theories and helps us
develop a richer understanding of the leaming/teaching relationship. Elmore unpacks a concept he terms
“the instructional core”, He describes this core as the symbiotic relationship berween teacher and student in
the presence of content. Each learning task is designed with this instructional core in mind. recogmizing
that the individual components of the core work in combination with the others, He maintains that the only
way o improve student learning is by adjusting one or more components of the core. By adjusting one
component cach of the remaining two are also affected, illustrating the synergy between the three.
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Barber has developed an equation — Well educated = E(K+T+L). This equation contains
elements he describes as necessary now, and into the future, to produce well educaled
citizens. The ‘K’ and ‘T" stand for the concepts of knowledge and thinking; traditional
ingredients in educational philosophy, Barber then expands the concept of a well
educated individual to include an *L" for leadership and qualifies an understanding of the
term leadership to include taking action and skilfully wielding influence. Finally, Barber
encapsulates the elements of Knowledge, Thinking and Leadership within an ethical
framework (E); ensuring that actions taken are for the benefit of society.

Barber’s model serves to represent the phrase “foundation of leaming” in the Board of
Trustees' Ends 1: Mega End statement. By combining Ethics with Knowledge, Thinking
and Leadership, his model serves to broaden the mandate of education systems, much
like the inclusion of Ends 2: Academic Sucecess, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal
Development and Ends 5: Character broadens the concept of the Calgary Board of
Education's Mega End.

For example, one could place the Knowledge (K) component of Barber's equation within
Ends 2: Academic Success. However, on closer examination, it becomes clear that the
Knowledge component does not solely apply to Ends 2, but permeates through Ends 2
through 5. It takes considerable knowledge to become a responsible, informed citizen,
just as it takes knowledge to achieve success on provincial achievement test measures.
Conversely, the Leadership (L) component of Barber’s equation seems to lend itself to an
interplay between Ends 3, 4 and 5. However, Leadershup 15 also a entical factor leading
to Academic Success.

The persenalization of student learmng 15 the entical overarching component in crealing a
Calgary Board of Education Mega End statement. This statement uses Barber’s equation
as a model and demonstrates the synergy emerging from the interplay among all of the
Board’s Ends.

Ends | - Mega End: P(A & C &= PD & CH)

In the Ends 1: Mega End statement above, the letter A stands for Academic Success, the
letter C for Citizenship, the letters PDY for Personal Development and the letiers CH for
Character. Although the two-directional arrows seem to represent interplay between only
two components at any one time, all components work together within a framework of
personalized (P) student learming to create a bigger picture of success — the Mega End.

Personalizing learning for students makes their schooling experience meaningfil and
authentic. When students see relevance in their work they are more likely to be fully
engaged in the learming process and, in turn, reach greater potential. David Perkins, a
leading Harvard educator, discussed the importance of relevance to a student’s leamning at
the Future of Leaming Conference 2009, He addressed what he calls the Relevance Gap
by asking educators to consider the worth of what they are teaching, and then to impart
that worth to students. He notes that students need to understand why they are leaming
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something as well as its application to real-life situations in order to continue wanting 1o
learn. Students need to understand the learning's relevance to their personal lives.”

In personalizing learning to best prépare students for lives afler lgh school, it is
impaortant to build upon the talents, skills and aspirations of each individual while alse
considering the needs of society. Problem-solving, creative thinking and an ability to
work effectively with others are commonly considered as essential skills in today’s global
marketplace.

Many considerations must be taken in determiming what attnibutes are necessary to
provide students with the foundation of learning to function effectively in life, work and
continued leaming. Historical research, in conjunction with current models of what is
meant by a well educated person, produce a list of student attributes sought by educators.
A well-educated student is one who has mastered an array of cognitive skills as well as
skills in the affective and aesthetic domains.' The combination of these skills must also
be commensurate with one’s personal leaming needs and abilities.

Personalizing leaming 1s a distinet challenge within Calgary Board of Education schoaols
as this junsdiction serves students from a wide socio-economic spectrum and with a
variety of leaming needs. Our students represent a myriad of cultures, with many
learning the English language. The Calgary Board of Education embraces diversity and
mclusion. All students matter.

To most effectively use this Reasonable Interpretation’s conceptual definition, including
the Outeomes, Measures and Data Sources that follow, in determining future reasonable
progress towards Ends 1: Mega End, 1t 15 imperative that the revised Reasonable
Interpretations of Ends 2 through 5 be considered in order to fully determine how the
Mega End reflects the whole that i1s greater than the sum of its parts.

3 In addition 10 making leaming personally relevand for smudents, Sharon Friesen ideptifies four addaonal
core principles m an Efective Teaching Practices Rubric (May 20051, She asserts that not onlv should
learning be connected to each student’s personal world, but that learming must be designed to engape
students on academac and intellectual levels, She goes on o discuss the importanee of relationships within
a learming framework, meluding teachers' own learming, as current research demonstrates that teachers gain
the most professional development through the work with their peers.  Fimally, Friesen highbghts the
significance of op-poing assessment to guide teacher and smdent work, This provides students with ¢lear
targets pusding expectations Iowards improving learning. These five core elements commbute to an
increazed personalizaton of learning; making learning more relevant for all,

* The Imernational Educauon Roundtable {July 2009} added the importance of vocational education to this
list of critical skills mn developing lifelong learners. Vocanonal education, the report emphasizes, should
focus on leamming, not just waining. I as critcal that the CBE continee to expand its view of work
preparation by mamtaining  programming flexibiliny with increased links o apprenticeships. work
experience opportunilies, post-secondary instmons s industry,
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Dutcomes

Reasonable progress towards Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends
4: Personal Development and Ends 5: Character demonstrate reasonable progress
towards Ends 1;: Mega End

Student transition into post-secondary leaming
Students are prepared for life, work and continued leaming
High school success

Measures

Measures for Ends 2 through 5 will be developed as cach of the Ends" Reasonable
Interpretations is reviewed and revised prior to fall of 2010,

Measures developed to inform the Reasonable Imterpretations of Ends 2 through 5
will inform the reasonable progress towards accomplishment of the Reasonable
Interpretation of Ends 1: Mega End.

" of students transitioning from high school to post secondary within 4 vears
4 of students transitioning from high school to post secondary within 6 years

% of students who report feeling satisfied that their CBE experience has adequately
prepared them for life, work or continued leaming (afier 1 year following high
school) (Longitudinal study)

% of students who report feeling satisfied that their CBE experience has adequately
prepared them for life, work or continued learning (after 3 years following high
school) (Longitudinal study)

% of students who report satisfaction with their CBE experiences in adequately
preparing them for their on-going leaming experiences { Longitudinal K-12 study)

Data Sources

Annual monitoring reports for Ends 2: dcademic Suceess, Ends 3: Cirizenship, Ends
4; Personal Development and Ends 5: Character.

Alberta Education Accountability Pillar Summary

Mega End Symposium data (including Longitudinal 1 and 3 year post-high school
studies)

CBE student survey
Longitudinal K-12 study
Individual Program Plans ([PPs)

Student report card exemplars
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RESULTS

One of the most striking aspecis of the Mega End is the synergy it represents between the
five Ends of the Calgary Board of Education. Synergy, described as two or more agents
working together, produces a result not obtainable by any of the agents independently.

The synergy between the CBE Ends 15 more than the Ends working together. In order for
each student to be successful, the dymamic relationship between these Ends needs to
provide the essential components of learning that enable students to participate in our
complex changing world. Students who go out into the world with the necessary
knowledge, skills and understandings and a disposition for lifelong leaming are well-
prepared for the future,

The information in this monitoring report is organized around the outcomes contained in
the new Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1: Mega End. The measures that demonstrate
reasonable progress toward accomplishment are presented within the context of the
following identified outcomes.

Outcome 1: Reasonable progress towards Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3:
Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal Development, and Ends 5: Character, demonstrates
reasonable progress towards Ends 1: Mega End

Outcome 2: Student transition into post-secondary learning
Outcome 3: Students are prepared for life, work and continued leamning
Outeome 4: High school success

Outcome 1

Reasonable progress towards Ends 20 Academic Success, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends 4
Personal Development and Ends 5: Character demonstrates reasonable progress towards
Ends 1: Mega End

Background

During the 2009-2010 school year, the Chief Supenintendent revised the reasonable
interpretations for each of the CBE Ends. Each revised reasonable interpretation includes
outcomes and measures 1o support the policy provisions of the Ends statements for Ends
1: Mega End, Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal
Development and Ends 5: Character. Current Alberta Education initiatives, coupled with
best practices based upon educational research, guided the development of these
approved reasonable interpretations.

1.1 Measure
Measures for Ends 2 through 5 were developed during the review and revision process of
the Ends” Reasonable Interpretations.



1.1 Rationale

Ends 1 speaks of the foundation of learning used to function effectively in life,
work and continued leaming as synergistically related to all of the CBE Ends.
Therefore, measures developed for each of the Ends 2 through 5 will be used 1o
inform the Mega End,

1.1 Result
Measures were developed for the Reasonable Interpretations of Ends 2 through 5.

Each Reasonable Interpretation was approved during the 2009-2010 school vear
(see Attachment T).

1.2 Measure

Reasonable progress toward the accomplishment of Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3:
Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal Development and Ends 5: Character informed the
accomplishment of the Reasonable Interpretation of the Mega End.

1.2 Rationale

Whale Ends 1 has 1ts own cnteria and results, a foundation of learning to function
effectively in life, work and continued learming is supporied by the other four
Ends.

1.2 Result

While the 2010 Reasonable Interpretation of the Mega End 15 used as much as
possible for this monitoring report, it is important 1o note that 2010 iz a
transitional year. During the 2009-2010 school vear, the accomplishment of Ends
2 through 3 was determined using the previous Reasonable Interpretations (see
Attachment [}.

Ower the course of 2010, the current report and future monitoring reports will be
aligned with the new Reasonable Interpretations,

Outcome 2
Student transition into post-secondary learning

2.1 Measure
Percentage of students transitioning from high school to post secondary within 4 years
and & years.

2.1 Ratianal

One way of tracking student success in high school is 1o examine the number of
students whe transition into post-secondary leaming environments within a
specified period of time after the completion of Grade 12.

The Post-Secondary Transition Rate (4 and 6 year) is the percentage, adjusted for
attrition, of students in the grade 10 cohort who have entered a post-secondary-
level program at an Alberta post-secondary institution or registered in an Alberta
apprenticeship program within four or six years of entering grade 10. An estimate
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of out-of-province post-secondary enrolment is applied based on the numbers of
funded Alberta students attending post-secondary institutions out of province.

2.1 Results
The CBE yearly results for high school to post-secondary transition rates in 4 and

6 years based on the Alberta Education Accountability Pillar” results are detailed
in the tables which follow.

Four Year Transition Rates - High School to Post Secondary

Percentage of Students

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
'CBE 37.1 37 | 3248 39.7 38.0
Province 15.6 37.7 BT | 18.0 375

Six Year Transition Rates ~ High School to Post Secondary

Percentage of Stodents

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
CBE 57.1 581 595 | 59.7 60,1
Province A6.6 58.1 588 5302 508

2.2 Measure
Percentage of credentialed and non-credentialed high school completers who have gone
on to post-secondary education including apprenticeship programs,

2.2 Rationale

When presenting data about the numbers of students who transition into post-
secondary learning, 11 15 important to include the various paths students take 1o
reach their goals.

vk It

The table on the following page identifies both credentialed and non-credentialed
high school completers from the Calgary Board of Education. Data taken from the
Alberta Education Accountability Pillar Report outlines the continued learning
path for students who are termed non-credentialed completers and who have
enrolled in post-secondary education, including apprenticeship programs.

¥ The Accountability Pillar ensures all school junsdictions in Albera are measuring suceess i the same wav. While
most school boards have tracked their own progress, what they measured. when and how could vary widely, With
the Accountability Pillar, all jurisdictions measure the same factors in the same way at the same time, creating
timely, accurate, consistent data that is publicly evaluated and reported. The Accountability Pillar allows
jurisdictions and the province 1o assess successes and identify opporunites for improvement, while also providing
studenits with the best possible learning expenience. The measurement process also helps to determine if challenges
are Jocal or province-wide hased on surveys of all teachers and stedents in grades 4, 7 and 10 and their parents

{ Alberta Education, 20000,
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Detail for 3-Year Rate (All Students)
Credentialed Completers” Non-Credentialed Completers’
High | High School | Certificate Post- |

Year Total School | Equivalency of Secondary | Apprenticeship | Academde

Students | Diploma | Diploma | Achievement | Attendance Standing
20605 8117 3,462 0 B 3 i 49
2065 8,249 5463 1 75 4 16 )
2007 8,477 5,630 O 63 [ 14 | 35
2008 2680 5,672 2 63 1 23 1]
2000 g, 3R0 5,556 0 52 & 20 | 4%

2.3 Measure
Percentage of students who report on factors, confirmed by Statistics Canada research
{20014}, as contributing toward enrolment in post-secondary leaming,

2.3 Rationale

In an effort to better understand the Calgary Board of Education context as
experienced by students, the revised Student Survey, formerly the High School
Exit Survey, offered Grade 12 students the opportunity to respond to guestions
that illustrate the extent that students have experienced academic and social
engagement (e.g. sense of belonging) in high school.

Positive interactions in high school, both academically and socially, are related 1o
participation in education at the post-secondary level (Lambert et al, 2004, p. 10),

The Student Survey results detailed on the following page form the baseline for
future Student Survey monitoring report measurss,

“ Credentialed Completers: Students can achieve high school completion stams through a variery of means, The
mapority of students réceive one of the following credentials within three, four or five vears of starting Grade 10:
Alberts High Scheol Diploma, High School Equivalency Diploma ({GEDY), Certificate of Achievement, Certificate of
High School Achievement (Alberta Education, Guide to Educanan, 2010, p. 83).
" Non-eredentizled Completers: Students who leave school without one of the above eredennals but who have
earned credits m high school courses that enable them to continue into post-secondary or apprenticeship programs
within the three, four or five vears of sirting Grade 10 are considersd non-credentizled high school completers.
MNonecredentialed high school completion is achieved theough one of the following means:
= Enrollment at a Post-secondary Institution - Sdents enrolled in @ credit program in an Alberia posi-secondary
institation, who have not achicved completion stats through any of the above means, are considersd non-
credennaled high school compieters.
« Apprenticeship Program Pamicipation - Stadents registered in an apprenticeship program who have not achieved
cotmpletion stams through any of the above means and are no Jonger registered in school are considered non-
credentialed high school completers.
- Academic Standing - Students who have not achieved completion stats threugh any of the above means are
considered to have achieved academic standing if they have passed a minimum of five Grade 12 courses including a
language ans diploma exam course and three other diploma exam courses. These stedemts are eligible for Alberta
post-secondary programs and may be attending a post-secondary institution out-of-province | Alberta Education,
Ciuide to Education, 2010, p. 83].
8 Lambert,M., Zeman, K., Allen, M., Bussiere, P, ( 2004}, Who pursues post secondary education, who leaves and
wiiye Results from the voui® i rransidion server. Ottawa, ON: Statistic Canada
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2.3 Results
In June 2010, 4,087 Grade 12 students from 23 senior high schools responded to
the revised Calgary Board of Education Student Survey. The tables below

illustrate the degree to which students perceive the existence of factors that
contribute to the likelihood of enrolment in post-secondary education.

Il

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey Mega End

Percentage of Student Responses to: What is your sense of belonging to your school?

Very Strong | Adequate | Weak Paoor Does not Missing
Strong . exist
18.5% 35.0% 30.8% 6.1% | 2.2%0 | 5.4% [ 1.5%

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey Mega End

Percentage of Student Responses to: What is the number of adults at school {e.g.
teachers, principals, secretaries, counsellors etc.) who know you as a learner?

dormore | 3 adults | 2 adults 1 adult None Missing |
adults
47.5% 18.4% 17.5% 7.5% 6.8%, 2.3%

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Stodent Survey Mega End

Percentage of Student Responses to; What is the number of adulls at school (e.g.
teachers, principals, secretaries, counsellors etc.) who know you as a person?

4 or more | 3 adults 2 adults "1 adult MNone Missing
adults | _ |
12.7% | 17.5% [ 19.9% | 13.5% | 14.5% 2.0%

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey Mega End

Percentage of Student Responses to: How satisfied are you with the relationships vou
have been able 1o develop with the adults at yvour school?

Very | Sansfied | Somewhat Dissatisfied | Very Missing
Satisfied | Satisfied Dissatisfied
25.9% | 42.6% 21.8% 5.1% | 3.0% 1.6%

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey Megn End

Percentage of Student Responses to: How often have you been absent from school this

year” =

Never Rarely | Sometimes Frequently | Mostly Missing

Ahsent B Absent

7.2% 41.7% 36.3% 11.3% 2.0% 1.4%

June 2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey Mega End

Percentage of Student Responses to: Do vou feel safe at school?

All the CHten Sometimes | Rarely Never | Missing
[Iime L | _

47.7% 34. 7% 10.5% 2.7% 3.1% 1.4%
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Outcome 3
Students are prepared for life, work and continued leaming,

Background

Students need 1o be involved in a wide array of experiences and leadership opportunities
to foster preparation for life, work and continued leaming. Many considerations must he
taken in determining what attributes are necessary to provide students with the foundation
of leaming to function effectively in life, work and continued learning. Being a well
educated citizen is one of them.

The Chief Supenntendent’s 2010 Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1 qualifies the
meaning and intent of this term within the model presented by Michael Barber {2009),
Well Educated = Knowledge + Thinking + Leadership. Leadership requires knowledge
and thinking in order to wisely convert thought into action and influence founded upon an
ethical underpinning that wields influence for the good of society’.

A number of leadership initiatives within the Calgary Board of Education offer students
opportunities that convert thought into action for the benefit of others. Only a few of the
many leadership opportunities within the Calgary Board of Education are offered below
as illustrative examples. It is acknowledged that there are many leadership initiatives
offered 1o students within the Calgary Board of Education. Severa]l CBE student
leadership opportumties are highlighted below.

The following Calgary Board of Education leadership initiatives are highlighted:
Calgary Board of Education Mega End Symposium

Alberta Education's Speak Out Conference

Calgary Board of Education Empowenng Student Voice Program

The Chief Supenntendent’'s Student Advisory Council

Career and Technology Strategy

® ® B & @

Calgary Board of Education Mega End Svmposium

The purpose of the Mega End Symposium is to collect feedback from current and former
Calgary Board of Education students about their school learning experiences and to
utilize this information 1o benefit future learners.

The first Calgary Board of Education Mega End Symposium was held in April of 2009
with approximately 30 students from 7 high schools attending. During March of 2010 the
CBE expanded this event and invited 170 present and former CBE high school students,
who represented all CBE high schools, to attend the second CBE Mega End Symposium.

Students participated in a focus group format, facilitated by fellow high school students,
where they offered feedback about their CBE high school learning experiences. Each

group of participants was joined by a recorder and the recorded information was then
collated and examined.

* Barber, M.. & Mourshed, M. (2009). Skaping the fiuture: How pood education sustems ean become great in the
decades ahead, Report on the International Roundiable, Singapore; McKinsey Education.
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The key themes were identified and are presented below:

Relationships with Teachers

+ Smdent said that their relationships with teachers was one of the most
imporiant factors 1o them.

Students voiced the importance of teacher mentoring.

Students value the opportunity to have one on one conversations with teachers
whenever possible, They feel that the knowledge that teachers glean from
such conversations guide the negotiation of leamning 1asks with, and for,
students.

s Students want teachers to be familiar with individual learning styles, skills,
needs and personal interests. Students stated that learning becomes more
engaging to them when teachers employ their knowledge about each students’
unigue leaming styles and preferences within the content area of study.,

Relevance

o Students stated that they need to take initiative for their schooling, but that is
not the whole picture.

» Siudents told us that scheol work is more meaningful when it applies to daily
lifes, 15 relevant and connected to current contexts.

Choice
» Choice is very important to students; this includes choice in the classes taken,

choice in career paths, choice in the ways that content is taught and choice in
assessment of student learning,

Teacher Content Knowledge and Interest

» Students report that teacher enthusiasm makes a significant difference in their
level of engagement. They feel that teachers need to have a strong interest,
passion and knowledge of the programs that they teach,

Student Voice

s Students suggested that when their voices are presented in a variety of ways in
schools through, for example, student councils, student feedback, and ongoing
communication, that student belonging and engagement is fostered. This, in
turn, promotes a strong school environment in which to ground student
learning.

s Students fee]l that their feedback needs to continue to inform schools about
schooling.

Leaming Supports
» Students like having tutorials and extra time in which to complete a thorough
analysis of topics.

Assessment/Evaluation

+ Many students dislike tests and feel that they are not a good reflection of their
learning. They voiced their concern that diploma examinations are weighted
too heavily in the determination of their final grades.
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Subject Discipline Topics:
e The Fine Arts were noted as very important to students. To them, Fine Arts
are more than an ‘extra’ frill 1o fill course credits.

School Environment

s Students also told us that school environment plays a very significant for
them.

s Students want to feel as though they belong to a school, but often don’t know

how to achieve this if schools have large populations and classes have high
enralments.

Access to Information

s Students suggested that schools need to provide additional information to
increase awareness about university options (starting in grade 10), clubs and
extra curricular activities.

« Students asked for increased access to guidance counsellors.

e Students shared the idea that D2L is an effective support for students, but can

he frustrating at times and should not be considered a replacement for good
teaching.

Summary
# Students said that they are not as familiar with the CBE Ends as they could be.

The Calgary Board of Education will offer a junior high Mega End Symposium and a
senior high Mega End Symposium during the 2010-2011 school vear.

Alberta Education Speak Out Conference

A group of 27 student representatives from CBE high scheols attended the CBE Mega
End Symposium and aflerwards elected to go to the Speak Out Conference in Edmonton
during the spring of 2010. A number of thess student delegates expressed concerns about
diploma exams, particularly with what they perceived as the heavy weighting (50%) of
these exams towards their final course mark. They also commented on the lack of
relevance of schoeol curricula to their lives outside school.

Following the Speak Out Conference, a delegation of nine Calgary Board of Education
students shared their insights on educational issues with representatives from Alberta
Education during a video conference.

Alberta Education’s Speak Out Conference is part of a broader imitiative to attend to
student feedback to inform educational reform.

As well, attending the Speak Out Conference provided students with an invitation to
apply for positions on the Alberta Education Minister's Advisory Council which would

afford additional opportunities for students to provide insight and feedback at a provincial
level.
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Empowering Student Voice

The Calgary Board of Education’s approach to student leadership has moved forward this
fall with the support of the Werklund Foundation’s Empowering Minds™ program. The
launch of the Empowering Student Voice course sets a precedent for advancing student
leadership initiatives within a personalized learning framework and a community-based
learning environment. It allows students to earn high school credits for work completed
outside the traditional school day and high school setting, supporting the notion of
anytime, anyplace, personahized leaming.

This leadership opportunity is heing offered within the framework of a formal cluster of
courses in the Carcer and Technology Program of Studies, including Leadership
Fundamentals 1, Community Volunteerism 1, Introduction to Mentorship and E-Leam.
Empowering Student Voice provides opportunities for students to develop competencies
related to all the Calgary Board of Education’s Ends.

The Chief Supenrintgndent’s Student Advisory Council

Another component of the Empowering Student Voice program is the Chief
Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council. This Council affords CBE high school
students opportunities 0 communicate directly with our Chief Superintendent on
educational issues of interest to students across our system. As Council members,
students develop leadership skills with practical, relevant applications to life outside
school.

The Chief Supenntendent’s Student Advisory Council includes 25 high school students
{(Grades 10 — 12) who are currently studying within Calgary Board of Education learning
environments; every attempt is made to ensure student representation from each CBE
high school setting, Coungi] members were selected based on a diversity of backgrounds,
opinions and experiences and will serve a one-vear term that coincides with the
traditional school calendar, beginning in September and ending in June.

As members of the Calgary Board of Education Chief Superintendent's Student Advisory
Council, students communicate directly to the Chief Superintendent and, as
representatives of the student body, they have opportunities to bring forward suggestions,
questions and innovative educational ideas. They will help to shape the fumre of
education in our ¢ity while gaining valuable leadership experience. The intention is that
this group will also collaborate with the Alberta Education Minister’s Advisory Council.

The Career and Technology Strategy

The Career and Technology Strategy (CTS), within the Calgary Board of Education, is
founded upon the wvision of engaging and inspiring students in seamless career
development'” and technology education opportunities as they transition into education,
traiming and work beyond the Kindergarien to Grade 12 public education system. It is “a
strategy that connects student 1Earnin$ to a variety of personalized, credentialed and

nl

future onented leaming opportunities™ .

" Alberta Education {2010 offers the following definition of career development: “Self-development over the life
span through the integration of life roles, semings, and events." This definition 15 offered o outline the difference

berween previous understandings of career develogrment and the current career development definition within the
Alberta Education’s Career and Technology Studies Program,

" Information from CBE Career and Technology Swrategy Program Charter (CBE, 2010, p. 6)
=15
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The Calgary Board of Education’s Career and Technology Strategy is designed to engage
students in career and technology education opportunities that bridge school, life and
waork while offering them the opportunity for industry credentialing, When students see
relevance in their work they are more likely to be fully engaged in the learming process
and, in turn, reach greater potential. Problem solving, creative thinking and an ability to
work effectively with others are integral to the CTS strategy and are considered essential
skills in today’s global marketplace. Involvement in real life applications fosters student
understanding in authentic and meaningful ways to build upon the talents, skills and
aspirations of each student while also considering the needs of society.

In September 2010, 229 students began their coursework within a new Career and
Technology Center site’”. The first four credentialing opportunities being offered are:
Hairstyling, Auto-Body, Pre-engineering and Welding, Proposed programs for September
2012 include: Health, Recreation, and Human Services; Media, Design  and
Communication Arts; Natural Resources; and Business Administration, Finance and
Information Technology. These courses are accessed by students through the Caresr and
Technology Centre and its affiliate site, which provide students with academic and
technical prﬂ)a:atiun for further education and careers in high-skill, high demand
occupations.

This Calgary Board of Education Career and Technology Strategy is a prototype and will
see credentialed programs being implemented in many schools across the system. In
addition, the strategy supports the revised Alberta Education Career and Technology
Studies program intended to engage students in learning opportunities that will assist
them in discovering their interests in practical and purposeful ways.

3.1 Measure
Percentage of students, parents and teachers who report feeling satisfied that students’
CBE experience has adequately prepared them for life, work or continued learning.

3.1 Rationalg

Many factors must be considered in determining the attributes necessary to
provide students with the foundation to function effectively in life, work and
continued learning. It is imperative that the CBE continue to expand its view of
work preparation by maintaining programming flexibility with increased links 1o
apprenticeships, work experience opportunities, post-secondary institutions and
industry. The combination of these skills must also be commensurate with
personal leaming needs and abilities.

It is often said that learning does not stop at the end of a formal school experience
but must be viewed as a lifelong pursuit. This is especially truge in current times
with the rapid changes taking place across the globe. Advances in technology,
ereater understandings of the brain, and the far-reaching effects of globalization
contribute 1o a growing conviction that the best thing we can teach our students is
how to leam for a lifetime.

'? Information from CBE website hitp/projects.che.ab ca'sss/cl-strategy/ sirategy.asp
¥ Information from CBE wehaite: hitpz/projects.che.ab.ca'sss/ci-stratepy/centre. asp
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3.1 Result

A Jongidinal study examining Grade 12 student perceptions of the value of their
high school education in relation to “the real work of the world” was launched
this year. The 2010 CBE Student Survey results presented below and on the
following page form the baseline for this longitudinal study.

2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey
Percentage of Student Responses to: How satisfied are vou with the skills, knowledge
and abilities you have developed dunng your high school?

Very Satisfied | Satisfied | Somewhat Dnssatisfied | Very Missing
) Satisfied Dissatisfied
24, 8% 32.1% 17.2% 2.4%, 2.1% | 14%

2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey

Percentage of Student Responses to: How satisfied are you with the connection between
what you learned and the real world of work and life?

Very Satisfied | Satisfied Somewhat | Dissatisfied | Very Missing
saushied Dissatisfied
18.9% 47.1% 22.3% 6.9% 3.4% 1.4%%

2010 CBE Grade 12 Student Survey
Percentage of Student Responses to: How satished are you with how well your schoo]
has prepared vou to pursue your goals (e.g. job, post secondary)?

e

Very Satisfied | Satisfied Somewhat | Dissatisfied | Very | Missing
Satisfied ' Dissatisfied
(21.8% | 41.9% 22.7% | 7.7% 4.3% [ 1.6%

2010 CBE Grade 12 Stodent Survey
Percentage of Student Responses to: Overall what do you think of the quality of
education you have received?
Very Good | Good Average | Fair Poor Missing
26.7%  48.7% 16.5% L 3.4% 3. 2% 1.5%
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Calgary Board of Education results from the Accountability Pillar showing the
percentage of parents and teachers who are satisfied that high school graduates
demonstrate the knowledge, skills and attitudes necessary for lifelong learning are
in the following table.

Percentage of Teacher and Parent Satisfaction that High School Graduates Demonstrate
the Hnnw]edge, Skills and Attitudes Necessary for Lifelong Learning
Percentages of “Very Satisfied’ and “Satisfied”

2006 ' 2007 2008 2009 2010
CBE Overall = 639 | 638 63.1 63.4 63.8
Province 66.1 65.6 | 66.7 67.4 B 676 h
COrverall
CBE Teachers 7216 723 0.5 71.0 71.8
Province 74.2 74.1 738 | 740 75.4
Teachers
CBE Parents 532 353 35.8 559 55.9
Province 579 | 571 | 595 60.8 598
Parents

Calgary Board of Education results from the Accountability Pillar showing the
percentage of parents and teachers who agree that students are taught attitudes and
behaviours that will make them successful at work when they finish school are in
the following table.

Percentages of Teachers and Parents Who Agree that Stodents are Taught Attitudes and
Behaviours That Will Make Them Successful at Work When They Finish School

Percentages of “Verv Satisfied” and “Satisfied’ Responses

2006 2007 | 2008 | 2009 2010
| CBE Overall 74.4 74.2 769 | 760 76.5
Province Overall T | 7 g0.1 | 796 79.9
| CBE Teachers 88.6 87.6 88.3 £8.4 888
Province Teachers 894 | 892 | 893 859 90.0
CBE Parents 60.2 60.9 65.5 63.6 64.1
Province Parents 64.6 65.1 709 | 02 | 698

Outcome 4
High school success

Background

The Calgary Board of Education’s Mega End itself defines school success: “Each
student, in keeping with his or her individual sbilities and gifts, will complete high school
with a foundation of leaming to function effectively in life, work and continued

learming™,
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In outlining high school success, the Mega End, as a combination of the factors listed
above, opens up the conventional idea of high school completion, Students validate this
as evidenced in the Canadian Education Association’s multi-vear research initiative on
engaging adolescents in schooling, Willms et al.' identify that students are not only
concerned with passing and they do not want leaming to be made easy: “they want
[learning] to mean something, to be moved by what they leamn; they want to connect
deeply with things that matter to the world and matter to them; they want the chance 1o
make a difference”™ (p.1).

In attending to the helief that high school success means more than completion or
certification, the Calgary Board of Education Grade 12 Student Survey gave students an
opportunity to provide their response to the question, “What does high school success
mean to you?  amnd also asked them to idenufy factors that influenced ther success
{Measure 4.2).

The percentage of students who completed high school within 3,4 or 5 years is offered
below, followed by results from the current Calgary Board of Education Grade 12
Student Survey illustrating how students view high school success.

4.1 Measure
Percentage of students who complete high school within 3, 4 or 5 years.

4.1 Rationale

High schoo]l success can be measured in part by identifying the percentage of
students who have completed high school within a reasonable period of time with
one of three credentials: a Certificate of School Completion; Centificate of High
School Achievement; High School Diploma.

4,1 Result
The results from the 2010 Alberta Education Accountability Pillar Report
indicating high school completion rates'”, annual returning rates'®, drop out

“Wilims, J. D.. Friesen, 5. & Milwon, P. (2000}, What did you do in schoeel sodav? Transforming classrooms
throwgh social, acadenic, and intellectua! engagemeny. (First National Report) Toronto: Canadian
Education Association. Fetrieved October 15, 2000 from: http:/fwwarw cea-ace.ca'sites/defauly filesicea-
2009-wdydist. pdf

Lk High School Completion Rate (3-year] is the percentage of students in the grade 10 cohort who have completed

high schoo] by the end of their third year, adjusted for attrition. High school completion is defined as: receiving an

Alberta High School Diplome, an 10OP certificate or High School Equivalency Diploma (GED); emtering & post-

secondary level program at an Alberta post-secondary institution; registering in an Alberta apprenticeship program;

or earning credit in five grade 12 level courses, including four dipioma examination courses. Atirition is the loss of
students due to out-migration and mortality, referred to as “attrition”, 15 estmated from department and Statistics

Canada data. {Alberta Education, Accountability Pillar, 2010, pp. 256-257). The High School Completion Rate also

includes: Certificats of Achievement and Ceruficate of High School Achievement (Alberta Education, Guide o

Education, 2010, p. §3).

" Armual Returning Rate provides a perspective on student enrolment patiems and enhances understanding of high

school completion raes. Albera Education calculates both the Annual Dropout Rate of students age 14 1o 18 and

the Annual Refurning Rate — the rate at which students return to the leaming system within one vear of dropping out.

Adberma Education outlines that the Annual Dropout and Eeturming Bates are based on data for thres consscutive

school years. An mitial Cobort of students age 14 w 18 15 established for a grven school year,
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rates'’, Rutherford Scholarship Eligibility Rate, and a comparison with other
metropolitan boards in Alberta are summarised in the charts below to demonstrate
the student completion of high school, both in the Calgary Board of Education
and within other metropolitan boards in Alberta.

High School Completion Rates: Percentage of Students

3 Year 2005 2006 2007 2008 2000
CBE I 708 | 699 69.9 689 | 696 |
Province 70.7 | 706 71.1 0.8 715 |

High School Completion Rates: Percentage of Students

4 Year 2005 | 2006 2007 2008 2009
“EBE 74.1 76.2 75.1 748 744
| Province 750 | 761 761 | 763 76.1

High School Completion Rates: Percentage of Students

5 Year | 2005 2006 | 2007 | 2008 2009
CBE B3 | i | o1 | B0 [ 780 |
Province | 770 8.1 78.9 87 19.0

Annual Returning Rate
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
CBE 19.9 20.2 20.1 19.6 |
Province 21.3 21.2 21.3 14.5 23.5

"7 The Drropout Rate is caleulated by determining the number of students from the Cohort who are not found 1o be in
the learning system in the subsequent school year. The Remrning Rate 15 caleulated by wacking how many of the
students who were not in the leaming system in the second consecutive vear are found to have returned to the
learning system in the third year. As an example, a student initially included in the age specific Cohort for the 2001-
2002 school vear who was not found to be pamicipating in the learning system in the 2002-2003 school year is
considered to have dropped out. The same student would be included in the Returning Rate if they were found to be
participating in the learning system in 2003-2004.
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Calgary Board of Education Comparison with Other
Metropolitan Boards in Alberta

Calgary Board of Education
B Current (08-09) | Previous (07-08) | 3 Year Average |
' % % o
High School Completion 3 Year | (9.6 68.9 SRR
Drop Ciut Rate 3.5 5.0 4.6
Rutherford Scholarship™® 57.7 584 58.3
Transitions Rate 6 Year _60.1 39.7 39.7
Edmonton Public School Board
1L C urrent (08-09) | Previous (07-08) | 3 Year Average
i %e % %o
High School Completion 3 Year 65.4 4.5 63.9
Drop Out Rate 5.7 6.3 6.3
Rutherford Scholarship 56.2 55.1 534
Transitions Rate 6 Year 62.3 61.3 60.1

Calgary Catholic School Board

| Current (08-09) | Previous ((7-08) | 3 Year Average |
Yo Y e
High School Completion 3 Year 74.4 74.5 Ty
Drop Out Rate 3.0 24 2.8
Rutherford Scholarship 62.0 60.6 60.2
Transilions Rate 6 Year 70.8 68,8 67.0

Edmonton Catholic School Board

3 Year Average

“Current (08-09) | Previous (07-08)
I ; |

Yo %o U
High School Completion 3 Year 708 715 70.2
Drop Out Rate 4.1 4.6 4.4
Rutherford Scholarship 57.1 36.7 56.2
Transitions Rate 6 Year 66.0 687 65.9

" gutherford Scholarship Elioibility Rate is the percentape of Alberta prade 12 studemts who have met the eligibility
criteria for & Busherford Scholarship based on course marks in grades 10, 11 andlor 12, Smdemiz must have
cormpleted at least one grade 12 course,

=21



22

4.2 Measure

Student identification of what success means to them and factors that contributed to
SUCCEES.

4.2 Rationalg

High school success cannot be fully expressed as a single quantitative measure
such as a high school completion rat¢. By extension, examining the number of
high school diplomas and certificates eamed does not do justice to the complexity
and challenge involved in completing high school.

In 2009, the International Education Roundtable recognised that all children need
to succeed in accordance with individual ability and talent and that multiple
pathways 10 success emphasize “genuine leaming, not just training” (p.12). In
addition, success has a strong ethical underpinning that sees it as including the
leadership skills or initiative to draw upon knowledge, skills and attnbutes for the
good of society.

The Calgary Board of Education Student Survey asks students to explain their
responses to the question: “What does high school success mean to you?” A
follow up guestion asks students to identify the factors that they felt contributed 1o
their success. Questions were answered through open ended responses.

The students” understandings of what constitutes high school success for them
provide insights into students’ experience of public education and the way they
understand their potential contribution to society at this point in their lives,

4.2 Results

The student responses to the questions “What does high school suecess mean o
you?" and “What has helped make you successful?” were analysed using a
thematic analysis approach (Patton, 2002)."" Twelve schools representative of the
diversity within the Calgary Board of Education were analysed in depth and the
1633 student responses were cross checked with a random sample of remaining
schools to verify that these analyses reflected the 1dentified themes.

What Does High School Success Mean to You?

The vast majority of students identified that graduating with a diploma was an
important indicator of success and, while many said that passing was enough, an
equal number aspired to achieving good or high grades. However, students
gualified this response by recognising that graduating with a diploma 1s only one
part of the picture.

Students acknowledged the importance of learning for life and that this included
acquiring the knowledge, skills and attributes required to “grow as a person” and
to “communicate with others™ as well as preparation for post secondary
education or the workforce.

" patton, M. . (2002). Qualitative research and evaheation methods. Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage
P All quotatsons in Result 4.2 taken from 2010 CBE High School Survey
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MNotable was the number of responses that addressed character and citizenship and
personal development as key components of high school success.

Sample comments included insights such as: “High school success 15 determined
by how much growth occurs in an individual. To leam a vanety of skills, develop
new attitudes to cope with stressful situations and change, and to leave high
school with self-confidence and pride means that an individual has grown and
faced success through high school”; and “T feel that success is measured in more
than one way. There's the academic success that can help us get into university
and stuff, but there's also the success that comes with meeting people and
developing relationships. 1 feel that the second one is more imporiant because it
teaches you how to deal with people in the real world;” or, expressed more
succinetly, “If your high school experience was a success, it does not necessarily
mean you got good grades or succeeded in athletics, it means you graduated a
better person than when you started.”

A smaller proportion of students identified that high school success meant beng
involved in the school community either through athletics or extracurmcular
activities as well as being socially successful in their peer groups.

Factors Contributing to Student Success

When asked to what they attributed their success, the majority of students
identified the help and support they received from teachers whose passion for
their subject and teaching engaged leamners. Students also mentioned the
importance of a supportive school environment where they received
encouragement and direction through relationships with staff and students.

The importance of school spirt, pnde in one’s schoel and an atmosphere of
acceptance as well as excitement were frequent comments. Some spoke movingly
of the belief that teachers had in them even though their prospects seemed to
indicate otherwise: “This school has changed me personally for the best. The vice
principal and principal know me by name. I am constantly congratulated for my
change in attitude and effort. I went from being a homble person in grade 10..,
doing. .. just horrible things, now because of the teachers and peers [ have changed
myself. My biggest influence at high school is one teacher who looked past the
flaws and found the gift, he helped me help myself. Becanse of him and so many
other teachers | am graduating, something that nobody in my family has done.”

A slightly smaller proportion of students credited success to personal attributes
such as a strong work ethic, positive attitudes towards school and learning,
motivation and perseverance: “My positive attitude and determination has driven
me  to achieve this success.” Students  referenced  mvolvement  with
extracurricular activities such as music and sports as well as support from family
and friends as being important faciors.

Student Survey responses represent students’ understanding of many of the
outcomes expressed within the Mega End.  Students recognise that while
academic success 1s an important component of high school success, eitizenship,
personal development and character are also significant.
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Y. SUMMARY STATEMENT

The information in this report is presented as evidence of reasonable progress towards the
accomplishment of the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1:
Mega End.

V. ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CHANGES TO THE CHIEF
SUPERINTENDENT'S REASONABLE INTEPRETATION

Administration respectfully requests the Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 1: Mega End
be reviewed by the Board of Trustees and the following change be approved for use in
future monitoring of this Ends. Thiz proposed change focuses on shifting the wording of
the outcome from a focus on the Ends to reasonable progress toward the accomphshment
of the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation.

Proposed Outcome Change

From: Outcome |: Reasonable progress towards Ends 2; Academic Success, Ends 3:
Citizenship, Ends 4: Persomal Development and Ends 5. Character demonstrate
reasonable progress towards Ends 1: Mega End

To: Outcome 1: Reasonable progress toward the accomplishment of the Chief
Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3
Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal Development and Ends 5: Character inform reasonable
progress toward the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of Ends 1: Mega
End.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Attachment 1: Excerpts of Minutes from Board of Trustes Meetings (2009 — 2010 Approval
of Monitoring Reports for Ends 2: Academic Success, Ends 3; Citizenship,
Ends 4: Personal Development, Ends 3: Character and Approval the Chief
Superintendent’s new Reasonable Interpretations for Ends 1 Mega End, Ends
2: Academic Success, Ends 3: Citizenship, Ends 4: Personal Development and
Ends 5: Character)

Attachment 11: Previous Reasonable Interpretation for Ends 1: Mega End 2008
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Ends 2 — Monitoring Report — December 15, 2009
MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Board of Trustees has reviewed the scheduled monitoring report on Ends 23
Academic Success and concludes that reasonable progress is being made towards the
ultimate achievement of this Ends policy.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,

hotion Arnising,
MOVED by Trustee Lane:

THAT the Chief Superintendent be commended for the eighth consecutive year of
remarkable achievement in Ends 2.

The maothon was

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Chief Superintendent be commended for significant improvement in results

pertaining to Math 3, Math 6, Science 6, Science 9, Biology 30, Science 30, and English
Language Arts 3, 6 and 9.

Thea moiion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
MOVED by Trustee Bazinet:

THAT the Board of Trustees expresses an area of concern in regards to the level of
achievement in English Langnage Arts 30.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,

MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Board of Trustees expresses an area of concern in regards to the level of
achievement in Social Studies 30 and French Language Arts 3(.

A Trustee requested that the motion be severed so that the two subject areas can be voted
on separately.

THAT the Board of Trustees expresses an area of concern in regards to the level of
achievement in Social Studies 30,

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSRLY.

THAT the Board of Trustees expresses an area of concern in regards to the level of
achievement in French Language Aris 30,
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The motion was

CARRIED. In Favour: Trustee Dirks
Trustee Ferguson
Trustee King
Trustee Cochrane
Trustee Lane

Opposed: Trustee Bazinet

MOVED by Trustee Darkes:

THAT the Chief Superintendent be commended for outstanding results on Advanced

Placement (AP) exams, and International Baccalaureate (IB) diplomas and certificates
completed.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANDVOUSLY.

RO ED by Trustee Ferguson,

THAT the Chief Superintendent be commended on the increase in the number of students
who carned credits in the Registered Apprenticeship Program (RAF).

The motion was
CARRIED UMANIMOUSLY,

MOVED Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Chief Superintendent be commended regarding the continued increase in the
number of students who have the opportunity to learn langnages other than English and
for maintaining this opportunity at the jonior high level.

The motian was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

The following motion was made later on in the meeting, at the end of the public agenda; however, for
continuity in the minutes and for ease of reading it is being provided below:

MOVED Trestee Dirks:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the recommendations in this report for the futore
monitoring of Ends 2: Academic Success.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.
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Ends 2 Reasonable Interpretation — March 23, 2010
MOVED by Trustee Bazinet:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Reasonable Interpretation, including
Outcomes, Measures and Data Sources, provided in this report.

MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the motion be amended by the addition of *subject to the Chief Superintendent
identifying and including an appropriate measure that would demonstrate growth in
basic life skills for complex learners.”

Chair Cochrane called for the vote on the amendment to the mation.

The motion was
CARRIED UUNANIMOUSLY.

Chair Cochrane called for the wvote on the amended motion, which is provided below for
clarificanon:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Reasonable Interpretation, including
Outeomes, Measures and Data Sources provided in this report, subject to the Chief
Superintendent identifying and including am appropriate measure that would
demonstrate growth in basic life skills for complex learners.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

Ends 3 — Monitoring Report and Reasonable Interpretation — April 20, 2010
MOVED by Trusiee King:
THAT the Board of Trustees has reviewed the scheduled monitoring report on Ends 3

Citizenship and concludes that reasonable progress is being made toward the wltimate
achievement of this Ends policy.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,

Motion Arising

MOVED by Trustee Kryczka:
THAT the Board of Trustees commends the Chief Superintendent for providing
opportunities for students to develop citizenship traits and achieve in areas such as social

studies and politics. speech and debate, and athletics.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY,
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MOVED by Trusiee Lane:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Reasonable Interpretation provided in the
report entitled Reaxonable Interpretation for Ends 3: Cirfizenship.

The motion was
CARRIED UMANIMOLUSLY.

Ends 4 - Monitoring Report and Reasonable Interpretation — May 18, 2010
MOWVED by Trustee King:
THAT the Board of Trustees has reviewed the scheduled monitoring report on Ends 4

FPersonal Development and concludes that reasonable progress is being made toward the
ultimate achievement of this Ends policy.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

hoton Arnsing:

MOVED by Trustee Drirks:
THAT the Board of Trustees commends the Chief Superintendent for the introduction of
e-portfolios and for continwed growth and commitment to personalized learming as

demonstrated by e-portfolios.

The mobon was

CARRIED TINANIMOLUSLY.
MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Board of Trustees approves the Reasonable Interpretation provided in the
report entitled Reasonable Tnterpretation for Ends 4: Personal Development.

The motion was
CARRIED UNANDMOUSLY.

Ends 5 — Monitoring Report and Reasonable Interpretation — June 15, 2010
RACOYED by Trustee Lane:

THAT the Board of Trustees has reviewed the scheduled monitoring report on Ends 5:
Character and concludes that reasonable progress is being made toward the uoltimate
achievement of this Ends policy.

The motion was
CARRIED UMANDIVMOUSLY
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Maotion Arisinge:
MOVED by Trustee Dirks:

THAT the Board of Trostees commends the Chief Superintendent for the drop in
expressions of vandalism in the CBE.

Trustee Ferguson recommended and received peneral consent that the motion be amended by
substituting the following motion:

THAT the Board of Trustees commends the Chiel Saperintendent for work done by the
svstem that has contributed to limiting the incidents of students exhibiting anti-social
behaviours.

The motion was

CARRIED In Favour: Trustee Dirks
Trustee Ferguson
Trustee King
Trustee Cochrane
Trustee Lene
Trustee Krvezka

Opposed: Trustee Bazinet




a0 Attachment 11

September 9, 2008

REASONABLE INTERPRETATION FOR E-1: MEGA END
(Information provided to the Board of Trustees September 9, 2008—Reasonable
Interpretation, Indicators, and Targets for E-1: Mega End.)

On May 20, 2008, in an impact statement the Board received relative to the proposed
change to the policy the Board was contemplating, the Chief Superintendent provided the
Board of Trustees with a reasonable interpretation of the requirements articulated in E-1:
Mega End. His interpretation remains consistent with that which was previously provided.

The Mega End describes the hopes that our community has for our children and youth, and
the expectation that the opportunity for public schooling will provide a foundation on
which they can build successful lives, The conventional wisdom commonly asserts that a
certain level of educational achievement is required for effective functioning in a world that
is becoming increasingly complex and challenging. In this perspective, social
commentators will commonly assert that (at a minimum) all high school completers need to
attain proficiency in various kinds of literacy, numeracy, and social understanding. This
assertion certainly has face validity for very large cohorts of students. It becomes
problematic, however, when we atlempt to build agreement on the level of proficiency
required and on the umversality of our expectations for all students. These issues are
further compounded when we attempt to specify exactly what “high school completion™
means, For example, does high school completion mean graduation from high school with
all the requirements met for a provincial diploma? Alternatively, does it mean that students
complete high school with some other credential (for example a cemificate rather than a
diploma)?

The Chief Superintendent believes that high school completion can serve as a useful
indicator of system performance provided that we derive an appropriate measure for high
school completion and that we construe this concept ethically and with high sensitivity 1o
each one of our students.

Alberta Education currently provides significant data relevant to high school completion. In
spite of the complexities involved in the calculations, at the very least there is consistency
and a point of companson with the rest of the province,

The vanous approaches to whal constitutes high school completion can be a source of
frustration for those who take a simplistic view of the human condition. Here, it seems
reasonable to suggest that (for practical purposes) we can operationalize one clear
defimtion of high school completion within the context of our understanding of the
foregoing complexity. The Chief Superintendent would support a single measure of high
school completion only as a relatively helpful benchmark of system performance as distinet
from an incontrovertible accountabality verdict.

The Chief Superintendent believes the Board of Trustees' expectations regarding
meremental progress toward the achievement of the Mega End go well bevond a traditional
view of high school completion that is communicated by means of a statistical analysis,
The spirit of the Ends articulated by the Board includes an understanding that successful
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completion of high school is the means by which students function effectively in life, work,
and continued learmng,.

The foregoing discussion suggests that there may be ethical and legal problems in holding
all students to wdentical acadermic standards. The Chief Superintendent is not in favour of
commending such a version of accountability. Moreover, it 15 clear from the current
wording of E-1: Mega End that Trustees do not favour this position. Common sense
requires that in order to be accountable to our public some measure of high school
completion may be judiciously invoked, It is also important to contemplate how students

have been prepared to leave high school and participate meaningfully in the life choices
that they make.

INDICATORS FOR E-1: MEGA END

{Information provided to the Board of Trusices September 9, 2008—Reasonable
Interpretation, Indicators, and Targets for E-1: Mega End.)

Alberta Education currently provides the following indicators or sources of data that may
be considered for determining the completion rate of Calgary Board of Education students:

# Three, four, and five yvear completion rates as calculated by Alberta Education.
Drop out and return rates as calculated by Alberta Education.

Percentage of special education students who receive a Certificate of School
Completion.

Using these sources of data provides an element of consistency and the capacity to compare
CBE student completion with other students in the provinece.

With an announcement of a new initiative in the spring of 2008, Alberta Education now
allows senior hagh school students with special education needs to demonstrate eligibility
for a Certificate of School Completion in special education. To qualify for this certificate, a
student must be unable to complete high school (e.g., High School Diploma; Equivalency
Diploma (GED); or Centificate of High School Achievement—Knowledge and
Employability) due to significant cognitive difficulties. The students must be nominated by
the school before March 31, 2009, The Chief Superintendent is supportive of this initiative
and recommends tha! relevant data be included in any reports to support the Board's
monitoring efforts in this domain.

Further sources of data may also be considered for determining whether CBE students have
completed high school with a foundation of leamning o function effectively in life, work
and continued learning. The anmual High School Exit Survey can be accessed for
‘information relative to this concept. A second source of data would be to develop an online
high school student survey to solicit specific details related only 1o this concept. A third
source of data would be the rate of ehgihity for Rutherford scholarships as calculated by
Alberta Education. A fourth source of data is the high school to post-secondary transition
rates as calculated by Alberta Education. A fifth source of information relative to
functioning effectively in life, work, and continued leaming would be to offer a high school
symposium to approximately 100 Grade 12 students where they would participate in focus
group discussions around these key topics. Sixth, it is conceivable that the Calgary Board
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of Education could host similar focus group discussions around these key topics with
groups of adults who have completed high school over the past five years. As a seventh
source of data, another onling survey would invite responses from individuals who have
completed high school through the Calgary Board of Education. Another helpful way that
these kinds of data may inform the Board of Trustees regarding incremental progress
relative to E-1: Mega End 15 that non-completers could be asked to participate. Anecdotal
information would be gleaned from these sources of data to provide the Board with
monitoring information relative to E-1: Mega End,

In summary, the measures for the purpose of monitoring incremental progress toward the
achievement of E-1: Wega End may include:

1. Each student will complete high school
= Three, four, and five yvear completion rates as calculated by Alberta Education
= Dirop out and return rates as calculated by Alberta Education

= Percentage of special education students who receive a Certificate of School
Completion.

2. With a foundation of learning to function effectively in life, work, and continued

learning
= Rate of eligibility for Rutherford scholarships as calculated by Alberta
Education
= High school to post-secondary transition rates as calculated by Alberta
Education

= High school exit survey, student perception regarding:
o use of information technology
ability to make a difference in the community
participation in community service
possession of skills necessary to get a job
responsibility for own behaviour
desire for continuing 1o learn
o development of post high school plan
= Online high school student survey that differs from the High School Exit survey
by focusing only on 155ues related 1o completion
# Interviews or focus group sessions with high school studenmt councils or
leadership club representatives
Symposium for a representation of current high school students

Symposium for former Calgary Board of Education students including
representatives of non-completers

o e O R
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FUTURE PERSPECTIVES FOR E-1: MEGA END
(Information provided to the Board of Trustees November 25, 2008 — Annual Monitoring
Report for Ends 1: Mega End)

The Mega End represents a culmination of the vast body of work that takes place in the
Calgary Board of Education. Equipping our students with the tools they will nged to
function effectively in hife, work, and continued learning is our purpose. Each of the other
Ends—E-2; Adcademic Success, E-3: Character, E-4: Citizenship, and E-5: Personal
Development—helps 1o provide focus for developing student attitudes, skills, and
knowledge which ultimately leads to the achievement of the Mega End. Our jurisdiction’s
ability to work with students on the desired atiributes of each End is made possible through
the skills and talents of our dedicated staff members, our wide range of program choice, the
implementation of educational innovations, the personalization of leaming, and through the
flexibility of programming that we provide for our students,

As we examine ways in which we might measure our success in meeting the goals of E-1:
Mega End, it 1s imperalive that we go beyond the use of quanutative measurement such as
the high school completion rate. While completion rates are clear indicators to our public
regarding the success of students in high school, there exists a much richer, deeper
explanation of the success of our students,

Being prepared for work withim a global economy, for hife, and for further learming means
much more than simply receiving a high school diploma. Preparation for life beyond high
school speaks of a process whereby students have had opportunities to explore their
individual talents and skills; have made choices while considering the rights and needs of
others; and have acted as informed, responsible citizens. By looking beyond guantitative
data, we have the potential to expand our investigation for future reporting and
accountability purposes in determiming our students” successes,

For operational and reporting purposes in the future, we will access responses from the yet-
to-be-developed online high school survey and from student symposiums. To solicit a
comprehensive set of data sources, we will examine a variety of potential resources. These
sources may include, but are not limited to the following:

= Alberta Initiative for School Improvement
o Annual Provincial AISI Reporis (e.g., 217 Century Leamning; Assessment of,

for Learming)

» Programming choices and leaming supports

o Knowledge and Employability courses, Registered Apprenticeship

Program, Career centres

High School Exit Survey-anecdotal comments

CBE graduate survey or focus groups

Communication department highlights

Ends monitorning and reporting

Accountability Pillar results

" & &% B @

If we are to evolve as a leaming organization, we must become aware of and articulate the
possibilities contained in the specific wording of E-1: Mega End—
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Each student, in keeping with his or her individual abilities and gifts, will complete
high school with a foundation of learning to function effectively in life, work and
continued learning.

*“Each student in keeping with his or her individual abilities and gifts,”

This phrase represents the importance of the individual smdent in our system. Individual
students have unique learning styvles, as well as skills and talents to be fostered and further
developed. A focus in our junisdiction 1s to personalize learning for all students, in tum,
helping them achieve their greatest potential. This is a great challenge in that the CBE
serves a diverse student population with families from a wide socic-economic spectrum,
students who speak English as a Second Language, and students with a vanety of special
leaming needs. All students matter. Our jurisdiction embraces diversity and suppons
inclusion, A broad way of meesting individual student needs is found in our programs of
choice, whereas a more focused view might be in the development of an individual lesson
developing respect and empathy for others. Just as there is & wide variety of methods in
meeting mdividual student needs, there 15 also a variety of ways in which we can assess our
success in meeting those needs. Looking beyond quantitative measurements we can focus
on individual anecdotal comments from students and parents found in documents like
Alberta Education’s Accountability Pillar Survey Results. These results, in addition 1o
locally developed measures such as the CBE High School Exit Survey and future high
school and CBE graduate student symposiums can provide a wealth of information o
ensure our jurisdiction 18 pro-active in meeting students’ individual needs.

“will complete high school”

This concept cannot be fully expressed as a single quantitative measure such as a high
school completion rate. Only examining the number of high school diplomas and
certilicates earned does not do justice to the complexity and challenge involved in
completing high school. High school completion is the result of many vears of work by
school staff, parents, and, of course, students. Our jurisdiction secks to guide students
toward a future in which their skills and talents can be used to benefit society as well as o
provide each with their own personal satisfaction. In assessing our success in this area, it is
most important to hear the voice of students as they explain what it means to them to have
completed their Kindergarten through Grade 12 journey, and the supports they received or
might have benefitted from along the way. These voices will be heard in an upcoming high
school symposium as well as through survevs completed by our high school students.
Vignettes of a broad range of student expenences will be developed and shared with the
Board of Trustees in future monitoring reports.

“with a foundation of learning™

Providing our students with a foundation for leaming must take into account the competing
aims for education; socialization, initiation, and development. The socialization aspect of
education 15 focused on providing our vouth with useful knowledge to help serve the needs
of society, which could include leaming a skill or trade. The initiation aspect of education
would be what many automatically think of when they hear the word education—
academics and how knowledge 15 attained by our students. Finally, the aim of development
in education examines the whole child; taking into account a student’s emotions, social
development, learning styles, and preferences. Each of these aims is important to consider
when planming for student learning as we work towards preparing students for their lives
outside of school. Arguably, academic success is the most easily assessed with
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standardized achievement measures i addition to teacher-created classroom-based
evaluation tools. Assessing the other aims of education requires much thought and
crealivily as success 15 evidenced through student actions, comments, and their ways of
interacting with others in their community. Some of the assessment tools useful for these
evaluations could include the sharing of inguiry-based leaming projects, demonstrations,
exhibitions, displays of learning, digital student portfolios, and Registered Apprenticeship
Program expenences.

“to function effectively™

Functioning effectively 15 a difficult concept to define. Often in thinking of the word
“effective™ we equate that term with “efficiency,” but there is a distinction between the
two. “Efficiency™ speaks of timelines and meeting deadlines, getting things done on time
and well. “Effective” speaks of something deeper and, perhaps, more long-lasting and
sustainable. It is work that makes a difference, serving a specific purpose. In preparing
our graduates to function effectively, we need to: look beyond academics; produce citizens
with character; develop individuals who are oriented towards contributing to their
community; and guide students to act morally with wisdom. Again, the challenge arises in
measuring “effective” functioming, Some measures might include parent, teacher, and
student responses on the Accountability Pillar Survey, our high school to post-secondary
transition rates, perceptions of industry and workplace partners, and our High School Exit
Survey.

“life”

Preparation for life and its mynad of possibilities requires flexible, creative thinking,
problem-salving abilities, and an open mind. Life skills include how we relate to others,
particularly within a more global ¢conomy and an “instant-messaging” world. Life also
means being an informed and involved citizen, able to make decisions based on the
balance between one's own knowledge and experience, combined with a concemn for the
rights and needs of others.

“work™

In preparing our students for lives after high school it is important to weigh the needs of
society with the talents, skills, and aspirations of the individual. Although sach workplace
requires a definite set of skills and attitudes from its employvees, some common attributes
emerge. Problem-solving, creative thinking skills, and the ability to work effectively with
others are essentials in today's global marketplace. The CBE has been expanding its view
of work preparation and offering students greater flexibility in programming with increased
links to apprenticeship programs and industry. Some measures of our success in this regard
may include lower drop out rates; comments on student satisfaction elicited from the high
school student symposium; and reflections from business, government, and industry.

“continued learning™

Continued learning speaks of more than a post-secondary education. It is the development
of a mind-set whereby an individual desires intellectual growth and further development of
skills and talents. It speaks of a determination to expand one's knowledge and
understandings of the world. Current measures of continued learning address high school
to post-secondary transition rates, the High School Exit Survey, and Accountability Pillar
results. Perhaps, we might also look at continuing education courses or enrolment in
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courses based upon hobbies or interests as yet another measure of the desire for further
leaming.

We have begun the monitoring progress towards meeting Ends 1 Mega End by using
current forms of data collection. However, it is clear that new and innovative measurement
tools will be required 10 gain 8 more comprehensive picture of our successes in meeting
students’ needs now and for their future. Clearly, quantitative data i1s not enough — we need
access to students” own voices as they provide input into developing programs to assist
them on their journey through and beyvond their CBE experience. A newly-developed high
school survey and student symposium are excellent first steps in gathering qualitative
information that will help to guide us in stnving to meet mdividual student needs as they
prepare for life, work, and future leamning,
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To:

From:

Re:

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

November 30, 2000

Board of Trustees
Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Annual Monitoring Report for Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel
and Support to the Board of Trustees.

Ovriginator: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Resource Persons:  Superintendents” Team

IL.

Linda Flanagan, Office of the Chief Superintendent
Kathryn Kelm, Administrative Analyst, Office of the Chief Superintendent
Roderick Peden, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The Chief Superintendent is required to provide an annual monitoring report for the
Board of Trustees with respect to Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and
Support to the Board of Trusiees. The purpose of this report is to provide evaluative
information regarding the extent to which the Calgary Board of Education has complied
with the Chief Superintendent’s Reasonable Interpretation of this Executive Limitation
(EL).

EXECUTIVE LIMITATION 3: INFORMATION, COUNSEL AND SUPPORT TO
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

El-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees states:

With respect to providing timely information, prudent counsel and support to the Board
of Trustees, the Chief Superintendent shall not allow the Board of Trustees. as a whole
{except when fulfilling individual requests for information), to be uninformed or
unsupported in its work, Accordingly, the Chief Superintendent shall not fail to:

1. provide the following imformation in timely, accurate and understandable manner:
a) relevant monitoring information directly addressing provisions of policies being
mottored;
b) relevant trends affecting the school district;
¢} significant events that occur in the schools or school districts;
d} all civil or criminal charges laid or about 1o be laid by or against the Board of
Trustees, all significant proceedings before boards, tribunals or agencies, statutory
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investigations, and significant internal investigations. Regular updates on all such
proceedings will also be provided to the Board of Trustees;

e) significant civil, eriminal investigations or charges laid or about 10 be lad agamst
employees of the Calgary Board of Education;

f) changes to the Administration Regulations of the Calgary Board of Education;

g) material external and internal changes to the school system, particularly changes
in the assumptions upon which any board of Trustees’ policy has previously been
established;

h} significant and relevant changes in provincial or federal legislation, government
policy or municipal bylaws, and the impact that those changes will have on the
Calgary Board of Education;

1) anticipated adverse or significant media coverage;

i) any comrespondence or other commumcation to or from a Minister of the Crown, a
Deputy Minister or any other elected official;

k) any correspondence or notices that admimstration provides to all CBE school
councils;

1} all items delegated to the Chief Superintendent that are required by law or
contract to be Board-approved, along with adequate information necessary to
keep the Board of Trustees informed (on Consent Agenda); and

m) an annual report, by November 30", regarding how the Calgary Board of
Education is currently contnbuting toward achieving the 30-year targets of
imagineCALGARY and how the Calgary Board of Education 15 actively mvolved
in the working committees of the imagineCALGARY governance structure.

provide wise counsel to the Board of Trustees in the following areas:

a) if in the Chief Superintendent’s opinion, the Board of Trustees is not in
compliance with its own policies or Governance process and Board-Chief
Superintendent Linkage, particularly in the case of Board of Trustees” behaviour
that 15 detrimental to the working relationship between the Board of Trustees and
the Chief Superintendent;

b) in a timely manner, actual or anticipated non-comphance with any policy of the
Board of Trustees and relevant provincial government departments; and

¢) as many staff and external points of view, 155ues and options as reasonably needed
0 keep the Board of Trustees fully informed.

provide support to the Board of Trustees in the following areas:

a) a public affairs strategy that recognized the particular communication needs of the
Board of Trustees, which shall include:

L effective two-way communication tools 1o support public engagement and
linkages with stakeholders by the Board of Trusteeas (ex. Web-site,
promotional materials and mestings);

ii. amedia strategy that recognizes the political sensitivities of the Board of
Trustees and fosters effective media relationships and outcomes; and

i1, expert media training and advice.

b} legal opinions, advice and representation to the Board of Trustees; and

¢) expertise in the Board's role of developing governance pohcies,

provide any other information, counsel, and/or support that in his'her opinion should

be provided to the Board of Trustess,
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I11.

REASONABLE INTERPRETATION

Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
clearly outlines the Board of Trustess’ expectations relative 1o the Chief Superintendent’s
role in keeping the Board informed, and providing counsel and support.

The term information, as stated in Policy Provision 1, is interpreted to mean the
information the Board of Trustees (the Board) secks or requires regarding operational and
legislative issues or activity that may impact the Calgary Board of Education. Through
transparent, ¢clear information the Chiel Superintendent supports the Board of Trustees in
building a broad knowledge base regarding both the Calgary Board of Education (CBE)
and issues affecting education. The Board also requires information from the Chief
Supenintendent thalt descnbes whether or not reasonable interpretations of the Board's
expectations for organizational performance, as stated in the Ends and Executive
Limitation (EL) policies, have been met.

The term cownsel, as stated in Policy Provision 2, is interpreted as a sharing of expertise,
background, viewpoimnt and, in some cases, suggested action. The Chief Superintendent’s
counsel is sought by the Board in support of communication with elected representatives,
Alberta Education, community members and constituents. The Chief Superintendent
makes recommendations 1o the Board of Trustees to inform decision-making, evaluate
organizational performance and build an understanding of the work of administration.

[n the context of Pohey Provision 3, the term support is interpreted to be the provision of
reasonable resources and information to aid the Board of Trustees in addressing the
establishment of positive public relations, the assurance of sound legal opinions and input
to guide the development of govemance policies. The Chief Supernintendent (or
delegates) provides support with developing strategies and responding 1o issues at the
Board level, particularly as related to media, public relations and communications.

Policy Provision 4 provides for the possibility that the Chiel Superintendent may be privy
to information from time-to-time that cannot be anticipated, but which may be important
to the Board. The Chief Supenntendent acknowledges her responsibility to exercise
sound, professional judgment in identifying and communicating such information, and
providing her counsel and support as requested.

Information, counsel and support o the Board of Trustees are interpreted as three distinet
categones: decision, evaluative and incidenral. This distinction helps to differentiate the
information, counsel and support provided based on intended use, and the various means
and processes used to provide it

Decision information and related counsel and support are future focused. Information to
support decision making is required by the Board of Trustees as a whole in order to
ensure thal its decisions are informed, reasonable and responsible. This information,
counsel and support focuses on Board decisions rather than decisions made by the Chief
Superintendent or CBE staff. “It is not used to judge either the Board’s or the

organization’s performance but to prepare the Board for decision making.™ (Carver &
Carver, 2009, p. 5)
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Evaluative information and related counsel and support focus on the past and are
understood to be relevant data and/or analysis that allow the Board to determine if the
Chief Superintendent has complied with interpretations of the Executive Limitations and
has made reasonable progress toward the accomplishment of the interpretations of the
Ends. Ewaluation information is judgmental and criteria-related; it provides the Board
with the information needed to assess whether its stated policies have been reasonahliy
interpreted and the interpretations met.

Incidental information and related counsel and support are all information requested by
the Board that is not needed for decisions or evaluative purposes, but allows the Board to
stay informed about sigmficant events occurmng n the junsdicton. Where the Board
chooses 10 be informed about particular issues or areas of interest, requests for this
information are incorporated into Executive Limitation policy that prohibits the Board
from being uninformed. “While the mformation is stull meidental, it 1s carefully
designated and when received i1s flagged as such. In this way, the content of this
information will never be used to judge CEQ performance, even informally, though its
presence or absence will be,” (Carver & Carver, 2009, p.9)

It is important to note that, while this Reasonable Interpretation uses the term “incidental™
1o describe a category of information, it is in ne way intended to imply that this type of
information requested by the Board is unimportant or trivial. The Chief Superintendent
recognizes that Board specificity about desired mcidental information clanfies which
non-decision and non-evaluative information mwust be gathered and presented, and
effectively limits overwhelming the Board with unnecessary information in an attempt to
avond omissions. The shanng of incidental information supports generative conversation.

EL-3 sets out more than twenty specific policy provision subsets. In order to
demonstrate compliance as clearly and concisely as possible, the following chart has been
developed as the measure. For each policy provision subset we have provided evidence
of the means used 1o commumnicate information and/or offer counsel and support 1o the
Board. We have also categorized the specific provisions according to the type and
purpose of the information, counsel and/or support (decision, evaluation or incidental).
Recognizing the mynad of ways the Chief Superintendent communicates with the Board
in the course of a year, the chart is intended to be illustrative rather than comprehensive.

Ultimately, the Chiel Supenntendent demonstrates her comphance with Executive
Limitation 3 by ensuring that the means are in place to fulfill her obligations to provide
information, counsel and support in each category and for each policy provision. In
several instances, specific provisions are met by more than one means; similarly, vanous
reporting and monitoring processes serve to provide information for multiple provisions.

The examples of means used m the chart are taken from the penod November 2009 to

November 2010. This list of examples does not name specific, confidential reports
presented at private meetings of the Board of Trustees.
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Policy Provision 1: Provide the following information in timely, accurate and understandable manner

Policy Provision Subsets

Information
Counsel

Support *

a) relevant monitoring information directly addressing
provisions of policies being monitored

b} relevant trends affecting the school disiricl

E

D/

Means

5 annual Ends monitoring reports presented at Board of
Trustee meelings

17 annual Excculive Limitation monitoring reports presented al
Board meetings

3+ individual reports specilically requested in EL policy
provisions presented at Board meetings and the Reasonable
Interpretations of the five Ends policies

Dil

Reports presented at Board meetings, e.g.,
e  Provincial Achievement Test and Diploma Examination

o  Three-Year Education Plan
Annual Education Resulis Report
e Cultural Competency in the Calgary Board of Education
e Proposed Accommaodation Plans
o New Education Centre Updates
#  School Enrolment
o Facility Conditions
o Altendance Area Changes
e  Consideration of Closure
e Resource Allocations to Schools
Administration’s presentations al Board meetings; e.g. Career and
T:_w.:hnnInE:,' f‘ilt‘ﬂi[.‘Ep‘_
* D=Decision  E=Evaluative 1= Incidental
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Policy Provision 1: Provide the following information in timely, accurate and understandable manner

confinued

Policy Provision Subsets

Information
Counsel

Support *

Means

¢) significant events that occur in the schools or school
districls

1

d} all civil or criminal charges laid or about to be laid by or
againsl the Board of Trustees, all significant proceedings
before boards, tribunals or agencies, statulory
investigations, and significant internal investigations,
Regular updates on all such proceedings will also be
provided 1o the Board ol Trustees

Chiel Superintendent’s verbal and writlen updates presented at
Board meetings

School presentations at Board meelings

Regular updates posted on the Calgary Board of Education
internet and intranet

Honours and Recognitions at Board meelings

Legal Affairs” verbal and/or writlen updates presenied at privale
Board meetings

Human Resources’ verbal andfor written updates presented at
private Board meetings

) significant civil, criminal investigations or charges laid or
ahout to be laid against employees of the Calgary Board of
Education

I} changes to the Administration Regulations of the Calgary

Legal Affairs’ verbal and/or writlen updates presenied at private
Board meetings

Chiel Superintendent’s written updates presented at Board
meetings

Board of Education

g) malterial external and internal changes o the school system,
particularly changes in the assumptions upon which any

board of Trustees” policy has previously been established

| Reporis presented at Board meetings; e.g., Career and

Technology Strategy in the Calgary Board of Education

* D = Decision E = Evaluative [ = Incidental
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Policy Provision 1: Provide the following information in timely, accurate and understandable manner

continued

Policy Provision Subsets

)y significant and relevant changes in provincial or federal
legislation, government policy or municipal bylaws, and the
impact that those changes will have on the Calgary Board of
Education

Information
Counsel

Support ¥

Means

il

i} anticipated adverse or significant media coverage

D/

1) any correspondence or other communication Lo or (fom a
Minister of the Crown, a Depuly Minister or any other
elected ollicial

D/

| Legal Affairs” verbal and/or written updates presented at Board

k) any correspondence or notices that administration provides
lo all CBE school councils

meelings; e.g.,
« MNotification of change to Municipal bylaw regarding
Ward boundaries
o Notification of change (o School Aet regarding electronic
attendance al meetings

Verbal and/or writien updates and reports presented at private
Board meetings

Correspondence presented at Board meetings

Trustee access to bi-monthly Key Communigué email newsletter

1y all items delegated to the Chiel Superintendent that are
required by law or contract to be Board-approved, along
wilh adequate information necessary (o keep the Board of
Trustees informed (on Consent Agenda)

m ) an annual report, by November 30", regarding how the
Calgary Board of Education is currently contributing loward
achieving the 30-year targets of imagineCALGARY and
how the Calgary Board of Education is actively involved in
the working commitiees of the imagineCALGARY
governance struciure

Reports on items delegated to the Chief Superintendent and
requiring a resolution by the Board of Trustees; c.g., Locally
Developed and Acquired Courses report

Report presented at Board meeling

* D = Decision E = Evaluative 1= Incidental
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 Policy Provision 2: Provide wise counsel to the Board of Trustees in the following areas

Trusices is not in compliance with ils own policics or
Governance process and Board-Chief Supermtendent
Linkage, parlicularly in the case of Board of Truslees
behaviour that is detrimental to the working relationship
hetween the Board of Trustecs and the Chiel Supenntendent

by ina timely manner, actual or anticipated non-compliance
with any policy of the Board of Trustees and relevant
provincial government departments

¢) as many stafl and external points of view, 1ssues aid
options as reasonably needed 1o keep the Board of Trustees
fully mfonmed

E

Information
Policy Provision Subsets Counsel Means
Support *
a) ifin the Chief Superintendent’s opinion, the Board of D Attendance at Trustee work sessions as requested by either the

Chief Superintendent or Trustees; ¢.g., Seplember 29, 2010

Board of Trustee Chair / Chief Superintendent Meetings

' 5 annual Ends monitoring reports presented at Board meetings

| 17 annual Executive Limilation monitoring reporis presented al
Board meetings

Chief Superintendent verbal updates and related messaging

Stafl input into reports, inguiries, memoranda to the Board and to
individual Trustees upon their request

Reports and documents to the Board related to acquisition of
information from oulside sources; e.g.,

o  KPMG Audil reporis

o  External review to identify potential privacy gaps

« External review ol operational praciices

* D = Decision E = Evaluative | = Incidental




Policy Provision 3: Provide support to the Board of Trustees in the fniluwi_rg% areas
Information

Policy Provision Subsets Counsel Means
Support *

a) a public affairs stralegy that recognized the particular communication needs of the Board of Trustees, which shall include

i. effective two-way communication lools o support I CBE hanner stories on both the internet and intranet
public engagement and linkages with stakeholders by

: : Trusiee-zine
the Board of Trustees (ex. Web-site, promotional

materials and meelings) Report 1o the Community 2010
Three-Y ear Education Plan and Annual Education Resulls Report
Back 1o School
. Werklund Foundation’s Empowering Minds™ Youth Leadership
Education
‘L“ | Three annual system-wide meelings with parents
o | International Association for Public Parlicipation engagement
— procoess B
ii. amedia strategy that recognizes the political 1 Media Relations Strategy
sensitivities of the Board of Trustees and foslers
_ effective media relationships and oulcomes
iil. experl media traming and advice D Media training sessions for Trustees and Superintendents

Media interview preparation and support

Media release and key messaging support

Media advice upon request

% D =Decision  E = Evaluative = Incidental
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Policy Provision 3: Provide support to the Board of Trustees in the following areas

continued

Means

Trustees

Information
Policy Provision Subsets Counsel
Support *
b} legal opinions, advice and representation to the Board of D Advice upon request
D/

¢) expertise in the Board's role of developing governance
policies

Corporate Secretary Services
|

Impact Statements regarding proposed policy amendments
presented at Board meetings

Reguests for changes 1o Governance Process 4E: adjustments 1o
moniloring cyele reports presented al Board meelings

Admimistrative Recommendations for Policy Enhancement
section contained in monitoring reports and presented al Board
mectings

Chiefl Superintendent attendance at Trustee policy work session
| meetings and retreats

* 3 = Decision E = Evaluative 1= Incidental
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Policy Provision 4: Provide any other information, counsel and/or support that in his/her opinion should be provided to the Board of

Trustees. =

Policy Provision Subsets

Information
Counsel

Support *

Means

NA

D/l

All reports, documents and dialogue between the Board of
Trusiees and the Chiel Superintendent or her delegates not
specifically relerenced elsewhere in this chart; e.g.,

Administrative responses 1o Inguiries from Trusiees

Reports for information provided at the request of the Board
of Trustees; e.g., Single Gender Education Report, Donor
Recognition

Reports for information initiated by Administration; e.g.,
WorldSkills 2009 Final Report

Provision of information, counsel and support at Trusiee work
sessions

Provision of information for Board of Trustee Board
Development Sessions; e.g., Personalized Leaming

11

¥ = Decision E = Evaluative 1= Incidental




IV.

Y.

VL.

COMPLIANCE RESULTS

In the Reasonable Interpretaion for Executive Limitation 3, the measure/rationale/result
method of demonstraling the extent of compliance has been replaced by a chart showing
the means by which the Chief Superintendent met the obligations of the EL. The chart
serves as a visual organizer whereby 1t 1s readily apparent that all policy provisions
contained in EL-3 were addressed in at least one way, and often in multiple ways.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Chief Superintendent 1s required to provide an annual monitoring report to the Board
of Trustees that reflects on the extent to which to the Chief Superintendent is in
compliance with Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board
of Trustees.

This report contains a reasonable imterpretation of EL-3 and documented means. For this
Policy, non-compliance would be shown by the absence of information, ¢counsel and/or
support. For every specific policy provision, the Chief Superintendent has demonstrated
one or more means by which she meets her obligation to provide information, counsel
and support to the Board, as requested.

Accordingly, | am reporting overall compliance with this Executive Limitation.
Administration notes the following exception that creates partial compliance with the
interpretation of one subset of Policy Provision 1.

Palicy Provision 1, Subset a)

EL-3 requires the receipt of momitoring information in a timely manner. The
Board of Trustees sets the monitoring interval and timing for Ends and Executive
Limitation policies in Governance Process (GP) 4E: Annual Agenda Planning.
The monitoring report for Executive Limitation 7: Treatment of Staff and
Volunieers 18 currently agendized for presentation to the Board of Trustess in
December 2010 rather than October 2010 as specified in GP-4E. Prior approval
from Trustees for delaying this report was received in October 2010,

ADMINISTRATION'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR POLICY ENHANCEMENT

Administration respectfully requests that Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel
and Support to the Board of Trustees be reviewed by the Board of Trustees in
consideration of business practices and expectations for operational performance. For the
purposes of this report, recommendations for amendments focus on Policy Provision 1,
Subsets d) and e).

Policy Provision |, Subset d)
To reflect legal nomenclature and practice, Administration recommends the Board
consider differentiating between civil claims and criminal charges; for example, the

inclusion of “claims™ as a descriptor of civil action. The proposed amendments also
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reflect: 1) the Board of Trustees cannot lay criminal charges, and 2) there 15 no
current practice that allows public access to information about charges that may be
laid as a result of ongoing criminal investigations conducted by either Calgary Police
Services or other policing agencies. Therefore, it is incumbent upon Administration
to notify the Board of Trustees regarding issues related to Subset d) as information
becomes available and within a broad context.

The following iteration of Subset d) illustrates these recommendations in strike-
through and bold.

d) &# anv significant civil claims advanced or about to be advanced by or
against the Board of Trustees, or any criminal charges laid er-abeutte—be
laid-bv—or against the Board of Trustees, all significant procesdings before
boards, tribunals or agencies, statutory investigations (including criminal
investigations), and significant internal investigations, as such information
becomes known. Regular updates on all such proceedings will also be
provided to the Board of Trustees;

».

Policy Provision 1, Subset g)

Administration recommends amendments to Subset ¢) in the context of legal
nomenclature, practice and differentiation between civil and cniminal action as
described above under Subset d).

In addition, the Chiel Superintendent’s ability to comply with the provisions of
Subset ) relies on whether the issuance of a charge or charges is reported by an
employee, as per the requirement in Administrative Regulation 4027 Code of
Conduct for Employees that employees notify the Supenintendent of Human
Resources of all criminal charges at the time the charge is issued. To determine civil
claim filings or criminal charges outside of the requirement for employee disclosure
would require daily searches of provincial and federal court dockets for references to
any and all emplovees of the CBE who may be named in a proceeding,

The following iteration of Subset ¢) illustrates these recommendations in strike-
throuwsh and bold:

e} significant civil claims and criminal investigations or charges laid er-abeui-te
be—taid—against employvees of the Calgary Beard of Educanon, as such

information becomes known;

NAOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

SOUrces:

Carver, John and Carver, Miriam. Carver Policy Govemance Guide, Evaluating
CEQ and Board Performance, Jossey-Bass, 2009,
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

NOVEMBER 30, 2010

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the financial report for EducationMatters be received for information and for
the record, in the form as submitted.

BACKGROUND:

The Board of Trustees has requested quarterly reporting from EducationMatters. The attached

report is provided in response to this request.

Respectfully submitted,

J.R. Barkway
Asst. Corporate Secretary



@ EducationMatters

calgary’s public education trust

November 23, 2010

To the Calgary Board of Education Trustees

EducationMatters is pleased to share its September 30, 2010 unaudited internal financial report (the
“Report™) with you.

EducationMatters management (“Management”) has prepared the Report to the Trustees based on
its internal reports and accounting records. While Management has used its best estimates in
preparing the Report, please be advised that the Report has not been audited or reviewed nor have
notes to the statements been prepared. Other readers may require additional information in order to
rely on the Report for their own purposes.

The Report contains the following special purpose financial statements and other information:

Unaudited Statement of Financial Position as at September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009
Unaudited Statement of Operations for the period ended September 30, 2010 and
comparative for the year ended December 31, 2009

Unaudited Operating Budget Comparison to September 30, 2010

Statement of EducationMatters Funds Established as at September 30, 2010

Statement of Grants Awarded for the year to date September 30, 2010

A discussion of some of the amounts and transactions summarized in the statements

Y v

YV VYV

Respectfully submitted,

Monica Bryan - Director of Finance & Information Systems, EducationMatters
Lora Wyman - Treasurer, EducationMatters
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EducationMatters

Statement of Financial Position
As at Sept 30, 2010

$,000
(unaudited)

As At As At

Sept Dec

30/10 31/09
ASSETS (unaudited) (audited)
Cash and cash equivalents 141 260
Investments 3,128 2,784
Accounts receivable 2 4
Capital assets 12 18
Total assets 3,283 3,066
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 14 59
Deferred Contributions 500 500
Total liabilities 514 559
FUND BALANCES
Endowment funds 1,583 1,391
Flow through funds 385 533
Operating funds 801 583
Total fund balances 2,769 2,507

Total liabilities and fund
balances 3,283 3,066



EducationMatters

Statement of Operations
Year to Date to Sept 30, 2010

$,000
(unaudited) (audited)
Endowment Flow-Thru Operating Total Dec 31/09
$ $ $ $ $
REVENUES
Contributions 137 226 49 412 733
CBE grants 750 750 750
Gains/losses on investments 85 3 88 192
Interest & fees 15 15 17
Total revenue 222 226 817 1,265 1,692
GRANTS
Grants issued 15 37h 390 527
EXPENSES
Salaries & benefits 387 387 546
Consulting & professional
fees 36 36 35
Administrative expenses 15 93 108 228
Advertising & communications 82 82 88
Total expenses 15 598 613 897
FUND BALANCES
Change during the period 192 (149) 219 262 268
Beginning balance 1,391 533 583 2,507 2,239
Balance, end of period 1,583 384 802 2,769 2,507
Total contributions since inception:
2010 412
2009 733
2008 1,197
2007 641
2006 865
2006 786
2004 612
2003 356
5602
Page 3



EducationMatters
Operating Budget Comparison

Year-to-Date Sept 30, 2010
(thousands of dollars)

2010 30 - Sept
BUDGET Actual

(unaudited)

$ $

Operating Expenses by function:

Salaries and Employee Benefits 619 387
Events 80 25
Fund Development 30 33
Communications & Community 128 83
Organizational Administration 120 69
Total Expenses 977 597




EducationMatters
Funds Established
as at Sept 30, 2010

Flow Through Funds:

Allan Markin Healthy Learners Fund

Athletics Flow Thru Fund, Helping Students in Need

Benjamin (Ben) Albert Legacy Fund (Flow Thru)

Beverley Hubert Global Citizenship Fund

Bowness High School Enhancement Flow Thru Fund

Calgary Flames Ambassadors Supports for Kids with the Gift of Dyslexia Fund
Campus Calgary Programs Flow Thru Fund

Career Pathways Flow Thru Projects Fund

Christine Meikle School Flow Thru Fund

Civil Society & Citizenship Flow Thru Fund

Cornerstone Fund, Enhancing Education for Economically Disadvantaged Students
Distinguished Alumni Fund

Dr. Brendan Croskery Aboriginal Culture Fund

Ernest Manning HS Enhancement Flow Thru Fund

Family Literacy Program Flow Thru Fund

Fuel for School Program Flow Thru Fund

Future Leaders Flow Thru Fund

French for the Future Program Fund

Heather and N. Murray Edwards Literacy Fund

High School Transition Program

James Fowler HS Art Program Equipment Enhancement Fund

Lord Shaughnessy High School Enhancement Flow Thru Fund

Louise Dean School Fund

McGill University Faculty of Agricultural and Environmental Sciences Fund
Public Education Enhancement Flow Thru Fund (Designated)

Public Education Enhancement Flow Thru Fund

Schools Helping Schools Fund

SPIRIT Program Fund

Stampede Foundation Fund

Students with Special Needs Flow Thru Fund

Supports for Students with Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Flow Thru
TEAM Leadership Flow Thru Fund

Tyler Zeer Imbursement Fund

Willow Park School Program Enhancement Flow Thru Fund

Youth Mentorship Flow Thru Fund

Endowment Funds:

Athletics Endowment Fund, Helping Students in Need

Beverley Hubert Global Citizenship Fund

Career Pathways Field of Interest Endowment Fund

Civil Society & Citizenship Education Endowment Fund

ConocoPhillips World Schools Debate Development Endowment Fund
Cornerstone Fund, Enhancing Education for Economically Disadvantaged Students
Creagh Family Fund

Dr. Brendan Croskery Aboriginal Culture Fund

EducationMatters Admin Endowment Fund

Enhancing Education for Students with Special Needs Endowment Fund
Enhancing ESL Education Endowment Fund

Fund

Balance
$

1,139

8,735

9,500
3,904
6,109

275
2,850
8,198

2,683
319
17,519
4,500

4,929
15,045
58,486
14,737
34,790
52,460
12,408
24,616
28,956
26,005
39,474

Page 5



Future Leaders Endowment Fund

Georgie C Higgins Junior High Memorial School Fund

Georgie C Higgins Investment Fund for Lester B Pearson High School
Governors’ Endowment Fund

Jane and Jason Fund

Lehew-Wyman Family Endowment Fund

M.P. Hess Fund

Margaret and Bill Whelan Endowment Fund

Mary Nelson Memorial Fund

Mawer Investment Management Literacy Fund

McGill University Faculty of Agricultural and Environmental Sciences Fund
Public Education Enhancement Endowment Fund

Schools Helping Schools Fund (Endowment)

Southland Transportation Career Pathways Endowment Fund
Sunnyside Community School Endowment Fund

Supports for Students Born with Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder Fund
TEAM Leadership Lord Beaverbrook HS Endowment Fund

Terry Wright Endowment Fund

Tiberious Publishing Program Fund

Tyler Zeer Endowment Fund

William Reid School Endowment Fund

Youth Mentorship Endowment Fund

Fund
Balance

$

31,478
5,649
6,261
5,706
5,482

22,195
4,818

47,436

46,430

15,626
4,991

234,812

17,914
5,467

12,285

25,482
4,693
5,368
5313

24,433

14,311
7,108



EducationMatters
Funds Established
as at Sept 30, 2010

Scholarship Funds:

Aberhart Alumni Scholarship Fund

Aberhart Alumni Scholarship Fund (Flow Thru)

Aboriginal Students Award Fund

Arrata Family Award for New Canadians

Arrata Family Award for New Canadians Fund (Flow Thru)
Ataturk Peace Scholarship

Benjamin (Ben) Albert Legacy Fund (Endowed)

Bruce Leitl Scholarship Fund

Calgary Chamber of Commerce Play with the Presidents Scholarship Fund
Carolyn Baxter Memorial Award Fund

City of Calgary Degree Granting Scholarship Fund

City of Calgary Post Secondary Scholarships
ConocoPhillips Canada Awards

CTS Scholarship Flow Thru Fund

David James Anderson Memorial Award Fund

David James Anderson Memorial Award Fund (Flow Thru)
Dr Gordon Higgins Student Award Fund

Edith Berger Memorial Scholarship Fund

EducationMatters Endowed Scholarship Fund
EducationMatters Scholarship Flow Thru Fund

EllisDon Student Award Fund

ENMAX Scholarship Fund

Future Leaders Scholarship Fund

Future Leaders Scholarship Flow Thru Fund

Gary Weimann Award for Community Service (Endowment)
Gary Weimann Award for Community Service (Flow Thru)
George Morley Memorial Scholarship

Green & Gold Endowment Scholarship Fund

Green & Gold Flow Thru Scholarship Fund

Henry Wise Wood Warriors Legacy Endowment Scholarship Fund
Henry Wise Wood Warriors Legacy Flow Thru Scholarship Fund
Hopewell Scholarship Fund

Hugh Robertson Science Award Fund

lvy & Len Freeston Student Award Endowment Fund

Ivy & Len Freeston Student Award Flow Thru Fund

James Fowler School Award Fund

Jim Hoeppner Award

Keith Yu Memorial Scholarship Fund

Marjorie Taylor Memorial Scholarship Fund

Marofke Family Aberhart Music Scholarship Fund

Marofke Family Aberhart Music Scholarship Fund (Flow Thru)
Mary Belkin Memorial Scholarship Fund

MW & JR Tebo Memorial Journalism Fund

Richard D Tingle Student Award Fund

Richard D Tingle Student Award Flow Thru Fund

Fund

Balance
$

52,634
1,800
2,000

34,029

10,000
128,469
9,406
8,000
5,484
8,500
18,700
24,620
58,663
10,535
914
12,566
12,065
11
5,632
7,500
5,388
19,253
1,001
15,833
238
7,213
137,356
9,984
17,958
2,600
12,825
7,587
13,350
95
10,675
1,500
20,395

47,270
22,726
1,585
16,690
13,614
20,475
750
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Rick Theriault Memorial Athletic Scholarship Fund

Ruth Ursula Leipziger Scholarship Fund

Shawn Whitney Memorial Award Fund

Southland Transportation Scholarship Endowment Fund
Southland Transp. Scholarship Flow Thru Fund

Steven Irving Memorial Music Scholarship Fund

Susy Devlin Memorial Award Fund

Thomas Moore Memorial Bursary Fund

Verna Hart Toole Legacy Award Fund

Viscount Bennett Band Parents Assoc. Award Fund
William & Toshimi Sembo Badminton Scholarship Fund
William Keir MacGougan Memorial Bursary Fund

Fund
Balance
$

11,543
21,996
8,732
5,527
60
24,641
19,087
12,364
6,208
6,375
6,238
16,109



EducationMatters

Statement of Grants Awarded
Year-to-Date Sept 30, 2010

Bowness High School — H.1.T.T. - Football

Bowness High School — Musical Theatre

Calgary Board of Education — Teaming Up for Healthy Learners
Louise Dean School — Total Wellness Program

Calgary Board of Education — Fuel for School Breakfast Program
Calgary Family Services — Aboriginal Family Celebration
Catherine Nichols Gunn School — Aboriginal Awareness Week
CBE Aboriginal Services — Aboriginal Families Learning Together
CBE Aboriginal Services — Aboriginal Summer Work Experience
CBE — Special Education Learning Enhancement Dep't — Tool Kit
Connaught School — Dual Language Books

Connaught School — Oral Language Program

Connaught School — English as a Second Language Program

Dr. E.W. Coffin School — Guided Reading Program

Dr. Gordon Higgins School — ESL Literacy Program

Dr. Oakley School — Celebrating Readers

Ernest Manning School — Enhancing Wellness & Skill Development
Forest Lawn School — Athletics Fees for Disadvantaged Students
Henry Wise Wood School — Drama Department Program

Jack James School — Athletics Fees for Disadvantaged Students
Jack James High School — CBE Skills

John G. Diefenbaker — Athletics Fees for Disadvantaged Students
Langevin School — Langevin School Learning Commons Project
Lester B. Pearson — Athletics Fees for Disadvantaged Students
Louis Riel School — Aboriginal Awareness Week

Prince of Wales School — Area of greatest need

Sir Wilfrid Laurier School — Creating Lifelong Readers

Sunnyside School — Garden Club accessories

Total Program Grants

Total Scholarships

Total Grants and Scholarships

$
6,709
475
131,000
950
34,500
870
366
20,000
5,000
2,667
475
23,000
171
10,500
12,000
9,500
11,000
410
475
410
7,220
410
25,000
410
357
475
20,000
202

$ 324,542

65,140

$ 389,682




EducationMatters
Discussion of Financial Position and Results of Operations

Statement of Financial Position
As a result of CBE and EducationMatters having different fiscal years, a portion of our operating

grant contributions are deferred each year end to reflect the fiscal year for which we have received
operating funds.

At December 31, 2009 we deferred 500,000 of CBE operating contributions received in 2009 that
relate to our fiscal year 2010.

Capital assets consist primarily of office furniture and equipment.

Statement of Operations
At September 30, 2010, we are below target for the achievement of our fund development goals but
feel confident that we will come close to achieving the targets set for 2010.

As is common with most not for profit or charitable organizations, donations are recognized only
when they are received and not accrued as promises receivable.

Operating Budget Comparison
Expenditures reported include only cash expenses for budget comparison purposes.

Funds Established and Grants Awarded

Our report on Funds Established and their balances to September 30, 2010 reflect both realized and
unrealized gains on funds as a result of a recovery of markets. For the long term EducationMatters
expects steady growth as a result of improved markets and contributions.

The majority of granting activities occur in the fall of each year. Grants issued in 2010 continue to
provide a significant contribution back to public school students and systems, particularly the CBE.



CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

NOVEMBER 30, 2010
LIAISON REPORT — ALBERTA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION (ASBA)

Submitted by Trustee Carol Bazinet

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the ASBA liaison report containing the ASBA Board of Directors’ Meeting
Highlights dated September 9-10, 2010 and November 4-5, 2010 be received for
information.

BACKGROUND:

The attached are reports provided by the Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) with
respect to their work. As the CBE Board of Trustees representative on the ASBA Board of
Directors, I am providing these reports for your information.

Respectfully submitted,

Trustee Carol Bazinet
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Sept .9-10, 2010

ASBA Board of Directors Meeting

Board Highlights are circulated to the Board of Directors and ASBA staff after each meeting.
Directors are asked to circulate these highlights to their respective constituencies. Meeting
agendas, draft and ratified minutes are available on the ASBA website at www.asba.ab.ca.
For more information contact Marian Johnson at 1.780.451.7101.

These terms of reference will guide the
ASBA’s First Nations, Métis and Inuit task force

In a bid to improve First Nations, Métis and Inuit students’ success in school, this task force
will develop a plan, for consideration by the ASBA Board of Directors that identifies the
unique contributions school boards can make to:
- promoting awareness, understanding and respect of the
unique needs of these students, their communities and their cultures
- engaging and collaborating with First Nations, Métis and Inuit communities, the
provincial and federal governments and education stakeholders in developing
and implementing strategies intended to support and promote student success
- supporting school boards as they ensure FNMI students are provided with high-
quality, equitable learning opportunities that are culturally relevant to the unique
needs of the student and their communities

Who is on this task force?
Dianne Lavoie, Zone 1 Director - Task Force Chair
Beatrice Wright Holy Family Catholic Regional Division, Zone 1
Darrell Ghostkeeper Living Waters Catholic Regional Division Zone 2/3
Rob Reimer Wetaskiwin Regional Division, Zone 4
Ron Kenworthy Golden Hills School Division, Zone 5
Kathy Cooper Prairie Rose School Division, Zone 6
Cindy Olsen, Edmonton Catholic Separate School District Metro
Brian Callaghan, Superintendent Canadian Rockies Regional Division

The association is inviting Alberta Education, the Alberta School Councils Association and
the Alberta Teachers’ Association to join this task force. .

ASBA developing working agreement with

Alberta Urban Municipalities Association

The ASBA Board of Directors authorized Executive Director David Anderson to draft a
working agreement with the Alberta Urban Municipalities Association. The agreement
recognizes the two associations have similar agendas and priorities and that there may be
efficiencies and enhancements as result of cooperation. The proposed agreement will be
subject to review and signature by ASBA President Heather Welwood.
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Criteria to be set for short-cut that allows board of directors to

respond quickly to issues raised by individual boards/Zones
Under Governance Policy 12 the ASBA Board of Directors may respond to individual
school board or Zone requests for action between general meetings.

Last spring, the board of directors, in response to a school board’s request and under
Governance Policy 12, launched the development of communications guidelines for school
boards approached by out-of-boundary schools wishing to join the jurisdiction. The draft
guidelines were presented as information at the 2010 Spring General Meeting.

To refine this process, the board has directed Executive Director David Anderson to draft:
- Criteria to guide how the board of directors
responds to individual board/Zone requests in the future
- Standards for communicating the rationale for the
board of director’s decisions with regard to these requests.

Pending the establishment of these criteria and standards, work on the draft
communications guidelines has been tabled.

Final report: Strategic Plan (2009-2012)
The final report outlining progress made this year on the ASBA’s strategic plan is available
on the ASBA website at http://www.asba.ab.ca/policies/strategic-plan.asp

Other news of note

Annual report and Value statement en route to school boards

The ASBA’s 2009-10 annual report is here: www.asba.ab.ca/files/pdf7asba_annual09.pdf
As a cost and environment saving measure, we are only producing an online version.

School boards will also receive a copy of the annual Valwe staterment which will detail how
much money that board spent on association services and the savings accrued as a result of
membership in the ASBA and use of ASBA services. For more information contact Heather
Rogers hrogers(@asba.ab.ca

Welcoming new trustees to school boards

See the ASBA website hitp://www.asba.ab.ca/files/pdf/nustee welcome.pdt for
information about the four orientation services the association is offering for new trustees.
These include the Guide to trusteeship and school boards handbook to be mailed to trustees
shortly after the October 18 election; a series of day-long orientation workshops in each of
the Zones; individual board planning and orientation sessions available at a school board’s
request and the new trustees and chairs workshop in January in Edmonton.

ASBA Board of Directors completes self-evaluation
The ASBA Board of Directors completed its annual self-evaluation. To receive a copy please
contact Marian Johnson at mjohnsonf@asba.ab.ca
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Nov. 4 and 5, 2010

ASBA Board of Directors Meeting

Board Highlights are circulated to the Board of Directors and ASBA staff after each board of
directors meeting. Directors are asked to circulate the highlights fo their respective
constituencies. See the ASBA website www.asba.ab.ca for board agendas, draft and official
minutes. For more information contact Marian Johnson at 1.780.451.7101.

ASBA to withdraw from the Canadian School Boards Association

The ASBA Board of Directors passed a motion to withdraw from the CSBA. The ASBA
pays $30,000 in membership fees to belong to the CSBA and additional expenses to send
representatives to CSBA board meetings. For more detail, see Heather Welwood’s Board
Chair’s e-mail #57.

Water damage biggest ticket item on school insurance claims: ASBIE

Water damage is the biggest ticket item for school board insurance claims, says trustee Caren
Mueller, who is chair of Alberta School Boards Insurance Exchange board. Mueller warned
the threat of water damage is only getting worse as old pipes under old schools fail. More
than half of Alberta’s 1,522 schools are over 40 years old. The ASBA Board of Directors
will work with ASBIE and its municipal partners to encourage the province to fix the aging
infrastructure before more damage 1s done.

Cooperation protocol with AB Urban Municipalities Association en route
The ASBA is close to finalizing a protocol with the organization representing Alberta
municipalities (AUMA). The protocol will formalize both organizations’ commitment to
work together on areas of shared interest.
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC AGENDA

November 30, 2010

To: Board of Trustees

From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools

Re: Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy
Purpose: Information and the Record

Governance Policy References: EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the
Board of Trustees
EL-13: Facilities
EL-14: Student Accommodation
EL-15: Transportation

Originator: Frank J. Coppinger, Superintendent, Facilities & Environmental Services

Resource Persons:  Calvin Davies, Director, Community Engagement & Operational Planning
Eugene Heeger, Director, Capital Planning & Development
Karen Barry, System Principal, Community Engagement & Operational
Planning
Brent Hughes, Manager, Capital & Urban Planning
Ingrid Schmidt, Senior Planner, Community Engagement & Operational
Planning

l. RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended:

THAT the Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy be
received for information and the record.

1. ISSUE

There is a need to have a Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities
Strategy that is flexible, adaptable and both informs and is informed by the following:



e Three-Year Education Plan e Three-Year Infrastructure Maintenance

e Three-Year System Student Renewal Plan
Accommodation Plan e Modular Accommodation Strategy
e Three-Year Capital & Three-Year e System Budget

Modernization Plans
BACKGROUND

In the past, Alberta Education has requested the annual filing of a Three Year School
Capital Plan and a Ten-Year Facilities Plan. These plans supported CBE’s requests for
provincial funding for new schools and school modernizations. They needed to be
adjusted annually to reflect changing circumstances, city growth and provincial funding
levels.

While there is no longer a requirement to file a Ten-Year School Facilities Plan with
Alberta Education, annually the CBE is required to present a Ten-Year School Facilities
Plan to Alberta Education upon request.

With the reorganization in Facilities and Environmental Services and the developmental
work undertaken by Capital Planning and Development Services and Community
Engagement and Operational Planning, Administration has developed a ten year strategy
that is inclusive of both student accommodation as well as facilities strategies. The
strategy is aligned with the Three-Year Education Plan, Three-Year Capital Plan, Three-
Year Modernization Plan, Three-Year Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal Plan and the
Three-Year System Student Accommodation Plan.

To effectively utilize space and resources by working towards an 80% system utilization
of facilities, the strategy provides a view to ten years into the future.

The Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy must reflect the
CBE’s mission, vision and values and support the advancement of the Ends statements,
Three-Year Education Plan and the system priority. The system priority in the CBE
Three-Year Education Plan is personalized learning and places the teacher and student in
the presence of content, at the center of CBE work.

The Public Education Leadership Project (PELP) at Harvard University in the Note on
PELP Conference Framework paper defines strategy as “strategy is the set of actions a
district deliberately takes to provide capacity and support to the instructional core with
the objective of raising student performance district wide. Strategy informs how the
people, activities and resources of a district work together to accomplish a collective
purpose”.

This Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy reflects this
definition as Administration has balanced the programming and learning needs of
students with CBE’s projected accommodation and facility challenges.



ANALYSIS

In actualizing the CBE Mission Statement “Educating Tomorrow’s Citizens Today” in
facilities that support quality learning, the strategy embodies kindergarten to grade twelve
learning continuums that take into account the changing needs of today’s learners,
curriculum changes and new initiatives. Over the next ten years, it is anticipated that
alternative programs such as science, language-based programs and Traditional Learning
Centres will require expansion opportunities across each of the Areas.

Learning is our central purpose, hence the strategy must be responsive to the changing
facility needs in order to support learning. It must be responsive to the learning needs
and interests of the students, which includes the desire for alternative programs, special
education, English language learners or curriculum advancements, and the development
of the Career and Technology Strategy.

In supporting students come first, the strategy endeavours to consider the needs of our
young learners, keeping youngest children closer to home. It factors in efficient and
effective transportation in a complex urban environment. The academic, social, physical
and emotional development of the various age groups of CBE students must be reflected
in the facilities strategy.

Serving the common good requires that the strategy reflect a fiscally responsible
approach to student accommodation and facilities. This is a delicate balance as a system
places rightfully, learning at the heart of its work, in an environment that is dependent on
other outside factors and influences such as:

Provincial economy

Board’s overall financial position

Capital funding decisions

Changing student demographics

City annexations

Expansion of full day kindergarten

Change in school utilization/capacity formula
Expansion of before and after school care
Impact of increased English language learners
Future direction for Aboriginal education

e New Career and Technologies Studies

e Expansion of alternative programs

Attachment | describes in detail, the Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and
Facilities Strategy, which guides the annual and three-year system student
accommodation and facilities planning for administration.



VI.

VII.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The financial impact is reflected annually in the Calgary Board of Education’s (CBE)
operational and capital budgeting process and is influenced by the Provincial budget,
funding announcements and overall provincial economic conditions.

The fiscal reality of the CBE’s overall financial position can be assessed and revised over
time because of the delay in annual funding announcements or other outside factors and
influences previously identified through the ten-year strategy.

IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

The ten-year strategy is flexible and dynamic. It is reviewed annually to reflect changing
student needs and the fiscal realities facing the CBE.

Administration’s challenge will be to achieve a target 80% space utilization system wide,
as new schools add capacities to the CBE system and as facilities age. As well, the
demand to modernize existing facilities to meet ever changing student needs and
curricular changes requires the expenditure of limited capital funds. To meet these
demands, careful consideration will need to be given to program consolidation that will
free up current assets for potential modernization, disposition and sale to increase capital
funds availability.

Administration refers regularly to the ten-year strategy in the development of the
system’s accommodation and capital planning needs and continually makes adjustments
to the strategy in an ever evolving system.

CONCLUSION

The Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy outlines how the
Calgary Board of Education will address both current and future student accommodation
and facility needs, with a target system wide utilization of 80% required for the effective
use of space and resources.

The strategy will be evaluated and revised on an annual basis.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON
CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Attachment I: Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy



Student
Accommodation
Planning is guided by
CBE’s Mission, Vision
and Values

Mission

“Educating
Tomorrow’s Citizens
Today”

Vision

The Calgary Board of
Education is the
dynamic learning
community of choice

Values
Students come first

Learning is our
central purpose

Public education
serves the common
good

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
INTRODUCTION

The Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy
(2010-2019) reflects the CBE’s mission, vision and values and supports the
advancement of CBE’s Ends statements, the Three Year Education Plan
and the system priority of personalized learning.

The following documents collectively impact and are influenced by the
ten-year system student accommodation and facilities strategy, but also
stand independently to guide the annual and three year planning for
Community Engagement and Operational Planning (CEOP) and Capital
Planning and Development Services:

Education

System Student Accommaodation
School Capital & Modernization
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal
Modular Accommodation Strategy
System Budget

Further detailed information may be found on the CBE’s website at
www.cbe.ab.ca

PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT’S PRIORITIES

The Provincial Government’s Alberta’s 20 Year Strategic Capital Plan
communicates a vision that is consistent with the District’s school building
needs, as the Province strives towards maintaining and improving existing
schools. To ensure delivery of quality education to Alberta students, the
Provincial Government sets out the following four key objectives:

e Locate schools close to where students live, particularly including
schools in high growth new communities, to meet the growth in
Alberta’s student-aged population.

e Support increased opportunities for career and technology studies
(CTS) through the development of regional skill centres and mobile
career and technology studies labs.

e Continue to support and use steel-framed modular classrooms to
provide flexibility and respond to growing student populations.

e Increase the capital maintenance and renewal investments to ensure
that the quality of Alberta schools is maintained.

These long range provincial objectives are important to the Calgary Board
of Education and will be used in conjunction with the goals and objectives
of the District to manage facilities and request funding for capital projects.

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment” Introduction — Page 1
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
CBE’S PLANNING PRINCIPLES

The Calgary Board of Education is currently divided into five
administrative areas. Within these areas, the CBE offers educational choice
through the provision of a broad range of programs in a variety of settings.

A framework has been developed to address the long term student needs
issue within the District’s Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and
Facilities Strategy 2010-2019. This strategy includes the following guiding
principles for planning school facilities:

e Equitable Access to Quality Learning Environments and Choice of
Programs — all students are entitled to equity of access to high quality,
modern facilities for regular programs, alternative programs and special
education classes, regardless of where they live in the city.

e Student Accommodation and Programming Needs within Areas —
the District will ensure that there are sufficient schools and programs in
each Area to accommodate student demand, reducing the need for
students to travel long distances to access programs.

e Creative Use of Surplus Space and Retention of Schools in Mature
Neighbourhoods — the District will continue to work towards retention
of schools in mature neighbourhoods, by reducing unused space in
creative ways.

UTILIZATION

The Calgary Board of Education’s current utilization rate by enrolment is
78.8%. The CBE is working toward a system wide utilization rate of 80%
which is desired for not only the efficient use of space and plant operations
and maintenance but also to provide flexibility to be responsive to a variety
of student programming and learning needs. An 80% utilization rate,
system wide, is a delicate balance between revenue, fixed costs, variable
costs, levels of service and facility functionality with respect to teaching
and learning. Hence, CBE Administration has developed a long-term (ten-
year) system student accommodation and facilities strategy, which
addresses the learning needs of current and future students with a direction
toward 80% utilization.

NEW CAPACITY

By 2013, the District’s capacity will increase by 10,250 student spaces with
the opening of six elementary schools (3,350), four middle schools (3,600)
and two senior high schools (3,300). As a consequence of the new capacity
in new growth areas, the amount of unused or excess space in the City’s
mature neighbourhood schools will increase.

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment” Introduction — Page 2

Opening 2010
Royal Oak
Saddle Ridge
West Springs
Evergreen
Bridlewood
Cranston

Opening 2011
Ernest Manning High

Opening 2012
Panorama Hills
Tuscany
Coventry Hills
Taradale

Opening 2013
North-West High
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

With the continued focus on providing schools where students live, funding
for new schools in new and developing neighbourhoods will be required.

EXCESS CAPACITY

A comprehensive strategy to reduce excess capacity in light of new
capacity is needed, recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature
neighbourhoods. Student accommodation needs are identified by the
Department of Community Engagement and Operational Planning, Area
Directors and Directors of Special Education and Diversity.

SUMMARY

A summary by Area of new student capacity (approved and required) and
excess capacity is as follows:

New New
Capacity Capacity Required Excess
Areas Approved but not Approved Capacity
| 2,950 1,500 2,800
I 1,800 2,700 4,100
Il 1,450 3,300 1,600
v 2,350 3,000 2,400
\% 1,700 8,200 1,400
Total 10,250 18,700 12,300
Total New Capacity 28,950
Excess Capacity -12,300
Net Capacity Increase 16,650

,
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

CBE’s utilization rate is projected to be at approximately 80% by 2019
assuming that enrolment continues to increase, the Province continues to
approve new schools and existing capacity is reduced.

150,000
125,000
100,000
75,000
50,000
25,000

Projected Utilization by 2019

80.5% 80.8%
) £

OTotal Capacity

OBy Residence

OBy Enrolment

By
Residence

By :
Enrolment

The following table provides a breakdown of projected utilization by Area.
Area utilization by residence identifies the number of students residing in
an Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity. Area utilization by
enrolment in schools identifies the number of students attending schools in
an Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity.

Projected by 2019

Enrolment by Enrolment in

Areas Capacity Residence Utilization Schools Utilization

[ 20,731 19,251 92.9% 17,077 82.4%

Il 28,354 20,475 72.2% 25,325 89.3%

1 27,541 25,076 91.0% 21,651 78.6%

v 24,897 16,480 66.2% 17,993 72.3%

V 41,226 33,614 81.5% 33,325 80.8%

Sub-Total 142,749 114,896 80.5% 115,371 80.8%

Non-Resident 475 -

Chinook Learning 2,500 2,500
CBe-learn 680 680
Total 142,749 118,551 118,551

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment”

Introduction — Page 4



The top ten developing
communities to receive
residential building permit
applications in The City of
Calgary for 2009 were:

* Aspen Woods

Panorama Hills

New Brighton

Silverado

Evanston

Copperfield

Auburn Bay

Cranston

Royal Oak

McKenzie Towne
(Source: Suburban Residential

Growth 2009-2013, p.30)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

CITY OF CALGARY POPULATION

The City of Calgary’s report, Calgary and Region Socio-Economic
Outlook 2009-2014 (October 2009), identifies continued strong growth for
Calgary. The City forecast indicates the total population of Calgary will
reach 1,184,000 in 2014, an increase of 118,545 persons from the
1,065,455 total as at April 2009 by the Civic Census. The five-year
population forecast to 2014 represents an average increase of 23,709
persons per year during this period.

Calgary's Actual and Projected Population
2004-2019
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The graph above indicates an increase in population of approximately
213,000 persons by 2019. The City of Calgary projects that new suburbs
will likely capture 100% of Calgary’s expected population gain over the
next ten years.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Extrapolating from these City forecasts, the following population increases
for suburban locations were prepared to determine populations by CBE’s
Administrative Areas:

City Growth Trends by CBE Areas .

by 2019
. Sl JT]
% il
Area Population Forecast (Mid) N
sy

Low Mid High =g |
[ 17,000 17,600 18,200 8.7%
Il 35,300 38,250 41,200 18.8%
1l 28,900 30,550 32,200 15.0% s
|\ 15,300 16,750 18,200  8.2% Vi
\ 95,400 100,200 105,000 49.3%
Total 191,900 203,350 214,800 100.0%

l

CITY OF CALGARY ANNEXATION

Annexation of land provides the CBE insight into the direction in which
the City will be developing and where new municipal communities and
school populations will be located in the future. Since 2003, a total of 130
km? of land has been annexed, which will provide for a large share of the
City’s future growth, and that will ultimately accommodate in excess of
400,000 Calgary residents.

Discussions with the Province have indicated that the annexed lands will
become part of the CBE boundary, as development warrants over time.

STUDENT ENROLMENT

As part of the budgeting process, the District prepares an annual
enrolment projection using external demographic data and a review Mega End
of historical and current enrolment data. This projection is prepared Each student, in keeping
for the District as a whole, and on a school-by-school basis. City of with his or her
Calgary census data is used extensively to monitor pre-school individual abilities and
populations and residency data, while historical and current gifts, will complete high
enrolment data is used to project enrolments into the future. school with a
foundation of learning
Student enrolment is projected to increase by 16,175 students (16%) to function effectively in
over the next decade. Most of the enrolment growth is anticipated in life, work and continued
Areas Il, Il and V. learning.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Enrolment below is a student count by residence which makes no
allowance for kindergarten at full-time equivalent or special education
students at 3:1. Current enrolment is as of September 30, 2009 and
projected is for September 2019.

Area Current  Projected Change
I 18,008 19,251 1,243
I 17,166 20,475 3,309
" 22,982 25,076 2,094
v 15,154 16,480 1,326
Vv 25,460 33,614 8,154
Sub-Total 98,770 114,896 16,126
Non-Resident 474 475 1
Chinook Learning 2,447 2,500 53
CBe-learn 685 680 -5
Total 102,376 118,551 16,175

ANALYSIS BY ADMINISTRATIVE AREAS

For the purpose of the Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and
Facilities Strategy 2010-2019, an analysis by Administrative Areas
includes:

e population data for new and
developing communities

e current and projected
utilization rates

e student accommodation
strategy

e facility condition assessment

e modernization needs

e modular strategy

/A Annexed Area
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

AREA |

CRM

1.1  Population

Area | is comprised of 26 communities located in the northwest part of the
City. Within Area I, many communities closest to the City core are
experiencing slow or declining growth, whereas the new and developing
areas are experiencing high growth rates.

The new and developing communities are expected to increase
approximately 8,740-8,900 residents over the next five years.

New and Occupied Projected % Build-Out
Developing 2009 Projected Housing Housing Based On
Community Population ~ Population Units Units Housing Units

Crestmont 1,382 1,600 428 500 86%
Nolan Hill 0 9,900 1 3,610 0%
Rocky Ridge 6,882 8,200 2,651 3,160 84%
Royal Oak 10,423 11,500 3,588 3,820 94%
Sherwood 1,553 6,550 424 2,340 18%
Tuscany 18,272 19,100 6,228 6,570 95%
Valley Ridge 4,979 5,100 1,690 1,790 94%
Total | 43,491 61,950 15,010 21,790
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
1.2 Utilization

A summary of Area utilization by enrolment and residence follows. Area
utilization by “residence” identifies the number of students residing in an
Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students attending unique settings and outreach programs). Area utilization
by “enrolment” identifies the number of students attending schools in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students outside of CBE’s boundary).

The graph below represents the utilization rate as of September 30, 2009
using the provincial formula. The provincial formula is based on square
metres of space, exemptions for full-time leases and administrative use, and
weighted enrolment, which makes allowance for kindergarten at full-time
equivalent and special education students at 3:1. In Area I, there are
168,367 square metres of operating school space accommodating 15,694
full-time equivalent students.

Current
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Projected Capacity
Includes:

Additional Capacity
Approved

Royal Oak k-4 (550)

Tuscany 5-9 (900)

Northwest 10-12
(1500)

Additional Capacity
Not Approved

RockyRidge/RoyalOak
5-9 (900)

Tuscany (2) k-4 (600)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

City of Calgary population growth in Area | is projected to increase
between 17,000-18,200 people capturing 8.7% of the growth in new and
developing areas over the next decade.

The graph below represents the projected utilization rate for the 2019-2020
school year. Projected capacity includes new schools in the new and
developing communities and assumes closures in communities with excess
capacity (see section 1.3). Projection by enrolment assumes current
attendance patterns, which are subject to annual review and update.

Projected
Area | Utilization - 2019-2020
25,000
| 92,9%
20,000 £ —1 82_f1-_°{6 OProjected Capacity
= | DBy Residence
15,000 & A OBy Enrolment
e o = r~
10,000 £ | S & S
- om & = =
5,000 £
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o
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1.3 Capacity

Areas have been divided into four categories — A: additional capacity, B: status quo, C: capacity reduction,
D: industrial/undeveloped. Residential districts with excess capacity have been identified using CBE’s
planning principles recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature neighbourhoods. Communities
with potential excess capacity are analyzed in detail following the map.

E= A Additional Capacity
& - D B: Status Quo
Srem i ki i D C: Capacity Reduction
* | D D: Industrial/Undeveloped
- - - - -
: [ School Type*
i B Elementary
| &  Elementary/Junior or Middle
{ )
G it it A Junior High
®  Senior High
L L7 _”"'I *  Future School (Approved)
®  Future School (Not Approved)
| adoivpmae——t—1 1L L 1 NS 7 e wowox o xowowow w41 L L L 1 1 *As of September 30, 2009
Royal Oak MAMPTONS
: 3 CITADEL
| & | RovaL gk C’[adf'! Fark The Ha__r_i_nptons
Rocky Ridge/Royal Dak i
Middla
Tuscany (2)
Elementary A!bou‘r il Neffwes Tom Baines
i 4 ! | ARBCAIR LAKE ot T v ! o R N (6 |
FenorHH - Hawkwood i
. Edgemaont
HAWKINOOD 5
Tuseany Middls
] * - EDGEMONT
RANCHLANDS
| Tuscany | | ibclands ™ g | L 11
| | y
Tuscany | £CENIG ACRES. wo. Mfch@l HD, Cartwrigh
g Wiest Dalhousish
3 oalhoUsiE )
Silver Springs Dalrﬁume
B Dr E
SILVER SPRINGS o
VARSITY aser
Captain John Palliseg, e
FE. WooD
VALLEY RIDGE Belvedere-Parkway Osbome BRENTWOOD
= e AR varsity Acred
TREE e ol
Be
Thomas B
Riley
ONIVERSITY OF CALGARY
Terrace Road
WONTGOMERY B THAME
A UERSITY @
Montgomery Uniygess
ST ANDREWS HEIGHTH
Additional VACKAY < PARKDALE
Current Additional | Capacity Potential Future
Provincial | Capacity Not Capacity Capacity nest
HILLHURS'
Category | Capacity | Approved | Approved | Reduction | (2019-20)
A 2,986 2,950 1,500 7,436
B 5,150 5,150
Cc 10,945 (2,800) 8,145
TOTAL 19,081 2,950 1,500 (2,800) 20,731

Potential capacity reduction is over the time period 2010-2019
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System Student
Accommodation

Planning Criteria

balance among
equity, access,

excellence and
choice

minimum
disruption

learning
continuum

schools and
programs in
the right places

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Sir William Van Horne High School is located in University Heights. The
school has been approved to close on June 30, 2011. The provincial
capacity of Sir William Van Horne High School is 965 student spaces.

There are two elementary schools in the residential district of Silver
Springs that accommodate kindergarten to grade six students. One school
is needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program
students over the long term.

There are five schools in the residential districts of Bowness and
Montgomery that accommodate kindergarten to grade nine students. Three
schools are needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade nine regular
program students over the long term.

There are two elementary schools in the residential districts of Brentwood
and Charleswood that accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular
program students. One school is needed to accommodate kindergarten to
grade six regular program students over the long term.

Area | Alternative Programs with Enrolment of 100+ Students
Traditional Learning Centres — Brentwood and Thomas B. Riley
French Immersion — Varsity Acres

Spanish Bilingual — Dalhousie

German Bilingual — Bowcroft, Thomas B. Riley

Montessori — Captain John Palliser

Expansion of existing alternative programs and new alternative programs
will be considered on an annual basis.

Area | Specialized Programs with Enrolment of 50+ Students
Start Outreach

West View Secondary

Wood’s Homes
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

14 Facility Condition Assessment

25
Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process (RECAPP) 0
The Province undertakes a rolling condition assessment 2 *°
of CBE schools on a five-year-basis as part of the &0
RECAPP. The RECAPP audits evaluate architectural, 5
mechanical, electrical, and other components of facilities. .

A summary listing of the RECAPP overall condition
rating of schools in Area I are shown in the chart.

Area |

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Arbour Lake 820 98% 2007 Not Rated
Belvedere Bungalow 25 Leased 1932 Acceptable
Belvedere-Parkway 615 82% 1957 Acceptable
Bowcroft 498 64% 1952 Acceptable
Bowness 1,525 91% 1955 Marginal
Brentwood 645 110% 1962 Acceptable
Captain John Palliser 603 65% 1964 Acceptable
Citadel Park 473 93% 2006 Not Rated
Dalhousie 532 90% 1970 Acceptable
Dr. E.W. Coffin 204 82% 1974 Acceptable
Edgemont 631 99% 1990 Acceptable
F.E. Oshorne 780 85% 1967 Acceptable
H.D. Cartwright 534 78% 1971 Acceptable
Hamptons, The 209 81% 1999 Good
Hawkwood 614 80% 1992 Good
Jerry Potts 391 Leased 1971 Acceptable
Marion Carson 504 95% 1968 Acceptable
Montgomery 742 48% 1953 Poor
Parkdale 718 Admin 1954 Acceptable
Ranchlands 585 64% 1980 Acceptable
Scenic Acres 175 105% 2005 Not Rated
Silver Springs 309 61% 1976 Acceptable
Simon Fraser 663 103% 1964 Marginal
Sir William Van Horne 965 46% 1967 Acceptable
Sir Winston Churchill 2,015 100% 1968 Acceptable
Terrace Road 301 45% 1952 Acceptable
Thomas B. Riley 664 56% 1967 Acceptable

Number of Facilities

Condition Rating

Good
Meets all present

requirements; no deficiencies.

Acceptable

Meets present requirements,

has minor deficiencies.

Average

operating/maintenance costs.

Marginal

Meets minimum requirements;

has significant deficiencies.

May have above average

operating maintenance costs.

Poor

Does not meet requirements,
has significant deficiencies.

May have high

operating/maintenance costs.

Critical

Unsafe; high risk of injury or

critical system failure.

Not Rated

Not Rated by RECAPP.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Area |

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP

School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Tom Baines 714 116% 1996 Good
Tuscany 612 101% 2006 Not Rated
University 759 45% 1967 Acceptable
Varsity Acres 580 87% 1965 Acceptable
W.O. Mitchell 505 51% 1977 Good

West Dalhousie 373 88% 1976 Good

15 Modernization Needs

7
There are currently 33 facilities in Area I, 17 of these facilities are 40 years
old or older.
# of Schools in Area l
by Decade
Bowness High School 2
20
.
§ 15
?j 10
o 10
* 7
g 6
51 - 5 8 ;
o ‘ _®1 5]
E 8 0§ 8§ § § §
Decade

Bowness High School and Thomas B. Riley School have been identified
for major modernizations in the School Capital Plan (2011-2014).

Cost

Priority School Project Description (2009 prices)

2 Bowness Upgrades to facility site, building envelope, $29 million
interior spaces, mechanical, and electrical
systems, barrier free

5 Thomas B. Riley | Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and $14 million
electrical systems
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

1.6 Modular Units

As part of the Three-Year Modular Accommodation Strategy the following
are planned to be undertaken for Area | schools:

e Demolish three portables at Dalhousie School and replace with four
new modular units.

e Demolish three portables at Ranchlands School without replacement.

e Demolish two portables at H.D. Cartwright School without
replacement.

Future new modular units, modular moves, and demolitions in this Area Arbour Lake School
will be on an as required basis.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

AREAI
W%E
S

2.1  Population

Area Il is comprised of 39 residential communities located in the northern
area of the City. Within Area IlI, many communities closest to the City
core are experiencing slow or declining growth, whereas the new and

developing areas are experiencing high growth rates.

The new and developing communities are expected to

increase

approximately 19,800-23,700 new residents over the next five years.

Occupied Projected % Build-Out
New and Developing 2009 Projected Housing Housing Based On
Community Population ~ Population Units Units Housing Units

Country Hills 3,684 4,600 1,412 1,420 99%
Coventry Hills/Country 17,899 16,600 6,389 6,890 93%
Hills Village

Evanston 4599 19,350 1,476 6,980 21%
Kincora 3,385 6,950 1,075 2,350 46%
Panorama Hills 16,444 24,950 5,092 8,630 59%

Sage Hill 267 19,050 97 7,740 1%
Total 46,278 91,500 9,152 34,010

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
2.2 Utilization

A summary of Area utilization by enrolment and residence follows. Area
utilization by “residence” identifies the number of students residing in an
Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students attending unique settings and outreach programs). Area utilization
by “enrolment” identifies the number of students attending schools in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students outside of CBE’s boundary).

The graph below represents the utilization rate as of September 30, 2009
using the provincial formula. The provincial formula is based on square
metres of space, exemptions for full-time leases and administrative use, and
weighted enrolment, which makes allowance for kindergarten at full-time
equivalent and special education students at 3:1. In Area Il, there are
266,649 square metres of operating school space accommodating 22,275
full-time equivalent students.

Current

Area Il Utilization - 2009-2010

30,000

79.7%
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25,000 O Current Capacity
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22275
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Current
Capacity
By e
Residence |
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Enrolment |
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Projected Capacity
Includes:

Additional Capacity
Approved

Coventry Hills 5-9
(900)

Panorama Hills 5-9
(900)

Additional Capacity
Not Approved

Evanston k-4 (600)

Kincora k-4 (600)

Panorama Hills (2)
k-4 (600)

Evanston 5-9 (900)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

City of Calgary population growth in Area Il is projected to increase
between 35,300-41,200 people capturing 18.8% of the total growth in the
new and developing areas over the next decade.

The graph below represents the projected utilization rate for the 2019-2020
school year. Projected capacity includes new schools in the new and
developing communities and assumes closures in communities with excess
capacity (see section 2.3). Projection by enrolment assumes current
attendance patterns, which are subject to annual review and update.
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2.3 Capacity

Areas have been divided into four categories — A: additional capacity, B: status quo, C: capacity reduction,
D: industrial/undeveloped. Residential districts with excess capacity have been identified using CBE’s
planning principles recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature neighbourhoods. Communities
with potential excess capacity are analyzed in detail following the map.

EvamsTON
Calgary Bosrd o Educaion | sapsmiy | E Eie 1
Middle | |
- ¥ x
T Evanston i Panorama Hills 2y | Coventry Hiis
. Elamentary ! | ! | i
Kincora ® PANORAMA HILLS CMIEY |
Eleme;'lﬁw | | ?anora:'la Hiis | COVENTRY HiLLS
s COUMTRY HILLS
i g ¢ VILLAGE

HIDDEM VALLEY

Hidden Valleym &
Valley Creek

H&HVEE‘Y HILLS I
Simons Valley
]
SANDSTONE VALLEY
Beddinglon'ﬂeig'nls
e School Type*

®  Elementary

EEDOINGTON HEIGHTS

Elementary/Juniar or Middle

[T A: Additional Gapacity

D B: Status Quo
E C: Capacity Reduction
] o: industriatundeveloped

Junior High

®
A
®  Junior Senior
®  Senior High
Future School (Approved)

*
¥ Future School (Not Approved)
“As of September 30, 2009

- 1
Vista Heightsf
VISTA HEIGHTS
MAYLAND HEIGHTS
Beifast

[ Briar Hill (]

Heights RENFREW

Queen Elizabeth ¥ nin ey Jogs Sir John Frankiin
Hfl‘lh o HEIGHTS g
] ul 0
Loujsa & ] Bumysige
Langevyin
®pgan  @ueen Elizabeth g il

WEST HILLHURST
HILLHURST

BRIDGELANDRIVERSIDE

Additional
Current Additional | Capacity Potential Future
Provincial Capacity Not Capacity Capacity
Category | Capacity | Approved | Approved | Reduction | (2019-20)
A 1,115 1,800 2,700 5,615
B 6,768 6,768
Cc 20,071 (4,100) 15,971
TOTAL 27,954 1,800 2,700 (4,100) 28,354

Potential capacity reduction is over the time period 2010-2019
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

There are three elementary schools in the residential districts of Mayland
Heights and Vista Heights. Two schools will be needed to accommodate
kindergarten to grade six regular program students over the long term.

There are four elementary schools in the residential districts of Rosemont
Capitol Hill, North Haven and Cambrian Heights that accommodate
regular program students. Two schools will be needed to accommodate
kindergarten to grade six regular program students over the long term.

There are four elementary schools in the residential districts of Hillhurst,
West Hillhurst, Briar Hill and Sunnyside that accommodate regular
program students. Three schools will be needed to accommodate
kindergarten to grade six regular program students over the long term.

There are four elementary schools in the residential district of Huntington
Hills that accommodate regular program students. Two schools will be
needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program students
over the long term.

There are three junior high schools offering French Immersion
programming in Area Il and none in Area I. There may be an opportunity
to accommodate Area | junior high students in an Area | school which
would result in excess capacity in Area Il schools.

There are five high schools in Area Il. When the northwest high school
opens in Area | and the northeast high school opens in Area Ill, there will
be excess capacity in Area Il high schools.

Area Il Alternative Programs with Enrolment of 100+ Students

Science - Langevin

Traditional Learning Centres - Thorncliffe, Colonel Sanders, Highwood,
Balmoral, Crescent Heights

French Immersion — Banff Trail, Hidden Valley, Highwood, King George,
Mayland Heights, Valley Creek, Georges P. Vanier, Branton, William Aberhart
Spanish Bilingual — Collingwood, Senator Patrick Burns, William Aberhart
Arts Centred Learning — Sir John Franklin, James Fowler

Expansion of existing alternative programs and new alternative programs will be
considered on an annual basis.

Area |l Specialized Programs with Enrolment of 50+ Students
Louise Dean

Children’s Village

Christine Meikle
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

2.4  Facility Condition Assessment

Area ll
Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process (RECAPP) 2
40
35
The Province undertakes a rolling condition assessment of ch
CBE schools on a five-year-basis as part of the RECAPP. 2 ‘;.
The RECAPP audits evaluate architectural, mechanical, &z
electrical, and other components of facilities. A summary T
listing of the RECAPP overall condition rating of schools SN e 0 F
in Area Il are shown in the chart. H £ E : B 2
2 £ = = £ 2
] Q -
P :
Number of Facilities
2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built | Rating
Alex Munro 410 74% 1971 | Acceptable
Balmoral Bungalow 56 Admin 1913 | Not Rated
Balmoral 641 90% 1913 | Acceptable - .
) Condition Rating
Banff Trail 406 75% 1959 | Acceptable
Beddington Heights 545 66% 1980 | Acceptable Good
Belfast 251 85% 1960 | Acceptable Meet.s all pre§ent S
requirements; no deficiencies.
Branton 764 94% 1956 | Acceptable
Briar Hill 301 63% 1954 Acceptable Acceptable .
Meets present requirements,
Buchanan 303 52% 1950 | Acceptable has minor deficiencies.
Cambrian Heights 383 100% 1957 | Acceptable Average
Capitol Hil 302 65% 1950 | Acceptable operating/maintenance costs.
Catherine Nichols Gunn 413 97% 1972 | Acceptable Marginal
Christine Meikle 188 126% 1957 | Acceptable Meets minimum requirements;
Collingwood 552 65% 1959 | Acceptable has Slgnlflcam deficiencies.
May have above average
Colonel Irvine 903 72% 1956 | Acceptable operating maintenance costs.
Colonel Macleod 686 69% 1956 | Acceptable
Colonel Sanders 301 129% 1955 | Acceptable 007 .
Does not meet requirements,
Coventry Hills 637 81% 2005 Not Rated has Signiﬁcam deficiencies.
Crescent Heights 2,150 76% 1928 | Acceptable May hf_ive hig'h
Dr. J.K. Mulloy 501 59% 1969 | Acceptable operatlng/malntenance CTEE,
Georges P. Vanier 685 59% 1960 | Marginal Critical
Greenview 607 Leased 1961 Acceptable Un;afe; hlgh ”Sk, of Injury or
critical system failure.
Hidden Valley 383 118% 2003 Not Rated
Highwood 350 90% 1966 | Acceptable Not Rated
. Not Rated by RECAPP.
Hillhurst 404 47% 1912 Acceptable
Huntington Hills 319 64% 1968 | Acceptable
James Fowler 1,980 79% 1962 | Acceptable
John G. Diefenbaker 1,300 113% 1971 | Acceptable
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built | Rating
King George 656 72% 1912 Good
Langevin 666 86% 1955 | Acceptable
Louise Dean 210 105% 1954 | Acceptable
Mayland Heights 517 80% 1967 Acceptable
Mount View 209 67% 1946 Acceptable
North Haven 411 73% 1964 | Acceptable
Panorama Hills 478 60% 2009 Not Rated
Queen Elizabeth 372 47% 1930 Good
Queen Elizabeth High 1,405 85% 1957 Good
Renfrew 324 38% 1954 Not Rated
Riverside Bungalow 55 Admin 1913 Not Rated
Rosedale 216 113% 1955 Good
Rosemont 269 48% 1959 | Acceptable
Senator Patrick Burns 955 53% 1961 Acceptable
Simons Valley 610 84% 1991 | Acceptable
Sir John A. Macdonald 905 90% 1966 | Acceptable
Sir John Franklin 640 55% 1965 Acceptable
Stanley Jones 616 71% 1913 | Acceptable
Sunnyside 255 50% 1919 Acceptable
Thorncliffe 232 91% 1957 Acceptable
Tuxedo Park 475 Admin 1912 [ Not Rated
Valley Creek 896 90% 2003 Not Rated
Vista Heights 214 69% 1964 | Acceptable
William Aberhart 1,601 93% 1957 | Acceptable

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

25 Modernization Needs

There are 52 facilities in Area 11, 43 of these facilities are 40 years old or older.

# of Schools in Areal ll
by Decade
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In Area I, the following modernization projects have been identified in the
School Capital Plan (2011-2014):

Cost
Priority School Project Description (2009 prices)

8 Senator Patrick Burns | Upgrades to building envelope, interior spaces, mechanical and $14 million
electrical systems, barrier-free (elevator)

12 James Fowler Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and electrical systems $29 million
upgrades, hazardous material abatement

16 Dr. J.K. Mulloy Upgrades to facility site, building envelope, interior spaces, $7.5 million
mechanical, and electrical systems, security and safety elements of
facility, barrier free items

17 Christine Meikle Upgrades to interior spaces specially focused on barrier free usability $7.5 million

19 Sir John A. Macdonald | Upgrades to facility site, building envelope, interior spaces, $14 million
mechanical, and electrical systems, hazardous material abatement

2.6 Modular Units

As part of the Three-Year Modular Accommodation Strategy (2010-2013),
the following are planned to be undertaken for Area Il schools:

o Demolish four portables at John G. Diefenbaker High School and
replace with four new modular units.

Future new modular units, modular moves, and demolitions in this Area
will be on an as required basis.

Panorama Hills School
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

AREA 11
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3.1  Population

Area Il is comprised of 24 residential communities located in the
northeast and east area of the City. Within Area IlI, many of the
established communities are experiencing slow or declining growth,
whereas the new and developing areas are experiencing high growth rates.

The new and developing communities are expected to increase 13,700-
15,000 residents over the next five years.

New and Occupied Projected % Build-Out
Developing 2009 Projected Housing Housing Based On
Community Population Population Units Units Housing Units

East Annexation 0 3,700 0 1,215 0%

Northpoint — Other 0 21,750 0 7,250 0%

Saddle Ridge 12,255 23,050 3,116 7,890 40%

Skyview Ranch 26 29,150 11 11,730 0%

Taradale 14515 15,250 3,886 4,490 87%
Total | 26,796 92,900 7,013 32,575
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
3.2 Utilization

A summary of Area utilization by enrolment and residence follows. Area
utilization by “residence” identifies the number of students residing in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students attending unique settings and outreach programs). Area utilization
by “enrolment” identifies the number of students attending schools in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students outside of CBE’s boundary).

The graph below represents the utilization rate as of September 30, 2009
using the provincial formula. The provincial formula is based on square
metres of space, exemptions for full-time leases and administrative use, and
weighted enrolment which makes allowance for kindergarten at full-time
equivalent and special education students at 3:1. In Area Ill, there are
215,470 square metres of operating school space accommodating 19,827
full-time equivalent students.
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Projected Capacity
Includes:

Additional Capacity
Approved

Saddle Ridge k-3 (550)

Taradale 5-9 (900)

Additional Capacity
Not Approved

Saddle Ridge 5-9 (900)

Northeast High 10-12
(1800)

Martindale (2) k-4
(600)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

City of Calgary population growth in Area Ill is projected to increase
between 28,900 and 32,200 people capturing 15.0% of the total growth in
new and developing areas over the next decade.

The graph below represents the projected utilization rate for the 2019-2020
school year. Projected capacity includes new schools in the new and
developing communities and assumes closures in communities with excess
capacity (see section 3.3). Projection by enrolment assumes current
attendance patterns which are subject to annual review and update.
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3.3 Capacity

Areas have been divided into four categories — A: additional capacity, B: status quo, C: capacity reduction,
D: industrial/undeveloped. Residential districts with excess capacity have been identified using CBE’s
planning principles recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature neighbourhoods. Communities
with potential excess capacity are analyzed in detail following the map.
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Additional
Current Additional | Capacity Potential Future
Provincial Capacity Not Capacity Capacity
Category | Capacity | Approved | Approved | Reduction | (2019-20)
A 1,669 1,450 3,300 6,419
B 7,738 7,738
Cc 14,984 (1,600) 13,384
TOTAL 24,391 1,450 3,300 (1,800) 27,541

Potential capacity reduction is over the time period 2010-2019
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System Student
Accommodation

Planning Criteria

balance among
equity, access,

excellence and
choice

minimum
disruption

learning
continuum

schools and
programs in
the right
places

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

There are two elementary schools in the residential districts of Forest Lawn
and Forest Heights that accommodate kindergarten to grade six students.
One school is needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular
program students over the long term.

There are three elementary schools in the residential district of Penbrooke
Meadows that accommodate kindergarten to grade six students. Two
schools are needed to accommodate Kkindergarten to grade six regular
program students over the long term.

There are two elementary schools in the residential district of Whitehorn
that accommodate kindergarten to grade six students. One school is needed
to accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program students over
the long term.

There are two elementary schools in the residential district of Temple that
accommodate kindergarten to grade six students. One school is needed to
accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program students over the
long term.

Area Ill Alternative Programs with Enrolment of 100+ Students
Traditional Learning Centres — Chris Akkerman, Sir Wilfrid Laurier
French Immersion — Bob Edwards, Lester B. Pearson

Expansion of existing alternative programs and new alternative programs
will be considered on an annual basis.

Area |1l Specialized Programs with Enrolment of 50+ Students
Discovering Choices Il
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Area Il — Page 5




Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

3.4 Facility Condition Assessment

Area lll
Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process (RECAPP) 20
35 34

The Province undertakes a rolling condition 801
assessment of CBE schools on a five-year-basis as part 2 22
of the RECAPP. The RECAPP audits evaluate & 5.
architectural, mechanical, electrical, and other 101 .
components of facilities. A summary listing of the 3;7 o 0 S B
RECAPP overall condition rating of schools in Area 3 2 E 5 3 3
[11 are shown in the chart. o 2 g & 5 &

2 b=

Number of Facilities
Area lll

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Abbeydale 450 87% 1980 Acceptable
Annie Foote 473 68% 1980 Acceptable
Annie Gale 747 85% 1983 [ Acceptable - _
Condition Rating
Bob Edwards 564 90% 1971 Acceptable
Cappy Smart 402 62% 1978 | Acceptable Good .
Cecil Swanson 423 80% 1980 Acceptable Mems.a.l ! pn.asem requirements;
no deficiencies.
Chief Justice Milvain 492 80% 1981 Acceptable
Chris Akkerman 414 132% 1973 Acceptable Acceptable .
Meets present requirements,
Clarence Sansom 747 80% 1982 | Acceptable has minor deficiencies
Colonel J. Fred Scott 446 98% 1976 | Acceptable Average
Crossing Park 1,029 107% 2002 | NotRated operating/maintenance costs.
Douglas Harkness 352 68% 1976 Acceptable Marginal
Dr. Gladys M. Egbert 695 62% 1976 | Acceptable Meets minimum requirements;
Dr. Gordon Higgins 614 79% 1976 Acceptable has Slgmflcam deficiencies.
May have above average
Erin Woods 479 85% 1982 Acceptable Operating maintenance costs.
Ernest Morrow 964 68% 1963 Acceptable
. Poor
Falconridge 546 96% 1980 | Acceptable ]
Does not meet requirements,
Forest Lawn 2,216 7% 1968 Acceptable has signiﬁcant deficiencies.
G.W. Skene 417 61% 1978 | Acceptable May h{ive hig'h
rating/maintenan 5
Grant MacEwan 575 89% 1988 | Acceptable operafing/maintenance costs
Guy Weadick 418 71% 1973 | Acceptable Critical
Harold W. Riley 310 Admin 1972 Acceptable Ur_]_safE; hlgh ”Sk_ of Injury or
_ critical system failure.
lan Bazalgette* 662 63% 1960 Marginal
Jack James 885 87% 1980 | Acceptable Not Rated
Not Rated by RECAPP.
James Short Memorial 423 80% 1972 Acceptable y
Keeler 344 89% 1962 Acceptable
Lester B. Pearson 1,715 90% 1989 Acceptable
Marlborough 494 91% 1968 | Acceptable
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Areal lll

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Monterey Park 626 98% 2003 Not Rated
Mountain View 421 Leased 1958 | Acceptable
0.S. Geiger 483 93% 1983 | Acceptable
Patrick Airlie 246 90% 1957 | Acceptable
Penbrooke Meadows 376 63% 1971 Acceptable
Pineridge 432 68% 1978 Good
Radisson Park 400 74% 2006 Not Rated
Roland Michener 372 60% 1976 | Acceptable
Rundle 482 88% 1978 | Acceptable
Sir Wilfrid Laurier 593 71% 1966 | Acceptable
Taradale 640 110% 2009 | Not Rated
Terry Fox 743 105% 1994 Good
Valley View 633 49% 1959 Marginal
West Dover 412 80% 1971 Acceptable

*School was modernized after RECAPP rating was established

3.5 Modernization Needs

There are 42 facilities in Area 11, 9 of these facilities are 40 years old or
older.

# of Schools in Areal lll

by Decade
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

In Area Ill, three schools have been identified for modernization:

Cost
Priority School Project Description (2009 prices)
4 Jack James Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and $29 million
electrical systems, and hazardous material
abatement
13 Ernest Morrow Upgrades to facility site, interior spaces, $14 million
mechanical and electrical systems
15 Sir Wilfrid Laurier Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical, $14 million
and electrical systems, CTS spaces, security
and safety elements of facility

3.6 Modular Units

As part of the Three-Year Modular Accommodation Strategy, the
following are planned to be undertaken for Area 111 schools:

e Demolish four relocatables at Abbeydale School and replace with two
existing relocatable units.

e Demolish two portables at Roland Michener School without
replacement.

Future new modular units, modular moves, and demolitions in this Area
will be on an as required basis.

Taradale School
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

AREA IV

Lz Jard T Linac

4.1  Population

Area 1V is comprised of 58 communities located in the southwest and
southeast part of the City. Within Area IV, many communities closest to
the City core are experiencing slow or declining growth, whereas the new
and developing areas are experiencing high growth rates.

The new and developing communities are expected to increase
approximately 8,600-9,500 residents over the next five years.

Occupied % Build-Out
2009 Projected Housing Build-Out Based On
New and Developing Community ~ Population Population Units Housing Units  Housing Units
Aspen Woods 2,830 9,900 901 3,700 24%
Cougar Ridge 5,525 7,500 1,836 2,640 70%
Discovery Ridge 4,286 5,500 1,586 1,860 85%
Springbank Hill 7,875 13,700 2,646 4,870 54%
West Springs 6,654 12,650 2,188 4,430 49%

Total 27,170 49,250

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™ Area IV — Page 1



Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

4.2 Utilization

A summary of Area utilization by enrolment and residence follows. Area
utilization by “residence” identifies the number of students residing in an
Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students attending unique settings and outreach programs). Area utilization
by “enrolment” identifies the number of students attending schools in an
Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students outside of CBE’s boundary).

The graph below represents the utilization rate as of September 30, 2009
using the provincial formula. The provincial formula is based on square
metres of space, exemptions for full-time leases and administrative use, and
weighted enrolment, which makes allowance for kindergarten at full-time
equivalent and special education students at 3:1. In Area IV, there are
199,999 square metres of operating school space accommodating 16,111
full time equivalent students.

Current
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Projected Capacity
Includes:

Additional Capacity
Approved

West Springs k-6 (550)

Ernest Manning High
10-12 (1800)

Additional Capacity
Not Approved

Cougar Ridge k-4 (600)

West Springs/Cougar
Ridge 5-9 (900)

Springbank Hill k-4
(600)

Springbank Hill/
Discovery Ridge 5-9
(900)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

City of Calgary population growth in Area IV is projected to increase
between 15,300 and 18,200 people capturing 8.2% of the total growth in
new and developing areas over the next decade.

The graph below represents the projected utilization rate for the 2019-2020
school year. Projected capacity includes new schools in the new and
developing communities and assumes closures in communities with excess
capacity (see section 4.3). Projection by enrolment assumes current
attendance patterns, which are subject to annual review and update.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

4.3 Capacity

Areas have been divided into four categories — A: additional capacity, B: status quo, C: capacity
reduction, D: industrial/undeveloped. Residential districts with excess capacity have been identified
using CBE’s planning principles recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature neighbourhoods.
Communities with potential excess capacity are analyzed in detail following the map.
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Additional
School Type* Current | Additional | Capacity | Potential
B Elementary Provincial | Capacity Not Capacity Capacity
#  Elementaryllunior or Middle Category | Capacity Approved | Approved | Reduction | (2019-20)
A Junior High A 634 2,350 3,000 5,984
®  Junior Senior B 12,036 12,036
®  Senior High c 9,277 (2,400) 6,877
*  Future School (Approved) TOTAL 21,947 2,350 3,000 (2,400) 24,897
% Future School (Not Approved) : 7 TR ;
<A ok Saritaimban 962006 Potential capacity reduction is over the time period 2010-2019
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System Student
Accommodation

Planning Criteria

balance among
equity, access,
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schools and
programs in the
right places

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

Within Area 1V (south of the Bow River, west of Crowchild Trail, east of
Sarcee Trail and north of Glenmore Trail) there are five schools that
accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program students. Three
schools are needed to accommodate Kkindergarten to grade six regular
program students over the long term even with the increased density of the
Canada Lands redevelopment.

There are two elementary schools in the residential districts of Bankview,
Richmond, South Calgary and Sunalta that accommodate kindergarten to
grade six regular program students. One school is needed to accommodate
kindergarten to grade six regular program students over the long term.

There are two elementary schools in the residential districts of Inglewood
and Ramsay that accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program
students. One school is needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade six
regular program students over the long term.

Area IV Alternative Programs with Enrolment of 100+ Students
Traditional Learning Centre — Glamorgan

French Immersion — William Reid, Westgate, Elboya, Bishop Pinkham,
Western Canada

Spanish Bilingual — Westgate

Montessori — Killarney

Piitoayis Family School — Colonel Walker

Juno Beach Academy of Canadian Studies — Lord Shaughnessy

National Sport Academy - Central Memorial

Expansion of existing alternative programs and new alternative programs
will be considered on an annual basis.

Area |V Specialized Programs with Enrolment of 50+ Students
National Sport School

Home Education

Discovering Choices

Westbrook Outreach

Dr. Oakley

Emily Follensbee
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

4.4 Facility Condition Assessment

. . Area IV
Renewal Capital Asset Planning Process (RECAPP)
35
The Province undertakes a rolling condition assessment %0 | >
of CBE schools on a five-year-basis as part of the 251
RECAPP. The RECAPP audits evaluate architectural, g2
mechanical, electrical, and other components of & 151
facilities. A summary listing of the RECAPP overall S I s ) s
condition rating of schools in Area IV are shown in the S’J B = N |
chart. T e = 5 = -
: :
Number of Facilities
2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
A.E. Cross 1,066 58% 1964 Good
Alexander Ferguson 227 91% 1956 Acceptable
Altadore 301 88% 1952 | Acceptable - .
] Condition Rating
Alternative 170 125% 1956 Acceptable
Banting and Best 304 78% 1980 | Good Good
Battalion Park 634 101% 2007 Not Rated Meet.s all pre§ent S
requirements; no deficiencies.
Bel-Aire 131 Leased 1965 Good
Bishop Pinkham 797 60% 1964 Acceptable Acceptable .
] Meets present requirements,
Central Memorial 1,795 98% 1968 Acceptable has minor deficiencies.
Clem Gardner 738 Leased 1965 | Good Average
Colonel Walker 783 30% 1912 Acceptable operatlng/ maintenance costs.
Connaught* 593 31% 1911 Good Marginal
Dr. Carl Safran 470 Admin 1908 | Not Rated Meets minimum requirements;
Dr. Oakley 679 20% 1959 | Acceptable has significant deficiencies.
May have above average
Elbow Park 248 85% 1919 Acceptable
Elboya 442 114% 1953 Marginal P .
Does not meet requirements,
Emily Follensbee 375 54% 1964 Acceptable has Signiﬁcant deficiencies.
Erlton 40 Admin 1961 | Not Rated May hf_ive h|g'h
Ernest Manning 1,771 72% 1964 Marginal operatlng/malntenance CTEE,
Glamorgan 655 49% 1958 | Good Critical
Glenbrook 500 51% 1959 | Acceptable Unsafe; high risk of injury or
critical system failure.
Glendale 305 85% 1956 Acceptable
Glenmeadows 317 Leased 1959 | Acceptable Not Rated
. Not Rated by RECAPP.
Jennie Elliott 649 1% 1962 Acceptable
Killarney 324 53% 1954 Acceptable
King Edward 923 Closed 1910 Not Rated
Knob Hill 253 Leased 1959 Marginal
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Lakeview 450 Leased 1961 Poor
Lord Shaughnessy 970 21% 1966 Acceptable
Mount Royal 438 67% 1952 Acceptable
Ogden 619 Leased 1961 Good
Olympic Heights 630 107% 1991 Acceptable
Ramsay 302 29% 1913 Acceptable
Richmond 303 49% 1950 Poor
Rideau Park 442 117% 1930 Acceptable
Riverbend 548 69% 1995 Acceptable
Rosscarrock 394 39% 1960 Acceptable
Sherwood 993 54% 1956 Marginal
Sir James Lougheed 227 44% 1957 Acceptable
Spruce Cliff 276 Leased 1963 Poor
Sunalta 605 59% 1922 Acceptable
Vincent Massey 930 71% 1955 Poor
Viscount Bennett 1821 | Leased/Admin 1954 Acceptable
W.H. Cushing Workplace 125 70% 1996 Not Rated
Western Canada 2,180 98% 1928 Acceptable
Westgate 675 83% 1960 Acceptable
Wildwood 552 91% 1956 Acceptable
William Reid 224 92% 1954 Acceptable
Windsor Park 198 | Leased/Admin 1956 Good

*School was modernized after RECAPP rating was established
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
45  Modernization Needs

There are currently 50 facilities in Area IV, 45 of these facilities are 40
years old or older.

# of Schools in Area IV
by Decade
25 T
[ 21
20 f ]
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5 15
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3] [ @ # of Schools
) r < o
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H* r §
s | B
:
o+ ' e > o o o Colonel Walker School
= ~ 3
g 8 g o g g S
g S 2 e 2 2 8
& 3 3 3 3 3 1
Decade

In Area IV, four schools have been identified for replacement or
modernization in the School Capital Plan (2011-2014).

Cost
Priority School Project Description (2009 prices)

1 Lord Shaughnessy Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and electrical | $6 million
systems, hazardous material abatement

11 Altadore Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and electrical | $14 million
systems, barrier-free

14 Sherwood Upgrades to facility site, building envelope, interior spaces, | $14 million
mechanical, and electrical systems, CTS equipment

18 A.E. Cross Upgrades to huilding envelope, interior spaces, | $14 million
mechanical, and electrical systems, hazardous material
abatement, barrier free items

4.6 Modular Units

Future new modular units, modular moves, and demolitions in this Area
will be on an as required basis. — ;

— et ot — e

e —

Battalion Park School
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
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5.1  Population

Area V is comprised of 47 residential communities located in the
southwest and southeast part of the City. Many of the established
communities are experiencing slow or declining growth, whereas the new
and developing areas in the south and southeast are experiencing high
growth rates. The new and developing communities are expected to
increase 52,800-58,400 residents over the next five years.

Occupied Build-Out % Build-Out

New and Developing 2009 Projected Housing Housing Based On
Community Population | Population Units Units Housing Units
Auburn Bay 3,466 18,950 1,150 6,860 17%
Bridlewood 10,989 11,700 3,825 4,280 89%
Chaparral 10,537 12,500 3,273 4,240 7%
Copperfield 5,609 12,850 2,046 4,400 47%
Cranston 9,140 21,500 3,288 8,230 40%
Evergreen 18,148 20,850 6,251 7,470 84%
Legacy 0 17,500 0 5,740 0%
Mahogany 11 31,900 4 12,140 0%
McKenzie Towne 14,068 17,500 5,574 7,190 78%
New Brighton 5,142 12,850 1,762 4,180 42%
Seton 0 2,350 0 1,200 0%
Silverado 2,620 16,950 928 6,150 15%
Southeast Policy Plan — Other 0 41,100 0 13,480 0%
Walden 0 17,500 1 3,510 0%
West Macleod ASP 0 28,000 0 9,180 0%
Total | 79730 242,900 28,102 98,250
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)
5.2 Utilization

A summary of Area utilization by enrolment and residence follows. Area
utilization by “residence” identifies the number of students residing in an
Area, expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students attending unique settings and outreach programs). Area utilization
by “enrolment” identifies the number of students attending schools in an
Area expressed as a percentage of the total capacity (enrolment includes
students outside of CBE’s boundary).

The graph below represents the utilization rate as of September 30, 2009
using the provincial formula. The provincial formula is based on square
metres of space, exemptions for full-time leases and administrative use, and
weighted enrolment which makes allowance for kindergarten at full-time
equivalent and special education students at 3:1. In Area V, there are
284,452 square metres of operating school space accommodating 25,607
full-time equivalent students.

Current

Area V Utilization - 2009-2010

40,000 :
35,000 £ - & :
a t i
30‘000 8010/0 782% urren apaci y
o — OBy Residence
25,000 7 -
Z OBy Enrolment
20,000 ¢

15,000 y
10,000 £ -
5,000 ¥

By
Residence

By P
Enrolment ||

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™ Area V — Page 2



Projected Capacity
Includes:

Additional Capacity
Approved

Bridlewood k-6 (600)

Cranston k-4 (550)
Evergreen k-4 (550)

Additional Capacity Not
Approved

Copperfield k-4 (600)
New Brighton k-4 (600)

Copperfield/New
Brighton 5-9 (900)

Cranston 5-9 (900)
Evergreen 5-9 (900)

McKenzie Towne 5-9
(900)

Centennial High School
(Additional Wing) 10-
12 (400)

Auburn Bay k-4 (600)

SE High School 10-12
(1800)

Silverado k-4 (600)

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

City of Calgary population growth in Area V is projected to increase
between 95,400 and 105,000 people capturing 49.3% of the growth in new
and developing areas over the next decade.

The graph below represents the projected utilization rate for the 2019-2020
school year. Projected capacity includes new schools in the new and
developing communities and assumes closures in communities with excess
capacity (see section 5.3). Projection by enrolment assumes current
attendance patterns, which are subject to annual review and update.
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

5.3 Capacity

Areas have been divided into four categories — A: additional capacity, B: status quo, C: capacity
reduction, D: industrial/undeveloped. Residential districts with excess capacity have been identified
using CBE’s planning principles recognizing the need to maintain schools in mature neighbourhoods.

Calgary Board of Education
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B: Status Quo

[ c: capacity Reduction
D D: Industrial/Undeveloped

School Type*

&

b B N I 3

Elementary
Elementary/Junior or Middle
Junior High

Senior High

Future School (Approved)
Future School (Not Approved)
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Additional
Current Additional Capacity Potential Future
Provincial | Capacity Not Capacity Capacity
Category | Capacity | Approved | Approved | Reduction | (2019-20)
A 4,339 1,700 8,200 14,239
B 24,135 24,135
o] 4,252 (1,400) 2,852
TOTAL 32,726 1,700 8,200 (1,400) 41,226

Potential capacity reduction is over the time period 2010-2019

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™
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System Student
Accommodation

Planning Criteria

balance among
equity, access,

excellence and
choice

minimum
disruption

learning
continuum

schools and
programs in the
right places

Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

There are two elementary schools in the residential district of Haysboro.
On March 2, 2010, the Board of Trustees approved the closure of Eugene
Coste School effective June 30, 2010. The provincial capacity of Eugene
Coste School is 647 student spaces.

There are three elementary schools in the residential districts of Diamond
Cove, Deer Ridge, Deer Run and Queensland. On February 2, 2010, the
Board of Trustees approved the closure of Queensland Downs School
effective June 30, 2010. The provincial capacity of Queensland Downs
School is 344 student spaces.

There are two elementary schools in the residential districts of Braeside
and Cedarbrae that accommodate regular program students. One school is
needed to accommodate kindergarten to grade six regular program students
over the long term.

Area V Alternative Programs with Enrolment of 100+ Students

Traditional Learning Centres — Le Roi Daniels, Fairview, Henry Wise
Wood

French Immersion — Chinook Park, Sam Livingston, Sundance, Janet
Johnstone, Fairview, Harold Panabaker, Dr. E.P. Scarlett

Spanish Bilingual — Canyon Meadows, Robert Warren

Montessori — Lake Bonavista

Science — Louis Riel

Arts-Centred Learning — Willow Park, Lord Beaverbrook

Expansion of existing alternative programs and new alternative programs
will be considered on an annual basis.

Area V Specialized Programs with Enrolment of 50+ Students
William Roper Hull
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

5.4 Facility Condition Assessment
Renewal Capital Asset Planning
Process (RECAPP)

The Province undertakes a rolling
condition assessment of CBE schools
on a five-year-basis as part of the
RECAPP. The RECAPP audits
evaluate the architectural, mechanical,
electrical, and other components of
facilities. A summary listing of the
RECAPP overall condition rating of

schools is shown in this graph.

ey

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Acadia 554 7% 1963 | Good
Alice M. Curtis 407 Leased 1964 Acceptable
Andrew Davison 483 Leased 1961 Marginal
Andrew Sibbald 410 101% 1971 Good
Braeside 543 42% 1968 Acceptable
Canyon Meadows 479 80% 1971 Good
Cedarbrae 314 56% 1976 Acceptable
Centennial 1,807 98% 2004 Not Rated
Chaparral 506 92% 2006 Not Rated
Chinook Park 630 73% 1960 Acceptable
David Thompson 937 75% 1962 Acceptable
Deer Run 453 55% 1981 | Good
Douglasdale 525 70% 2006 Not Rated
Dr. E.P. Scarlett 1,760 95% 1969 Acceptable
Dr. Norman Bethune 415 Closed 1972 Acceptable
Ethel M. Johnson 446 90% 1966 Acceptable
Eugene Coste 647 56% 1959 Acceptable
Fairview 1,140 62% 1960 Acceptable
Fish Creek 614 98% 1992 Acceptable
Fred Seymour 331 Leased 1969 Acceptable
Harold Panabaker 595 76% 1964 Acceptable
Haultain Memorial 332 97% 1980 Acceptable
Hayshoro 320 35% 1959 Good
Henry Wise Wood 1,946 7% 1961 Marginal
Janet Johnstone 473 79% 1982 Acceptable
John Ware 516 78% 1968 Acceptable

AreaV
33
il 11
10 4 7
51 2
ol - ¢} 0
A
6]
P :

Number of Facilities

Condition Rating

Good
Meets all present requirements;
no deficiencies.

Acceptable

Meets present requirements,
has minor deficiencies.
Average operating/maintenance
Costs.

Marginal

Meets minimum requirements;
has significant deficiencies.
May have above average
operating maintenance costs.

Poor

Does not meet requirements,
has significant deficiencies.
May have high
operating/maintenance costs.

Critical
Unsafe; high risk of injury or
critical system failure.

Not Rated
Not Rated by RECAPP.

“Optimizing the Quality of the Learning Environment™
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

2009 2009-2010 | Year | RECAPP
School Capacity | Utilization | Built Rating
Kingsland 610 Admin 1958 Acceptable
Lake Bonavista 308 86% 1969 Acceptable
Le Roi Daniels 371 90% 1963 Acceptable
Lord Beaverbrook 2,415 89% 1966 Acceptable
Louis Riel 936 59% 1971 Acceptable
Maple Ridge 400 56% 1967 Acceptable
McKenzie Lake 608 91% 1995 Acceptable
McKenzie Towne 602 42% 2009 Not Rated
Midnapore 543 102% 1978 Acceptable
MidSun 843 97% 1998 Good
Mountain Park 954 90% 2006 Not Rated
Nellie McClung 452 85% 1969 Acceptable
Nickle 779 82% 1970 Acceptable
Prince of Wales 384 90% 1976 Acceptable
Queensland Downs 344 50% 1976 | Acceptable
R.T. Alderman 843 69% 1966 Acceptable
Robert Warren* 493 69% 1974 Acceptable
Sam Livingston 528 92% 1972 Good
Samuel W. Shaw 731 4% 2009 Not Rated
Somerset 395 79% 2003 Not Rated
Southwood 525 Leased 1962 Acceptable
Sundance 473 106% 1982 | Good
Willow Park 766 81% 1965 Acceptable
Wilma Hansen 747 66% 1983 Good
Woodbine 460 72% 1981 Good
Woodlands 409 70% 1980 | Good
Woodman 1,018 67% 1960 Acceptable

*School was modernized after RECAPP rating was established
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

55 Modernization Needs

There are currently 53 facilities in Area V, 25 of these facilities are 40
years old or older.

# of Schools in AreaV

by Decade
25 . .
H 22 Henry Wise Wood High School
20
o [
é ®1 11 # of School
0 r § @ # of Schools
5 10
s o7 7
d § :
; 0
O o ‘ (o)) ‘ (o)
5] 3 8
N Ll -
§ & &
3 8
N — -

1990-1999 [ 6%
1970-1979

1960-1969
1900-1949

Decade

In Area V, seven schools have been identified for modernization in the
School Capital Plan (2011-2014).

Cost
Priority School Project Description (2009 prices)

3 Lord Beaverbrook Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and $29 million
electrical systems, hazardous material
abatement

6 Robert Warren Upgrades to building envelope, interior $4.5 million
spaces, and mechanical and electrical
systems

7 Nickle Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical and $14 million
electrical systems, barrier-free (elevator)

9 Fairview Upgrades to building envelope, interior $14 million
spaces, mechanical and electrical systems

10 Louis Riel Upgrades to building envelope, interior $14 million
spaces, mechanical and electrical systems

20 Henry Wise Wood Upgrades to facility site, building envelope, $29 million
interior spaces, mechanical, and electrical
systems, hazardous material abatement,
barrier free items

21 Woodman Upgrades to interior spaces, mechanical, $14 million
and electrical systems, hazardous material
abatement, barrier free items
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Ten-Year System Student Accommodation and Facilities Strategy (2010-2019)

5.6 Modular Units

As part of the Three-Year Modular Accommodation Strategy, the
following are planned to be undertaken for Area V schools:

e Demolish two portable units at Dr. Norman Bethune School without
replacement.

e Demolish two portables units at Midnapore School without
replacement.

Cranston School « Add six new modular units at McKenzie Towne School.

o Add four existing units from other schools to David Thompson School.

Future new modular units, modular moves, and demolitions in this Area
will be on an as required basis.
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Municipal Community Code Definitions

ABB Abbeydale FAL Falconridge REN Renfrew

ACA Acadia FHT Forest Heights RIC-E  Richmond-E

ALB Albert Park/Radisson Hts FLN Forest Lawn RIC-W  Richmond-W

ALT Altadore GLA Glamorgan RID Rideau Park

APP Applewood Park GBK Glenbrook RIV Riverbend

ARB Arbour Lake GDL Glendale ROC Rocky Ridge

ASP Aspen Woods GRV-N  Greenview-N RDL Rosedale

AUB Auburn Bay GRV-S  Greenview-S RMT Rosemont

BNF Banff Trail GRE Greenwood/Greenbriar RCK Rosscarrock

BNK Bankview HAM Hamptons ROX Roxboro

BYV Bayview HAR Harvest Hills ROY Royal Oak

BED Beddington Hts HAW Hawkwood RUN Rundle

BEL Bel-Aire HAY Haysboro RUT Rutland Park

BLN Beltline HID Hidden Valley SAD Saddle Ridge
BDO Bonavista Downs HPK Highland Park SRI Saddle Ridge Industrial
BOW-N Bowness-N HIW Highwood SGH Sage Hill

BOW-S Bowness-S HIL Hillhurst SAN Sandstone Valley
BRA Braeside HOU Hnsfld Hts/Briar Hill SCA Scarboro

BRE Brentwood HUN Huntington Hills SSw Scarboro/ Sunalta West
BRD Bridgeland/Riverside ING Inglewood SCE Scenic Acres

BRI Bridlewood KEL Kelvin Grove SET Seton

BRT Britannia KIL Killarney/Glengarry SHG Shaganappi

CAM Cambrian Hts KCA Kincora SHS Shawnee Slopes
CAN Canyon Meadows KIN Kingsland SHN Shawnessy

CAP Capitol Hill LKB Lake Bonavista SHW  Sherwood

CAS Castleridge LKV Lakeview SIG Signal Hill

CED Cedarbrae LPK Lincoln Park SIL Silver Springs
CFC CFB - Currie LMR Lower Mount Royal SVO Silverado

CFL CFB - Lincoln Park PMQ LYX Lynx Ridge SKR Skyview Ranch
CHA Chaparral MAC MacEwan Glen SOM Somerset
CHW-N  Charleswood-N MAH Mahogany SOC South Calgary
CHW-S  Charleswood-S MAN Manchester SMC South Macleod ASP
CHN Chinatown MPL Maple Ridge SOV Southview

CHK Chinook Park MRL Marlborough SOW  Southwood

CHR Christie Park MPK Marlborough Park SPH Springbank Hill
CIT Citadel MRT Martindale SPR Spruce Cliff

CLI Cliff Bungalow MAF Mayfair STA St. Andrews Hts
COA Coach Hill MAL Mayland Heights STR Strathcona Park
COoL Collingwood MCK McKenzie Lake SNA Sunalta

CPF Copperfield MCT McKenzie Towne SDC Sundance

COR Coral Springs MEA Meadowlark Park SSD Sunnyside

CGR Cougar Ridge MID Midnapore TAR Taradale

CHvV Country Hills Village MLR Millrise TEM Temple

COU-N  Country Hills-N MIS Mission THO-N  Thorncliffe-N
COU-S  Country Hills-S MOR  Monterey Park THO-S  Thorncliffe-S
cov Coventry Hills MON Montgomery TUS Tuscany

CRA Cranston MOP Mount Pleasant TUX Tuxedo Park
CRE Crescent Hts NEB New Brighton UNI University Heights
CRM Crestmont NOL Nolan Hill uocC University of Calgary
DAL Dalhousie NGM-N  North Glenmore Park-N UMR Upper Mount Royal
DRG Deer Ridge NGM-S  North Glenmore Park-S VAL Valley Ridge

DRN Deer Run NHV North Haven VAR Varsity

DIA Diamond Cove NHU North Haven Upper VIS Vista Heights

DIS Discovery Ridge OAK Oakridge WAL Walden

DDG Douglasdale/Glen 0GD Ogden WHL-E  West Hillhurst-E
DOV Dover PAL Palliser WHL-W  West Hillhurst-W
DNC Downtown Commercial Core PAN Panorama Hills WSP West Springs
DNE Downtown East Village PKD Parkdale WGT Westgate

DNW  Downtown West End PKH Parkhill WHI Whitehon

EAG Eagle Ridge PKL Parkland WLD Wildwood

EMC East Macleod (ASP) PAT Patterson WIL Willow Park

EAU Eau Claire PEN Penbrooke Meadows WND  Windsor Park
EDG Edgemont PIN Pineridge WIN Winston Hts/Mntview
EPK Elbow Park POI Point Mckay WBN Woodbine

EYA Elboya PUM Pump Hill WOO  Woodlands

ERI Erin Woods QPK Queen’s Park Village

ERL Erlton QLD Queensland

EVN Evanston RAM Ramsay

EVE Evergreen RAN Ranchlands

FAI Fairview RED Red Carpet




CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA

Movember 30, 2010
To: Board of Trustees
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: 2010-2011 School Enrolment Report
Purpose: Information and for the Record

Governance Policy References: EL- 3:  Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
EL-14: Stdem Accommodation

EL-14E: Student Accommaodation Information Requirements
Originator: Frank J. Coppinger, Superintendent, Facilities & Environmental Services

Resource Persons: Calvin Davies, Director, Community Engagement & Operational Planning
Karen Barry, Syvstem Principal, Community Engagement & Operational
Planning
Ingrid Schmidt. Senior Planner, Community Engagement & Operational
Planning
Anne Trombley, Planning Analyst, Community Engagement & Operational
Planning
Conor McGreish, Planning Analvst. Community Engagement &
Operational Planning
Joshua Crough, Community Planning Technician, Community Engagement
& Operational Planning
Wanda Saxon, Planning Specialist, Capital & Urban Planning, Capital
Planning & Development Services
Sherri Lambourne, Manager, Leasing & Property Management. Capital
Planning & Development Services

| 8 RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended:

THAT the 2010-2011 School Enrolment Report be received as information and for the
record.
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V.

ISSUE

Executive Limitation (EL) 14: Student Accommodation requires Administration to
present to the Board of Trustees a School Enrolment Report, on or before the Jast public
board meeting in November of each year. This report must comply with EL-14E: Student
Accommadation Information Requirements.

BACKGROUND
EL-14E states in part: Accordingly, the Chief Supenntendent shall:

(&) provide a School Enrolment Report to the Board of Trustees on before the last
public board meeting in November of each vear which includes the following
information, grouped by Area:

(i) the number of students enrolled in each school, by grade and program.
including alternative programs, special education programs and svstem
classes. and the number of out-of attendance area students enrolled 1n each
school as of September 30" in the current school vear;

(i  provincial capacity of the school, including the number of relocatables and
porlables;

(iiiy  the utilization rate of each school building not including lease exemptions:

{iv)  the utilization rate including lease exemptions as of September 1 of the
current vear for each school building:

{v) the amount of surplus space available for leasing but not vet leased; and

{vi)  alist of the leases and amount of space leased, for each building.

ANALYSIS
Calgary’s Population

The population in Calgary grew from 1.065.455 in April 2009 10 1,071,515 April
2014, This represents an increase of 0.57% or 6.060 people. This is the lowest percentage
of growth experienced since 1984,

Natural increase (births minus deaths) was the only source of growth in the City from
2009 ta 2010, Natural increase was 10,214 persons and net migration was a decrease of
4,154 people. Net migration is the difference between the number of persons moving into
Calgarv and the number moving away. The last time Calgary experienced a negative net
migration was 1992,

Population and housing statistics are monitored on an annual basis for all residenual

districts. There are approximately 200 residential districts in Calgary that have been
grouped into three categories - new, established and inner city.
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The table below demonstrates that most of the population growth continues to ocour in

the new communities and established communities continue to lose population,

Population Change in Calgary

April to April | New Established | Inner City Tuotal
2007 o 2008 25,688 -3.268 330 212,950
2008 10 20040 22,096 =570 1.437 22.563
2009 to 2010 13.688 -6,406 1,223 _ﬁ,ﬂﬁ{.‘l

Between April 2004 and April 2010, Panorama Hills in Area [l was the only community
that had a population increase of more than 1,000 persons. In previous years, 1en of more

new communities experienced a population increase of more than 1.000 persons.

Calgary Board of Education Enrolment

On September 30, 2010, 223 schools reported enrolment. Enrolment was 99491,
Kindergarten to grade 12 and 3,426 at CBe-learn and Chinook Learning Services for a
total enrolment of 102,917, Enrolment at CBe-learn and Chinook Learning Services
includes students who are 20 vears old or older on September 1% who are not eligible for

funding. On September 30, 2010. this represented 1,106 students.

The following table compares September 30, 2010 student enrolment to September 30,
2000 by division:

Seprember  Sepromber Difference

2, 2010 30, 2009 | 2010 - 2009

Pre-Kindergarier I8 e &
Kindergaren F A5G Fign 279

Grmdes 1-3 23 445 21,741 AL

Grodes 4-6 2436 SO FRE -3

oroges 7-9 21,693 22,113 418

Graodes 10-12 25 &&F 25,721 =54

Urigue Sertings os 11 w2

_Outregch Progroms 1.045 1,016 30
SUB-TOTAL Q9. 497 95 244 F4F

CHe-fearm 63F GBS -d8

Chirook Legrming Senices 2,780 2447 F42
SUB-TOTAL 3,426 3,132 2848

A TOTAL I02. 917 102 375 543

a9-3
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Kindergarten and grade one registrations indicate strong enrolment into the future. Based
on City of Calgary's census data, CBE's market share for Kindergarten was 58% and
64% for grade one. The average over the last five vears is 59% and 63%. Seventeen
schools offer a full day Kindergarten program for the 2010-2011 school year with
enrolment of 774 students on September 30, 2010, and 38 pre-Kindergarten students at
two schools.

For reporting purposes, CBE's Administration applies the following definition for an
alternative program: “With the exception of special education classes, an alternative
praogram is a cellection of courses intended to be long term and sustainable and which,
when taken collectively, form a cohesive body of courses consistently delivered and
which emphasize a particular language, culture, or subjeci-matter, or use a particular
teaching philosophy.” Enrolment for altemative programs that fall under this category are
reported in Attachment I{b).

Enrolment in French Immersion, Spanish Bilingual, German Bilingual and Chinese
{Mandarin) Bilingual programs was 9,752 students at 35 schools. Enrolment increased by
381 students over last vear.

Enrolment reported at other alternative programs - Alice Jamieson Girls” Academy, Arls-
Centred Learming, Juno Beach Academy of Canadian Studies, Medicine Wheel,
Montessory, Piitoayis Family School, Science Schools and Traditional Learning Centres -
was 7,444 students at 26 schools. Enrolment increased by 633 students over last year.

The following table provides a summary of changes in Kindergarten to grade 12
enrolments, including unique settings and Cutreach Programs, out of attendance area
students and school capacity utilization rates from September 30, 2009 1o September 30,
2010 by Area. The number of out of attendance students is determined by analyzing each
school and reporting the results in Attachment | (a).

Out of Atendance Utilization Rafes
Enralment (GRT-12) with Exemptions
2002 2010 Change 2008 2010 Change 2008 2010 Change
Area | 15,834 15 667 267 1415 1,158 <257 B2.1T% TB.B9% -3.20%
Area |l 2z2015 #2221 206 2577 2,850 T3 TR0 8088% 1.19%
Area Il | 19,557 18,717 160 1402 1,420 27| 82.63% &1.85% -0.78%
Area V| 16667 16530 137 2196 2176 =20 Ti4Th TAATH  0.70%
Area V 25,171 25456 285 2010 2143 133| 79.63% TB.74% -2.830%
Total 90, 244 89491 247 8600 8556 4| TOHAT TEAAM  -1.00%
Enrolment xcludes CBe-learm and Chinook Learmng Services.
Enrolment includes Unigue Selfings and Cuireach Programs.
4
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v, CONCLUSION
Enrolment increased by 247 students, excluding CBe-learmn and Chinook Leamning
Services. and 541 students including CBe-learn and Chinook Leaming Services from

September 30, 2009 o September 30, 2010,

Enrolment increased at Kindergarten and grades 1-3, and declined at grades 4-6, grades
7-9 and grades 10-12.

Owver 14.000 births to Calgary mothers were reported for the fourth consecutive vyear,
which should result in strong enrolment into the future.

Attachments [ through VI provide the detailed information requested by the Board of
Trustees in EL-14E (¢} (1) through (v1) grouped by Area.

This report is provided in compliance with EL-14: Student Accommodation and related
exhibit EL-14E,

NAOMI E. JﬂH’.’*ISDIé

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Attachment 1 (a): Enrolment by Area, school and program; number of out-of-attendance area
students and svstem special education classes
Attachment 1 (b): Alternative program enrolment by school and grade
Attachment 11: System special education enrolment by school and grade
Attachment I11: School capacity and utilization
Attachment IV: Surplus space available for leass
Antachment V: Lease of space by Area and school
Attachment VI: 2010/2011 Lease of Surplus School Facilities
5
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ATTACHMENT I{kb)

Grades
Altarnative Programs and Schoaols i 1 2 3 4 5 ] 7 a8 9 i0 11 12 Total
Alice lamisson Girls' Academy 25 a8 52 5B 50 54 287
Arts-Centred Learming 116 144 243 210 206 122 103 118 1,262
James Fowdler High School 71 53 56 180
Lord Beaverbrook High School 51 50 62 163
Sir John Franklin School 29 27 93 i T4 287
Willow Park Schowol BY 117 150 146 133 632
French lImmersion 589 G414 580 517 461 425 425 Tia 663 536 581 4719 S04 7.135
Banff Trail School 4G ¥ a6 45 42 b 53 53
Bishop Pinkham School 100 a0 79 268
Bob Edwards School 40 55 45 140
Branton School 281 225 188 674
Chinook Park School EE] 4R 42 £l 19 12 19 222
[ E P Scarlett High School 100 90 50 249
Elboya School 12 23 43 53 44 190
Fairview School hS [ 109 91 a2 409
Georges P Vanier School o9 FL 53 17
Harold Panabaker Schaool 49 Gl 45 155
Hidden Valley School 32 E1] ig EE| 139
Highwood School 18 13 i3 19 19 10 22 114
Janet loehnstone School 33 19 20 10 B2
King Seorge School 44 53 52 37 £ 50 15 310
Lester B Pearson High School 5l £ s 118
mdayland Heights School 45 a4 35 30 15 21 i1 247
Sam Livingston School 115 113 110 98 hA 504
Sundance School 49 57 23 38 49 41 55 37
Valley Creek School 3 7 I8 20 13 117
Warsity Acres Schonl 75 93 a3 a8 B9 &8 59 535
Weslern Canada High School 151 169 173 493
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ATTACHMENT I{b)

Grades
Alternative Programs and Schools o 1 F] 3 4 5 L] 7 B 9 i0 11 12 Total
French Immersion (continued]
Westgate School 56 55 70 49 60 42 ig £
William Aberhart High School 279 188 237 704
Williarm Reid School 33 53 43 3 32 197
German Bilingual 25 19 22 i 25 17 17 11 157
Boweredt School 25 19 22 21 25 17 17 146
Thomas B Riley School 11 11
Junio Beach Academy 17 12 ] 38 28 39 164
Mandarin Bilingual 45 B2 41 £ 18 26 14 a 3 g 257
King George School 45 L a1 il 18 26 14 237
Langevin School 8 3 9 20
Madicine Wheel & ]
Maontessorl 111 152 106 70 60 a5 14 i 548
Captain lohn Palliser Sehoal E 449 43 16 12 g 160
Eillarney Schonl di 46 a7 24 24 11 5 183
Lake Bonavista Schood a3 57 £l an 24 1B 9 05
Piitoayis Aharig}n;l Familly School 23 18 19 0 21 15 18 144
Science Schoal 52 b3 71 ES LE] 108 94 106 76 53 roa2
Langevin School 38 46 a6 B 61 6o Gl B b 53 590
Lowis Riel School 14 17 25 25 i1 4 33 i 02
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ATTACHMENT I(b)

Grades
Alternative Programs and Schools 0 1 2 3 4 5 L 7 B 9 10 11 12 Total
Spanish Bilingual 370 384 363 264 217 190 157 110 [ 54 18 10 2,003
LCanyon Meadows School 101 113 106 EO 58 458
Collingwoed School g2 Bl L 76 a2 423
Dalhousie School 124 130 107 786 49 4BG
Robert Warren School LY 54 32 21 12 176
Sanator Patrick Burns School 112 103 78 45 a2 3180
Westgate School 56 G 55 32 28 21 252
William Aberhart High Schoaol 18 10 8
Traditional Lea ming Centre 512 637 593 473 428 3E6 347 301 263 205 BD 16 4,241
Balmaoral School 137 123 149 164 581
Brentwood School 114 101 113 103 a3 514
Chris Akkerman School a9 178 144 75 75 571
Colonel Sanders 7l 106 101 105 383
Crascent Helghts High 5chool 150 57 10 217
Or 1 K Mulloy School 69 B B7 a5 47 792
Fairview School 73 &3 a0 59 275
Glamorgan School 60 o3 76 70 A8 49 42 438
Hery Wise Weod High School 55 23 b B4
Le Rod Danlels School 74 B a7 79 Fji} 3L
Sir Witfrid Lawrier School a8 &0 33 if1
Thomas B Riley School 49 a3 a9 38 179
Thorncliffe School 9 50 148
Tatals 1,733 10994 1.70% 1,481 13348 13eF 1282 1580 1,353 1,137 CEL ] 636 Ba1 17,196
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Special Education Enrolment

Grades

ATTACHMENT Il

{excluding Unique Settings) 3 4 S 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total
ACCESS 13 19 13 16 22 16 9%
Attitude, Community, Competence, Crescent Helghts High School 5 6 1 12
Elerments aof Academic Curriculum, Ernest Manning High School 2 10
Saciol Skills H D Cartwright School 1 & 12 9
Henry Wise Wood High School 2 3 5 10
Langevin School 4 5 3 12
Lester B Pearson High School 4 & 3 13
PAld5Sun School 2 3 5
Mount Royal School E ¥ Z 9
%ir John Franklin School 1 3 & 10
William Abearhart High Schoel i 4 9
ALP & B 7 18 6 19 51
Adapted Learning Pragrom Lord Beaverbrook High School m 2 12
Mid5un School i 3 3 9
Thomas B Riley School i 5 4 12
William Aberhart High Schoal 5 4 0 1R
AIM {Tronsition Merntal Health) Sir John Franklin School 8 8 &6 12
ASD Cluster 1 i 5§ 4 4 12 23
Autistic Spectrum Disorder R T alderman Schoal 1 3 4 4 2 14
Sunalta School 1 R | g
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ATTACHMENT NI

Special Education Enrolment Grades

{excluding Unigue Settings) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total

Bridges 6 8 18 18 12 27 16 26 15 3 2 149
Annie Foote School 1 2 4 T
Braeside School 3 C Y P N | 14
Capltol HIl Schoal 2 1 4 7
Colonel Macleod School i 5 B
Crescent Heights High School 3 2 5
Dr Gladys McKelvie Eghert School 6 11 1 18
G W Skene School z & 7
Guy Weadick School 2 2 3 7
H I Cartwright School z 3 2 7
Hawkwood School 1 4 5
lan Bazalgetie 5chool 4 5 & 15
James Short Memorial School 3 i [
Hickle School 1. '§ [
Morth Haven School Fi Fi 8
Patrick Airlie School 2 4 T
Eichmond School 2 7
Sunalta Schoaol 2 2 4
Yalley View School 1 1 & 8
Vincent Massey School 1 1 1 3

Connections 14 3 14 1 a2
Mex Munro School E] 3
Guy Weadick School 3 2 [
Maple Bidge School 1 & B
Ranchlands School . | 3
Wildwood School 3 5
Woodlands School 2 7
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ATTACHMENT Il

Special Education Enrolment Grades
[excluding Unique Settings) 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9 10 11 12 Total
€55l 16 13 11 18 9 & 4 1 4 50
Communications, Sensory ad Bishop Finkham School 4 1 B
Social Interoction Brentwood School 2 1 1 2 1 13 11
Chinook Park Schoaol 3 1 7 2 13
Douglasdale School i 5§ 2 3 5 1 19
[r E P Scarlett High School 4 4
Pineridge School B 5 3 .2 1 17
Sir John Franklin School 1 6
Liniversity School 1 2 7 3 1 14
DHH (Deaf and Hard of Hearing) i 4 & 8 5 4 7 &5 3 5 b B
DHH-Amer Sign Lang/Englfecondary] COueen Elizabeth High Schoaol 1 5
(HH-AuraliOral (Secondary) Cleeen Elzabeth High Schoal 1 1
DHH-0E Jri5r COueen Elizabeth High School & 4 3 1 17
DHH-KEE sir William Van Horne High Schoal i 7
DHH-Totol Comm [Elerm) COueen Elizabeth School 6 4 & 2 3 21
DHH-Aurol/Cral (Elem} Stanley lones Schoaol i 4 2 2 3 1 13
Early Development Centre EL:] 38
Deer Rum School 15 15
lames Short Memorial 5chool 23 23
Early Learning Opportunity Maple Ridge School 4 2 1 7
Elem MH Programs - Transitions (] 10
iental Health Transitions Nellie McClung School 3 3 &
simons Yalley School 1 3 4
Ir High MH Programs - Transitions/AIM R T Alderman School 7 2 14
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ATTACHMENT Il

special Education Enrolment Grades

{excluding Unique Settings) 4 5 6 7 & 9 10 11 12 Total

GATE 51 93 91 114 140 177 70 87 71 BS54

lE_I}':ed and Talented Education Annie Foole School 4 3 S 10
Dr Gerdon Higgins School 10 17 7
Elboya School 15 10 14 14 18 71
Henry Wise Wood High School i0 50 41 121
Hillbiurst School 10 17 1B 45
Iohn Ware School 49 51 380D 180
Mellie McClung School 25 37 41 103
Dween Elizabeth High Schoal 51 65 B2 40 3F 30 285
Ranchlands School 12 21 14 52

LEL ir 44 51 78 84 TR 352

Learning and Literacy A E Cross School 8 10 B 26
Arbour Lake School 8 11 B 27
Banff Trail School 1 & 2 11
Captain John Pallizer Schaool B 3 15
Earl Grey Schaol T 3 6 14
Ernest Morrow 5chool 1 11 k| 30
Ethel M Johnson School B 12 9 27
Georges P Vanier School - . S | i) 28
Harold Panabaker School 9 11 &8 28
Huntington Hills School 4 4 10 iR
Keeler School 1 11 15 27
Lowis Riel School 10 15
Maontgomery School 7 L 19
Nickle School g 10 26
Sir John A Macdonald School 10 10
Bir Wilfrid Laurier School B 9 10 7
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niashuckre )
i 0F % % v EEm
PRON WEIGHTED PORTI 1Mikz. Linliz. PROV
SCHOOL ENRUL, wikn Exampl
AREA I
ARBCUR LAKE ale 42 & 5% 93% 5L
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BOWCROFT 458 0 El%) (1] 47
HOWHESS 1.525 1,581 - 1% a1 1,585
ARENTWIAD (1) L F - T TESE) M3
CAFTAR JOHN PALLISER LK) &1 & 1% T 1% 582
CiTalEL 456 £52 B L i 100%; 455
DL HOLEIE 33z a0 3 EE% 3% sk
OF E W COFFIN e 6% i 41% 1% M
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SIR WIRNSTON CHURCHIEL PRI S 2,106 L 1105 % 05 % 2015
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AREA
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BAKFF TRAL 406 13 = B2% B AlG
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BELFAST 251 Pl 1 Bty Ed%y 251
BRANTOM el £az2 g B BT T4
BRER HILL e HE % Er 251
AUCHAMEN 73 155 - 1% 5E% ¥
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ii. Capachy o $e e, incliding the number of rencaisbles and poszbies.
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ATTACHMEMNT 1N
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COLCHEL IRVIKE 203 581 [ | &% 03
COLONEL MACLEDD [ H] 458 L 7% Ti% =1
CIOLONEL SANDERS m 33 i | 1T an
COVENTRY HILLS &y 30 11 B35 ik 37
CRESCENT HEIGHTS 2,150 1,764 B BE% 2180
DA 5 K MULLGY &M 433 E 5 il 1
G F UANER 143 d41 Ed5e Ba% 21
HIDOEN YALLEY 131 430 1] ket | 112% 43
HEEA000 350 6T - 3% i 150
HELHLRZT 404 1491 Rt 474 404
HLUMTINGTON HLLS 35 04 [ Bh% 31}
JRVES FOWLER 1,360 1493 755 T6% 1,540
JOFN G DEFENBRZER 1,300 1487 4 1155 115% 1,300
K GEQRGE £35 0T TP a0%: il
LARGEVIN 366 1 4% 5% HEh
LOLIEE DEAN ) 232 - 1 139% 137
M YLAND HEIGHTS =11 284 GE% LA e}
WICUNT VIEW il 13 i 50% it
RORTH HAVEN 41 283 BEE 24% £11
PAMORANA HILLS 556 455 L B 3% b
QUEEN ELIZABETH ITE e | . BifE G6% 315
CLJEEM BLIZABETH JAIR 1405 1,208 BE% BE% 1,408
ROSEDALE e &30 ) 120%: 120% 2B
ROSEMOMNT 268 11t a15% 41% o]
SEHATOR PATRICK BLENE F55 34 0% 6% Bis
SPMONG WELLEY 1] 511 12 B A% e
SR JOHN & RACDONALD =05 Ta: 4 e 3% s
SI5 JOHN FRARKSLIN g4 404 - A% A% B4
STANLEY JONES &6 434 T1%: T1% G1E
ELIMNYEIDE Hih 147 - Sb% 6% ]
THORMCLFFE 2 245 - 1065 106% vy
VALLEY CRFEX ESE ER 12 9 % L]
VIETA HEIGHTS ik 144 TE, T 205
WILLIAM AEESHART 1,590 1 gl ] 95 % 1,559
AREAH TOTAL b | 1267 HE 3 E1% 2E0ZE
BREA 1N
AHBEVDALE 450 ] E 75 Th% 435
AHMIE FOOTE 175 M7 b T 3% 73
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SCHOOL ENROLMENT REPORT

il Cazadty of the school, ncluding the pumber of relzcalabias asd portabies.

tv. The peorena | ublzation min of each schod Bullteg selintudng leats adempliones

ATTACHMENT 111

W. The ublmafion rabe noluding lease sxamptions as of Septembe: 1 of the cerenl yesr i abch school Buideq. (Sssumes apiosel of aeempione by Albina

Inlsiracure. )
¥OF % % whagempl
PROY WEMHTED POATH Lhikz. 11558 PROV
SCHOOL CAR, ENROL, RELOCS win Exempl wi Exempl CaP,
AMMHIE GALE = T4T B2 B B1% 1% Tar
B8 EOWARDS s m BE% B5% S
CAPPY SMERT 402 28 L] A 57%) 413
CECIL SWANSON 41 kL E B 331% 133
CHIEF JUSTICE WILYAIN 452 a5 ] Bty 5% 3
CHRIS ARZERMAN 414 52 B 126 % 185% £14
CLAREHCE SANSOM T47 S8BT B T4 o i
COUOMEL JF BCOTT 4 451 B 10 % 101% 446
CAOSSING PARK 1,085 1,090 16 106 % 106% 1,025
DOUGLAE HARENESS 352 i 2 ik Erk- KLY
OF G M EGBERT i 440 4 E1% B3 GRS
DR GORDOM HIGGRS fil4 54 i b B4 a4
ERIM WOO0S 47 135 d %% B T8
ERMEST MORROW it &1 [~ BE 364
FALCONRIDEE 348 ATE 12 BT BT % 545
FOREST LAWN Fleg 1,748 TN % 1786
5 W SKEME 415 44 i L LLE 415
GRANT MAGEWAN 78 154 12 % A6 % 576
EUY WEADICK 418 %2 g ¥ B 418
|4 BEATALEETTE 32 4 i G5 55 %] B2
JACK JAMES L T3 [EE a5 B35
JAMES SHORT MEMORIAL £33 bk 1 A0% 2% LrE
®EELER 344 3 . ]I 5% i
LESTER B PEAREIN 1715 1508 - S3% % 1718
(ALETNC ] A= a17 2 B 4% &34
WOBHTEREY PARK fidti L1 i 9% 1% [
05 GEAEER Li3 415 B 36" 0% 483
PATRICK ARLE M4E 28 2 2a% 1% Pl
PEMARODKE MEATOWNS i7e 245 - 55 %] 5% s
PHERIDGE 433 i [ E5%] B5% LET)
AAES0N PARY a0 05 - % TES 1]
S0LAND MICHEMER 330 M I % 6l % 330
FUNLLE 4E7 442 10 % Be% ITH
EADOLE FIMGE 358 Bt i L5% 5% 52
SR WILFRID LALRER a83 414 - 0% T £ k]
TARADALE (k] | 1t =% 100 B33
TERAY FOK 743 Tia % g1t T3
VALLEY VIE'W 233 358 5% 57 %] a3
WEST DOVER 41 225 - B i L1
AREA B TOTAL 24,524 0,574 20 A% 2% 24,F3
AREATY
A ECROSS b 0eh 46 1% BE% 1,086
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ATTACHMENT LI

SCHOOL ENROLMENT REPORT

il Capasity ol the s, induding e nusber ol feicalabiss and pomabies
tv. Thé prowincal eizabion raile of each sc8odd Buiding notinciding lease ewempions

. The oiizason @i nrldng kase mn=plions 35 of Sepembar 1 ol the cumet year o sach school uldng. [Assemes approval of geempians by Albera
Infiashuctare |

& 0OF % % wizxempl
PROV WEIGHTED PORT! Lhiliz. Uiz FROV
SCHOOL CAP, ERRDL. RELCCS wioExempl | w' Exempl CHAP,
R S
ALEXAKDER FERGUSN ey ] - 1085 (1153 ar
AL TADORE i 285 . 95% 5% iy
ALTERMATIVE HIGH 170 k] - 135% 136% 170
BANMTING AND BEST i 253 2 3% 3% M
HATTALKIN FAHK e G52 13 103% 103%: 634
QISHOP PIMEHAM a7 51 - 0% 54 il
CENTRAL MEMOALAL 1,796 1,862 104% 104% 1788
COLOKWEL WALEER T3 2481 L 11% 1% TEI
COMMALIGHT 533 2530 - 0% A0 503
EARL GREY v a1 . it T1% 64
ELAOW PARE 248 212 2 BN B LR
ELRD¥E 41 GG 1 123% 447
ERMEST MANNMNG 1.1 1475 - % % 1 EBD
SLAMORGAN 54 40k - it % 54
GLENBRCOCH 50 PEE] - £y 4% 482
GELENRQALE 305 M x B3% B H15
JERMIE ELLIOTT L] 455 - T s 3B
KILLARMEY 32 164 - Gif 5% n
MIUNT REAL 438 2 B 6% a3
CLYWPIC HEIGHTS Gk B i 105% 1065 il
AAREAY 2 = = A% 37 247
AICHMOND e 138 : 45% 495 e
ROEAL PARE 442 AT - 106% 106 % 443
RIVEREEND e 3 352 fi Gd% 4% b1
ROESCARROCK i 165 - 41% £ 208
EHERWOOD 293 47 AT% % 903
S JAMES LOUGHEED T £ - it 1% P
SLMALTA £4q KLY 0% 5% 369
WINCENT MASSEY EEll] 6B - 1% Fpk 350
W H CLSHMGE WORKFLACE 125 TE - 1% T1% 1
WEST SFRINGS 582 143 11l 5% 3E% 52
WESTERK CAMADS 120 1068 - 4% L% 2,180
WESTGATE 674 566 - 4% e ard
WILDWOOD 451 415 . T5% 5% 551
WALLWAE REID 224 17H i T T L
&REA IV TOTAL .96 16,076 L54] % FLE g R
AREA V
ACADLA EL 3 - i BO% B84
ANDAEW SI8EALD 410 a 1% 51 410
JRAESIDE E k] el E 45 3% 543
BRICLEWDOD 2 406 12 hifrs B55 L]
CLANYOH MEADDWNE 478 412 - A% 5% T

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planning
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SCHOOL ENROLMENT REPORT

i Cipaciy of i schodl, incuding e nember of reiocalabias and poriating
. Tae prosancial ukzalion ra% of aach school betidng motisciuding |eese meEmpbons

ATTACHMENT I

W, The ublizalon rate mchading feese ecempions a5 of Septemiar 1 ol he currest yaer for asch school buking. (Assumes spprrel of exemptions by Akeria

fnlipstuciun |
#0F ® % wiapampl
PROV | WEIGHTED PORTY Uiz Lk PROV
SCHROOL Che, EXROL RELOCS win Exampl | =i Exampt cap,
S i — e e e e e R T |
CEDARARCSE Jié 7 - 5T% 5% I
CENTENRBAL 1807 1,858 - I 101% 1 A07
CHEPAARML 486 45 E % % 4B
CHNOOK PARK LR 451 5% 1% 23
CRANSTON ELE s 1 &% 4% 552
DD THOMPSON 937 GE1 - T3% 3% a7
DEER LN 453 N3 b ¥ B35 453
DOUGLASOALE 525 a7 " 1% T1% 525
OREP SCARLETT 1760 1,655 . B4 4% 176D
ETHEL M JOHNSON 436 a3 - 5% ¥ 445
EVERGREEN 352 2E1 # 51% 51% 552
FRIRVEWN 1140 Tk - % 5% 1140
FiSH CREEK Gk 504 % a7% 31
HARCLD PANABAKER 4495 ix 4 5% SE'% 35
HALLTAIN MEMORLAL 132 20 - % £8% 12
HAYEEORD 320 51 L 48% iy
HEWRY WISE WOCD 1 546 1543 - T%h 9% g
JAKET JOHNETORE 473 3 E 2% 7% 473
JCHN WARE 546 iy i T4 T4% Ebh
JUND BEACH § Dv. Noman Bettana n 16D - 5E% % L1
LAKE BOMAWSETA Bl n BE% % Y
LE ROIDANIELS i 153 - B5% 5% e
LORD BEAMERBROOK 2415 110 M Era 1418
LU RIEL 236 520 - % 5% il
MaPLE RIDGE 400 201 . ¥ 7% 1]
MCEENTIE LAKE BE 461 K B1% 1% sk
MCKENZIE TOWMNE 607 Jek - 5% 5% 7
MIDHAPORE 306 Fil-] 12 L% 43% i
W05 443 T8 - 0% % 3
WOLKTAR PARY 537 BE® ] 05% A5% a7
HELLIE WeGLUNG 452 405 e o 42
HICKLE i fid 3 E3% E% T
FRIKCE OF WaLES g 325 L B5% ES% 34
R TALDERKAN A33 i 1 % &% B4
ROEERT WARREM 457 2m g B EX% &y
SAM LWNGSTON 528 448 I ik | BE% i
SAMLUEL W SHAYY 251 EE] 12 B o Bet
SOMERSET 135 314 4 A% B1% K 3]
SIMOANCE 473 465 f bk | % &1
WILLOW PARK [ G54 - i T | Tk
WILME HANSEN a7 404 (i 6% BE% T
WOODBME 480 126 T T1% 1% &

Prepared by Capital and Urban Planming
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ATTACHMENT I

SCHOOL ENROLMENT REPORT

il Capaciy of 17 school incduding the number of eefocaiables and porables
ta. Thi prosincial ublmation rile of sach schod budding nol nduding eass eaemplons.

vi The ullizaticn rsbe ncuding lease eoempfions a5 of Seplemier 1 of be curreat vear for pach school bulding. (&ssumes soproval of examphions by Albeta
| astrutue. |

2 OF % TR r—
PROV WEIGHTED PORTI Linilz. Lz PROY
SCHOOL e, ENROL. RELOGS Wi Exampt a1 Exempl CaF.
S — S—— e LT
WOODLAKDSE 418 £l 4 £4% G 14
WO DARN 1,046 24 . [ % 1,014
AREA W TOTALS A5E0 3,536 ThE % 1% 13,74
[ TOTALS | wemerz|  wenasr | 518 | 2 | 79%) 121.020 |

Prepared by Capital and Urban Plannng



Attachment IV

School Enrolment Report
vi. The amount of surplus space available for lease but not vet leased.

Surplus space available for lease is interpreted to mean classrooms in excess of a school's
needs. The table below summarizes the number of potential excess classrooms by area.
Excess classrooms were defined as follows:

e All schools with a utilization rate of 85% or more, based on rated room capacity, were
considered to be full and have no excess classrooms.

« In the remaining schools, classrooms between actual utilization and 3% utilization
were congidered to be potential excess classrooms.

r Number of Schools with Folential Excess
Area potential cxcess classrosms Classrooms i
[ Areal | _ 22 | 105 |
_Area I . 28 | 4 |
| Arealll ] 24 | 80 B
[ Area IV | 24 ' 1041 |
[Area v | 33 I 144 |
[CBE Total | 131 [ 521 |

The above table does not include space in closed schools, as these buildings are in use or
approved for disposition.
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201072011 Lease of Space by Area
(inchudes Full-Time and Pari-Time Laasas)

ATTACHMEMNT W

1 Behveckere-Parioasy Bungalow Bipeness Monigoeneny Day Care Associalion 382
1 | Bowcrat Scheal Families Matier Secwey of Calgary 1705

i Caplain John Paliser Schodl Caplan Jann Palliser Qub-of-Scheod Care 743

i Gaplain Jann Palisar Schoo Pre-Kindergarien Educatonal Sarvices 1814

1| Dr EW. Gathn Schoal Mikierniun gz N KareLid. 24
1| Montgomeny Schaal CBE Raired Employess Associton T 101.7

i | Parkdals School Calgary Educational Parnarship Foundation 245.7

1 Parkdade Schoal Bonys and Girts Clubs of Calgany BT

1 Zir Wiiliam Yan Hame High GR.LT. Calgary Sacely 335

i Terace Road Scheal University Heights Nursery Sohoal A5socaion TLE

1 Unheersily Schioo | Calgary Sciance Matsok {5

1 Univessly Schodl Summit Kida - 1071

v | W.O. Michel Sehool * Summil Kids =

i Wast Dalhousie Schodl ¥ MCA Calgary T8

2 | BanH Teall Scheol Reanchlands Chikdren Come First Associabion 148.4

2 | Battast School Beflast Stucent Care ECTHE
2 | Brar Hil Schoal Haunsénkd Heghts - Brar Hill Cammunity Kindergarien 812

2 | Bear Hik Schoal Hounsield Haighes - Briar Hill Parent-Child Ce-ap Payschool 814

2 Bsiar Hill School EHJE!Elg.'_I}f Brar Hill Chidren's Frograms 4.8

z Buchanan School Ranchiznds Chidren Come Firsl Agzociation 779

. Cambrian Heighis Schoal Aberta Heallh Serites 7ig |

") Camibrian Heighls Sohoal Ranchlands Childean Comiz Firsl Assaion BE9

? | Carnwian Heignts Schaal | Renfrew Educstional Senices 17210

2 | Gapiol Fill Schonl Advaniueers Sehool Age Care Lid 15,3
{: E | Cokorrat Sanders Scheel iorihmoun Sudent Canz - 131.0

2 Copeniry Hills Schoo FICA Calgary 4384

2 | Hunlinglon Hils Scnool Huniingion Hiks Sommunity Associaton 551
2 | King George Schas Pleasan Heghls Aller Sehed Care Association 14

? Lowdsa Dean Schaol Calhols Famity Senvce of Calgary J82.4

? fh,danu Heighis Scheoal Milke's Child Enviconmanis Limied 1083

7 | Mount View Schodl Churchil Park Famiy Care Socety - 885

7 | Panorara Hils Schoal Plezsant Heights After Schoal Care Assocaion BE.0

2 | Qusan Bizsbett School Adwarirens Sohoal Age Care Lie 2864
[ 2 | Rosemont Setool Resement Communily Crikdcaine 167.2

2 | Sunnyside School Pre-Hindergarien Educsional Servicos 1068

2 | Sunnyside Schoal Sunnyside Out-of-3chol Cars 108.7

2 | Walley Cresk School YHCA Calgary - A6

. Visla Heighls Schoal Pre-Kindenganen Edutamalse'yr:a 753
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TENANT

3 Abnaydake Sehoal Ben Cal Robe Socety
3 Hizaler Schood Families Maltar Sociaty of Calgary 1414
1 | ‘Wes: Dewer School feetiz Calgary Famiy Sannces 24
4 | Alex Ferguson School Al Farguson Elementary Schonl Socity B B 7
| Aftadara School Fieler Pan DaysEre Ing. 104
"4 | Connaught Schoo Churchill Park Family Care Sociaty B83
1 | o Ciakley Scnocl Tia Canlesrn Socety for Pasons wih Leaming Diffcuties e K
4 | Eanl Grey Schea 3 Eail Geey Out of School Care | o
4| Ean Grey Schedl Thmbeing Nursery Sehool Socely B2
4 Ehoya Schoaol Pre-Knciergarian Educalional Services T4
4 Emest Manning Hgh Alerta Computers for Schooks predi|
4 Glannnae Schon Genbroak ':I'.“ll'l':l""l.l};; Fresrheol 1512
4 Jannie Eliott School Jennie Elkclt Student Care 9149
4 Kilarngy Schoal Kidzing Schoo! Care Sociafy of Alberia Lhr
4 Kilarney Sekoal | Montesson Case (Monlessan Preschoo) o 467
4 | Ramsay Schod Janus Acadermy Secily R 4639
L Rachmond Schaal Richmand Child Cane Associaion 74
E Fidesu Pak School Calgary Catholic Immigraton Sociaty 13710
5 | Rwerbend Scheol ¥WCA Calgary =T
4 | Rosscarmek Sthaal Ceealie Discaveries Nursery Schocd 1030
4 | Rosscarmock School Widzing: Scheel Cave Sociaty of Aberta e
q Zunalia Sehoal Scarboro Communiy Playschocl BT
4| Eunaha Schaol [ sunataSndenicae 105.3
4 W.H. Cushing Workplace School Sotety of Briar Hil Chidren's Programs aih
4 ‘Wildwood Schaol Kidzing Schoal Cane Scciaty of Alberta 5848
4+ | Windsar Park School REACH Saryices  EEsE
5 | Chinook Park Schodl YMCA Calgary 1315
L | Douglzscale Scheel A Sl Ahead - Chikd Develapment Senices 90.5
5 Haysboro Schaal s CA Calgary - 7.4 .
5 | Lake Bonavista Schoal The Advertues 60 |
5 Leke Honanista Sohadl fonbesson Caga (Monlessan Prssindal) 817 |
|75 | Maple Ridga Schoot Gt Ed 81
§ Melie MeClung School YICA Calgary Tra
L | Fnr.;:u'.'.l'lizlﬁ Sehool Tapo Kios Cheld Came Cenre 112.0
5 | Sam Livingstan Schaal The Adveniures 3.2
& | Surdance Bchool Crikdren Can Sucosed Ing 7241
5 [ Yioadbing School Pre-Kindergarien Educational Sanices a3 ]
Tikal Sguare Milers Legsed: Ama | 22404
Al 41614
Area HI: HI3
Area IV 4,555 6
Arza 1,14
GRAND TOTAL 124312

Prepared by Laasing & Praperty Develapmant
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2010/2011 Lease of Surplus School Facilities

TENENT

ATTACHMENT |

2.845.1

1 Jamy Pors School Graatar Southarn Public Francophons Educalan Region ha. 4

2 CGresrmiew School Foundaens for the Future Charter Acadamy 4 BB
3 Mourtain View School Almadina Charter Schoo - 3B4ED
4 Chem Gardngr Schoel Calgary Somnce Chader Sihod N 11070
& Glenmeadows Schocl Caigary Ans Academy Charler School bt
4 | Hron Hil School Calgary Ars Academy Charter School 2970
4| Lakeview Schodl Calgary Girk' Charter School - 3540
4 | Dgdan School Feurdations for the Fulure Ghanes Academy A BAT B
4 Spruce CHff Schaal Calgery Quesl Schoal {Privale) 2387
4 Yacount Bermatl School Westmount Charter Schoal (helt of fagity) 10,3014
5 | Alce M Cumtis School | Foundalians for the Fulure Charler Academy 34215
g Endraw Davison School Foundations far the Fubure Chartar -ﬁJ:-:r:lu'rp_ _i_.H:IEI.I}
5 | Bal AFeSchool | Calgary Girs' Charter Schoal 12520
5 Friad Savowr Sohodl Gresiter Southern Catholc Francaghane Educalian Regaon Mo 4 A.007.8
_5 Srerirranod Scheel Foundaions for tha Fubure: ':J'Iﬂ'll.‘-.l -ﬁl:m‘rr-r = 4, 1520

Teaal Square Maters Leased: frea | 2.845.%

Areall 4654

Bz 1 3846

Ared [V il FAT

Aran W 16,202 1

GRAMDTOTAL  BLOSE0

Prespavedd by Lessing & Property Develapimend
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA

November 30, 2010
To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: MNaomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: imagineCALGARY Partnership Update

Purpose: Information

Governance Policy Reference:  EL-3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board
of Trustees

Originator: Frank J. Coppinger, Superintendent. Facilities & Environmental Services
Resource Persons:  Ross laques, System Principal. Facilites & Environmental
Serviees

Olena Olafson. Community Services Coordinator. Energy &
Environnemental Services

Roy Strum, Curriculum Consultant, Energy &
Environnemental Services
I. RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended:
THAT the Board of Trustees accepts this report for information and the record.

II. ISSUE

Executive Limitation 3: Information, Counsel and Support to the Board of Trustees
states, in part,

Accordingly, the Chief Superintendent shall not fail to:

1. provide the following information in timely, accurate and
understandable manner:

m) an annual report. by November 30™, regarding how the Calgary

Board of Education is currently contributing towards achieving the 30-
vear targets of imagineCALGARY and how the Calgary Board of
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Tv.

Education is actively involved in the working committees of the
imagineCALGARY governance structure.

The purpose of this report is to outline this contribution.
BACKGROUND

The origin of the imagineCALGARY project was as a city-led initiative that
engaged over 18.000 citizens to develop a 100 vear vision and plan for a sustainable
urban environment for Calgarians. The goal of the project is to ensure a prosperous
economy, clean environment and high quality of life for the people who live 1n
Calgary in the decades to come. The imagineCALGARY project led to an
articulation of a vision statement that represents the collective values of the city
community, and the expressed hopes for what this community will become in the
next 100 vears. One hundred and fourteen targets have been established in the plan
to ensure long-term progress toward the stated vision, These targets are broken into
5 major sectors which include™

a. Built Environment & Infrastructure Targets
b. Economic System Targets

¢. Governance Systemn Targets

d. Matural Environment Targets

&. Social System Targets

On June 21, 2006, the Board of Trustees agreed that the Calgary Board of
Education would become an imagineC ALGARY partner. In so doing, the Board of
Trustees committed the Calgary Board of Education to continue to work towards
the targets to report and share the progress that the organization has made. Suppont
for the imagineCALGARY Charter (vision, goals and targets) allows the Calgary
Board of Education 1o showcase and celebrate its existing success in shaping our
city's future.

ANALYSIS
Introduction

Addressing the diverse and complex needs of our students is the primary focus of
any planning in the Calgary Board of Education. A cause and effect relationship
between the work of the Calgary Board of Education and the achievement of
imagineCALGARY targets is not the goal of either organization. It is very evident
however that many of the targets outlined in the imagineCALGARY document are
closely related to identified areas of focus of the Calgary Board of Education. This
relationship positions the Calgary Board of Education, as a key partner in the
achievement of the goals identified through the imagineCALGARY project. The
Calgary Board of Education’s focus on students and the comresponding corporate
responsibilities necessarily frames the subset of Calgary Board of Education’s
substantial contribution to the imagineC ALGARY initiative. This contribution is
not only felt in the present tense but will unguestionably impact the future as
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Calgary Board of Education students become part of the preferred outcome that
imagineCALGARY envisions for the city of Calgary.

How the Calgary Board of Education is currently contributing towards
achieving the 30-yeartargets of imagineCALGARY.

Attachment T of this report is designed to clearly illustrate, “how the Calgary
Board of Education is currently contributing to achieving the 30-vear targets
of imagineCALGARY™. The attachment is designed in 4 columns. The first two
columns are a reproduction of applicable sections of the Outcomes, Strategies to
Achieve Outcomes and Actions to Achieve Strategies from the 2010-2013 Thres
Year Education Plan. Because it is the primary planning document of the Calgary
Board of Education, using the Three-Year Education Plan clearly establishes a
correlation of common direction between the CBE and many imagineCALGARY
targets which are quoted in the third column, The fourth column on the table gives
samples of how Calgary Board of Education work is connecting with
imagineC ALGARY 30 vear targets. Thesc samples are not meant to establish a one
to one correlation with the imagineCALGARY targets. Rather, they are indicators
of the daily work that goes on in schools and service units that, in some part, share
common ground with imagineCALGARY. These samples are designed to be
illustrative of the breadth of the work that goes on in Calgary Board of Education
rather than the depth, The depth of the work is readily available in the Ends and
Executive Limitations Annual Monitoring Reports, as well as information reports,
Administrative Regulations, Capital and Operating Budgets.

It is worthy of note, that although connections are made to 44 of the 30 vear
imagineCALGARY targets the Calgary Board of Education also contributes 1o
imagineCALGARY targets with shorter timelines.  With few exceptions,
Attachment 11 is silent on the 10, 15 and 20 vear imagineCALGARY targets as they
are beyvond the scope of this policy provision.

How the Calgary Board of Education is actively involved in the working
committees of the imagineCALGARY governance structure.

In 2007, imagineCALGARY started a planned shift away from being a City of
Calgary led initiative toward a community pariner led initiative. As such, a new
sovernance structure was established and was activated on January 1, 2008, The
governance structure is comprised of 3 major committees, Steering Committee,
Collaborative Action Commitiee. and Communications Committee. A CBE Board
liaison report. submitted April 22, 2008, outlines the paninership work plans of each
of these three commitiees.

Since the development of the new governance structure the Calgary Board of
Education has had representation on the executives of all three major commitiees
and as such have attended committees meetings when called to do so. Additionally,
Calgarv Board of Education employees have taken key roles in planning,
facilitating and sometimes speaking at imagineCALGARY partnership events,
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V. CONCLUSION

“imagineCalgary is the blueprint helping Calgarians create a sustainable future and
exceptional quality of life for generations to come.” (imagineCALGARY Websie)
The (approximate) 100, 000 students enrolled with the Calgary Board of Education
will clearly contribute to transforming that blueprint into a preferred future. With
this reality in mind. long term planning and our daily support of students clearly
blends the Calgary Board of Education into being a sigmificant piece of the
imagineCalgary landscape.

The Chief Superintendent is required to provide an annual repor to the Board of
Trustees. reflecting on the extent to which the Calgary Board of Education
contributes 1o this imagineCALGARY Partnership and its 30 vear targets. Thas
report fulfills this obligation and demonstrates the breadth of the Calgary Board of
Education’s commitment to the citizens of our community.

NAOMI E. JOHNSON

CHIEF SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Atachment I:  CBE Connections and Contributions to 30 Year imagineCALGARY
Targets
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Attachment |

Ends 1: Hega End

Radafina, in colaboralion with Albarta Education. the condilicns
flegislative and requlalcey) required o support the persanalization of
kzaming.

Expand the cencept of schoaling; Le., distribuled learmng.

= Conduch an annual Student Sympaesium with pavent particpation and

comimunity input.

Faries on oplimizing tha leaming emvonment fe respond b chenging
laaming condibions.

compedence; age appopisis languapsa
skills; and age —appropriate ganerd
knwtedge and cognilive skils.

TZ By 2016, 95 percent of Calgary
shudents succesd i elementary and
jurmiar high sehaed, &3 measured by
standardized achievement tesling in

_Grades thiee, sk and nine.

Lelf-determination

T5 By 2036, sl pubilicly proveled goods
arvl sarvicas gre sfinrdable, accessible
ard priced In accondance wilh public
henelils

T3 By 2025, 90 par cant of Calgarians
repart thad parlicipation in craativa
aclivilies is an important parf of thair
lives

Oubeane 1.1 The education system maets the nosds of all vandﬂgartan i Grade 12 studenis and :uppnmw mletr and the economy.
Btralegies lo Achieve | Corresponding imagineCALGARY )
Quicomes Actions to Achieve Stralegies Targels Samples of CBE Confributions
: . : ) Lifebeng leaning

Frovice access I Develop, implement and menilor standards of practics acrss all T By 2016, by b age of six years, 85 % | The CBE offers full and hali-day preschon as
qualily pragrams PrOgrams. s = of Calary chikdren exhibil schaol wedl as full day and haif-day kindergarien
ek SR YEECNEN Imglement cobarent sarvica delivery Iramewarks to mazimize readingss, a5 rallecled by physical well- | opportuniies in various commuanitias Sreughut
o shudent nesds, responsivanass bo schools and Areas. being and epprapsiate molor the cily.
shifting siudent and Engage stalf and colleclive bargaining wnils Yo explors flaxible delivery daveiapment; emational health and a
Gormunily _ caliens and muliple work sattings thet develop muliple channels of posilive Bpproach b new expariences:;
demagraphics, and Ieaming and leaching thal extend access and buld Rexiily o suppor age-appropriale social knowledge and
commumily choice sucoass for sach shudant,

CBE students in grades 3, 6 and & generally
outperiarm other risdicions ard he pravinoe
on The anmial Provincia dchisverment Exaing,

On an annial basis CBE Adminsiration
recommands sfudent fzes and fes avels gre
subsequently ratilied by the Board of Truslzes,
Emecutres Limiiaion 18 and 18E spesk
spacilicaly fo being very alfentive io shadents
feas

BE sludents o o levels are afordad
oppormilies for creative expression.
Curncaular, axlra-curmcular, and allenaiiva
oA provice apgofurdios for many
diffarent farms of crealive expression
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Ends 1: Mega End

T? By 2035, |e high schood gradisation
rate dor individuals up o age 21
increasas o 95 per cent, and 75
percent of edults aged 24 10 25
complete a posl-secandary ar
vocalions educalion pragram,

Quicome 1.1 The edunnb:m system meets the needs of all Hmr.-l-ruultntu Grade 12 students and supports our snmly and the anunumy
mrabagﬁu.tu.m:hhu Emmspundfng imagineCALGARY .
QOutcomes Actions o Achieve Strategies Targels Samples of CBE Confribufions
Meaningful Work

CBE's live year completion rale (2004) for High

School is 74.7 per cenl. The four year fransilion
rale from high school 1o post-secandary is 359

per cent while six year transition rales are 60.3

per cenb

Goods and Services
T7 By 70235, all commenceal buildings are
aceassible to peopls wilh disatslilies.

T4 By 203E, we are daveloping "complete
communilies” that, among others
gspects, alow people lo oblain daly

CBE's Barrier Frea Audd ranks evary school
within fhe jurisdaction in terms of its baries lree
accessibility, A $250,000 budget is in place fo
stratagically improve the sccessibilily of CBE
buidings.

The Ten Year Accommodalion and Facilties
Strateqy and the School Capital Flan, Track
and respand ko growth profiles of the oy that

goods and servicas within a reasonable | inform the appropriate placement of schools
wialking dislance from homs, and schaol sies,

Communications

Td By 2036, Calgary increases Me CBE currenlly nperates in 242 buidings which
nusnber of {acililies and spaces thal are distribuled broadly heoughout the city. Mast
ancouraga human inleraction, and they | bulidings are available 1o the pubilc through the
are wadely dislribulesd throughoul the Renlal Invantory which & operated by the Ciy ol
city. Calgary, Perks and Racrealion
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rEaning, nGiae
gkill devalopment
anid persanal
safislachion.

| Meaningful Wark

Ends 1! Hﬂﬂﬂ End _ T
; Outcome 1.3 The jurisdiction demonstrates effective working relaﬁnnshiPs.
Corresponding imagineCALGARY
Strategies 1o Achieve ase
lguh:nmu Actions fo Achieve Strategies Targels Samples of CBE Contributions
Relationships
Cevmop « Buid a culture of afirmalion and respect T1 By 2036, 05 per cont of Celgariens of | CBE aperates with a Working Rilationship
woekplace cullire | s Buid humen resaurce capacky. pvery age and abiity raparl tat they Commimant dacumant which is currently baing
bl an tha wvakes » [Develop a framawork for culiura compatency value ard hava mulually supparlive ravigwed . Saveral Adminisirative Ragulations
af valce, + Identify and implement culturally redponsive practices. relalionships in several seflings, such | offer dear expectations of how all people are
accoundabiily, sell- |, poyiay sxisting protocols and make recomimandations in response o as o home, school and wark and in fhe | lrealed wahin the CBE..
3"':":"3 clartly irferral comglaints, comenunity
i . i th Relatonships Commitment,
responsbilty, et e Wisking o
whera al
empioyeas find

i}

T5 By 2035, 85 per cenl of emplaypes
axprass a high degres of pb
salistaction

4.5 per cenl of Facilfias and Emdronmenlal
Services employees raporied hal it was "a great
place to work™ in 2009,

Davelop &
comprehensive
partnership
framework bt
arpund cplimizng
legrning
opporuniies far
sfudents.

Fromale siakehaldar relationships looused on student lzaming
aURGIMEs.

Devalop and implement a cohesive phioscphy end guideines
govarning all axtamal relafonships 1o suppar studant learing
QUlCHMES,

Develop a comprehensive intarnal and exiernal engagement process ko
suppor implementalion of the Carear and Technolagy slralegy.

Lilelong Leaming

T3 By 2036, &5 percent of Calgary Youlh
complete high school by age 21 and
comphele some form af past-secondary
aducalisn of [ramng

Meaningful Work

T3 By 2036, 95 per cenl of endrants in Tha
Irades-redaled programs complelbe ther
peograms and 98 per cent of graduales
ane empkyyed n ther bekls of shdy
willen =ix manths of gracdualion,

| fradesmen.

{Repeated Tram Meaninghul Work T2 abave)
CBE=s five yaar complalion rale {2008) for High
Schoal is TA.7 per cand, The lour year franston
rata from high school o pesl-secondary is 39.9
par cent whila six vear ransition rafes are 0.3
pe=r cenk

The Career ared Technology Cenires wil engage
various trades ralated slakeholders which should
advantags many CBE siudents as ey seek
poat-secondary education and career
opportandies.  Last vear, wisl over 300 stsdents
earmed credils in the Regestered Apprenticeship
program and some of them warked with CBE
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Ends 1: Mega End =
y Outcome 1.3 The jurisdiction demonstrates effective working relationships. Py
" Sirategies to Achieve S = Corresponding imagineCALGARY _
Cutcomes Actions to Achieve Stralegies Targets Samples of CBE Contribirtions

Sufficient Income

T2 By 2036, all childen of knw-ncome
families who e residents of Cakgary
have the appartunily 1o complets post-
secondary educalion or appropaise
traming o enable tham to fully
parlicipale in ihe econpmy

CEE Mega End reals “Each shadend, in keaping
with bz or her individual abdities and giffs, will
complete high schodl with & foundation of
learning o lumclion affectwely in be, wark and

continisad leaming.”

T1 By 2010, 90 par canl of Calparians
agres thal these is a strong sense of
communily in Calgary, and o leasl 0
per canf of Celgarians repoet high
lewels of salistaction, sense of
belonging, atlachment and cric prida.

Currard Filler Surveys indicate 85 par cent of
shedents | parents and teachers feel that CBE
schools proside a sale and canng eiaronment
A lerge majarily of studenls, i respanssa to Pillar
Siwvey queslions, respanded hal they wene
proud of thair schooks.

¢, Creale nfomed,
pasilive sehool
cukures through
pubdc relalions,
parlicipation and
Commumications.

#  Dasign and implement a public panlicipalion process with inlemal and
gxtarnal slakelolders being ghean cpparinilies o advise an dacisian-

making processas,

T4 By 2036, 100 per cent of perzonal
condicts amang shudems, parents,
adminisiralors, support staf and ehecled
representatives in the educalion syskam
ang resalved Brcugh coltaborative
MERns

Aesthetic Enjoyment
T1 By 2035, 90 per cent of cilizens repor Close o Yo DEE.EEI'IDDE ha_w ouldoar
thet Calgery is a beautiful city classroom/ naburalization seflings. More
projecls are planned avary year
Conflict Resclution

The CBE has wokad 1o presmpd many confbcls
threugh wfilizing the Inberalional Association for
Pusihe Parlicipalion (1AP2) framework (o do
axlansie public engagament wark will school
cammuniies. Dopens of CBE staff have eamed
carlilication will [he associalion.

Clear prolocels are in place tha guide all
slakebaldars in prooodures 1o raise i550es and
have them resohed. The Human Rasources
Sendce il also provides ppporiunities lor
madialion and canfict resokilion
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Allachmeni |

- Ends 1 Mega End X
Outeome 1.4 ThEJl.HIEI:IInlmn demonsirates Iaudershlp, infavatien and continuous mprnrumunl
aienies 1o Achitye Corresponding unigmnGALG-ﬂR'r" )
R quulmnﬁ Actions te Achieve Strategies Targers Samples of CBE Confributions
| i Goods and Services
b. Chamgion the CBE | » Promote the CBE a5 a moded of local and global environmental T1 By 2036, over 50 per cent of Calgary | Through pregrams like Ecolead, an
ae fhe leader in slewarndzhip, businesses adogl a pratoco! for enviranmentsl managament program, CBE Is
public educaton susiainahle pracices and repost on il curmantly mapping processas and sating fargets
end astablizh it requiatly. tin becoms ncreasingty suslainatie.
image locally,
provincially and Each yesr a Sustainability Report and an Enargy
ghabalty Cansarvasion Action Plan is brought lo
Superintendent’s leam and the Board of
B Tushess
Seli-determination
T9 By 2008, end svery year thereaftar, O an annual basis the CBE magineCALGARY
groupsiarganizationa’grvamment repart | {iG) reporl s presented b e Board of Trustess,
am how 1hay have considerad and iC fias highlighted tha CBE repoet on s
adopsed the imagineCALGARY targals | wabste bor the pasl 3 years 10 & ieferenced
and sirategies {hat are ralevant Io them | direclly i A Framework B Advance
and in which they have bean idenfified | Emvronmental Stewardship Within the CBE end
as hawing a rofe. Ihe Five Year Inplermentation Plan 20072012
Caollzboration wilh il pariners has bean witlen
ko thie major responzibillies seclion of Peston
Dascriptions within FES as sppropriate.
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Ends 2: Academic Success

" Dutcome 24

feacher, e studen
and e cordent: e
msiruckional Gong,

Teacher

Content

Increase slxdent engagemant in setting individual leaming goats
ard assessng keaming theough porticlio practices, including @
portiolios.

Increase shudent access b leerning end resourcas by apening a
netwnrk far sludent pwrad digila! devices! mobile kaming
devicas.

Refina and promate understanding of the Calgary Board of
Education's parsanalized learning madel for each student/al
shadents.

Expard fha dasign of refevanl, mgorous, and aufhentic laming
lasks within dscpinary and inlerdiscplinary conlests,

Develop praclices, supparts, and mirasinuciures hat provide
anytime, anywiiene access to relighle. enshiing, and incluste
leaming bechnologies.

Incresise focus in gl programs on providing tasks thal demand
high levets of intellectusl engagement and that address &l levels
af Blaom's Taxonomy

Ensurg miMiple avenues for the creation, represantalion, and
integration of essential understandings end specific lkaming
autcomes through dilerenfaled curriculum, digital leaming
amvronments, universal design for leaming, and mguiry based
learning practices.

Dayediop and defiver curriculum which addressas culturaly-
different experancas and perspectives, unique studani inlaresls
and lalentz, and the needs of all learning programs.

polenlially productve members of
society, able [o change themsalves or
{hair Fwas irough Bew own actions,
having the personal powes by effect
change . the world and beng oplimistic
#out ther fubure.

Students demonstrate high standards in learner outcomes.
" Strategi nding imagineCALGARY
Sirategios lo Achieve Comaspornding _
Ouicomes Actions to Achieve Strategies Targels Samples of CBE Contributions
Self-esieam

2, Amplenent 4 Sudent T2 By 2035, 95 per cenl of chikiren aged | Ends 4. Personal Development. slales thal,
learming macel that #  |ncresse studants’ opporlunilies and abiiies for salf-dreclion gix to 11 years, report a high sense ol "Each sludenl will ar:q_uhe the skifs, EI:||J|.LI'E|'HE
ﬂﬂbm_;:h and active agency in their learning. sotl-worth, and BO per cent of Calgary | and krﬁ;ﬂieﬁae hanr:rauslpgrmn:;m o
SRR AR E students in the devalopment of learner peofies and adalascents, both male and female, polenlial’. More specifically it spe S
E‘;m 'ﬁ:"m"ﬁ il s leaming planll'lps. £ describe themealves as productive or | becoming confident and autonomous, adaptable,

pieal and craalive thinkers, rasiliarl, and
miakirg a dillerencs based upon personal
convictions. Armual manilamg reporls are
presented to the Board of Trustees kor Ends 4,

Creative sell-expression
T1 By 2016, 90 per cenl of Calgarians

reqeet that thay heva opporbunibes b

express thedr unigue gifts and (alants,

| Communications

T2 By 203, all Calgarians have easy
access o cument larms of
commuricaions lechnology and
MesouUIces

The mega shralegy ol personalized learning and
a wide ofleding of program and exfracumicutar
appoihnties both within regular and akarnalive
pragrams allord studams many opporunities io
develop and express their géts and Lalenls.

Thie CBE Digital Cezenship initiafive, in acdilion
fr enabing manvy sledants o Wikze their own
wireless devsices in schoois, is examining fulure
apporfunities io incorporate new communicalions
Technalogies 1o respand to and facilitate the
changing leaming emdcnment.  The sludent 1o
computar raio for CEE caned compulers
exceeds 1 b 3.5 and the ana to ona lap fop
prograem has ensured (hal all classmoom feachars
hawe & portable computer

Equity

T4 By 2036, racm and discrminalion i
dealt with by having public and privale
secior instilefions and erganizations
thraughaut the city infroduce meaninglul
and effective policies and procasses
and measurable oulcomas

AR 3045 Mullicullwalsm, is peescriphive aboul

| treatment and is Tocusad o lhe commimily,

school and e studenl. fswell, CBE = _
undertaking very intanfianal work 10 datinguish
ilzall a5 a 'Cullurally Competenl’ organization,
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Ends 2: Academlc Success

Oucomo 23 Kay Leaning Outcomes for First Nations, Métis and Inult (FNMI) students improve.

Aboriginal Education.

malfiple kaveds,

issues, and conduct & post-conderenca review of culcomes.
Investigate replacng currant Tuiion Agreamants will Enhancement
fgreemanis.

Increase fhe krowledge and undarstanding of FNII cuures by
increasng the level of support to administrators, leachess. suppart
siaff, studanis and families.

Davedop and implement & communication plan ko engage FRMI
parants, eiders, community members and agencies with our Board at

Apornigingl policy hal recognizes the
dedrimental colonial hiztory expenenced
by Firsl Mallens, Melis, ard Inuit people,
raduces bamiens 1o publc pesticipation
end governance, and supports
gconamic, social and poliical
edvancemants,

" Strategies to Achieve Corresponding imagineCALGARY
Ouicomes Actions to Achieve Siralegies Targels Sampies of CBE Contributions
a. ldenbfy and : e Equily
nplement promisng | *  Gonduct a review of Abariginal Educallon. = s T3 By 2020, all public inslituicns and | The CBE Abarginal Educalion Team provides
praciions in Organize an FHM| student leadership conference on social stice systams create and implement an urban | system leadership thraugh the implamentaticn and

support of Aboriginal education programs and
Zarvicas.
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respectied and supparted in lhair
pursuits of meEaning, pupess in
life arel expariencing ongaing
falings of connecledness, and
that they extand respecl and
gupport ip pthers who meal is
nead in ways differand from fhair
wn

Ends 3 Citizenship fre
Cutcome 3.1 Students model the characteristics of active citlzenship.
" Sirategies to Achisve | Corresponding imagineCALGARY _
Quicomes Actions to Achigve Sirategies Targels Samples of CBE Contributions
a. Embed demporalic oy Sense of Community

paticipation, + Pramote local initiatives in all schooks. - T2 By 2010, 80 per cenlol cizens | Ends 3 Cilizenship focuses an students being

weadership, + Organize: 4 shudent leadarship conference an social justics issues and pxpesience a high sense of informesd and invalved members of the commundy.

volunlesrism end coreuct a past-confarence review of outcomes. : : community in their neightiorhoods | Thera ane sieang indications that sludents leel Mey

service in studant + Develop periormance ard assessmen crileria for studen! clizenship and afinty-related communiies, | can maka a dillerence in e community.

leaming, praclices within the learning enrenment. as reflecled by residents’ raparls
of neighboehead parlicipation end
yolunteering, sense of bakanging,
naighborfingss ard reciprocity,
gense of eflicacy, allachment,
salety and vober wmout,

T3 By 2010, at k=ast 75 per cant of The CBE is supparled by thousands of adulls, mast of
Calgarians repoet Ihat thay whim are parents, who valuleer with schools in a
vakindeer for tha benedi of ihers | vast number of ways (e.g, Seld ips, schoal council,
wha are aulside their circles of classroam halpars ele.) Yelunleening within the
famity and friends. slisdent body & evidenl in virlwally 31 schools. {2.0.
digaster relisf afiorls. arvironmental clubs, charity
drives abo.
b Embed giobal = Meaning, so and
b Eﬂiﬂi’f’ e + Promale sulhantic gisbal iniliatives and connectleaming actiilies and | oo it TES
sttt leaming oulcomes Yo globel issues. , _ T2 By 2036, 100 per cent of CRE students report that thay have been encouraged
plas = implement e |niemational Certificale system-wide in all high schaoks. Calgarians report thal they feel ba respes! peaphe wh are different from them.

Thiusands of CBE shudands are enroled in language
and cullura courses, More than 500 international
sludenls sttend CBE schools and national and
nlemational travel remains popular with the CBE
sludent body.
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Ends 3 Cltizenship -'
Dutcoms 3.1 Studants model the characteristics of active citizenship.
Strategies to Achieve Corresponding imagineCALGARY
Oulcomes Actions to Achieve Siralegies Targets Samples of CBE Confributions
. Embed ; 3 ; Transporialion
aeviranenental Engage slalf and studants in action projects thal reducs their acological | 1 By 2036, we reduce the annual Marvy CBE schools are cusrenlly engaged in idie-free
liferacy and foolgrint e ) privaba vehicle kilometers bravelled | campaigne and some schools are warking on “walkiryg
stawardship i the Align EcoSites initiative willy the Comprehensive Haﬂ'l pragram. per capita by 20 per cent schoal bus” inilalives which entai groups of sludents
eultire of tha schoal, Engage stafl and sludents in the 50% wasle reduchion inllistive. waliing 10 school with ane of mare adulls.

Engage slalf and studants in the 10% electriciy raduchon inilistive,

T4 By 2036, there i a 50 per cenl
reduclion from 1980 levals in lhe
podution (gresnhouss gases)
azzncialed with aulpmobiles,

Curranlly gas consumption is baing reviswed far our
fleat wahiclas wilh an eye o produce grealer
efliciencies

Mew CBE schooks are being filtad with car charging
atations in ankicipation of eleciric vehicles. They also
hawa resarved parking for stalf that choose bo canpond

CBE staf hawe access Io an internal canpool websita
whera they can coordinie carpooding fo and from
work to allaviete tha numbser of single driver wehicles
pi Fire raad’

Cumently a “Telework” siralegy is being devised far
the: CBE stalf with a large! start date of 01 2011

Qi studenl fransportation providers are currently
developing idie free policies for their lests

Wasle Management
T1 By 2036, 85 percent of he waste
generaled n Cagary is divered
freeen Famiiibs

As par of the 50% Waste Raduction Stralegy, CBE
recycles elechonics. paper producls, ballenas,
plastics, books, beverage containers, lies, aggregate,
ink/loner carlridges, cell phones alc,

T2 By 2035, 75 per cent of
constuclion wasle materials ang
resoverad for rewse andiorn
recycling.

The contract for he recent demoifion of Albert Park
Schaol raquired that the vendor recycle building
malenals such as stesl and concrets
Al raw schools built within tha las) B years maouing

construstion waske o be diverted from kand fill,
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 Ends 3 Citizenship
i Outcome 3.4 Students model the characteristics of active citizenship. i
Sirategies to Achieve Ceovresponding imagineCALGARY
Oulcomes Actions to Achieve Siralegies Targets Samptes of CBE Coniribufions
Economic Well Being

TG By 2035, allemative ways ko
feaswe econormic wek-baing ara
commany usad lo supparl
sustainabilily privciphes in
dectson-maving.

The Erviranment and Engrgy Sendcas (EES)
depariment's Implamentation Fian aullnes intention
I i suslainable princples in 3l levels of
povemance in the CBE. CBE is presantly exploring
triphe battam lina reporing and ife cycle analysis m
decizion raking for equipmant and supphes

prunch s

Goods and services
T3 By 2036, &l Calgavians consume
rora responsibly

T5 By M35, all new commencial
buildings are designad lo
encourage (e use of atermalive
formes of Iransparlation (2.9,
wakirg. cycling and Iransil)

TE By 2036, &l new ard refrofiied
non-residendial buildings are huit
1 b weithin five parcent of fha
highest energy and waler-etficient
design available oul of al
paramicaly compelilive
producls, & measured on a life

cycle basis.

Tha Energy and Enviranmenial Services Shalegic
Framewark and Implementation Plan and ARs 7001
(Purchesa of Goods and Services) and 800G
(Environment) address issues of consumption and
enviranmandal and social respansibilty. E.g. The
CBE procures only Fomstry Slewardzhip Council
(FEC) cerified paper,

The new Educalion Cenfre has siorage available lor
hicycles and plans going forwiard wil include the
promalion of carpoaling, and e use of ransit

CBE's new bulkdings are all buili to Leadarship in
Energy and Enviranmenial Design (LEED] silver
cenification standards and LEED prolocels are used

far &l magar capital projects
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environmant, as measunad by (ha
quaity of its aF, water, soil and
food sources, plus by fie lack of
Exprsure o fowic wasta.

Ends 3 Cltizenship B
i Outcome 3.4 Students model the characterlstics of active citizenship.
Strategies fo Achieve Corresponding imagineCALGARY o
Quicomas Actions fo Achigve Strategies Targets samples of CBE Conftribufions
Equity
T2 By 2010 @l public institutions and | Ecolead, currenlly being pilobed in Faciifies and
orpanizalions impleril | Enwiroremenial Services, is an Environmmental
' suatzinabdity principlas Management Systen infliatve that uliizes the friple
[Melbourne Principles) n decision- | bottom line approach as a way o reframe CBE.
making and repesting, usang ieols | processes and resource wlilizaton.
5L a5 friple botlom liee,
Health and Wellness
T1 By 3035, all Cagarians livein a CEBE's commiEmant (o this is summarized in the vsicn
saly and chean natura stebamenl cantsined in tha Framework to Advanca

Emronmental Slewardship, The Calgary Boand of
Educalon is a mode! of foca! and gimba

emirnmental sfewarship,

Air

T1 By 2036, energy consumpdian is
reduced by 30 per cent based on
1899 use.

T2 By 204, the use if kvw-impac

| renewable eneegy increeses by 30
per cent as @ percantage af otal
anergy use

|
| T4 By 2035, mdoor @i contamnants
ara reducad o zero parcenl

T5 By 203, Calgary's ecological
| faclpring decreases 1o below the

2001 Canakan average of 7.25
] hectares por capila.

The 10% Eleclricily Reduction Iniialive & curenlly
part of tha Three Yaear Education Plan.  The plan
candaing 17 differsnd iniatives,

Severadl Schooks have miewable energy pogcls
which mclude wind lwbines, solar hol waber, Salar air
and phaloysitaic panels.

CBE's remaval of carpat, replacemenl of older
lifration systems. e of low and lower emission
prodiscis are soma axamplas of respanse ko indoor air
conlamingnls. Saveral schooks are involved in a
program wilth Alberta Envirenmen ta develog air
quality aclion projecis many af which focus an idle
[rea iniialives.

The CBE has partnerad with the U of C and the Gily
of Calgary to produce an organizational lpalphinl
calvulalor. Schooks ard deparimens will uss the
celculator 1o larged the measures lhiy can Bake o
decraasa their foatprint.

11
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T Ends 3 Citizenship 3
Dul::un;e 34 Students model the characteristics of aclive citizenship,
Strategies o Achieve | . Corresponding imagineCALGARY _
Cerfcomes Actions to Achieve Strategies Targets ESamples of CBE Confribufions
| Land and Soil

T2 By 2038, sustainabla uiban faod Faod gardens al six CBE schools are suppooted and
production ncreases ko live per promoted by e Energy end Ervisonmental Sarvices
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CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

REPORT TO THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

PUBLIC AGENDA
November 30, 2010
To: BOARD OF TRUSTEES
From: Naomi E. Johnson, Chief Superintendent of Schools
Re: Report on the Financial Status of the Operating Budget as at
August 31,2010 and Unaudited Financial Results for the Year Ending
August 31,2010
Purpose: Monitoring Information and for the Record
Governance Policy Reference: EL-10: Budgeting Process

EL-11: Financial Condition

Originator: Deborah L. Meyers, Superintendent, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Treasurer

Resources:  Wayne T. Braun, Director, Corporate Financial Services

L.

II.

Jon R. Anderson, Manager, Budget and Corporate Reporting
RECOMMENDATIONS
It is recommended:
1. THAT information regarding all budget revisions made during the period June 1,

2010 to August 31, 2010 inclusive (identified in this report and in Attachment I), be
received for monitoring information and for the record.

2. THAT the 2009/10 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2010 (identified in the
Attachment II) be received for monitoring information and for the record.
ISSUE

In accordance with the Board of Trustees' Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition,
the Chief Superintendent shall not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or a
material deviation from budget policy, and shall not fail to inform the Board of Trustees
in a timely manner of significant deviations or projected deviations in either the income
or expenditures in the approved budget. The Chief Superintendent is also required to
provide a report to the Board prior to November 30 regarding the actual use of operating
and capital reserves in comparison to Board approval commitments, and this was
provided on November 2, 2010 to the Board of Trustees through the fourth quarter
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Capital Budget and Reserves Status Report as at August 31, 2010. In addition, at the
same Board meeting, the Board of Trustees received and approved The Financial Status
of Operating Reserves and Designated Funds as at August 31, 2010.

III. BACKGROUND

Each spring the Calgary Board of Education prepares its operating budget for the
following fiscal year. Quarterly and annual reports are presented to the Board of Trustees
to provide updates on the status of the results of operations. These results are compared
to the approved and current operating budget to meet the monitoring requirements of EL-
11: Financial Condition.

This report includes:

« The Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expenses with budget
revisions and applicable transfers for the period ended August 31, 2010
(Attachment I).

o The 2009/10 Budget Variance Report (Attachment IT).

IV. ANALYSIS
Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

A number of budget transfers were made during the fourth quarter of 2009/10. to reflect
revenue and expenditure adjustments. Transfers generally reflect the updated plans of
schools and service units.

During the fourth quarter, the following net budget revisions and transfers occurred.

($ millions)

Net revenue transfers to partially offset changes in expenditures described
below. 2 W

Net expenditure transfers related mainly to finalized enrolments, projects to
be completed in 2010/11, changes in School Generated Funds to reflect
changes in presentation in compliance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP). (18.5)

Transfers regarding multi-year projects within service units and unspent
decentralized allotments at schools. (3.8)

Reduction in Capital Assets Acquired related mainly to changes in scope
and delays in completion of Board funded capital projects. 6.2

Transfer from Capital Carryforward to partially offset the Capital Assets
Acquired described above. (5.6)

Net budgetary impact -

[}
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2009/10 Budget Variance Report

The 2009/10 Budget Variance Report highlights variances between the current budget
and actual revenue and expense. The principle components of the variances and the

resulting small operating surplus are as follows:

Revenues

« Basic Provincial Instruction and Differential Grants mainly due to
finalized enrolments.

«  Other Provincial Educational Grants to reflect confirmed funding.

+ School Generated Funds due to higher than planned activities at the
school level.

« Other revenues mainly due to unrealized gain on investments and
increased program, lease and other revenue earned.

Expenses

« Salaries and benefits: mainly due to non-certificated Service Unit
gapping, partially offset by higher average teacher salary and
benefits, use of substitute teachers and by use of temporary staff in
Service Units.

» Supplies and services: mainly due to reduced spending for licensing
and computer hardware, utilities, and other net favourable variances
in Service Units.

« School funded activities: due to higher than planned activities at the
school level.

« Amortization and Interest due to additional amortization of capital
assets acquired in 2008/09 and increased interest paid on energy
retrofit projects.

Transfers from (to) Operating Reserves/Designated Funds

» Reflects reserve transfers as approved in the Report of Financial
Status of Operating Reserves report presented at the November 2,
2010 Public Meeting of the Board of Trustees.

Capital Assets Paid by Operating Funds

« Capital assets acquired: comprised mainly of delays in completion of
Board funded capitol projects.

« Transfer from Capital Carryforward: due to an approved unplanned
change in the capital carryforward.

Transfer from/to Capital Reserves
« Results from actual expenditures less than originally approved
capital reserve transfer.

Net Favourable Operating Variance
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1.3

(1.6)

2.7

1.8

2.7

(0.7)

3.7

(10.3)
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FINANCIAL IMPACT
Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense

The Calgary Board of Education's budgeted net financial results do not change based on
the budget revisions or transfers identified in Attachment I.

2009/10 Budget Variance Report

As at August 31, 2010, the Calgary Board of Education had a small favorable net
variance of $0.5 million on overall expenditures and revenues for the year ending August
31, 2010, including approved reserve provisions. On an approved modified expenditure
budget of $1.02 billion, this net variance, and resulting net operating surplus, represents
approximately 0.05% of the CBE’s overall operating budget for 2009/10.

IMPLEMENTATION CONSEQUENCES

Superintendents’ Team will be assessing the 2010/11 Operating Budget to determine if
any changes in courses of action, as determined in the preparation and approval of the
2010/11 Operating Budget, are required as a result of the conclusion of the Calgary
Board of Education’s 2009/10 fiscal year.

CONCLUSION
This report represents the fourth quarterly monitoring report to the Board of Trustees in

connection with the 2009/10 Operating Budget for the Calgary Board of Education, as
required by Executive Limitation 11: Financial Condition.

‘»-ﬁ--c””? L 7//’ e
!
'

Naomi E. Johnson
Chief Superintendent of Schools
CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION

Altachment I: Statement of 2009/10 Annual Budgeted Revenue and Expense with Revisions and Transfers during the period

from June 1, 2010 to August 31, 2010

Attachment II: ~ 2009/10 Budget Variance Report as at August 31, 2010
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Attachment I

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF 2009/10 ANNUAL BUDGETED REVENUE AND EXPENSE
WITH REVISIONS AND TRANSFERS DURING THE PERIOD

JUNE 1, 2010 TO AUGUST 31, 2010

2009/10
Approved Revisions/
Budget Transfers 2009/10 Current
Effective June 1, 2010 to  Annual Budget as
Description June 1, 2010 August 31,2010 at August 31,2010
(5000) ($000) (5000)

REVENUE
Alberta Education grants

Base provincial instruction 588,397 - 588,397

Differential cost funding and Transportation 224,125 - 224,125

Provincial priority targeted grants 66,766 (143) 66,621

Other provincial education grants 24,880 (1,724) 23,156

Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) Support 18,196 (2,690) 15,506

Provincial Capital support 20,882 - 20,882
School Generated Funds (SGF) 7,529 27,443 34,972
Other revenue 51,089 (1,188) 49,901
Total revenue 1,001,864 21,696 1,023,560
EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits 786,627 (3.119) 783,508
Supplies and services 175,959 (5,839) 170,120
Interest 2,807 - 2,807
School funded activities 7,529 27,443 34,972
Amortization of capital assets 33,710 3 33,710
Total expense 1,006,632 18,485 1,025,117
Excess (deficiency) of operating revenue

over expense for the year (4,768) 3,211 (1,557)
Transfer from/(to) operating

reserves/designated funds 11,135 (3.804) 7,331
Add/(deduct) capital items paid by operating funds

Capital assets acquired (35,920) 6,180 (29,740)

Amortization reserve 15,193 - 15,193

Capital debt repayments (689) 5 (684)

Transfer from (to) school purchased assets 1,454 - 1,454

Transfer from capital carryforward 7,074 (5,592) 1,482
Transfer from/(to) capital reserves

Building and equipment reserves 6,521 - 6,521

Net operating surplus
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Attachment II

CALGARY BOARD OF EDUCATION
2009/10 BUDGET VARIANCE REPORT
(As at August 31, 2010)

2009/10

2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Annual

Annual Current Annual Variance
Revenue and  Budget, Effective  Favourable/

Description Expense August 31, 2010 (Unfavourable)
(8000 ($000) (8000
REVENUE
Alberta Education grants:
Base provincial instruction 588,839 588,397 442
Differential cost funding and Transportation 224,959 224,125 834
Provincial priority targeted grants 66,615 66,621 (6)
Other provincial education grants 21,564 23,136 (1,592)
Infrastructure Maintenance Renewal (IMR) Support 15,506 15,506 -
Provincial Capital support 20,908 20,882 27
School Generated Funds (SGF) 37.651 34,972 2,679
Other revenue 54.032 49,901 4131
Total revenue 1,030,074 1,023,560 6.515
EXPENSE
Salaries and benefits 781,723 783,508 1.785
Supplies and services 164,826 170,120 5,294
Interest 2,942 2,807 (135)
School funded activities 37,651 34,972 (2,679
Amortization 34.296 33,710 (586)
Total expense 1.021.438 1,025,117 3.679
Excess of operating revenue over expense for the vear 8.636 {1,557) 10,194
Transfer from (to) operating reserves/designated funds
Transportation Fee Stabilization 1,665 580 1,085
Unrealized Investment Gains/Losses (1,750) - (1,750)
Utility expense stabilization (31D 1,910 (2.222)
Administrative Systems Renewal - 894 (894)
General Instruction Reserve . 2,358 (2,358)
System Transformation Reserve (300) - (500)
Fiscal Stability Reserve (1,129 2,500 (3,629)
School decentralized budgets (1,303) (1,303) -
Other designated funds 392 392 -
Unrestricted operating surplus for the vear,
before capital items 5.700. 5,774 (74)
Add/(deduct) capital items paid by operating funds
Capital assets acquired (24,545) (28,286) 3,741
Amortization reserve 15,208 15,193 15
Capital debt repayments (684) (684) -
Transfer from capital carryforward 1.759 1.482 277
Subtotal (8,262) (12,295) 4,033
Transfer from/(to) capital reserves
Building and equipment reserves 3,100 6.521 3.421)
Net operating surplus (deficit) 538 - 338
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